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Chairman Grande: Opened the second hearing for 1057. My feeling is that we need to be 

more uniform . 

. Rep Kasper: Gave a report from their sub-committee, stating that the people would like to 

' 

leave it as it is, they really do not want to change. I would like to see this thing work itself out 

in the next two years with the Veteran's Administrator and then see what transpires in the next 

biennium. 

Chairman Grande: Change is hard, let us see what we can do; it may not be a sweeping 

change but let us see the sub-committee can come up with to make some changes. 

Rep Kasper: We had a quick meeting yesterday with Mark Johnson and Mr. Trainer from the 

counties because they work with this very closely. Also ran into the Governor last night, the 

Governor is not in favor of this and would like it to stay as it is. 

This is what the committee what is now the amendment . 

Amendment Attached. 

Rep Kasper: Made a motion to adopt the amendments. 

' 

Rep Froseth: 2nd the motion. 

Voice Vote passed the amendment 
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Rep Boening: I think that what we have done to the bill is same old, same old. I think the 

Governor should have the authority to remove the chairman if he sees fit. I am opposing the 

amendment. 

Chairman Grande: I just have a question where we are striking out administrative committee 

on Veteran's Affairs and changing the name to Veterans Home governing Board. Is that why 

we are removing sections 2 and 3? 

Rep Kasper: If we remove section 2 we are changing nothing. So we are over striking it. 

Chairman Grande: We are going to let the Governing Board run things just the way they are 

without making any changes. 

The chairman also gave a rundown of representative from each organization: 

• American Legion has 20,000 members and will have 3 representatives 

• VFW has 10,000 members and will have 3 representatives. 

• Disabled Veterans has 5,000 members and will have 2 representatives. I have this as a 

suggestion as I feel we will be having more members in this group in the future. 

• Am Vets 3,000 and will have 1 Representative. 

• Veterans of wars have 3,000 members and will have 1 representative. 

• Native American Veterans has 1 representative. 

This gives us 11 members. 

Rep Boening: Many of these members are a member at many of these organization. I think 

we should have at Large Members. 

Rep Amerman: I am a member of 3 of these organization. 

'

Rep Winrich: I think we should stay as it is and we need to give the new chairman a chance 

at the new job. 
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Rep Amerman: I feel the testimony from the Native American issues with the BSO and they 

have no issues with belonging to any of these organizations they can be on the committee. 

Chairman Grande: I did have Mr. Bear speak with the Commissioner so they could discuss 

some of the issues face to face. Rep. Boehning do you want to offer an amendment? 

Rep Boehning: I will withdraw any further amendments. 

Rep Meier: Motion made for Do Pass and seconded by Rep Froseth. 

Do pass as amended and be re-referred to appropriations. 

Carrier is Rep Kasper. 



' 

2009 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Bill/Resolution No. 1057 

House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Hearing Date: February 5, 2009 

Recorder Job Number: #8797 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Minutes: 

Chairman Grande: Opened the hearing of HB 1057 with an explanation of how she was going 

to conduct the hearing. 

Rep Porter: Representative of District 34 and the part of the Public Safety committee. 

' 

The Public Safety Committee and Legislative Council during the past Interim did a study 

proposed by the last session on how our veterans are being served and how the system is set 

up in North Dakota, for the Service and Department of Veterans Affairs. 

' 

The goal of the committee was to put a process in place that best served the veteran living in 

North Dakota. 

He read and explained the title of the bill. One of the main points was that there are numerous 

counties in North Dakota who have never filed a claim or a grant for a veteran. That is a hugh 

concern of ours. 

One of the suggestions to make staff more accessible to veterans is to move the cabinet level 

from Fargo to Bismarck. 

Attachment # 1 
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Rep Wolf: When the Public Safety Committee worked to put this piece of Legislation together, 

addition to the committee, did you have any County Veterans officers or anyone who is out in 

the field for input? 

Rep Porter: We had considerable amount of input and once you start the actual testimony 

from the bill you will hear from them. 

Rep Kasper: Is the governor in support of this bill? 

Rep Porter: We never asked. We were working on behalf of Legislative Council. 

Brad Module: Veterans Administration in Fargo. I am not here in behalf of the Veterans Ad. 

am here because I am a veteran. So the opinions I express are mine and I fully support this 

bill. 

I am a Vietnam veteran and served for 27 years and retired after the Gulf War. I expired as a 

' Colooel aod rnti,ed as the Vhoe Comma ode, of the R~ht Wlog lo Mloot 

I do not believe that anyone who comes before you has anything but the best interest of the 

veterans in their hearts. This is not a Liberal of Conservative issue; this is a issue of Patriotism 

and service to the country and taking the best care of our veterans. 

Attachmenl#2 

Rep Kasper: On your chart, does ii mean the higher the number the better the veteran is 

served? 

Brad Module: Yes. Brad Module continued to explain the process of the Veteran Board and 

frustrations of not enough staff to assist veterans. 

Rep Kasper: Does HB 1057 accomplish what you are asking for? 

Brad Module: Yes I believe it does. 

'Rep Kaspe.c Coo~ yoo e,plalo the 110 employees io the ND Veteraos Home? 
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Brad Module: We have 2 supervisors for every worker. So there may be more workers with 

the Universal Health Care Services. These 110 are FTE not Board members. 

Rep Amerman: Is this based on a model as the Federal Government is set up? 

Brad Module: It mirrors the Federal Dept. of Veterans Affairs and would be more in-sync with 

40 of the other states. 

Rep Amerman: The FN states $135.00 a day per member. 

Brad Module: No they do not. No veteran joins for the dollars, it is for honor. They have 12 

meetings per year and 12 vacation days. 

Rep Amerman: I would like to hear test from Gordon Smith. 

Ron Otto: Morton/Oliver County Service Officer. President of the profession advocate of 

North Dakota 

' Attachmeot #3 

Dale Brown: Veteran Service Officer. Gave examples of how difficult it is to file a claim and 

that assistance is necessary. 

Opposition of HB 1057 

Rudy Jenson: Chairman of the Committee of Veteran Affairs. 

Attachment #4 

Chairman Grande: One question from me is do you feel each of veterans in this state are 

being served properly? 

Rudy Jenson: In coming up testimony you will hear what we had planned on for training. So 

no they are not all treated alike as they are not qualified to do so. 

Chairman Grande: Are all the Counties fairly setting up offices and have the people to assist 

'

the Veterans services? 

Rep Winrich: How are county Veteran Service Officers chosen? 
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Rudy Jenson: They are chosen by the County Commissioners with the aid of the Veterans 

Affairs Commissioner. 

Lonnie Wangen: I am a Commissioner from the Department of Veterans Affairs. 

Attachment #5 

Rep Winrich: Are you still recommending that we have a CVO in every county? Is there a 

hotline that could be called/ 

Lonnie Wangen: That would be a step in the right direction. If we can get some oversight to 

educate the CVO's and know where to direct the veteran to take a proper claim would be very 

helpful. We do have posters for the offices that list numbers where they could call to get the 

help they need. 

Chairman Grande: I still am concerned that we have counties that are not funding these 

Veteran Officers with offices and are working from their home with records at the general 

public and unqualified, working two hours a week, at best, this is not serving our veterans. 

How do we address this with the counties? 

Lonnie Wangen: Oct 13, 2008 I met with the commissioners, I addressed those issues. I had 

a lot ask me about their return investment but no one asked me about offices or computers. 

Chairman Grande: How many counties are we looking at that are insufficient? It looks like 

most of the employees who would qualify to take this examine are not working 20 hrs a week, 

is that correct? And do you feel that our veterans are being served at that level? 

Lonnie Wangen: I started last year but have not had the opportunity to assess all those that 

are insutfient. I would imagine that 20% that need upgrading. Yes I would say half of our 

CVO's do not work 20 hrs a week. I do not feel our veterans are being served at that rate. 
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Rep Froseth: I do not see anyone here from the Association of counties here but with the tool 

chest of Legislation that counties are able to go together join with other counties and have one 

CVO for numerous counties? 

Lonnie Wangen: We do have 3 officers in 2 counties, which give them more experience. It 

does work and having a County regionalized officer is what I would like to see. But I hate to 

lose these little officers as they do things like assist with getting medication and get a ride and 

more of a social service. 

Rep Nathe: You are talking about a accreditation program. How long take and when do you 

see that up and running. Do you see this in the next 6 months or year could we get a time 

frame? Could this be taken over the internet? 

Lonnie Wangen: I spoke with the National Association of Veterans Affairs from North Carolina 

' 

and he is sending that free of charge. All I have to do is change North Carolina to North 

Dakota and a few state benefits. I would need to get the approval. I see that on my door step 

when I get back to the office today. I could get it up and running in a few weeks with that plan. 

It is Web- based, so we should be able to make that available over the internet. 

Rep Boehning: In section 14 are you in favor of getting training. What will motivate them to 

take this and get proficient? Do you have any numbers of how many show up. 

Lonnie Wangen: That is just asking for funding to get them in for the 2 week training in the 

spring and in the fall. They are supposed to show up for the training. I would say a handful of 

them missed 

Carroll Quam: State Commander Chief. 

Testimony Attachment #6 

'

Jim Bear: Tribal Veterans Officer in Forth Berthold. Where does the Tribal Veteran's Service 

office fit in to all of this? We do not get any funding from the State of North Dakota. The 
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funding we get is from the Tribe. We are using tribal dollars to do the thing you do that are 

funded by the State of North Dakota. We have 5 reservations in North Dakota and would like 

to know who is representing us. We need to be proactive in the Veterans Affairs ourselves. 

We would like a Indian Affairs Commissioner to work with the Veterans Affairs. We have about 

700 Veterans. 

Skip Ming: Mountrail County Veteran's Officer. 

Attachment # 7 

Rep Froseth: There does not seem to be any continuity with how many hours, what days or 

times any one is working. Do you feel it would be better if counties had regular hours? 

Skip Ming: Ideally yes. I would like to see more funding so we could have full time, fully 

trained, Veteran's Service Officers in each County. 

' Cha;nn,n G,ande, Hea,;og ;, closed. 

' 



- Amendment to: Reengrossed 
HB 1057 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

04/29/2009 

1A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to 
fundinq levels and aooropriations anticipated under current law. 

2007-2009 Biennium 2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 
General Other Funds General Other Funds General Other Funds 

Fund Fund Fund 
Revenues $( $C $( $C $C $0 

Expenditures $( $C $105,39! $C $107,876 $0 

Appropriations $( $C $( $C $C $0 

1B. Countv, city, and school district fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the aooropriate political subdivision. 
2007-2009 Biennium 2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 

School School School 
Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts 

$( $( $1 $175,56! $( $ $210,67 $ 

2A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the 
provisions having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

New section to Chapter 37-18 of the NDCC relating to department of Veterans Affairs and to amend and reenact 
section 37-14-18 of the NDCC relating to County Veterans Service Oficers, and to provide an appropriation . 

• 

Sections with fiscal impact are 1,3 and 5 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which 
have fiscal impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

$0 

Section 1: *Accreditation of County Veteran Service Officers (CVSO's) with Department of Veterans Affairs. An 
estimated cost of developing training, producing manuals and other supply costs this will cost and estimated 
$4,240.00 With an estimated 20% increase in costs the 2011-2013 beinnium would cost $5,088.00. This is based 
on estimates of material costs to ND-OVA. Please note that this is an estimate that would include our state being able 
to adopt an accreditation program from another entity (state) which is already in place. 

*Accreditation with a "recognized service organization" is at no cost to the CVSO, County or State. 

*Accreditation with NACVSO: if section 5 is passed and appropriations are made for this the cost to the state and 
county would be as noted in section 5. If NACVSO organization can not provide contract training in 2010 or if CVSO's 
do not attend contract training then the cost to the counties would be an estimated $2,595.98 per CVSO to attend the 
2010 NACVSO conference in Minneapolis. The total cost-if all counties had to attend Minneapolis would be an 
estimated $129,799.00. If counties were to attend in 2011 an estimation of at least 20% would have to be added as 
the location of this conference has not yet been set (Air Travel will most likely be needed). 

Section 2: No fiscal costs involved. 

Section 3: Two current FTE's conduct training full time: This would cost an estimated $87,946.50.00 in additional 
expenses for training materials and travel costs during 2009-2011 biennium and $86,937.35 during the 2011-2013 
biennium.(would have to add laptops, projectors, and blackberry's as well as hotel, miles and per diem to visit each 
county 2 times in a biennium). 

A Section 4: No Fiscal costs involved . 

• Section 5: Accreditation training. This would bring professional trainers to North Dakota to conduct certification 
training and certify the CVSO's for one training period. This would cost $13,208.59 to the state and an estimated 
$863.50 per county 



-
for the counties during 2009-2011 biennium for a total of $45,765.50 for all counties. 

Please note: The amount paid by counties in section 4 is an amount currently paid for spring and fall conference 
training. With this training taking the place of regular training there should be no additional expenses to counties. 
Therefore this fiscal note would cost nothing extra to the counties. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 
A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and 

fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

No revenue created by this bill. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line 
item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

Expenditure as listed in Fiscal impact sections. Total of all expenditures for 2009-2011 would be $280,959.59 
($105,395.09 for State and $175,564.50 
for the counties) Total expenditures for 2011-2013 would be $318,553.06($107,875.66 for state and $210,677.40 for 
Counties). The total for the state and counties during the next two bienniums combined would be an estimated 
$599,512.65 
( this is considering that the contract training would be conducted in both bieniums)( Please see notes in section B 
which explain how these are maximum expenses and actual expenses could be much lower). 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency 
and fund affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and 
appropriations. Indicate whether the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a 
continuing appropriation. 

No appropriations other than this bill. 

AName: 
W Phone Number: 

Lonnie Wangen 
701-239-7165 

gency: ND Dept. of Veterans Affairs 
0412912009 Date Prepared: 

• 



FISCAL NOTE 
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• Amendment to: Reengrossed 
HB 1057 

• 

• 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to 
~ undina levels and annrooriations anticioated under current law. 

2007-2009 Biennium 2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 
General Other Funds General Other Funds General Other Funds 

Fund Fund Fund 
Revenues $ $ $ $C $0 $0 

Expenditures $ $ $105,39 $C $107,87 $0 

Appropriations $1 $0 $1 $C $ $0 

1B. County, city, and school district fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the aooropriate oolitical subdivision. 
2007-2009 Biennium 2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 

School School School 
Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts 

$( $( $( $175,56, $ $( $210,67 $ 

2A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the 
provisions having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

New section to Chapter 37-18 of the NDCC relating to department of Veterans Affairs and to amend and reenact 
section 37-14-18 of the NDCC relating to County Veterans Service Oficers, and to provide an appropriation. 
Sections with fiscal impact are 1,3 and 5 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which 
have fiscal impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

$0 

Section 1: *Accreditation of County Veteran Service Officers (CVSO's) with Department of Veterans Affairs. An 
estimated cost of developing training, producing manuals and other supply costs this will cost and estimated 
$4,240.00 With an estimated 20% increase in costs the 2011-2013 beinnium would cost $5,088.00. This is based 
on estimates of material costs to ND-DVA. Please note that this is an estimate that would include our state being able 
to adopt an accreditation program from another entity (state) which is already in place. 

•Accreditation with a "recognized service organization" is at no cost to the CVSO, County or State. 

•Accreditation with NACVSO: if section 5 is passed and appropriations are made for this the cost to the state and 
county would be as noted in section 5. If NACVSO organization can not provide contract training in 2010 or if CVSO's 
do not attend contract training then the cost to the counties would be an estimated $2,595.98 per CVSO to attend the 
2010 NACVSO conference in Minneapolis. The total cost-if all counties had to attend Minneapolis would be an 
estimated $129,799.00. If counties were to attend in 2011 an estimation of at least 20% would have to be added as 
the location of this conference has not yet been set (Air Travel will most likely be needed). 

Section 2: No fiscal costs involved. 

Section 3: No fiscal costs involved. 

Section 4: Two current FTE's conduct training full time: This would cost an estimated $87,946.50.00 in additional 
expenses for training materials and travel costs during 2009-2011 biennium and $86,937.35 during the 2011-2013 
biennium.(would have to add laptops, projectors, and blackberry's as well as hotel, miles and per diem to visit each 
county 2 times in a biennium) . 

Section 5: Accreditation training This would bring professional trainers to North Dakota to conduct certification 
training and certify the CVSO's for one training period. This would cost $13,208.59 to the state and an estimated 
$863.50 per county 



• 
for the counties during 2009-2011 biennium for a total of $45,765.50 for all counties. 

Please note: The amount paid by counties in section 4 is an amount currently paid for spring and fall conference 
training. With this training taking the place of regular training there should be no additional expenses to counties . 
Therefore this fiscal note would cost nothing extra to the counties. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 
A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and 

fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

No revenue created by this bill. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line 
item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

Expenditure as listed in Fiscal impact sections. Total of all expenditures for 2009-2011 would be $280,959.59 
($105,395.09 for State and $175,564.50 
for the counties) Total expenditures for 2011-2013 would be $318,553.06($107,875.66 for state and $210,677.40 for 
Counties). The total for the state and counties during the next two bienniums combined would be an estimated 
$599,512.65 
( this is considering that the contract training would be conducted in both bieniums)( Please see notes in section B 
which explain how these are maximum expenses and actual expenses could be much lower). 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency 
and fund affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and 
appropriations. Indicate whether the appropriation is a/so included in the executive budget or relates to a 
continuing appropriation. 

No appropriations other than this bill. 

Name: Lonnie Wangen gency: ND-Department of Veterans Affairs 
Phone Number: 701-239-7165 Date Prepared: 03/19/2009 
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Amendment to: HB 1057 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

02/13/2009 

1A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to 
fundinn levels and annrooriations anticioated under current law. 

2007-2009 Biennium 2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 
General Other Funds General Other Funds General Other Funds 

Fund Fund Fund 
Revenues $ $( $C $( $( $0 

Expenditures $ $( $103,30i $( $105,78! $0 

Appropriations $ $( $[ $( $( $0 

18. Countv, citv, and school district fiscal effect: ldentifv the fiscal effect on the annrooriate oolitical subdivision. 
2007-2009 Biennium 2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 

School School School 
Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts 

$[ $ $ $45,761 $1 $( $54,91! $( 

2A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the 
provisions having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

New section to Chapter 37-18 of the NDCC relating to department of Veterans Affairs and to amend and reenact 
section 37-14-18 of the NDCC relating to County Veterans Service Oficers, and to provide an appropriation. 
Sections with fiscal impact are 1,3 and 4 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which 
have fiscal impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1: Accreditation of County Veteran Service Officers (CVSO's) with Department of Veterans Affairs. An 
estimated cost of developing training, producing manuals and other supply costs this will cost and estimated 
$4,240.00 With an estimated 20% increase in costs the 2011-2013 beinnium would cost $5,088.00. This is based 
on estimates of material costs to ND-OVA. 

Section 2: No fiscal costs involved. 

Section 3: Two current FTE's conduct training full time: This would cost an estimated $85,858.50.00 in additional 
expenses for training materials and travel costs during 2009-2011 biennium and $84,849.35 during the 2011-2013 
biennium.(would have to add laptops, projectors, and blackberry's as well as hotel.miles and per diem to visit each 
county 2 times in a biennium). 

Section 4: Accreditation training. This would bring professional trainers to North Dakota to conduct certification 
training and certify the CVSO's for one training period. This would cost $13,208.59 to the state and an estimated 
$863.50 per county 
for the counties during 2009-2011 biennium for a total of $45,765.50 for all counties. 

Please note: The amount paid by counties in section 4 is an amount currently paid for spring and fall conference 
training. With this training taking the place of regular training there should be no additional expenses to counties. 
Therefore this fiscal note would cost nothing extra to the counties. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 
A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and 

fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

No revenue created by this bill. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line 

$0 



' 

item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

Expenditure as listed in Fiscal impact sections. Total of all expenditures for 2009-2011 would be $149,072.59 
( $103,307.09 for State and $45,765.50 
for the counties) Total expenditures for 2011-2013 would be $160,706.26 
($105,787 66 
for state and $54,918.60 
for Counties). The total for the state and counties during the next two bienniums combined would be an estimated 
$309,778.85 
( this is considering that the contract training would be conducted in both bieniums)( this included county espenses 
which are already realized for their annual training). 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency 
and fund affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and 
appropriations. Indicate whether the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a 
continuing appropriation. 

No appropriations other than this bill. 

Name: 
Phone Number: 

Lonnie Wangen 
701-239-7165 

gency: ND-OVA 
Date Prepared: 02/1612009 
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Bill/Resolution No.: HB 1057 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

12/08/2008 

1A State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to 
funding levels and anoropriations anticipated under current law. 

2007-2009 Biennium 2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 
General Other Funds General Other Funds General Other Funds 

Fund Fund Fund 
Revenues $C $( $( $0 $( $0 

Expenditures $C $( $608,BOE $0 $190,70( $0 

Appropriations $C $( $( $0 $( $0 

18. County, city, and school district fiscal effect: ldentifv the fiscal effect on the annropriate political subdivision. 
2007-2009 Biennium 2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 

School School School 
Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts 

$ $( $( $306,601 $1 $( $367,921 $( 

2A Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the 
provisions having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

governance of the veterans' home & department of veterans' affairs employees;county veterans'service officers,the 
commissioner of veterans' affairs, and the administrative committee on veterans' affairs;and to provide an 
appropriation. 
Sections with fiscal impact are 1,4,5,6,9, 12, 13,and 14. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which 
have fiscal impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1: Accreditation of County Veteran Service Officers (CVSO's) with National Association of County Veterans 
Service Officers (NACVSO. It would cost an estimated $3,500 per CVSO to attend this training. For 53 counties to 
send their CVSO's will total $185,500 for 2009-2011.(based on expenses of State VSO's attending this training in 
2008. With an estimated 20% increase in costs the 2011-2013 beinnium would cost $222,600.00. 

$0 

Section 4: Veterans Home:Governor appoints board members and $135 per day per member in compensation for 
meetings. No cost for appointments (per governors office). Cost for meetings $39,555.00 for 2009-2011 biennium and 
$16,065.00 for 2011-2013 biennium.(based on number of 
meetings anticipated by governing board) 
Section 5: Governor appoints commissioner: No cost of appointment $5,000 estimated to move commissioner to 
Bismarck. (based on governors office stating no expenseSection 1: Accreditation of County Veteran Service Officers 
(CVSO's) with National Association of County Veterans Service Officers (NACVSO. It would cost an estimated $3,500 
per CVSO to attend this training. For 53 counties to send their CVSO's will total $185,500 for 2009-2011.(based on 
expenses of State VSO's attending this training in 2008. With an estimated 20% increase in costs the 2011-2013 
beinnium would cost $222,600.00. 
Section 4: Veterans Home:Governor appoints board members and $135 per day per member in compensation for 
meetings. No cost for appointments (per governors office). Cost for meetings $39,555.00 for 2009-2011 biennium and 
$16,065.00 for 2011-2013 biennium.(based on number of to appoint and the $5,000 limit on moving employees) 
Section 6: Move Commissioners office to Bismarck. Total expense estimated at $454,526.89 in 2009-2011. This 
accounts for all moving expenses for office equipment, higher rent expense, employee moving expenses ($5,000 
each) and estimated employee turnover expenses (1.5 times annual salary). 2011-2013 would cost an estimated 
$54,343.58 in additional office rent expenses. (currently locked into low office rental contract for next 5 years). 
Section 9: Reduce Administrative Committee of Veterans Affairs(ACOVA) member size from 15 to 7 (one being 
chairman): This would save and estimated $12,000 during 2009-2011 biennium and $10,700 during the 2011-2013 
biennium, in hotels, mileage and per diem expenses. ( based on number of meetings and costs for those meetings in 
past) 
Section 12: Compensation of ACOVA committee members of $135 per day for meetings and other appointments. 
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This would cost an additional $9,450 for 2009-2011 and $9,450 for 2011-2013 beinniums for the proposed 7 
members.(based on number of meetings in past) 
Section 13: Two current FTE's conduct training full time: This would cost an estimated $85,858.50.00 in additional 
expenses for training materials and travel costs during 2009-2011 biennium and $84,849.35 during the 2011-2013 
biennium.(would have to add laptops, projectors, and blackberry's as well as hotel.miles and per diem to visit each 
county 2 times in a biennium). 
Section 14: Contract training with NACVSO's. This would bring the NACVSO trainer to North Dakota to conduct 
certification training and certify the CVSO's. This would cost $26,417.18 to the state and an estimated $121,105.00 
for the counties during 2009-2011 biennium and $31,700 to the state and $145,326.00 to the counties during the 
2011-2013 biennium. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 
A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and 

fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

No revenue created by this bill. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line 
item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

Expenditure as listed in Fiscal impact sections. Total of all expenditures for 2009-2011 would be $915,412.57 
($608,807.57 for State and $306,605.00 for the counties) Total expenditures for 2011-2013 would be $558,,634.55 
($190,708.55 for state and $367,926.00 for Counties). The total for the state and counties during the next two 
bienniums combined would be an estimated $1,474,047.12. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency 
and fund affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and 
appropriations. Indicate whether the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a 
continuing appropriation . 

No appropriations other than this bill. 

Name: Lonnie Wangen gency: ND Department of Veterans Affairs 
Phone Number: 701-239-7165 Date Prepared: 1212912008 
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Adopted by the Government and Veterans 
Affairs Committee ;;)_/ q / 0 '7 

February 6, 2009 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1057 

Page 1, line 1, remove "four new sections to chapter 37-15 and" 

Page 1, line 2, remove "governance of the veterans' home" 

Page 1, line 3, remove the first "and", replace "sections" with "section", and remove the comma 

Page 1, remove line 4 

Page 1, line 5, remove "37-18.1-04" and remove the second comma 

Page 1, remove line 6 

Page 1, line 7, remove "the administrative committee on veterans' affairs" 

Page 1, line 17, replace "national association of county" with "department of veterans' affairs" 

Page 1, line 18, remove "veterans' service officers" and replace "one year" with "two years" 

Page 2, remove lines 3 through 29 

Page 3, remove lines 1 through 30 

Page 4, remove lines 1 through 27 

Page 5, remove lines 4 through 30 

Page 6, remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 7, remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 8, remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 9, remove lines 1 through 8 

Page 9, line 10, replace "shall" with "may" and after "use" insert "up to" 

Page No. 1 90022.0302 
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Page 9, line 16, replace "national association of county veterans service officers" with 
"department of veterans' affairs" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 2 90022.0302 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) 
February 12, 2009 8:50 a.m. 

Module No: HR-28-2471 
Carrier: Kasper 

Insert LC: 90022.0302 Title: .0400 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1057: Government and Veterans Affairs Committee (Rep. Grande, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee (9 YEAS, 
4 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1057 was placed on the Sixth order on 
the calendar. 

Page 1, line 1, remove "four new sections to chapter 37-15 and" 

Page 1, line 2, remove "governance of the veterans' home" 

Page 1, line 3, remove the first "and", replace "sections" with "section", and remove the comma 

Page 1, remove line 4 

Page 1, line 5, remove "37-18.1-04" and remove the second comma 

Page 1, remove line 6 

Page 1, line 7, remove "the administrative committee on veterans' affairs" 

Page 1, line 17, replace "national association of county" with "department of veterans' affairs" 

Page 1, line 18, remove "veterans' service officers" and replace "one year" with "two years" 

Page 2, remove lines 3 through 29 

Page 3, remove lines 1 through 30 

Page 4, remove lines 1 through 27 

Page 5, remove lines 4 through 30 

Page 6, remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 7, remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 8, remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 9, remove lines 1 through 8 

Page 9, line 10, replace "shall" with "may" and after "use" insert "up to" 

Page 9, line 16, replace "national association of county veterans service officers" with 
"department of veterans' affairs" 

Renumber accordingly 

(2) DESK, (3) COMM Page No. 1 HR-28-2471 
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2009 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Bill/Resolution No. HB 1057 

House Appropriations Committee 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Hearing Date: February 17, 2009 

Recorder Job Number: 9617 

II Committee Clerk Signature 

Minutes: 

Job 6 

Chairman Svedjan: I have asked Representative Grande to be here. 

Rep. Bette Grande: HB 1057 on the engrossed version, there is three portions that have 

money in it. Section one; I see that the commissioner is asking that he have money for putting 

• together the training materials. I don't have a problem with that particular piece except I don't 

know about the dollar amounts. At this point, I guess we can let that go. The part that I want 

to point out to you is on section three, the Department of Affairs training positions. Those 

people are already in place, so I'm not sure why all of a sudden we have to pay for that? If you 

look at the language, he may use up to two of his people already there, yet he is turning 

around and asking for full cost. It wouldn't hurt our feeling if we took the money out of section 

three. Section four is our dollar amounts and I'm not quite sure why they split it out state and 

then county, because we said that the state would cover that in the appropriation. Just 

because we want to get them all on board and the reason all of this is county service officers. 

We have battled this, there are numerous one that sit out in counties that don't even have 

offices, they might work two hours a week. There were numerous complaints that there are 

- veterans not getting served. We are trying to get them all on the same page with the same 

type of training so they know what kind of forms they are filling out and getting the money and 
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House Appropriations Committee 
Bill/Resolution No. 1057 
Hearing Date: February 17, 2009 

services to these veterans. This is getting to be a larger job because we have more and more 

people coming back and we need to take care of them. This is just not happening. This is the 

first step or reorganizing these county service veterans and we are hoping to move this more 

towards regional services because we do have some areas in the state where there might be 

only ten veterans in the area. Filling out the forms is complicated and filling them out once a 

year, the forms are not being completed correctly. This bill deals with how we are going to train 

them, who's going to be in charge and direction we are going to take. 

Rep. Pollert: Why was HB 1057 not have been put in the veteran's affair's budget instead of 

an independent bill? 

Rep. Grande: It changed the delivery of service and redoing their 18-man committee. We did 

take that out. It was tooken out of Fargo and moved to Bismarck. We took that out and focused 

on training and taking care of their jobs properly . 

Rep. Pollert: When we get the Veterans' Affairs budget, we would need to make sure this is 

part of it. 

Chm. Svedjan: We have the $20k appropriation in the bill. You think that should come out? 

Rep. Grande: I think that should stay in. 

Chm. Svedjan: Going to the fiscal note, it shows expenditures of $103,307. 

Rep. Grande: It looks like he is hiring them to do it. These are existing positions. 

Chm. Svedjan: The appropriation has nothing to do with that. It's reflected in the fiscal note. 

Rep. Grande: Correct, we didn't ask him to change the payment schedule, he did in his fiscal 

note. 

Chm. Svedjan: It requires no additional money. So it's just the $20k at stake. 

Rep. Grande: That's correct. 
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Rep. Wald: Has this ever been funded out of the Post War Trust Fund rather than the general 

funds? 

Rep. Grands: The Post War Trust Fund deals with section two and that has to do with the 

conservator ships and how those are handled. 

Chm. Svedjan: Section 2 has no fiscal impact. 

Rep. Grande: Correct. 

Rep. Nelson: The fiscal note looks like there should have been an operating line and a travel 

line. Each of those individuals goes to counties twice per year. There are blackberries and 

computers. My understanding is it is operating and travel. 

Rep. Grande: That's what he is saying, you already have those people and we are giving him 

the directive to do it. 

Rep. Nelson: The travel has to be funded. The equipment, do they have that in hand now? 

Rep. Grande: He includes a lot of training materials in Section one. I'm not sure that the office 

does not have that. 

Rep. Meyer: It was my understanding that they are there and they need to do the training but 

they would need those dollars to go out, if they have a limited number. They have to be flown 

nationally for training and this was proposed as an acceptable alternative. 

Rep. Grande: I did forget to tell you about the amendment. Our clerk did not put in the 

amendment exactly right; it should say the North Dakota Department of Veterans' Affairs. That 

would mean our commissioner would be in charge of this process. He has a plan put in place 

and they would try to hold two of them to accommodate the different parts of the state. That's 

why we gave him that authority and did not force it to the national level. We need to justify 

where that money will go . 

• Rep. Skarphol: Do you need the same North Dakota designation on page two, line four? 
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Rep. Grande: I'm not sure on the conservativeship there as to which ones take those. I would 

have to ask the commissioner. 

Rep. Skarphol: I would move we amend the bill to include North Dakota on line 14 of page 1. 

Rep. Meyer: 2nd
. 

Chm. Svedjan: Moved by Rep Skarphol and 2nd by Rep. Meyer, to insert the word "North 

Dakota" prior to the word "deptartment" on line 14. Is there any discussion? 

Rep. Ekstrom: Veterans' Affairs in Cass County, how will this stack up to the national 

accreditation? 

Rep. Grande: We have a new commissioner who hasn't been on the job for a year. That's 

why we didn't go with the full rewrite of this bill. The original bill gutted everything he was 

working on doing. He has put together a whole educational program and uses almost all the 

national information. It would keep the national accreditation here instead of sending the 

people out for training. 

Chm. Svedjan: Any further discussion on the motion to amend? Hearing none, all in favor of 

adding the words "North Dakota" to line 14 prior to the word "department" say Yea -

Unaminous voice vote - opposed Nay - none. That amendment is adopted. Further 

discussion? 

Rep. Meyer: If this happens and training begins, how will it work with the national accreditation 

board? Does the national accreditation board say OK, are you compliant, or what will they 

say? 

Rep. Grande: I don't believe you need the nationals. From what I understood, unless we 

force the national you don't need to have the national. Our commissioner is going to use the 

national's material in the training . 

• Chm. Svedjan: Any further discussion? What are your wishes? 
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Rep. Skarphol: Move a Do Pass as Amended . 

Rep. Wald: Second. 

Chm. Svedjan: You've heard the motion. Seconded by Rep. Wald. Any further discussion? 

On the motion for a Do Pass as Amended for HB 1057 we'll take a roll call vote. 

Vote: 22 Yes 0 No 3 Absent Carrier: Rep. Grande Motion carries and 

Representative Grande is the carrier. 

Rep. Skarphol: We need to establish some type of policy or criteria with regard to the 

utilization for blackberries. I think they should have it but there should be some responsibility 

for the cost associated with them and their ability to use them for an unlimited amount of phone 

calls. It could be for a personal nature and we shouldn't have to determine what's personal 

and what is not. It is something to keep in mind. I'm not sure when it should take place, but I 

believe we should set some type of policy with regard to the utilization of blackberries. 
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Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
House Appropriations 

February 17, 2009 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1057 

Page 1, line 14, after "the" insert "North Dakota" 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

This amendment provides the accreditation for county veterans' service officers will be from the 
North Dakota Department of Veterans' Affairs. 

Page No. 1 90022.0401 
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Legislative Council Amendment Number 
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Motion Made By -........,,_.~.,·~=,;-=-'---- Seconded By 

Representatives Yes No Representatives 
Chairman Svedian 
Vice Chairman Kemoenich 

Reo. Skarohol Reo. Kroeber 
Reo. Wald Reo. Onstad 
Rep.Hawken Rep. Williams 
Rep. Klein 
Rep. Martinson 

Reo. Delzer Reo. Glassheim 
Reo. Thoreson ReD. Kaldor 
Rep. Berg Reo. Maver 
Rep. Dosch 

Reo. Poller! Rep. Ekstrom 
ReP. Bellew Rep. Kerzman 
Reo. Kreidt Rep. Metcalf 
Reo. Nelson 
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Module No: HR-31-3366 
Carrier: Grande 

Insert LC: 90022.0401 Title: .0500 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1057, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee {Rep. SvedJan, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS (22 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed HB 1057 
was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 14, after "the" insert "North Dakota" 

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

This amendment provides the accreditation for county veterans' service officers will be from 
the North Dakota Department of Veterans' Affairs . 

(2) DESK. (3) COMM Page No. 1 HA-31-3366 
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Bill/Resolution No.1057 

Senate Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 

0 Check here for Conference Committee 

Hearing Date: 03/05/09 

Recorder Job Number: 10273 

II Committee Clerk Signature fi&iw Q1 L 1-,rf J 

Minuets: 

Chairman Dever opened the public hearing on HB1057. Representative Todd Porter was there 

to introduce the bill. 

Todd Porter: Representative Todd Porter, District 34, Mandan. As we went through this issue 

- it was not without controversy. The bill that you have in front of you is greatly reduced from the 

bill that we came out of the interim with. There are still counties in North Dakota that have 

Veterans that have never applied for Veterans programs. That was a huge concern because 

they have served the county and that they are not receiving the benefits that they deserve. And 

as we looked at the system that is in place and the overall structure of the Department of 

Veterans Affairs and how do we get an agency to make sure that no person is left behind. One 

of our focuses is what is left in the bill, and what is left is an accreditation piece. In the current 

structure there is a person that is appointed by the county commissioned. There is an 

authorized mill levy that goes along with it. The primary focus is that they mainly drive people 

to the appointments. You cannot imagine the paperwork involved with the Federal Government 

in applying for Benefits, and the hoops that they must jump through. After we were done with 

- this it was the most rewarding work that we did during the interim. We didn't make people 

happy; we were not looking for popularity. The one area of focus is the education component. 
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No one is making sure that the Veterans are getting the training to get the benefits. No one is 

making sure that they have benefits available. Their primary job is to take claims but no one to 

make sure the job is getting done. As you look at this, focus on the areas where there have 

never been a claim put in, there are Veterans that are missing benefits that are for them. 

Senator Dever: With any state program, there is an expectation. It is not just about Veterans, 

with any state program that we have an expectation that the people that administer the 

program have an understanding of it that they can convey to the people of North Dakota. 

Senator Horne: As I understand it the main change in the law calls for county veterans service 

officers to maintain accreditation by the Department of Veterans Affairs within 2 years of 

appointment. If that is true what are the accreditation guidelines? 

Todd Porter: There is not any accreditation through the Veteran affairs. There is a national 

• course that we had in the original bill. The state was going to pick up the first round of training 

to make sure that each person would go through the training. 

Senator Nelson: Did this come from an audit? 

Todd Porter: Yes it did. 

Todd Porter: There is a whole new wave of Veterans coming home; they are going to have 

special needs that have never been seen before. A lot of that has to do with technology. More 

than ever it is important to serve the Vets. 

Senator Dever: The benefits are different that what they were. The new benefits that served in 

Boots on Ground in Vietnam they can get more than. I toured the Veteran Center last week 

and the list of things that they work with is great. 

Todd Porter: Across the state, the larger counties have larger function. They there are there to 

• drive the Veterans to the clinic. Across the state with the current system, no one is there to 
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work with the people. It needed to be studied in a public forum and everyone walked away with 

the common goal: give the Veterans the same access. 

Harvey Peterson: Golden Valley County. I have a brother that will not get the benefits that are 

out there for him. I think that this bill provides that the existing to FTE's may be used as 

training officers. The people that do not file the large number of claims could submit them to 

the North Dakota Department of Veterans Affairs to the review officers to be looked over. If 

there is one issue with the bill, it is relating to the returning of service men and women: my 

question is does that preclude us, by law, from dealing with those who have been Veterans for 

sometime? 

Terry Traynor: Assistant Director, North Dakota Association of Counties. See attached 

A testimony #1. 

W' Senator Cook: Would the county commissioners of the state still have the authority to employ 

a county veteran's officer? 

Terry Traynor: I think that they strongly believe in the service and having it available. 

Senator Dever: Section 3 of the bill says that the commissioner of Veteran's Affairs may use 

up to 2 of the department's positions for training officers for the next biennium. If we were to 

extend beyond that would that satisfy your concerns with the proposed amendment? 

Terry Traynor: I am not sure how the accreditation would work. The cost would not be pushed 

to the counties. 

Senator Dever: It seems that there is a difference in the level of service of veterans across 

the state depending on the population of different counties. 

Terry Traynor: In some cases it may be true. One of the functions of the rural county is 

• getting Veterans to their appointments. It may not be what the position is for but it is an 

important. 
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Senator Dever: Are the counties in support of the training. 

Terry Traynor: If the funding is there. 

Senator Dever: Are there counties that prefer to have more than one county assigned to the 

same person. 

Senator Horne: How do you see this impacting the counties? 

Terry Traynor: If the training was local I don't see it as an impact. I am suspecting that it is 

someone's anticipation of the cost. Would that be a registration fee from every county, we 

don't know. The bill has changed somewhat and the concept that we talked about during the 

interim and the CVSO would get the training and the state would be responsible for the 

training. 

Ron Otto: Morton and Oliver VS Officer. We service 71 % of the Veteran population in the 

• state. I oppose the bill as written. NACVSO was formed to do this very thing. Over 80% of the 

monies coming in are coming from the counties. It is millions that we are 

Senator Cook: If a Veteran from another county comes in can you help them? 

Ron Otto: Yes. 

Senator Oehlke: Do you have the accreditation? 

Ron Otto: Yes, I do. And they have cross accreditation with other organizations 

Senator Dever: Bring someone in from a national organization? 

Ron Otto: Yes, this is a base course. After that there are so many units that are required each 

year. 

Ron Otto: There may be a trade off. 95% of the benefits are being derived through the county 

assessment and bring it to a positive end. Military Service Center is a place to get all the info 

• in the same area. 



• 
Page 5 
Senate Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
Bill/Resolution No. 1057 
Hearing Date: 03/05/09 

Senator Cook: If there was a Veteran in Morton County, he doesn't have to go to you, 

correct? 

Ron Otto: Yes, that is true. 

Senator Nelson: Who does the liability insurance for your drivers? 

Ron Otto: The federal government covers that liability. 

Mark Landis: Veteran Service Officer of Burleigh County. See testimony #2. 

Senator Horne: What would happen if we restored the language? 

Mark Landis: Come to North Dakota and have a week-long training session. 4 days of 

classroom and a 100 point test. The test is not that hard; it helps insure that the training was 

effective and brings a VSO up to the level that they need to be at. 

Senator Horne: Is this a burden on the counties? 

• Mark Landis: No, right now they send them to 2 conferences a year. 

Senator Oehlke: Why was it taken out? 

Mark Landis: No idea. 

Cindy Munsch: Deputy Veteran Service Officer in Burleigh County. See attached testimony 

#3. 

Senator Horne: Is there formal training now? 

Cindy Munsch: Nothing that is required. After you are accredited you have to continue 

Senator Horne: Do you or others feel that it is important to require it to VA officers. 

Warren Tobin: Stutsman County Veterans Service Officer. See Testimony #4. 

Senator Dever: How many are accredited? 

Warren Tobin: 12 that are nationally accredited . 

• Senator Dever: Any that sought accreditation from other organizations? 

Warren Tobin: I have tried but I was turned down. Most of the ones that can will do it. 
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Lonnie Wangen: Commissioner, North Dakota Department of Veterans Affairs. See 

testimony #5. 

Senator Oehlke: In Ramsey County, the judge's chambers they have interactive video. Would 

they be able to access that training? Would that help? 

Lonnie Wangen: I am not aware. I believe it could help, though. 

Senator Cook: The bill we have says that they must be accredited within 2 years of the 

appointment, is yours being it is silent, and that it has to happen right away. My guess is that 

the challenge is that the somewhere in the state that are not going to do either one. How do 

we get it put in place today and have the goal for the next 2 years? 

Lonnie Wangen: There are people that have said that they wouldn't attend certain training, 

but that is just hearsay . 

• Senator Cook: Maybe we giving counties options that they either have a county veterans 

officer employed by the county that is accredited or they are served by another county 

veterans service officer that meet the accreditation. 

Lonnie Wangen: That is a good option. We would need to look at the maximum that they 

could have; I would not want to see 9 counties covered by one person. 

Senator Horne: You set the standards based on the Federal VA office of General Council. 

Leaving it up to the organization where the officer gets trained? 

Lonnie Wangen: The office of General Council can accredit with the VA. They are the ones 

making the decision to accredit with the VA; they are one that is with the organization. Say 

someone gets accredited and new people come in and we can work with them on that. 

Senator Horne: Who gets them all on the same page? 

- Lonnie Wangen: That is why we want to keep it on a state level. What we need to move in is 

this direction. Once we are accredited we don't need to bring in every year 
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Senator Nelson: The VAOGC has a list of approved programs. You would like to choose 

based on your needs, to do the accrediting. 

Lonnie Wangen: That is correct 

Senator Dever: If the training was from other than the organization that 12 people are 

accredited with, they would have to take it again? 

Lonnie Wangen: No. You can apply for cross accreditation. 

Jerry Balzer: I have no position on the issue. My comments have to do with section 2, with 

the conservatorship. I happen to know that the department of employees still has 

conservatorship with Veterans. Section 5, reinserted into what you have in front of you, it calls 

for the position to be appointed by the governor. What better to have service to Veterans than 

- at the cabinet level? As I understand the Adjutant General asked for $1,000,000 be included in 

their budget for transitioning and reintegration of activities for returning military personal. We 

need to eliminate duplicate state services. Wouldn't it be nice to have a one-stop shop for the 

needs of the Veterans? 14,000 disabled Veterans have not applied for their stimulus check. 

Senator Horne: I am not sure how the commissioner comes to that job. How does that 

happen? 

Jerry Balzer: The commissioner is chosen by the 5 major Veteran's organizations. 

Dean Overby: Chairman Veterans Affairs Subcommittee. See testimony #6. 

Chairman Dever closed the public hearing on HB1057 
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Senator Dever: What kinds of amendments would we like to see on 1057? Were there specific 

things that you want us to do? Part of my concerns with that language is that they must 

maintain accreditation within 2 years. What is the penalty if they don't? 

• Mike Mullen: Assistant Attorney General. The concern of the commissioner, regarding the 

language that was added in the house, is that based on interpretation of federal law, from the 

office of general council of U.S department of veteran affairs, a county veteran service officer 

would only be qualified to work if they log 1,000 a year or approximately 20 hours a week. That 

language might be construed as they are unable to serve if they do not log those hours. This 

language might result in county veteran service officers to be deemed unqualified by the 

federal V.A. 

Senator Dever: If we said achieve certification that would be different? 

Mike Mullen: The commissioner wants an amendment that creates flexibility so that a veteran 

service officer in a rural county who did not work 1,000 a year would still be an accredited 

county veteran service officer and would still be able to qualify under both state and federal 

• law. The background is that there has been a concern that not all county officers are properly 
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trained. This language is my attempt to translate the testimony into the form of an 

amendment. I have contacted the office of V.A. as to if this would be acceptable. 

Senator Dever: Accreditation or Certification? Because accreditation is a broader term that 

just receiving training. 

Mike Mullen: If a state agency gives accreditation to a county veteran service officer they can 

only do it if they are employed by the county and log 1,000 a year. That is why it seems to 

permit those other organization regardless of the hours that they work. 

Senator Nelson: All the opposition came from service officers that have gone through the 

accreditation process and they were not satisfied. 

Senator Cook: Lonnie has no problem with that. I believe that we have to put some teeth in 

A this and make sure that the veteran service officer knows what they are doing. As far as the 

W 1,000 hour requirement, only way you will find one who will get trained is someone who is 

going to make a full time job out of it. Then I think that our policy question is what happens to 

those that don't do it. At some point a county needs a trained veteran officer. The other things 

is that I believe we need amendments to study it during the interim, and I think that we need to 

change the amendments in section 2 to make it clear what the policy is. 

Senator Horne: The 1,000 hour rule, is that only a fiscal situation? 

Senator Dever: We have counties that have less than 100 veterans. They don't have the need 

for a half-time FTE. When a veteran comes to them and wants to know what benefits they 

should be looking at, they don't have the ability to articulate that. 

Senator Nelson: How long have Morton and Oliver been combined? 

Senator Dever: I think it was in the 2005 session. 

-Senator Nelson: Was it a decision of the veteran's decision or county decision. 
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Senator Dever: Sounds like there are all kinds of resources that come together and the county 

veteran's service officer is the lynchpin. 

Senator Horne: If there were counties that combined they can still have others officers 

stationed around. 

Senator Dever: We have a lot of people who are dedicated to what they do. Williams County, 

without compensation serves those around him. 

Senator Cook: The next 2 years, we need to have a timeframe to decide to train an employee 

or to solicit from another location. 

Senator Dever: What would happen if we talked in terms of certification not accreditation with 

the study to include consideration for establishing an accreditation process through the 

A department of veteran's affairs? 

W Senator Oehlke: Isn't that what the interim did the last time is study the issue? 

Senator Dever: They studied the provisions of services to veterans. 

Senator Cook: The study is done; we know what the problem is. 

Senator Nelson: There needs to be an ongoing action. 

Senator Dever: Would you like to see them establish an accreditation process 

Senator Nelson & Senator Cook: Yes 

Mike Mullen: If I understand it, each county service officer must receive accreditation by this 

date. You would also like it to apply to currently serving employees. 

Senator Horne: If we want to review this in the next session we need them to comply before 

December 31•1, 2010. Otherwise how do we know that they are making progress? 

Senator Cook: Maybe all we need is for all 53 counties to report where they are at on this. 

- Whether or not they have a county veteran service officer that will meet the requirement or if 

they are going to consolidate with another county. 



Page4 
Senate Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
Bill/Resolution No. 1057 
Hearing Date: 03/05/09 

.hairman Dever closed the committee work on HButt. 
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Mike Mullen was there to explain the amendments that were prepared by Legislative Council. 

Senator Oehlke: One of the folk that testified mentioned that the commissioner should be 

appointed by the governor. How does that happen now? 

- Mike Mullen: The commissioner is appointed by the Administrative Committee on Veteran's 

Affairs. That was not in the house bill, as I know it. 

Senator Cook: What is missing is a requirement that would cause county commission to 

report to a legislative committee as far as what their intentions are. Maybe it has to be that if 

you have a report on December 1, 2010 then you request it at the July 1 meeting and we could 

request reports from various counties about what they are doing. 

Mike Mullen: I could work on the language for you. 

Senator Dever: I wonder if we included in the report the reasons why counties might choose 

not to cooperate. I guess the point of this is that next session if any counties have not done a 

report we want to provide some sanction. 

Senator Nelson: Can we get Ron's opinion on this? 
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Ron Otto: Morton and Oliver County Veteran Service Officer My thought has always been that 

that NACVSO should be the accrediting agency. And I was under the impression we had put a 

sunset clause on that in order to implement that in the in next session. 

Senator Dever: Our objective is that we want every county to have a VSO that is well trained 

and good at what they do. 

Ron Otto: That was the premise behind bringing accreditation to the service officer's. They will 

bring in training and get them to a certain level. After that it is up to them to keep them at the 

level that they are at. NACVSO has 4 levels of training. 

Senator Dever: In our conversation we need to see that there are those people out there and 

we don't want to interfere with the work they are doing. 

- Ron Otto: Accreditation opens up the opportunity for the Service Officers. They have done 

memos of agreement with other organizations. 

Senator Dever: Does the language that we have here, does it do what we need it to do? We 

have expectation going forward. Do we need to tighten it up now? 

Ron Otto: Let the commissioner do his job and get cooperation with the counties. If that falls 

short then he will need support from the legislature. The COVA will give him directions. 

Senator Cook: With that intent, I am wondering if we can combine the 2 amendments. 

Ron Otto: I don't see any problem with that. 

Mike Mullen: That is acceptable. 

Senator Horne: Does that mean that SO's can be certified only by NAVSCO? 

Ron Otto: As the bill will say, I would say that if accreditation is obtained directly from another 

organization it's ok. 

- Mike Mullen: I did take some notes and I can offer some language about the dates. 
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Senator Horne: Then they would have a choice from different organizations other than 

NAVSCO? 

Senator Cook: Correct. If a county service officer is out there and right now his only choice is 

NAVSCO. 

Harvey Peterson: Golden Valley/Beach Veteran's Service Officer. Don't limit the accreditation 

to one organization & it should be up to the commissioner schedule's the training. If it is 

NAVSCO I will be there. 

There was no more discussion and Chairman Dever closed the committee work on 1057. 
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Mike Mullen came in and went through the amendment. There were still some changes that 

needed to be made in Section 4. 

Mike Mullen: My concept was that they have one by that date or by December1, 2010. If they 

- don't have accreditation they need to make arrangements to have someone else represent 

them. 

Senator Cook: I don't want to send a message to them that this is an optional action. 

Senator Dever: Or alternative provision to provide service to Veterans. 

Senator Cook: I would like to see page 2 line 5 changed. I am wondering if we come back this 

afternoon I would like to see it cleaned up. 

The amendment was discussed and they made changes where they saw fit. Mike Mullen took 

the amendment and noted the changes and the committee was in recess until after the floor 

session. 
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Chairman Dever called the committee to order 

Mike Mullen: I made one slight change from what the discussion was this morning. When you 

were talking about the conflict of interest or preventing an employee from serving as a 

• conservator. I left the language the way it was because I talked to the commissioner's office 

and there are spouses, child, or others who receive benefits so I think that you want it to apply 

to anyone who receives benefits not just the veteran. 

There was a motion by Senator Cook with a second by Senator Horne for a do pass on the 

amendments to HB1057. Roll was taken and the motion passed 5-0. With the amended bill in 

front of them Senator Cook made a motion for a do pass as amended with a re referral to 

appropriations with a second by Senator Nelson. There was no further discussion, roll was 

taken, and the motion passed with Senator Dever carrying the bill to the floor. 
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Adopted by the Government and Veterans 
Affairs Committee 

March 13, 2009 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1057 

Page 1, line 4, after the semicolon insert "to provide for reports to the legislative council;" 

Page 1, line 14, replace "must maintain" with "shall comply with", after "accreditation" insert 
"requirements established", and remove "North Dakota department of" 

Page 1, line 15, replace "veterans' affairs" with "national association of county veterans' service 
officers" and after "appointment" insert", except an individual serving as a county 
veterans' service officer on August 1, 2009, shall comply with the accreditation 
requirements by December 1, 201 O. After August 1. 2011, a county veterans' service 
officer shall comply with either the accreditation requirements established by the 
national association of county veterans' service officers or requirements established by 
a recognized service organization or the department of veterans' affairs in compliance 
with requirements of the United States department of veterans affairs" 

Page 1 , line 23, after the period insert "A county veterans' service officer may not serve as a 
conservator for an individual who is receiving benefits or services from the department 
of veterans' affairs or the United States department of veterans affairs. except if the 
individual is the spouse or an Immediate family member of the officer." 

Page 2, line 5, replace "a person" with "an individual who is" and after "department" insert". 
except if the individual is the spouse or an immediate family member of the employee" 

Page 2, after line 9, insert: 

"SECTION 4. REPORTS TO LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL. By December 1, 2009, 
the commissioner of veterans' affairs shall provide to the legislative council a report 
regarding the number of county veterans' service officers accredited in accordance with 
the requirements of section 1 of this Act, the agency or organization through which each 
officer has been accredited, and an accountability report with respect to the use of the 
funds granted under section 5 of this Act for the training program offered through the 
department of veterans' affairs to county veterans' service officers. The commissioner 
shall present followup reports by July 1, 2010, and December 1, 2010. By December 1, 
201 O, the board of county commissioners of each county shall report to the legislative 
council the status of the county's compliance with section 1 of this Act." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 90022.0501 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1057, as reengrossed: Government and Veterans Affairs Committee (Sen. Dever, 

Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, 
recommends DO PASS and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee 
(5 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Reengrossed HB 1057 was 
placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 4, after the semicolon insert "to provide for reports to the legislative council;" 

Page 1, line 14, replace "must maintain" with "shall comply with", after "accreditation" insert 
"requirements established", and remove "North Dakota department of" 

Page 1, line 15, replace "veterans' affairs" with "national association of county veterans' 
service officers" and after "appointment" insert ", except an individual serving as a 
county veterans' service officer on August 1, 2009. shall comply with the accreditation 
requirements by December 1, 2010. After August 1. 2011, a county veterans' service 
officer shall comply with either the accreditation requirements established by the 
national association of county veterans' service officers or requirements established by 
a recognized service organization or the department of veterans' affairs in compliance 
with requirements of the United States department of veterans affairs" 

Page 1, line 23, after the period insert "A county veterans' service officer may not serve as a 
conservator for an individual who is receiving benefits or services from the department 
of veterans' affairs or the United States department of veterans affairs, except if the 
individual is the spouse or an immediate family member of the officer." 

Page 2, line 5, replace "a person" with "an individual who is" and after "department" insert \ 
except if the individual is the spouse or an immediate family member of the employee" 

Page 2, after line 9, insert: 

"SECTION 4. REPORTS TO LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL. By December 1, 
2009, the commissioner of veterans' affairs shall provide to the legislative council a 
report regarding the number of county veterans' service officers accredited in 
accordance with the requirements of section 1 of this Act, the agency or organization 
through which each officer has been accredited, and an accountability report with 
respect to the use of the funds granted under section 5 of this Act for the training 
program offered through the department of veterans' affairs to county veterans' service 
officers. The commissioner shall present followup reports by July 1, 2010, and 
December 1, 2010. By December 1, 2010, the board of county commissioners of each 
county shall report to the legislative council the status of the county's compliance with 
section 1 of this Act." 

Renumber accordingly 
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Minutes: 

Chairman Holmberg called the committee hearing to order on HB 1057 which relates to the 

department of Veterans Affairs employees and county veterans' service officers. Roll call was 

taken. 

Senator Dick Dever, District 32 

I serve as chairman of the Government and Veterans Affairs committee. This bill includes 

$20,000 for the training of County Veteran's Service officers (CVSO). We consider that to be 

very important and would ask for your positive consideration. There are still some policy 

considerations to be worked out in conference committee. The $20,000 fiscal note was arrived 

at work in the interim committee and not in the policy committee so I don't there needs to be 

any adjustments to that. 

Senator Kilzer: Do you know if this request is attempted to be put on with the Department of 

Veterans Affairs which was part of the veteran's bill? 

Senator Dever: I don't know the answer to that. I was not involved in the interim committee 

that considered that but there is always a question about the dollars that are arrived at through 

the interim process and how they are entered into the governors considerations for his 

executive budget. 
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- Senator Krebsbach asked for an explanation of the fiscal note. For 09-11, it goes from 

$45,000 to $175,000, and in 11-13, it goes from almost $55,000 to $210,000. 

Senator Dever: I don't think there was anything done in policy committee that would have 

changed that. 

Chairman Holmberg: The department is here, so we should be able to get the answer to that 

question. 

Lonnie Wangen, Commissioner of Veterans Affairs -

Testified in favor of HB 1057. No written testimony. 

As Senator Dever spoke, there are some policy changes that need to be made on this bill, but 

as far as the fiscal note, I'm supporting it and ask for enough money to fund all sections of this 

bill. Section 5 asks for $20,000 which is a onetime bill. It would be nice if we could have that 

every year. We have put that in our budget and have added that as an additional amendment. 

So far that has been turned down. There was an additional $50,000 we asked for our budget 

so we could do various accredited training. This 20,000 is for a onetime. Our budget would be 

for a constant. 

In Section 3 - It says we may have up to two FTE (fulltime equivalents) as training officers for 

the state. That comes out to roughly $42,000 for one FTE to do this kind of training, and since 

it asks for two, the most it would be would be $87,949. That money is in the fiscal note, but it's 

not appropriated to our budget at this time. We asked for amendments to add one FTE, to add 

$50,000 for this training, and to add monies for laptops for the 12 veteran's service officers. 

Those amendments have not been approved yet. 

Chairman Holmberg: You are asking that over in the house where your budget is? 

Lonnie Wangen: We asked for that when the budget was here, and we're still asking for it in 

the House. 
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• Chairman Holmberg: Is that where your venue is right now for that additional money in the 

budget? 

Lonnie Wangen: That is correct. That money would not cover the full $80,000. We only ask 

for $50,000 and one FTE. So if we had one FTE, it would take that $50,000 to keep things 

running and that would also include money to bring in future contract training beyond the 

$20,000 that is appropriated here. 

In Section 1 wording was changed, and I sent an email detailing the explanation of that. I did 

calculations at what it would cost to send one CVSO to the next accredited training in 2010 

We are trying to send the service officers for national accreditations and they are booked. Our 

concern is that if the counties don't make it to that training that is provided here, then they 

would need to go to the training that in 2010 may be in Minneapolis. The total fiscal note is 

mileage from Bismarck (which is an average) to Minneapolis and all the expenses it would take 

for all CVSOs to go. The fiscal note provided prior to this would be a realistic fiscal note if all 

the CVSOs went to contract training that was provided under these appropriations. We would 

like to combine our two trainings into one training. So the appropriations for the counties, it 

wouldn't be any additional expense. 

Senator Mathern: Is there any money in this bill that is already in the House in other bills? 

Lonnie Wangen: Nothing that's been approved. 

Senator Mathern: There's nothing in this bill that duplicates anything else that has been 

approved by this legislature. 

Lonnie Wangen: That is correct. 

Jerry Samuelson, McKenzie County Veterans Service Officer 

Testified in favor of HB 1057. No written attached testimony. 
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• I am in support of the appropriations for funding to help train our Veterans Service Officers. 

• 

Currently we have two training sessions per year. Those training sessions last approximately 

two days. I do not believe that's enough training. We have a lot of part time service officers 

who simply need more training. Our two sessions are simply not enough to maintain our 

proficiency. There were two additions to this bill. One that I'm against is the part where it talks 

about bringing in a particular group. I've been working the Commissioner of Veteran's Affairs 

on trying to bring in many different types of groups. The two supplements to this bill talk about 

specific groups. I don't think we need to tie the commissioner's hands. We're presently 

bringing in the American Legion in April. I've talked to the VFW and the AMVETS. Presently 

they are having funding issues. The American Legion is going to be doing two days of training 

at no cost to the state or the counties. There is some cost to this specific group that is 

mentioned here, the National Association of County Veteran's Service Officers (NACVSO). 

We would like to bring in all groups, but we I don't think we need to legislate to the 

commissioner of veterans affairs individual organizations to do our training. Basically, we are 

tying our commissioner's hands. All of this training and all of these service organizations are 

great. Presently there is not a certification requirement for county veteran's service officers. 

That is the responsibility of the Commissioner of Veteran's Affairs; they are to set guidelines 

for the County Veterans Service Officers. We have a very capable commissioner and we need 

to let him work with our committee. 

Senator Mathern: Are you suggesting we amend section 1, line 17, 18, 19? Was that 

brought to the policy committee and does your organization have a specific amendment to 

offer at this time? 

Jerry Samuelson: We were in support of the House bill. We were in favor of that 
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• Senator Mathern: Is the change you're recommending today, the change you suggested to 

• 

• 

the policy committee? 

Jerry Samuelson: No, we did not go to the policy committee for that change. 

Mark Landeis, Burleigh County Veterans Service Officer, 

Testified in favor of HB 1057. No written testimony. 

I am accredited with the National Association of County Veterans Service Officers. I support 

the bill as it is currently written and engrossed, specifically with respect to mandatory 

accreditation through the National Association of County Veteran Service Officers (NACVSO). 

There appears to be a misconception that accreditation with any organization is just as valid as 

any other for county veteran service officers. I am here to tell you that is simply a myth. 

Organizations do offer good training for their people; however, it's not geared to County 

Veterans Service Officers. It's primarily designed for regional office and home office 

employees. NACVSO is geared to the county level. It's conducted by the best county service 

officers in the United States. We're able to provide this training in ND to all of our VSOs at a 

minimal cost. Also NACVSO opens the door to cross accreditation with several other 

organizations, such as the VFW, AMVETS, and DAV (Disabled American Veterans). When I 

become accredited with NACVSO, I can also become accredited with VFW, DAV, and 

AMVETS. They all have National Service Officers in Fargo. With my accreditation, I have 

access to the records for the veteran. This is a tremendous asset in being an advocate for the 

veteran. I believe the fear of being tied to one organization is not justified. NACVSO is 

growing, it's not going away. Training for multiple organizations will only result in inconsistent 

training standards as well as the quality of training. Furthermore, we do not have details of the 

current accreditation plans. The spring conference is only a month away. We don't know if it's 

really designed for CVSOs, we don't know if it's approved by the VA If not, how long will it 
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• take to be approved? Those details have not been forthcoming. I believe we need to move 

• 

forward. We need to make the best plan based on the advice from experts, not from laymen. 

We need to fund it and we need to execute it. Put the best tools in our hands and let us go to 

work. 

V. Chair Bowman: Is this being driven from the local levels to require more training or is it 

from the top end saying you need to be trained? 

Mark Landeis: There are a lot of opinions at different levels. There are several of the CVSOs 

who do support the professional organization. There are some who oppose it. I believe they 

oppose it because they are afraid of taking a test. The test validates the training and makes 

sure the person grasps the very basics and has the ability to perform this type of work. 

Ronald D. Otto, President, Professional Veteran's Advocates, North Dakota 

Testified in favor of HB 1057. No written testimony. 

We are fourteen counties that formed a new organization last year and we are all members of 

the NACVSO and most of us are already accredited. I support the bill as is and I support the 

appropriation of $20,000 in order to provide the training. The engine that drove the $20,000 

came out of the interim study committee. NACVSO is the gold standard for training. The bill 

as it is set up does not tie anybodies hands, and in fact, it enables the commissioner to put a 

program together and get it in place and implement it as the bill stands. It's just that NACVSO 

would be the accrediting agency in 2010. Our membership of the Professional Veterans 

Advocates of North Dakota, the 14 counties, we service over 71 % of the veterans in the state. 

We probably do over 80% of the work in the state. We're up and running and we're a 

professional group. When the previous speaker mentioned that they are developing a long 

term training program in Fargo, we weren't invited. Our training program was developed out of 
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• the interim study committee and a long term training program is going to be developed by the 

commissioner's office. 

• 

Senator Robinson: The 14 counties and the 71 % of the veterans that you represent, are we 

covering geographically the major areas in ND or not. What can you tell us in composition of 

the 14 counties? 

Ronald D. Otto: The 14 counties are a combination of some major counties and some 

smaller populated counties. We're taking Cass and Grand Forks, Stutsman, Barnes, Burleigh, 

Morton, Grant, Traill, Stark, Dunn County, Oliver County. In dealing with both the large and 

small county and the interim study committee, I handle both Oliver and Morton Counties. We 

had a CVSO in Oliver County that was there for 17 years who had never filed a claim. There is 

federal money out there and we need to go after it. 

Senator Lindaas: Do you see a time in the near future when the veterans' organizations are 

less fragmented. I was on that interim committee and it was disturbing to me to see the turf 

battle that was going on. You all fought on the same side during the various wars that you 

were in and now there is a division there that to me is kind of disturbing. 

Ronald D. Otto: In some issues, we close ranks in a hurry. There is going to be a change 

and we're turning a corner. We're going from the twentieth century to the twenty-first century; 

electronic claim filing is coming along. The computer age is now here. We're talking 

enhanced training so that everybody basically has a base knowledge of what we're doing. 

Lonnie Wangen: You had asked earlier about the wording that was agreed upon. This is the 

wording that was agreed upon between me as commissioner and the chairman of the ND 

Association of Counties, and Mr. Ronald Otto, the president of the professionals. Basically, 

what this says is, "the County Service Officers must comply with the accreditation requirement 

as set by the ND Department of Veterans Affairs in complying with the VA office of general 
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• counsel." We've agreed that this training needs to come in the next biennium. We agree that 

• 

• 

everyone should get the NACVSO training by 2010. The wording after that says you can go 

with NACVSO or you can go with us. The ND Department of Veterans Affairs should set the 

training standards and accreditations. We should be able to set some state standards also on 

that and this doesn't allow that. It allows the service officer to bypass this agency all together. 

Senator Kilzer: As I recall, the Depart of Veterans Affairs' spending was on the same bill as 

the authorization budget for the veteran's home and in past sessions, has the funding of 

CVSOs been separate like it is in this bill or has it been part of the department of veterans 

affairs? 

Lonnie Wangen: CVSOs have never been funded by the state, they have always been 

county funded as far as my knowledge goes. They are 100% funded by their counties or a mill 

levy . 

Handed out info - attached #1 

(Job# 11333 starting 30:53) (March 20, 2009) 

Chairman Holmberg: I have questions on HB 1057. My sinuses might be plugged up or 

something but I couldn't figure out the cat fight. We were being asked to get out our whistles 

and striped shirts and I believe Senator Dever essentially said there are several issues that 

need to be picked on and worked on. Let's do that in the conference committee and just pass 

judgment on the $20,000. 

Senator Robinson: The public safety committee studied over the interim and Senator 

Lindaas was active on that committee. He is very accurate in talking about the division within 

the veteran's organization. There was a proposal initially to restructure it pretty aggressively 

and that met with a lot of consternation statewide. There was a proposal to move the VSO out 
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• of Fargo to Bismarck and there were clearly two sides on that issue and also to restructure the 

veterans' board. Those were some of the issues that added to the controversy. 

• 

Senator Mathern: We were dealing with this as a subcommittee as part of the veterans home 

bill. It was clear that the commissioner was new to the system and it's fairly new. Another 

issue is that this never gets developed enough to understand what's going on because we 

spent all our time on geo-thermal wells, buildings and staffing the veteran's home and only 

spent a couple minutes on this issue. We never really fleshed out the whole story. 

Chairman Holmberg: You raise a good question. I'd like to ask Lori, is that because of 

tradition that those are treated together in the same bill or is it something statutorily that they 

have to be treated together. We have some of these agency budgets that are really small. 

Lori Laschkewitsch, Fiscal Analyst, 0MB - I don't believe there is a statutory requirement 

It's just that those two budgets have been together for ever. 

Chairman Holmberg: The legislature, by legislative intent, say that in the preparation of the 

budgets of 2011 biennium that they shall be treated as separate bills, and then it would 

happen. I don't know if that's good or bad, but Senator Mathern raises a good point about it 

getting overshadowed. 

Senator Robinson: This session, with the construction of the home, the geo-thermal, the 

landscaping issue and so on. It obviously consumed more attention than ever before and 

maybe it made the situation worse. I concur with Senator Mathern because there are two 

distinct budgets here that should be treated separately, even if they're back to back. 

Chairman Holmberg: That would be an issue that if that was a direction they wanted to go, 

they could certainly attach that There will be a conference committee on all these bills. 

Senator Christmann: We're talking about $20,000 and I look at the fiscal note and it shows 

$105,000 and I read into the 2nd page of the fiscal note and between state and counties, there 
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• is some reference to $600,000. So I don't even know what questions to ask these county 

service people. I don't know what we are talking about here. 

Senator Kilzer: I was on the public interim committee and also on the veteran's home. 

During the last interim, most of the early time was spent debating the size of the department of 

veteran's affairs board. There are five veteran organizations and each one has three people 

on the board, so that's fifteen people on the board. That's the way the veterans like it and they 

want to keep it that way. The people on the interim committee were more interested in 

lessening the number down to seven or even five. That got the veterans up in arms about a lot 

of things including the subsequent things which is kind of a target at the CVSOs. There is a 

wide discrepancy in the amount of training they have and the number of claims they file. That 

becomes the issue later on. I myself still ask why all of this isn't in the main Veteran's bill. Why 

are we seeing a separate bill? There is an appropriation for the Department of Veterans 

Affairs along with the operation of the Veterans Home. I think we have duplication. 

Senator Mathern: I would say that it's basically because the interim committee said there 

should be a separate bill. It wasn't an individual legislator who said it but the governor. It 

would be better had the governor put it in his bill. 

Chairman Holmberg: The governor typically doesn't put in interim bills. 

Lori Laschkewtisch: That is correct. The interim committee spent a significant amount of 

time. 

Senator Krebsbach: I have dealt in GVA years ago; we had a lot of dissension between 

veterans groups. We reorganized the board back in late 90s or early 2000. It came around 

then and everyone was in agreement and things were going just great in the next couple of 

sessions. Now all of a sudden, it's back in turmoil. As I see it, one group which is called the 

statewide CVOs. They want to see the training done under an umbrella that they can approve 
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• and the other group of the 14 counties, the president of the professional advocates; they want 

• 

to be under the umbrella of the national group. There has to be some common ground here, 

but you have to get people working together to accomplish it. 

Chairman Holmberg: It's a big issue for $20,000. 

Senator Krebsbach: If I remember right, the Veterans' post war trust fund is to take care of 

needs of veterans. I'm wondering if this would qualify because it would help the veterans to 

have training. 

Senator Lindaas: A personal observation - These are nice folks, all of them, but they get off 

on the wrong foot in some cases. Part of it is turf and part of it lack of communication, I would 

say. I kind of hate these deals where people are fighting amongst themselves and they come 

in here and want us to sort it out. It's kind of like a couple kids fighting and they yell, "Ma". 

I don't think it's our job to do that, particularly when we're a budget committee . 

Senator Krauter: I can't quite do the math. 

Roxanne Woeste, Legislative Council: I haven't taken any time to study the fiscal note. I'll 

have you note that the commissioner is new and he's new to the whole fiscal note process. 

That could be why the fiscal note is a little bit difficult to understand at this time. 

Chairman Holmberg: If the committee feels that $20,000 is appropriate, we could pass it 

down field and let the GVA committee slug it out and try to get people happy before the end 

and we will have the actual budget for them before us again. 

Senator Mathern: I don't think it will be resolved in that way. I just wonder if we shouldn't at 

least add some wording to this bill and attach it to the discussion of the other bill. I don't know 

what the wording would be, but I could see the other bill going through separately and this one 

going through separately and we still won't know the consequence of each. I don't know if 

there is some sort of amendment that we could put on. If the Legislative Council would assure 
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trackage of these two together with a fiscal note that is common to both. I think when he does 

his fiscal note; he's really talking about the budget and this separation so maybe we should 

figure this out by putting some wording in this bill as we send it out. 

Chairman Holmberg: But in the end it will be a different committee that will be negotiating on 

this. We've had a long history of the council working with the conference committees on other 

bills that might be impacted or affected. 

Roxanne Woeste: It really is of each agency head to notify the Appropriation Committees of 

any other outstanding bill that might affect their budget bills. I'm sure he's provided information 

over in the House Appropriations as to if this bill would affect what you would mean. The 

$20,000 appropriation was added to this bill because at the time we were doing our work 

during the interim, they said they needed $20,000 to bring in this NAVSCO organization to 

provide the training. So that's the genesis for the $20,000. The extra FTE costs - I'm not 

exactly sure what he's referring to because that section of the bill, section 3, says they may 

use up to 2 of their existing FTEs to provide training. That section was not for new FTE 

positions; it was added by the interim committee to say maybe you should look at your FTE 

positions and probably try to dedicate a little bit more time to training. 

Chairman Holmberg: He's a new director, and has not gone through this process. 

V. Chair Bowman: This isn't the first time that we've had similar disputes between two 

different groups and normally the best way to do it is send them both home and tell them to 

either start getting along and bring in something they can agree on or don't come back 

because until they can agree, all we do is solve more problems with them. Senator Krebsbach 

hit it right on the nose. One group wants the state to be involved and one group doesn't. 

Senator Krebsbach: I think Senator Bowman is right. In all due credence, this should go 

back to the GVA committee and if they can work out something between now and then, that's 
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• great. If they can't, then we deal with it. I did get information from veteran's commissioner and 

• 

• 

I'll be happy to share this information with the committee - the people that are already 

accredited and the ones that aren't. I think it's very proper to send it back to the GVA 

committee and in conference they can work out whatever they can and if not, as Senator 

Bowman says, we tell them to go home and come back when you're in accordance or 

agreement. 

Senator Lindaas: Like the barbers and beauticians a few years ago. 

Senator Krauter moved Do Pass. 

Senator Warner seconded. 

Senator Warner: I think he's confused the two bills. He has a whole lot of costs attributed to 

his budget bill. 

Senator Krebsbach: And the other thing, I think we heard that 90% of this comes from the 

federal. 

Senator Mathern: I don't think we've done this before, but should we pass this out, not to 

floor, but back to GVA committee because there is an amendment that he offered too. It says 

suggested ..... 

Senator Krebsbach: That was to the GVA committee. 

Senator Mathern: So what he handed out is already in the bill? OK 

A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea: 11 Nay: 1 Absent: 2 

Goes back to GVA 
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CONFERENCE COMMITTEE ONE: 

Chairman Kasper: We will open the Conference Committee hearing on HB 

1057. Clerk will call the roll . 

• lerk Engleson: Roll Call. All present. Chairman Representative Jim Kasper. 

Representative Mike Nathe. Representative Bill Amerman. Senator Dick Dever. 

Senator Dwight Cook. Senator Robert Horne. 

Chairman Kasper: HB 1057 deals with Veterans' Affairs and all kinds of items 

in that topic. Have you been getting emails from across the State and what we 

should do with this bill. 

Sen. Dever: I have had a quantity and some of them have been pretty 

personalized. 

Chairman Kasper: I have some to and I made copies and they were not 

.ersonal just informational. 
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• Sen. Dever: Just some history with the Veterans, back in the 1990's each of the 

organizations would come with their agendas and they would be dealing with 

different issues and different approaches and they didn't have very much 

success and in 2001 session the Administrative Committee was put together as it 

is now presently constructed and as they considered Legislation to move forward 

they have gone through that Administrative Committee and then any Legislation 

that was proposed had been agreed to by all the parties and since then had had 

a lot of success. For some reason this time we have seen some fracturing taking 

place and so I think we need to do what we need to do and they need to 

-ecognize they need to resolve their differences. 

Chairman Kasper: Why don't we start with the Senate explaining the 

amendments that you added to the bill so we can get a feel for what you did and 

why you did it. 

Sen. Dever: There are three different aspects to these amendments and one 

involves the training itself. We felt it was important that the training come through 

the National Association of County Veterans Service Officers and we included 

that. We said that by August 1, 2011 the County Veterans Service Officer shall 

comply with either the accreditation requirements established by the National 

Association or requirements established by a recognized service organization. 

-hink as this bill came out of the interim committee it provided $20,000 to have 



Page 3 
House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
Bill/Resolution No. Conference Committee One HB 1057 
Hearing Date: 04/21/2009 

-that organization to come to the State and offer that training. The second one on 

Page 1, Line 23 a County Veterans Service Officer may not serve as a 

conservator for an individual and that is something that we may need to visit 

about and consider any adjustment for that too. Finally, a report to Legislative 

Council on the number of County Veterans Service Officers that become 

accredited through the training and I think our common concern here is that when 

a Veteran anywhere in the State goes to their Veterans Service Officer and asks 

what my benefits are that they ought to have somebody who is trained and 

knowledgeable and maybe able to provide those answers. I think that whatever 

ewe do as we move forward and however we approach it that our end goal is for 

all of us. 

Chairman Kasper: Sen. Dever I think that you hit the nail on the head with the 

concerns. I think that the third one the Legislative Council report is something 

that we really don't need to talk about because it is something that we do want 

about the accreditation. The emails that I have been receiving, I sent around the 

first part which is who should be the education organization? The Senate put in 

the National Association of County Veterans Service Officers and there seems to 

be some discussion on whether or not that should be the entity or not? I see 

there are some people in the room, Mr. Otto is here, and I have had 

eonversations with him, and maybe Mr. Otto you could share your thoughts with 
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• the committee on the education arm and maybe have a discussion on that for a 

bit. 

Ron Otto, Morton County Veterans Service Officer: The National Association 

of County Veterans Service Officers was organized back in 1987 and the sole 

purpose was for the training of County Veterans Service Officers to get them an 

education level to serve veterans uniformly across the United States. They are a 

growing organization and they have a significant amount of muscle right now in 

Washington, DC also and at times they are called to the table in Congress with 

regards to Veterans issues before other service organizations are. It is in my 

.rofessional opinion the gold standard for training for County Veteran Service 

Officers. I have been in this business for 22 years. I have seen very poor 

training, mediocre training coming out of this State and we thought at this 

particular time at the interim study committee and what I did was that I have been 

very consistent about that is saying that the National Association of County 

Veterans Service Officers should be the training entity and the accreditation 

entity. Several things are happening nationwide and again the wave will hit ND 

eventually and in fact we are going to push the wave in ND. The Professional 

Veterans Advocates of ND which I am the President, the electronic filing for 

claims is going to happen. For many years now there has been an ability to 

-lectronically access information through the VA with regards to claims. The 
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• National Association of County Veterans Service Officers has the ability to not 

only accredit there organization or their Veterans Service Officers organization 

but to cross accredit with other organizations, which includes the Veterans of 

Foreign Wars, the AMVETS, the disabled American Veterans, the Vietnam 

Veterans of America, the Paralyzed Veterans of America and several others. In 

the State of ND we have four major service office organizations that are 

performing work at the National Level and that would be the Disabled American 

Veterans, the American Legion, the AMVETS, and the VFW or the Veterans of 

Foreign Wars. The National Association of County Veteran Service Officers 

-basically covers three of them and in its negotiation with the fourth one to get 

cross accreditation with that. So upon receiving accreditation from the National 

Association of County Veterans Service Officers you may during the future be 

cross-accredited with all organizations operating in the State of ND. It gives you 

an advantage, there are three counties right now in the State of ND and a fourth 

one seeking the electronic access. That allows me sitting at my desk when I am 

developing a claim to reach into Fargo, into their file system, and see what is 

going on with that claim. I know who is handling that claim on the Fargo end, I 

know what paper has been processed, what due process letters have been sent, 

and I am not blind to the claim ever. I fought that ground four years ago in order 

-o get it into Morton County and get that accomplished. About two years after I 
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• got it, Burleigh County did it, Ward County got it, Stutsman County is in the 

process, Cass County is in the process, and Grand Forks is in the process. In 

order to accomplish that you must be accredited. In order to receive that 

electronic access you must be accredited. You can only look at the claims of the 

organizations that you are accredited with. If I am not accredited with the VFW, I 

cannot look at the claims even though the Veteran may have said I want the 

Veterans of Foreign Wars to represent me in Fargo or in St. Paul as the case 

may be. Without that accreditation I am blocked again. That is part of the 

process . 

• Chairman Kasper: Do you have an idea of what percentage of service officers 

in ND right now are accredited? 

Ron Otto: There are 14 of us. 

Chairman Kasper: 14 out of 53 counties. 

Ron Otto: I represent two counties and the one in Stark County represents two 

counties. I think that those are the only two that are representational right now. 

There might be one up in the NE corner. 

Chairman Kasper: In your opinion are there some counties out there that are 

reluctant or may not pay for this accreditation for their Veterans Service Officers 

or do you think all the counties are on board with the Veterans Affairs groups to 

-et this accreditation for their representatives? 
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• Ron Otto: If it comes from the State of ND, which is what the plan was to bring it 

in and not send people out, my understanding is that the Commissioner would 

make it a training module. Either in the Spring or in the Fall and they would 

probably only have one training module that year because it is a process of 

several days. It is not the normal two and half day training that we would 

normally get. It is going to be four full days probably and part of another day in 

order to accomplish it. There is some resistance out there with regards to 

training issues and having accreditation come in and say I have to take a test. 

I have to pass a level of proficiency in order to gain this accreditation. There is 

-no question that there is some resistance out there with regards to that. In Oliver 

County, I will speak to that because I am very familiar with it, when I took that 

over, and I was fully accredited when I took that over, the amount of Veterans 

benefits coming into that County was between 70,000 and 90,000. This year the 

compensation pension alone was 315,000 in addition to the medical that we were 

able to put into place because of the service connected disabilities we put into 

place. We are well over the top of 400,000 dollars worth of VA benefits coming 

in there. In a major county and there are major counties that are accredited 

through the State. We not only take care of our counties but we do a lot of 

claims for small accounts. Individuals who will go into a County Service Officer 

.ho is not fully trained, maybe a part-time Service Officer, maybe works four 
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• hours a week and has no regular hours, and that particular individual simply 

because of the time spent in the industry and the time spent doing claims is not 

really versed in accomplishing the goal for the Veteran, which is to procure the 

benefit. That is job one. So they come to the larger county and so what we are 

trying to do with this piece of Legislation is to get everybody at least to an entry 

level. You have the ability and you should have the confidence to file that claim. 

Once you file the claim you are in partnership with the Veterans of Foreign Wars, 

the AMVETS or the DAV or the American Legion, you are in partnership, you, the 

veteran, and the claims representative. With accreditation and a little support 

.coming out of these counties with regards to electronic access or from the State 

Department with electronic access you are not blind in the claim and believe me 

that makes a big difference when you get into the middle part of the claim where 

your development takes place. 

Chairman Kasper: On the electronic access, it is simply through the internet 

with a password and the fact that you are accredited and you don't need any 

special computerization or anything like that? 

Ron Otto: The software is provided by the VA. You take periodic training with 

regards to security and privacy issues. You must stay up with that or they pull 

the plug on you. They have the ability on the other end to do that. 
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• Chairman Kasper: Do you get that type of training during this annual training 

that you are talking about or the accreditation training? 

Ron Otto: You have the ability to take it online. We don't have to travel 

anywhere other than our desk. 

Sen. Horne: Are you a full-time Veterans Service Officer? 

Ron Otto: Yes I am. 

Sen. Horne: How many others that are like you that are full-time among these 

other 50 service officers? 

Ron Otto: Probably 12 or 14. Grand Forks, Cass, Barnes, Stutsman, Burleigh, 

.Morton, Ward is part-time. 

Chairman Kasper: Some of the smaller counties would probably claim that they 

don't have budget to have a full-time service officer and obviously there are some 

that combine together so we have the dilemma of wanting to provide the benefits 

for the Veterans which is the primary goal you have indicated compared to no 

money. How do we solve that dilemma with no money in the county needing to 

provide the benefits for the Veterans? 

Ron Otto: I am just going to give you what my vision has been in the industry. 

That dilemma may solve itself with regards to accreditation. If the Service Officer 

is going to refuse to be accredited eventually their ability of authority is put in the 

.ands of the Commissioner of the Department of Veterans Affairs and 



Page 10 
House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
Bill/Resolution No. Conference Committee One HB 1057 
Hearing Date: 04/21/2009 

• encouragement for these counties to consolidate Service Officers amongst 

themselves may happen. With more hours and times and repetitiveness in the 

industry in taking claims you are going to see people get better we believe. 

There is somewhere between 20 to 40 million dollars out there untapped. 

Chairman Kasper: I would like to jump to the next issue which is dealing with 

conservator compared to the position that we have. I received an email and 

maybe the rest of you did to and I will share it and made copies for you. We 

have a concern where up in Grand Forks where they are providing services as 

conservator and the bill now prohibits being able to do certain things as a 

.conservator and as a Service Officer and they are asking us to consider 

amending to allow them to provide these duties because there is no one else to 

do it. You have a veteran who has no relatives maybe even suffering from minor 

dementia or maybe lives in the nursing home or whatever that has nobody 

whatsoever to help them. These people are saying we need to provide those 

services. This bill as amended by the Senate, I believe, did prohibit the Veterans 

Service Officers may not serve as a conservator for an individual receiving 

benefits. Can you address that issue and give us your experience on how that 

could be fixed to provide protection but still provide the service? 

Sen. Dever: I keep reading the email from the person in Grand Forks the 

.roblem is he serves as a County Veterans Service Officer and also as the 
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• Grand Forks County Public Administrator. It is in that capacity that she serves as 

a conservator and the bill will be prohibiting that. 

Ron Otto: That is exactly right in Grand Forks that office has also been named 

the public administrator office under that hat I think they are well-protected. I 

think any county that is going to point there finger at a Veterans Service Office 

and say you also are going to have the duty of taking care of Veterans who are 

incapacitated in one form or another and needing a conservator or a guardian if 

the county will give the Veterans Service Officer that hat and that authority, 

because then it is regulated. The county is taking a look at it. I think at that 

_,articular time I would guess then they would come under the (can't understand 

word) of the State with regards to (can't understand words). I agree with that 

theory that they shouldn't be taking guardianship and conservatorships without 

the whole knowledge and authority of their county. They shouldn't be doing that. 

I have seen in my years that done wholesale in some instances. 

Chairman Kasper: The amendment appears to be much more stringent and 

prohibitive than being registered under the county offices because the way I read 

it, it says: "A County Veteran Service Officer may not serve as conservator if that 

individual is receiving benefits." So are we doing something here that needs to 

be fixed? 
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• Ron Otto: I am agreeing with the doing something that needs to be fixed. 

Grand Forks is showing us the way that it can be done and it can be done 

properly. We are tying their hands here and that might not be right. 

Sen. Cook: Didn't we with this amendment closely mirror language or policy in 

the State Veterans Officer policy? Don't I recall something about that in 

testimony. 

Sen. Dever: It is the policy of the State Department of Veterans Affairs. 

Sen. Cook: Yes. But that is there policy right now and Counsel from the 

Attorney General's office pointed that out to us . 

• Chairman Kasper: Having said that we do have a dilemma in some cases here. 

Sen. Cook: I understand. 

Chairman Kasper: Any other questions for Ron? 

Rep. Amerman: You are nationally accredited now along with some others in 

the State? Am I correct in thinking any Veterans Service Officer out there can go 

to their county or the county could go to them, and ask to get accredited, it 

doesn't have to be State mandated because apparently you and others have 

already done it without having the State tell them that they have to do this. Is 

that correct? 

Ron Otto: Yes and that is correct. I sought education and training in this 

-ndustry many years ago with that particular group, the National Association of 
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- County Veterans Service Officers because in my research and in the training I 

had in the past it was the gold standard and I wanted to be as educated in my 

industry as possible. 

Rep. Nathe: Can you currently be a conservator for the veterans right now? 

Ron Otto: I am a guardian right now for a lady who is not a Veteran. I did that 

as a favor to her brother who was a Veteran and who was dying and he 

eventually died of cancer and there was no other family left to take care of her 

and he asked if I would. 

Chairman Kasper: Any other questions for Ron at this time? 

.Sen. Dever: I think you and the Commissioner had talked about coming 

together on an amendment that you were going to propose to this. Do you have 

language for that? 

Ron Otto: I don't have language for that and we were trying to find a 

compromise of some sort. The Professional Veterans Advocates of ND basically 

took me to the woodshed and said we want the National Association of County 

Veterans Service Officers to be the accrediting training agency for the County 

Veterans Service Officers. The training brought in from other organizations are 

not necessarily geared to the entry level for the County Veterans Service Officers 

and I said Thank you very much and I am bringing that message forward right 

.ow. That is where I am standing. 
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• Chairman Kasper: There was some discussion about maybe finding some 

funding for some of the training. Do you think we need to have some funding for 

this bill or another bill to accomplish what we need to do? 

Ron Otto: My understanding is $10,000 is what it takes to bring the National 

Association of County Veterans Service Officers in to do the accreditation 

training. That is all that is required. I have been in contact with the National 

Association of County Veterans Service Officers and we will see something 

change this year. Our national training and convention in San Diego this issue of 

training is going to be brought up on a national scale. We may even see the 

.rice of that slow down. In fact, they are going to try to find a way to try to do it 

for free. 

Chairman Kasper: The email from Tom Risch is what you are talking about. Is 

there anyone else in the audience who would like to speak for information 

purposes that might be helpful? 

Terry Traynor, ND Association Of Counties: Just the second sentence on that 

training section there. I think the first sentence is very clear and it allows for a 

time period for everyone to achieve accreditation but the second sentence 

sounds like after that period possibly a Veterans Service Officer would have to be 

trained immediately. It isn't real clear, obviously, in many counties they will be 

.iring someone when someone retires that may not have the training, we were 
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.just wondering if there should just be a phrase in there about within the first year 

or after the appointment or something like that to make it clearer. Our pool of 

applicants are not people that are already trained. 

Chairman Kasper: Would you mind providing us a sample of selective 

language that we could consider at our next meeting. 

Terry Traynor: Sure. 

Sen. Dever: Maybe at the next meeting would you be the person that could 

explain to us the role of the County Public Administrator and how it might apply in 

this situation? 

.Terry Traynor: I will see if I can research that as well. We have done some 

surveys about who does that function and which counties and when, so I could 

certainly provide as much information as possible. 

Sen. Dever: And maybe what controls are in place that they have to comply 

with? 

Sen. Cook: Is it possible to get the amount every county budget's for the 

Veterans Service Officers? 

Terry Traynor: Yes, I believe so. At least what they levy for that. I think it is 

99% of what they budget. 

Sen. Cook: I would like to see that if I could . 

• 
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- Chairman Kasper: We are probably going to be meeting tomorrow and the next 

day so if you could bring that information back to us that would be great. Any 

other questions or comments? 

Rep. Amerman: Does the Commissioner of Veterans Affairs know about these 

Conference Committee hearings and make sure that he is invited and maybe he 

could answer some of these questions. 

Rep. Grande: Mr. Wangen is at the hospital with his child so that is why he is 

not here. 

Rep. Carlson: Just a reminder that this is not a hearing, this is a Conference 

.Committee. 

Chairman Kasper: We will have another meeting scheduled sometime soon so 

check the calendar. Conference Committee adjourned . 

• 
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CONFERENCE COMMITTEE TWO: 

Chairman Kasper: We will open the Conference Committee hearing on HB 

1057. Clerk will call the roll. 

.lerk Erhardt: Roll Call. All present. Chairman Representative Jim Kasper. 

Representative Mike Nathe. Representative Bill Amerman. Senator Dick Dever. 

Senator Dwight Cook. Senator Robert Horne. 

Chairman Kasper: We have a quorum. My goal is that we will conclude our 

deliberation today and tomorrow morning at the latest. I passed out some 

proposed amendments for consideration and Terry Traynor's information that we 

had requested at our last Conference Committee. Before we get into the 

amendments does any committee member have anything new that you wish to 

bring to the table for us to consider? Hearing none if you would look at the 

proposed amendments to Reengrossed HB 1057 and you will notice that the 

.econd line down from the top needs to be 1057 as opposed to 1059. I would 
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- like to walk through these amendments and consider either modification of 

amendments, amending of them, or adoption of them. 

Sen. Dever: Which version of the amendments would this be? 

Chairman Kasper: I believe it will be 0600. I hope that is what it is because 

under this amendment the Senate would recede from its amendments and then 

we would further amend. If we walk through the 0600 version, Page 1, Line 4 

because the Senate has receded from your amendment we would have to put in 

"to provide for reports to the Legislative Council" and it looks like it is repetitive 

but because the Senate receded we have to put it back in . 

• Sen. Cook: We have to be working on 0500 then because the 0600 is with our 

amendments so if these amendments you have are starting with we recede then 

we are at 0500. 

Chairman Kasper: You are right, let's go to 0500. (See Attachment #1 ). 

Discussion on proposed on Amendment 0500 and further amending. 

Sen. Horne: Can't the Veterans Affairs Commissioner do that now? 

Chairman Kasper: It is at the request of the Commissioner that this type of 

language be put in because there are some road blocks being put up by some 

County Commissioners for him to be able to work directly with those Service 

Officers. There seems to be some turf war going on and this would simply be a 
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• Legislative directive that he can do that. He should have the authority but 

sometimes they are just saying "No". So this would clarify that. 

Sen. Cook: What do you mean by work with them? Are you giving him authority 

over them? 

Chairman Kasper: When the Veterans Affairs Commissioner travels to the 

various areas or they come to a meeting it just is enabling them to work 

cooperatively together. No authority just to be able to discuss and plan and talk 

or whatever but not to take away the County Commissioners authority just to 

make it clear we want them to be able to talk. Continue with amendment. 

.Rep. Nathe: Is this in conflict with what Terry sent us? Or is this the same? 

Chairman Kasper: What Terry Traynor had said is after August 1, 2011, where 

it had said where the County Veterans Service Officer shall comply he suggested 

that we add after the word "comply" within two years of appointment and 

everything else is the same. So that when the new County Service Officer is 

appointed they are giving him or her two years after the appointment to comply 

with the accreditation. Anybody have any objection to that? It just puts a 

timeline on it. 

Sen. Dever: So if we were to insert the words "within two years of appointment" 

after the word "comply" that would be okay? 
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• Chairman Kasper: What do you think Sen. Dever do you want to make that 

proposal? 

Sen. Dever: That seems appropriate to me. 

Sen. Cook: Read the whole sentence. 

Chairman Kasper: "The County Veterans Service Officer shall comply with 

accreditation requirements established by the National Association of County 

Veterans Service Officers within two years of appointment except an individual 

serving as a County Veterans Service Officer on August 1, 2009 shall comply 

with the accreditation requirements by December 1, 2010. After August 1, 2011 

.a County Veterans Service Officer shall comply within two years of appointment 

with either the accreditation requirements established by the National Association 

of County Veterans Service Officers or requirements established by a recognized 

service organization or the Department of Veterans Affairs in compliance with 

requirements of the United States Department of Veterans Affairs." 

Sen. Dever: It sounded to me like it is in there twice and we only need to have it 

in there once. 

Chairman Kasper: There are different dates. 

Sen. Cook: Mr. Chairman you read it in there twice and you should have only 

read it in there once and that should be in the Line 5 after August 1, 2011. 
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- Chairman Kasper: I read what his amendment was to see how it would fit what 

was in front of us. 

Sen. Dever: Actually, I think in his amendment the first two years appointment is 

included in the 0500 version so we might be okay. It is on Line 15. 

Chairman Kasper: Yes, that is right because the words within the first two 

years of appointment stay in the bill. 

Sen. Dever: Let's go back to Line 13 and read as it would read. Continue with 

amendment. 

Sen. Cook: I want to focus my thoughts on this next biennium so I am going to 

.do it on the first sentence. The way I read this then is if you are employed out 

there on August 1, 2009 which I assume is when this bill will become effective or 

this act will go into law. If you are employed at that time you must comply then 

with the National Association of County Veterans Service Officers by December 

1, 2010. So that is the first thing it is saying if I read this right. If you are 

employed as of August 1, 2009 by December 1, 2010 you will be accredited by 

the County Officers. If you are hired after August 1, 2009 during this biennium 

you have two years to be accredited by that organization. 

Rep. Nathe: After August 1, 2011 then you would have the two years. 

Sen. Cook: No . 

• 
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• Chairman Kasper: It doesn't say hired it says "except an individual serving as a 

County Veterans Service Officer on August 1, 2009." 

Sen. Cook: What is the difference serving or hired? 

Chairman Kasper: But what that means is that he is an incumbent on August 1, 

2009. 

Sen. Cook: All Veterans Service Officers that are serving as of August 1, 2009 

have until December 1, 2010 to become accredited by the National Association 

of County Veterans Service Officers and I don't have a problem with that. Then 

we have that condition in there where those who are not serving now so it could 

-be somebody new that gains employment after August 1 and that is where we 

have this language must be certified by them within two years. This is my 

problem, we are saying this twice. We have within two years here and then we 

are also saying by August 1, 2010 which is why I don't believe we need this two 

years. 

Sen. Horne: What if I am hired on January 1, 2011? 

Sen. Cook: Let's just focus on this biennium and make sure we know what it is 

going to do this biennium before we go to 2011. If you read that, we are saying 

two things. If you read the whole language and urge you to read it again, that 

you have two years to do it if you are not now. But if you are serving by August 

• 



Page 7 
House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
Bill/Resolution No. Conference Committee Two HB 1057 
Hearing Date: 04/23/2009 

• 1, 2009 you have to be done by December 1, 2010. Now if I am reading that 

wrong let me know. 

Chairman Kasper: I believe that you are reading it right. We are okay up to 

December 1, 201 O but we have a gap in here. 

Sen. Cook: We are not okay we are still saying two requirements. 

Chairman Kasper: Let's go back and read it then again up to that December 1, 

2010 and see what we have. Starting on Line 13 of the bill starting with the word 

"County Veterans Service Officer shall comply with accreditation requirements 

established within two years of appointment" so what did I miss? 

.Sen. Cook: Then you read on to your amendments except now an individual 

serving as a County Veterans Service Officer on August 1, 2009 shall comply 

with the accreditation requirements by December 1, 2010. So if they are 

incumbent when this becomes law they have till December 1, 2010. They start 

working in September or whatever then they have two years. 

Chairman Kasper: Now we go on to this after August 1, 2011 and why do we 

have the gap? 

Sen. Cook: That gap is in 0600 too. 

Chairman Kasper: Why wouldn't we say after August 1, 2010 a County 

Veterans Service Officer shall comply? 

e,en. Horne: We probably should. 



Page 8 
House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
Bill/Resolution No. Conference Committee Two HB 1057 
Hearing Date: 04/23/2009 

• Chairman Kasper: We are talking about the people who are on board who are 

on-board on August 1, 2009 they have these rules so really we have to talk about 

anybody hired after August 1, 2009 because we are not addressing them at all. 

We are saying anybody on or before August 1, 2009 has to do certain things but 

what about those that come on board after August 1, 2009. 

Sen. Dever: Then they are subject to the two year appointment. 

Rep. Nathe: Isn't that how we get to August 2011? 

Sen. Cook: Somebody subject after August 1 has two years they could start 

their service as a Veterans Service Officer in April of 2011 and according to this 

.they would have two years. 

Sen. Dever: But if they started in April there certification would have to come 

from the National Association of County Veterans Service Officers and if they 

started in August after that they could do it under the other provision. 

Sen. Cook: I think that we are pretty close here but I question why the intent of 

that last sentence there that starts after August 1, 2011. That is what I question 

and I think if you just took that sentence out of there and simply maybe even 

sunseted this so that we reviewed it next session. We have accomplished our 

same goal. 

Chairman Kasper: So you are saying just delete that whole sentence starting 

tlvith August 1, 2011. 
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• Sen. Cook: Yes. 

Sen. Horne: If you do that you eliminate the three choices of accreditation and I 

am not sure that you want to do that because it is the heart of the amendment. 

Sen. Cook: But prior to them ever having those other two options of being 

accredited we already have them all accredited on the other one. 

Chairman Kasper: Here is the situation what if by December 1, 2010 there are 

still some who are not accredited? 

Sen. Horne: Then they are gone. 

Sen. Dever: I think that part of our thinking here needs to be the realization that 

.the purpose of the appropriation and the reason that refers to the National 

Association of County Veterans Service Officers is that there is expected to bring 

them to the State to offer that training in that time frame and it seems to me that 

the language of what happens after that for their accreditation reflects that fact 

that they don't have that opportunity. It seems to me that we kind of need them 

both in there. 

Sen. Cook: I start right at the beginning on Line 8 and what we are doing here is 

imposing a restriction on the County Commissioners in order to appoint and 

employ and pay. I would guess that after December 1, 2010 or at some point 

after two years of them employing a new Veterans Officer they do not meet the 

.equirements of this section then they have no authority to employ or pay them. 
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• Which is the whole gist or intent of the Legislation is to have more combined 

Veterans Service Officers and more combined counties and so they would need 

to reach out to another County Veterans Officer who does meet these 

qualifications to serve the Veterans in that particular county. Which is the 

direction that I think we need to move, personally. 

Sen. Dever: Which is authorized by the second sentence in that section. 

Chairman Kasper: Rep. Grande would you give us your thoughts at this point 

as we are deliberating this after August 1, 2011 and what we have said so far. 

Rep. Grande: Sen. Cook I agree with you. I think that there is language that 

-Sen. Cook is thinking of deleting does open it back up to all those different areas 

and it actually undoes the first portion. Because what the idea is from what I 

understood is to get everybody on-board with the National Association of County 

Veterans Service Officers. If we don't and by giving them an out for all these 

other ones then we are going to have the rogue things start up again. We are 

trying to get rid of that and get all of them well-qualified so that everyone of our 

Veterans are served equally and represented properly. If we don't have all the 

direct information to those Veterans Officers they don't do the job well. I will go 

back to Mr. Otto's testimony that getting that type of training and being able to 

get on-line it gives them access to everything they need. 



Page 11 
House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
Bill/Resolution No. Conference Committee Two HB 1057 
Hearing Date: 04/23/2009 

• Chairman Kasper: My question is why do we have that gap up to August 1, 

2011? 

Rep. Grande: Until you guys started reading it slow like that I didn't catch that 

gap and I think that is where you are right and you have to get rid of that. You 

don' t need that gap. If you go to your first line starting at Line13, "The County 

Veterans Service Officers shall comply with accreditation requirements 

established by the NACVS Officers within two years of appointment." Boom, that 

is it, you get hired, you have two years to get this national accreditation. If you 

don't you are gone. Those that are already hired have until December of 2010 to 

.et this done and that is where in your appropriation the $20,000 we are going to 

give them that money. 

Chairman Kasper: But then what do we do with the date August 1, 2011? 

Rep. Grande: I would delete from the word after too affairs on Line 21. 

Sen. Cook: I would too. 

Rep. Grande: Strike that whole last sentence. You do not need it. 

Chairman Kasper: That does not close the door for them to get the 

accreditation on-line. We are okay? 

Rep. Grande: That actually opens the door for them to do it because you told 

them in the first line that you have two years to get yourself accredited. 
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• Sen. Cook: One other thing that we need to consider then we need to go. Let's 

give some thought to changing December 1, 2010 to July 31, 2011. 

Chairman Kasper: I am going to set another conference for tomorrow for an 

hour and then we will get this done. Close the Conference Committee hearing. 
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CONFERENCE COMMITTEE FOUR: 

Chairman Kasper: We will open the Conference Committee hearing on HB 

1057. Clerk will call the roll. 

.lerk Erhardt: Roll Call. All present. Except Senator Robert Horne. Chairman 

Representative Jim Kasper. Representative Mike Nathe. Representative Bill 

Amerman. Senator Dick Dever. Senator Dwight Cook. 

Chairman Kasper: We have a quorum. We will look at the amendment titled 

amendment number four. It was just printed off by our intern. Page 1, Line 4 

was the same as what we talked about in our meeting a half hour ago and we are 

working off of the 05 Engrossed Bill. Page 1, Line 11 the same as our previous 

amendment the Veteran's Affairs Commissioner may work directly with the 

County Veteran's Service Officers and that is to give intent. Page 1, Line 14, 

.eplace the "must maintain" with "shall comply with" and after accreditation insert 

the required establishment or departments established and remove ND from it 
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- all. So what we have then beginning on Line 13: "The County Veteran's Affairs 

Officer shall comply with accreditation by the National Association of County 

Veteran's Service Officers within two years of appointment except an individual 

serving as a County Veteran's Service Officer on August 1, 2009 shall comply 

with accreditation requirements by December 1, 2010." We struck that last 

sentence out. Then we go down to Line 23 on Page 1 and we insert the 

following after the period. A County Veteran's Service Officer may not serve as a 

conservator for an individual who is receiving benefits or services from the 

Department of Veteran's Affairs or the United States Veteran's Affairs except if 

-the individual is the spouse or an immediate family member of the officer or 

unless the conservator is appointed by the county under Chapter 11-21 of the ND 

Century Code and which is the public administrator code. So we now allow that 

person if they are a public administrator to be a conservator. If they are 

appointed by the county under that chapter. Questions on that? 

Sen. Cook: On that last sentence you just read, I am happy. 

Chairman Kasper: On Page 2, Line 5, replace a "person" with an "individual 

who is" and after "department" add the following. Let me read what that would 

read. So starting on Line 4 it would read: "An employee of the Department of 

Veterans' Affairs may not serve as a conservator for a person receiving benefits 

.r services from the department except if the individual is an immediate family 
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• member of the employee unless the individual is hired by the county and 

appointed under Chapter 11-21 of the ND Century Code. 

Rep. Amerman: I think it should be "or" because if you say "a person" it means 

replacing. 

Chairman Kasper: Individual, that's right. So let's read it again. I think we have 

a word wrong in here. "An employee of the Department of Veterans' Affairs may 

not serve as a conservator for an individual who is receiving benefits or services 

from the department except if the individual is the spouse or an immediate family 

member of the employee" and I think the word "unless" should be "or" the 

.ndividual is hired by the county and appointed under Chapter 11-21 of the ND 

Century Code. Should that "unless" not be "or" because it could be a spouse or 

an immediate member or there appointed hired by the county under the public 

administrator code? 

Rep. Nathe: To stay consistent with the changes we made prior to Line 23 on 

Page 1 we could say "or unless the individual" ? 

Chairman Kasper: We could add the word or in front of unless. 

Sen. Dever: This provision is a little different than the other in that the 

employees of the Department of Veterans Affairs are State Employees and the 

reason that the situation in Grand Forks is just that they have combined two 

-ifferent roles into one person. So I don't know that the second one is 
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• necessary. It is my understanding that the Department of Veterans Affairs has a 

policy that an employee may not serve as a conservator. 

Gene Koubas: That is correct. 

Chairman Kasper: We don't need to amend that part at all we just leave it as is. 

Is that correct? 

Sen. Dever: Except that we are receding and then amending to include that 

other amendment. 

Chairman Kasper: So you have to put it back in? 

Sen. Cook: I think that you just take Section 2 out. 

.Chairman Kasper: Since it doesn't apply. 

Sen. Dever: Maybe we don't need it in the code if it is in the policy. 

Chairman Kasper: But because it is underlined in the bill, isn't that new 

language to the law? 

Sen. Dever: It is. The question is whether they need to have it or whether we 

are happy with the policy. 

Tim Dawson, Legal Advisor, Legislative Council: It is a policy decision 

whether you want it in Code and to be Law or you trust the policy that is in place 

and the policy won't change. Either way the practical effect in the real world 

should be nothing. But if you want to ensure the practical effect is nothing you 

ehould just leave it in. 
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• Chairman Kasper: So then we have to add to the amendment because that 

was taken out because that was a Senate amendment that was put in. Correct? 

Instead of the amendment you wrote here we have to add the Language in 5 

back in. 

Sen. Dever: So then we wouldn't have the reference to the County? 

Chairman Kasper: We are just going back to what the Senate did, the language 

in amendment 05. 

Sen. Cook: Just make sure that it is there. I just want to go back to this first 

sentence that we just have been struggling with all along. Where we are 

.equiring an accreditation within two years except for an individual serving as a 

County Veterans' Service Officer on August 1, 2009 shall comply with the 

requirements by 2010. That sentence right there and what if that sentence 

simply said that by August 1, 2011 all Veteran's Service Officers employed by the 

Counties shall comply with the accreditation of the National Association of 

County Veterans' Service Officers. 

Chairman Kasper: Of 2011? 

Sen. Cook: Two years from the effective date of this bill. It would get rid of the 

exception clause in there and it would be for everybody and those who are 

employed when this bill becomes law August 1 and those who become employed 

.fterwards but within two years everyone in the State will have to comply. I think 
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-that is what we are trying to get too and I think that is an easier way to get it but it 

will also allow us in the 2011 session if there are serious problems out there that 

we can correct it. But we are at the point right now and we are setting the bar 

here and it is high and you have until the end of this next biennium to comply with 

that bar and move forward in that direction. 

Chairman Kasper: Comments from the rest of the committee on that thought? 

Rep. Amerman: I like the longer period of 2011. I think that is a simpler and 

gives them more time to get used to the new rules. 

Rep. Nathe: Gives them the 24 months versus the 16 months . 

• Sen. Dever: It would seem to me that anyone who is employed after August or 

whatever time frame they are, they have less than two years, they might have 

two months. 

Chairman Kasper: I think they way Senator Cook is talking about that people 

who are employed on August 1, 2009 have until August 1, 2011 and anyone 

hired after August 1, 2009 would have two years. 

Sen. Cook: I am saying that by August 1, 2011 everybody has it. 

Chairman Kasper: Even if they are hired a month before, no exceptions? 

Rep. Nathe: The existing employees would have two years to get up to speed 

and anybody new would more or less have to be accredited from the time they 

.eton. 
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• Sen. Cook: I don't think it takes two years to get accredited. 

Sen. Dever: Could we ask Mr. Kouba for his insight? 

Gene Kouba, ND Department of Veterans' Affairs: Next year's national 

training is in Minneapolis. This year is in San Diego. It is our goal in the 

department to have everybody that is not accredited to go down to Minneapolis 

to have the training. Plus we are trying to bring in the trainers in September of 

2010 to Bismarck to do the ones that possibly can't go to the National Training in 

June in Minneapolis. So we have two chances next year to do this and I think 

that is good. The date of 2011 is very good we will have no problem with that. 

-Sen. Dever: Is it my understanding that after the training you and others will be 

qualified to provide the training that would lead to the accreditation? 

Gene Kouba: Not to the level that they do. We train now but I am not 

accredited with NASCO because I am not authorized to do that. I go every year 

to get an upgrade in training from them and once I am accredited I go every year 

to the upgrading and there are three levels I believe in training with them. Like 

Lonnie is in the highest level now and I am in the second level. We go every 

year to move our training up also. The idea is to get the initial accreditation 

because they will learn so much they won't believe it. 
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• Rep. Amerman: Once they get the National Accreditation of all the Service 

Officers apparently you cannot train them after that but once they have it do they 

have to go every so often to keep the accreditation? 

Gene Kouba: I think what we do is bring them in every year and get the 

upgrade. I can't speak for my boss but I think it would be the logical thing to do. 

Once they are accredited it is to bring the trainers in annually to have the 

upgrade changes made. The first thing is to get them accredited because some 

of these guys that work four hours on a Monday are going to be blown away with 

the training. All of us who have taken the training and come back are just numb 

.because it so well done and so informative that you actually feel better about 

doing your job. It is really great training and it is the best. 

Chairman Kasper: How do you feel about giving them until 2011? You will 

have two trainings in 2010 so will some of them use that as an excuse not to do it 

in 2010? 

Gene Kouba: They will still have another chance in 2011. I don't remember 

where it is in June of 2011 after Minneapolis. It is in Mississippi. 

Rep. Amerman: What happens after 2011 and someone gets hired and how 

much time do they have? What happens if they are only hired and only have a 

month or two to get accredited? 

.ene Kouba: I think that you should address that next session. 
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- Sen. Cook: That is exactly what lead me to that thought is that we have this 

next session and you are going to have two levels for decisions that have to be 

made. You are going to have the County Commissioners that are going to have 

to make a very important decision here and you have current Veteran's Officers 

out there that are going to have to make a decision. I think what ultimately we 

want to do is make sure that we have highly qualified Veterans' Officers out there 

and the way we are really going to get to that goal is when County 

Commissioner's start saying we are going to start combining counties. 

Gene Kouba: I fully agree . 

• Sen. Cook: We will be able to measure that next session and do whatever we 

have to do then. 

Gene Kouba: I vote for that. 

Rep. Grande: Mr. Kouba you said we hoped to send all the County Veterans 

Service Officers, who is the "we"? 

Gene Kouba: I work with Commissioner Wangen and he and I have talked and I 

told him we have to make a big push. We were supposed to have our 

conference this month but it got flooded out. So we are having a week 

conference right now in September and we will make a presentation that is going 

to tell them that the law has changed and you have to be accredited. You have 

.ntil August of 2011 and we have two training sessions next year and one in 
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• Mississippi in 2011 and you have to go to one of these. You have to either come 

to Bismarck, which most of them will do I am sure, or you have to go to 

Minneapolis or you have to go to Mississippi. My boss and I have talked about 

going around and visiting all these commissioners. 

Sen. Cook: The Association of Counties has got a role here too, to play, and 

they do that to, if you go to their meetings it will be a topic item that is going to be 

discussed. 

Gene Kouba: What I like is the August of 2011. 

Chairman Kasper: How is the amendment going to read Sen. Cook? 

.Sen. Cook: That by August 1, 2011 all Veterans' County Service Officers shall 

be accredited by the National Association of County Veterans' Service Officers. 

That would be in the form of a motion. 

Rep. Nathe: 2nd
• 

Sen. Dever: Is that a motion to the amendments or is that a motion on the 

amendments? 

Chairman Kasper: Motion to amend wherever it is appropriate in Amendment 

05? Then we will have to have one more meeting unless we get to the point 

where we circulate the amendment as completed and everybody is happy with it. 

Sen. Dever: I am going to still have a question about the conservator thing? 

• 
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• Chairman Kasper: Let's act on this amendment first. We have a motion and a 

second. Any discussion? All in favor of the amendment proposed by Sen. Cook 

say I? Consent all. I. Motion carries. 

Sen. Dever: I would like to ask Tim about the public administrator thing. I have 

two copies of the chapter and what I am curious about is that it says that: "Public 

administrators shall receive the same compensation for services as is allowed by 

law to executors, administrators, guardians, and conservators unless the court 

for special reasons allows a higher compensation." Is that how they get paid for 

their services? Do you know or do they receive a salary? The issue that we are 

-dealing with is in Grand Forks where the County Veteran Service Officer is also 

the County Public Administrator? 

Tim Dawson, Legal Advisor, Legislative Council: I am looking right here at 

the conservators section of the uniform probate code and it says that: "An estate 

is derived (can't understand) for money paid or being paid to the Veterans 

Administration or to the Conservator or the Conservator's predecessor for the 

benefit of the protected person the compensation allowed from such money to 

the conservator shall be limited to 5% of the amount proceed from the agency 

during the period covered by the account." This is a court proceeding in which a 

person is appointed to be conservator. The court appoints the compensation and 
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.as I am looking at this section right here if they get any money from the Veteran's 

Administration it is limited to 5% of the amount of the money. 

Sen. Dever: What I read from was 11- 21-08. 

Tim Dawson: I haven't read 11-21-08 but what you said there is they get 

reimbursed as the court determines based upon how other people are 

reimbursed and so if other people are reimbursed under 30.1-29-14 and that 

talks about compensation and expenses of the conservator and in that section I 

am seeing that if they get any money from the Veterans Administration it is 

limited to 5% of the amount of the money you receive from the agency . 

• Sen. Dever: This I think is referring to their estate? I have two copies here if you 

want one. I am just wondering if we are setting up a conflict. By them advocating 

on behalf of the Veteran and then continuing them as a conservator? 

Tim Dawson: It says that they can receive compensation as allowed by law 

unless higher compensation is set by the court. As allowed by law is 30.1-29-14 

which says that if they get any money from the Veterans Administration, which I 

would guess all these people would, but it is limited to 5% of what they get from 

the agency. 

Chairman Kasper: As there fee for conservator? Which is not a whole lot but it 

is something for their time . 

• im Dawson: Exactly. 
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.Sen. Dever: That is the compensation from the Veterans' Administration. 

Chairman Kasper: No, it is the compensation from their conservatorship duties 

they are limited to 5% of what the Veterans' Affairs is paid. Correct? 

Tim Dawson: That is what it seems to read to me on the first reading here. 

Chairman Kasper: So if the Veterans' Affairs would receive a $100 a month the 

person doing the work would get 5% of that or $5 a month. 

Sen. Dever: If the person has a $1 million estate and they die and no one 

contests it then they get it? 

Tim Dawson: No, you can have the estate while you are alive and that is when I 

.ead the word estate there that is yours while you are alive. It doesn't mean that 

you are dead. Because when you are dead this doesn't apply. A conservator is 

for a person to protect their property and their property equals estate. 

Chairman Kasper: We are dealing with living people not deceased people. 

Tim Dawson: It is in the Uniform Probate Code which that is where the 

confusion is coming from. It does have sections regarding guardianship and 

conservatorship, general provisions that apply. 

Sen. Dever: You don't see a conflict then. 

Tim Dawson: No. I don't see a conflict between statutes. Whether there is a 

conflict of interest I have yet to see it. Maybe if you explained it to me. 
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.Gene Kouba: Having been in the past a conservator and a guardian for 

Veterans I will tell you what they do. The Veterans Administration appoints a 

conservator if they have a Veteran who can't handle his money and he has a lot 

of debt and they have field reps that actually come out and appoint you as a 

conservator where you sign the forms so they can send the VA check to you. 

You will get 4% at that time with what the Veteran gets. After a period of time if 

you want to be the guardian for that individual you have to go to court and then 

you get your 5%. This is also for the VA income and the Social Security income. 

Because most of them get both. But the initial appointment is done by the 

• Veterans Administration. Until you become a full-fledged guardian and then you 

get a checklist you are responsible for, living spaces, Ors. Appts, and stuff like 

that and then you get 5% once it has gone to the court. It includes both Social 

Security and Veterans Administration check. 

Chairman Kasper: So you are comfortable with the language we have here? 

Gene Kouba: I don't have a problem with that at all. 

Chairman Kasper: Now committee members we have the bill as amended and 

re-amended before us, and I think we understand what we need to do with the 

amendments, but what I want to do is have the clerk type the amendments as we 

have discussed and circulate them to everybody and if anybody disagrees with 

-he amendment that I circulate that was not what we had done we will have 
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• another conference committee. Otherwise I would like us to adopt the 

amendments and move forward and get this committee done. Do we have a 

motion? 

Sen. Dever: I amended the amendment once and I think the only further 

amendment is to remove the language regarding the Department of Veterans 

Affairs conservator? 

Chairman Kasper: Well we are amending this amendment and we haven't seen 

it and all I am saying is that I want to circulate the amendment as I believe we 

have agreed to but I want a motion to amend and accept the amendment first. 

.Sen. Cook: I would be willing to do that but I don't think it is any more difficult if 

we do what you are saying you want to do. We all sign off and once we all sign 

off and that means the only order of business is for us to sit down here and make 

a motion and second and resolve. I'd be happy to do it that way. Let's do all the 

word-smithing and make sure it is correct. 

Chairman Kasper: Then we will adjourn the committee and we will re-meet. 
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CONFERENCE COMMITTEE THREE: 

Chairman Kasper: We will open the Conference Committee hearing on HB 

1057. Clerk will call the roll. 

.lerk Erhardt: Roll Call. Chairman Representative Jim Kasper. Representative 

Mike Nathe. Representative Bill Amerman. Senator Dick Dever. Senator Dwight 

Cook. Senator Robert Horne. 

Chairman Kasper: We will start by referring to or discussing the amendment 

that I had placed on all of your desks yesterday which was highlighted and color­

coded. Sen. Dever did you get this? 

Sen. Dever: Yes I did. 

Chairman Kasper: If we would look at the amendment before us and it does not 

have a number on it but it says we would be dealing with .05 bill itself which was 

-the version that the House passed over to the Senate because we would call for 
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-the Senate to recede from its amendments and we would further amend. Again I 

will just walk through it. See Attachment # 1. 

Sen. Horne: To be clear then if I am appointed after August 1 as a Veterans 

Service Affairs Officer I would have three ways to become accredited as stated 

here. 

Chairman Kasper: That language was suggested because they are looking for 

online ways for accreditation as well as the classroom accreditation so we are 

encompassing those areas of potential accreditation and not limiting them. Any 

other questions on that part of the amendment? 

.ep. Amerman: Just so I can get it clear in my mind the standing Service 

Officers that we have now would have to be accredited under the National 

Association and anybody after that August 2009 would have to do the three 

different ways. 

Sen. Dever: Actually, Mr. Chairman, it says shall comply with those 

accreditation requirements doesn't necessarily mean they are accredited. 

Chairman Kasper: We could certainly change that to "must become accredited 

with." 

Sen. Dever: I am not certain they will have a problem with that. 

Chairman Kasper: "Comply with" means you are accredited and that is our 

.ntent. 
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.Sen. Dever: Or "eligible for accreditation"? 

Chairman Kasper: We could certainly say "shall become accredited with" 

instead of "shall comply" we could certainly say "shall become accredited with or 

by?" Any comments from the committee on that? 

Sen. Dever: I guess I am really indifferent. 

Chairman Kasper: It says "shall comply" with accreditation it is self evident that 

you have to be accredited. 

Sen. Cook: Let the minutes show what our intent is and I think we will be fine. 

Chairman Kasper: Continue with amendment. 

-Sen. Cook: We are using the word individual in that statement three times and I 

think that the first two times that we use it the individual who serves for an 

individual except if the individual is the spouse and then when we get to the last 

word unless the individual is hired and in that case we are talking about the 

person who can serve as the conservator. 

Sen. Horne: The Service Officer. 

Sen. Cook: Isn't that confusing? 

Sen. Horne: That last "individual" is in appropriate. 

Sen. Cook: I'd say unless the conservator is hired by the county and reserves 

no fees . 

• hairman Kasper: That would be much better I think. 
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.Sen. Horne: What would the situation be where the county would hire a Service 

Officer to do this? 

Chairman Kasper: Where that would occur and it does occur and is where the 

Veteran has no family members, maybe has a family member but they are way 

far away or are not involved with the Veteran and they have nobody that the 

Veteran can count on or they have some mental incapacities or aging 

incapacities or both. They need someone to help manage that persons financial 

affairs and other affairs and so in that case we have been told wants to have the 

County Veterans Officer be able to do so but we don't want that to be taken 

.advantage of. 

Rep. Nathe: Another example would be, as I see it in my business as a funeral 

director a lot of times, a Veteran may pass away who has had a relationship with 

a Veterans Service Officer and cannot find any family and nobody will take 

responsibility for ones funeral arrangements. The Service Officer has been the 

closest person to them and so they can be appointed and sign for the papers and 

do the final disposition. 

Sen. Horne: Let's say that this is a desirable arrangement but the County 

doesn't have the money or want to pay for it can the Service Officer volunteer to 

do this or must he/she be paid. 
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.Chairman Kasper: Unless the conservator is hired by the County. The hiring 

could be for one dollar. The County could determine what the hiring fee would 

be. We are not stipulating what a hired amount should be it would probably be 

better to have them go on record that that person has been hired or appointed so 

that it becomes more formal. 

Sen. Horne: I agree. 

Sen. Dever: It seems to me that the situation in Grand Forks is in that the 

County Veterans Service Officer also has a dual role as the County Public 

Administrator. Which might be different than what we are talking about but if that 

.s what we want to do it also seems to me then maybe the language should be 

"hired by the County for that purpose" because a County Veterans Service 

Officer is hired by the County. 

Chairman Kasper: What you are saying is more or less the Conservator is hired 

by the County for that purpose. To add the word "for that purpose" ? 

Rep. Nathe: How about appointed? 

Sen. Dever: Or appointed as a County Public Administrator if we want to narrow 

it to that situation? 

Chairman Kasper: How would your language read Sen. Dever? 

Sen. Dever: Unless the conservator is appointed by the County as Public 

.dministrator they will receive no fees from the Veteran. 
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.Chairman Kasper: But they would be a Conservator or could be a 

Conservator? 

Sen. Dever: But that is their role as a Public Administrator. 

Chairman Kasper: To be the Conservator? 

Sen. Dever: That is my understanding with the information that Terry Traynor 

had emailed to us. 

Chairman Kasper: Is that all a Public Administrator is is a Conservator or do 

they have other duties? They would not be very busy if that is all that they did. 

Sen. Dever: He had emailed us Chapter 11-21, the Public Administrator and 

.ncluded in that the duties and powers. A public administrator shall be ex-officio 

public special administrator, guardian and conservator in and for the County and 

shall take into the administrator's charge, without application to any appropriate 

court or special appointment, the estates of all deceased persons, and the 

persons and estates of all minors, and the estates or persons and estates of all 

incapacitated persons in the following cases and then it lists nine different 

circumstances. 

Sen. Cook: I think that all we need to do then after looking over Sen. Dever's 

shoulder, that Section of Code is 11-21.05, or maybe you just reference Chapter 

11-21 where you go more or less and accept and then somehow give reference eo Chapter 11-21. 
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.Sen. Dever: You could say hired by the County pursuant to Chapter 11-21. 

Sen. Cook: Legislative Council would know how to do that and they could word­

smith that to you. If that is what you want to do is just fix this Grand Forks 

situation and there maybe another County or two or is that not what you are 

trying to do with that? 

Chairman Kasper: I think that what we are trying to say here is that if this 

person is appointed then they receive no fees from the Veteran because they are 

getting paid some other place. But on the other hand the Conservator could be 

someone other than the Public Affairs person as well, couldn't that occur? 

.Sen. Cook: Then maybe you just have to go to the very beginning of the 

sentence and put notwithstanding the conflict with Chapter 11-21, a County 

Veterans Service Officer may not serve as a Conservator and then finish it with 

the sentence you have there where we change individual to Conservator and 

then we might get both. 

Chairman Kasper: How would the beginning sentence read then? 

Sen. Cook: I am not sure, I am not the word-smither here and whoever drafted 

these for you in Legislative Council would know how to do it if we pointed out this 

Chapter and we did not want to conflict with that. What I think they would say is: 

"Notwithstanding, Chapter 11-21 and so on." 

.hairman Kasper: But are we conflicting with that Chapter? 
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.Sen. Cook: I think that was the whole problem is that we were. From the 

testimony we received that if we had this language in the bill that it would affect 

this County Veterans Officer who also serves in one County and maybe more as 

a Public Administrator where we are saying a County Veterans Service Officer 

cannot be a Conservator and as their role as Public Administrator they can be 

and that is one of their duties is to be a Conservator so we are conflicting with it 

in that condition. 

Chairman Kasper: So what we want to say is if a person falls under that 

Chapter they can do this. 

-Sen. Cook: Yes, that is what I am trying to get at. Unless the individual also 

assumes duties under Chapter 11-21, there you go. 

Sen. Dever: To further complicate things in here where it says compensation of 

a Public Administrator it says: "The Public Administrator shall receive the same 

compensation for services as is allowed by law to executors, administrators, 

guardians, and conservators unless the court for special reasons allows a higher 

compensation." That compensation as I understand comes from the estate. 

Chairman Kasper: But aren't we covering that when we are saying unless a 

Conservator is hired by the County. Of course then we say and receives no fees. 

Sen. Dever: But the County says that the way they are compensated is by 

.erving as the same as if they were Executor. 
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.Chairman Kasper: What if we just strike the words receives no fees from the 

sentence. 

Sen. Dever: What if we call someone in Legislative Council and say how should 

we do this? 

Sen. Horne: I think it is time to get in touch with Legislative Council and sit down 

with the person who helped draft this and explain what we are trying to do and 

get the right wording and the right phrasing. 

Chairman Kasper: Rep. Grande has these drafted so I am not sure who did it. 

Sen. Dever: I think it was Tim Dawson . 

• Chairman Kasper: Rep. Grande we are hung up on trying to exempt the Grand 

Forks situation because of the Public Administrators position. Under the Public 

Administrators position they do receive fees for handling affairs of guardianship 

and our amendment says that "Unless the Conservator is hired by the County 

and receives no fees from the Veteran". If the Public Administrator's job is to 

receive fees for Conservatorship but we are saying that they can't receive fees 

because they have a dual role and the Veterans Service Officer and the Public 

Administrator. We don't want to stop that we want to make it legal and constrain 

it a little bit. 

Rep. Grande: I am wondering about when you say no fees from the Veteran . 

• as referring more to the back pocket type of thing. If it is a salaried position I 
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-think that is a different thing and absolutely we don't want to stop them from 

being paid their salary. But not one where they would have to receive a special 

payment on the side was more of the issue I think to keep it in the legal thing. 

Sen. Cook: Bette, who drafted these? 

Rep. Grande: I think that Jason, the intern, and Tim Dawson did. 

Sen. Cook: I think that Section that Sen. Dever has here that deals with the 

Public Administrator's, Chapter 11-21, and somehow I think all we need to do is 

reference that Chapter excluding what is in there. I don't know how to do that. 

Sen. Dever: One of the further complicating things is the Public Administrators 

.are compensated as executors, administrators, guardians, and conservators so it 

does come from the Veteran. 

Chairman Kasper: Are they compensated by the Veteran or by the County of 

the Veteran? 

Sen. Dever: From the estate. 

Rep. Grande: The question is it okay for them to be Conservator when they 

have two separate roles? Does that make it okay? Maybe we don't want to allow 

them to do it? 

Chairman Kasper: There is no one else to do it. I think we need to allow them 

to do it. I just think that it needs to be a disclosure at an arm's length situation. 
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- Sen. Cook: I assume every County has a Public Administrator. If we just say 

that the Veterans Service Officer can't do it then the other choice is the Public 

Administrator. 

Chairman Kasper: Except that the Veterans Service Officer is also the Public 

Administrator. 

Sen. Cook: Then we make the exception under Chapter 11-21. 

Chairman Kasper: What we want to do is if there is a Veterans Service Officer 

who is also Public Administrator we want them to be able to be the Conservator. 

Sen. Cook: I think that we are fairly close except for the wording that we need to 

-do here but I just have this last question yet and again I go back to this other 

condition for those Veterans Officers who are hired after August 1, 2009. They 

have three options to get accreditation but those who are there only have one. 

What is the wisdom of that? The other two options that are there I think are 

going to be easier to obtain probably and if I remember from the testimony they 

are going to be short some of the skills that they need to be able to communicate 

through all of the other service organizations. Is that not what I heard? I am not 

saying I am against it but I need to know what is the justification for it? 

Sen. Dever: I am not sure about justification but the rationale is just that they 

have the opportunity being presented to them . 

• 
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• Chairman Kasper: I think if I recall the testimony that these other entities are 

being to work toward merging and working with each other and they are maybe 

sort of similar now but not the same. Because we don't know who is going to be 

emerge as the prime one I think. But it was to give the option and come back in 

two years and see where we are at. This is something that definitely has to be 

looked at again. 

Sen. Cook: It says after August 1, 2009 so if what we are trying to do is set the 

bar up here so that Veterans get that type of service, it seems to me that we are 

setting the bar up here but those who are going to be employed after we do this 

-because we have some that leave because they say we are not going to go for 

this bar. Then we have a lower bar. 

Rep. Grande: I thought you were taking out all that language of the three 

options. 

Sen. Cook: That is what I am getting at. 

Chairman Kasper: Then we would say: "Except an individual serving as a 

County Veterans Service Officer on or after August 1, 2009." So we have a gap 

that if anyone is hired after August 1, 2009 we say nothing if we don't have the 

last sentence. 

Sen. Cook: We are saying that ahead of time. We are saying all of those will be 

-one in two years and then the exception is to those who are employed by 
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• August 1, 2009. They will be done by December 1, 2010. The law is going to 

say you have to do this within two years. 

Chairman Kasper: Then you are saying we would have a period after County 

Veterans Service Officers in that sentence. 

Sen. Cook: We would have a period after December 1, 2010 and then the next 

sentence, that whole complete sentence, would be deleted. 

Chairman Kasper: Okay, but then what do we do with the County Veterans 

Service Officer hired after August 1, 2009. 

Sen. Cook: They have two years . 

• Chairman Kasper: No they don't. 

Sen. Cook: Yes, they do. 

Chairman Kasper: Except an individual serving as a County Veterans Service 

Officer on August 1, 2009. 

Sen. Cook: Go before that. Start reading that sentence that ends with the 

except. That is where we are saying in the law that they must do this within two 

years. 

Chairman Kasper: If we get rid of that whole last sentence and we do what we 

want it to do then that is certainly fine with me. 

Sen. Cook: I think it is just the wording. 
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• Sen. Horne: The reason Sen. Cook is accurate is because if you are employed 

now you have to comply within two years of the National Association of County 

Veterans Service Officers program and if you keep this after that you have three 

choices which would indeed weaken the level of certification or the quality of it. 

If we want to eliminate that we do what Senator Cook suggested and that would 

provide the strongest level of certification I think. I don't know if the Service 

Officers are going to like that but that would certainly accomplish the strongest 

level of certification. 

Chairman Kasper: We are going to strike the last sentence in that paragraph. 

-Does everyone agree with that? 

Rep. Amerman: I don't know if I can agree with it but like Sen. Horne said it will 

establish the strongest certification. It will get rid of some Veterans Service 

Officers out in the small areas that do a good job and could get accredited 

through the other areas that you do have in there now. But I am not so sure that 

I will support what we are talking about here now. 

Rep. Grande: In the end of the bill it talks about an appropriation and that 

appropriation is to get them certified if they want to be certified. 

Chairman Kasper: Conference Committee hearing adjourned and we will re­

meet at 11 am. 
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Recorder Job Number: 12277 ~ ~ 
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Minutes: 

CONFERENCE COMMITTEE FIVE: 

Chairman Kasper: We will open the Conference Committee on HB 1057. 

Clerk will call the roll . 

• lerk Erhardt: Roll Call. All present. Chairman Representative Jim Kasper. 

Representative Mike Nathe. Representative Bill Amerman. Senator Dick Dever. 

Senator Dwight Cook. Senator Robert Horne. 

Chairman Kasper: We have a quorum. Committee I passed out the amendment 

that we discussed last Friday and had it prepared by Legislative Council. I think 

it does what we talked about and I will give you moment to review and we will 

walk through it. Does the committee have any questions on the amendment? 

Sen. Dever: Without comparing it to the bill Mr. Chairman it appears to be true. 

Sen. Horne: I was not here at 11 am on Friday so apparently we decided to 

.orgo the three options and require the Veterans Service Officers to be 
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• accredited through the National Association of County Veterans Services 

Officers? 

Chairman Kasper: We talked about the three options and the discussion sort of 

centered on "Well, let's see what is going to happen with the one accreditation in 

the next two years." We are going to get that report and we are going to see who 

did do the accreditation and who didn't and what the problem's are and so on. 

We have some funding in to help that get paid for. With the idea that in two 

years we are going to look at this and then if we need to take action to add 

something we will discuss what we will do. We just decided to stay with the 

.accreditation that we have in the bill right now. Any other comments? 

Sen. Cook: Do we need to move these or have we? 

Chairman Kasper: No, we need to. 

Sen. Cook: I make a motion to move the amendments 0502, where the Senate 

recede and that we further amend. 

Sen. Horne: 2nd
• 

Chairman Kasper: We have a motion by Sen. Cook and a 2nd by Sen. Horne. 

Any discussion on the motion? 

Rep. Amerman: What I was wondering from one of the gentlemen that was 

here in the discussion at 11 o'clock within these two years there are two places 

.at the Veterans Service Officers had to go and one was Mississippi and one 
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.was Minneapolis. But it sounds like they have to go to one of those two and I 

was just wondering about the expense is the appropriation for that or would the 

counties have to pay for their room and board or something for some of these 

Veterans Service Officers? 

Chairman Kasper: Generally speaking the county does pick up these expenses 

and the appropriation I think is to provide for the schooling. Rep. Grande who 

handles that money, the Veterans Service Office will handle those appropriated 

funds? 

Rep. Grande: The Veterans Affairs Commissioners office will handle that. 

.Chairman Kasper: If they wish to have scholarships or help to defray expenses 

would that be in their prerogative to do so? 

Rep. Grande: I would think so since the discussion has been that it will cost 

about $10,000 to get them here and do the training. The discussion from Mr. 

Kouba, he works in that office, was that yes they would hope that everybody 

would go to Minneapolis but obviously it could be difficult for everybody. So they 

planned to do one in-state and if they can't do that then the third option would be 

to go to Mississippi. 

Sen. Cook: The total FTE's we have at the county and of course some of them 

work one-tenth of the time and some of them are full-time and some of them are 

ealf-time. The total is 35 FTE's. Of course that is driven by County Commission 
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• decision and I would think Rep. Amerman that if you are a County out there and 

you have a Veterans Service Officer that is working a quarter of the time or 

maybe a tenth of the time in that capacity then you are going to way some 

decisions as to whether or not you want to train that individual or your other 

option of course is to look at a County Veterans Officer in an adjoining County. 

Those are the decisions and the conversations that we need to have the County 

Commissioners take and that is the beauty I think of this bill it will generate those 

conversations. 

Rep. Amerman: I agree but it is kind of one of the concerns that I have that is 

.exactly what might happen. I still have a feeling that our new commissioner from 

an email I got can set up a very good program and along with the other 

guidelines that the federal office has and I will be anxious to see whether it is 

good or bad. Some of the part-time Veterans' Service Officers in the smaller 

communities do a very good function and they certainly help the Veterans there 

although they probably don't have the accreditation. Probably the 

Commissioners are not going to send them because they are not going to feel it 

is going to be worthwhile. Are we going to be down to 14 Veterans Service 

Officers across the whole state and I am not sure that is the way it should be. 

Chairman Kasper: I think that our focus with this bill is that fact that a lot of our 

eounties are not providing the Veterans' the services they should have. By one 
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• way or the other we need to get them to that point. If we need to do a 

combination or train their own that is what we are moving toward. We have 

heard testimony that there is problem millions and millions of dollars of Veterans 

benefits that are not being procured for ND Veterans because the staff or 

Veterans' Officers are not equipped or not trained and it is time we got it done. 

Rep. Amerman: I agree but we are setting it right away at the highest bar and I 

am not so sure that is a good thing. I like the three different ways and then see 

how that would work in two years because once you set the bar so high I feel in 

the two years that are coming you are going to lose some, where maybe in the 

.nterim with the other options we would not. 

Chairman Kasper: My thought is that maybe we need to lose some in the next 

two years if they are not doing their job the way they are supposed to. 

Sen. Dever: I think an important part of the amendment is the reports to 

Legislative Council which will likely bring about another look at it during the next 

session. Then I think we can look at other options. 

Chairman Kasper: That is the intent, to put a little pressure on and find out what 

happens and if we need to take action in the next session then do so. 

Sen. Dever: Then if there are valid reasons why they haven't satisfied that then 

we can look at alternatives and that might be one of the benefits of us now 

e,aving moved the date to August 1, 2011. 
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• Chairman Kasper: Any other discussion? If not the clerk will call the roll Do 

Pass on amendment number 90022.0502 where the Senate recedes and we 

further amend. 

Clerk Erhardt: Roll Call: Yes: 5. No: 1. Absent: 0. Carrier: Chairman Rep. Jim 

Kasper. 

Chairman Kasper: We have an amended bill before us and the motion passes 

5 to 1. We will adjourn the committee. 
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April 23, 2009 
Amendments proposed by Representative Kasper 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1057 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on page 1045 of the House Journal and page 

774 of the Senate Journal and that House Bili No. 1057 be further amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 4, after the semicolon insert "to provide for reports to the legislative council;" 

Page 1, line 11, after the first period, insert "The veterans' affairs commissioner may work 
directly with county veterans' service officers. 

Page 1, line 14, replace "must maintain" with "shall comply with", after "accreditation" insert 
"requirements established", and remove "North Dakota department of' 

Page 1, line 15, replace "veterans' affairs" with "national association of county veterans' service 
officers" and after "appointment" insert ", except an individual serving as a county 
veterans' service officer on August 1. 2009. shall comply with the accreditation 
requirements by December 1. 2010 (July 31. 2011\. A county veterans' service officer who is 
appointed after August 1. 2009 shall comply with either the accreditation requirements 
established by the national association of county veterans' service officers or requirements 
established by a recognized service organization or the department of veterans' affairs in 
compliance with requirements of the United States department of veterans' affairs within two 
years of appointment." 

Page 1, line 23, after the period insert "A county veterans" service officer may not serve as a 
conservator for an individual who is receiving benefits or services from the department 
of veterans' affairs or the United States department of veterans affairs. except if the 
individual is the spouse or an immediate family member of the officer. or unless the individual is 
hired by the county and receives no fees from the veteran." 

Page 2, line 5, replace "a person" with "an individual who is" and after "department" insert "" 
except if the individual is the spouse or an immediate family member of the employee. unless 
the individual is hired by the county and receives no fees from the veteran." 

Page 2. after line 9, insert: 

"SECTION 4. REPORTS TO LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL. By December 1, 2009, 
the commissioner of veterans" affairs shall provide to the legislative council a report 
regarding the number of county veterans" service officers accredited in accordance with 
the requirements of section 1 of this Act, the agency or organization through which each 
officer has been accredited, and an accountability report with respect to the use of the 
funds granted under section 5 of this Act for the training program offered through the 
department of veterans" affairs to county veterans' service officers. The commissioner 
shall present followup reports by July 1, 2010, and December 1, 2010. By December 1, 
2010, the board of county commissioners of each county shall report to the legislative 
council the status of the county's compliance with section 1 of this Act." 
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April 24, 2009 
Amendments proposed by Representative Kasper 

...A.FR8A9R'IOAt #4 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1057 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on page 1045 of the House Journal and page 

774 of the Senate Journal and that House Bill No. 1057 be further amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 4, after the semicolon insert "to provide for reports to the legislative council;" 

Page 1, line 11, after the first period, insert "The veterans' affairs commissioner may work 
directly with county veterans' service officers. 

Page 1, line 14, replace "must maintain" with "shall comply with", after "accreditation" insert 
"requirements established", and remove "North Dakota department of' 

Page 1, line 15, replace "veterans' affairs" with "national association of county veterans' service 
officers" and after "appointment" insert ", except an individual serving as a county 
veterans' service officer on August 1, 2009, shall comply with the accreditation 
requirements by December 1, 2010." 

Page 1, line 23, after the period insert "A county veterans' service officer may not serve as a 
conservator for an individual who is receiving benefits or services from the department 
of veterans' affairs or the United States department of veterans affairs, except if the 
individual is the spouse or an immediate family member of the officer. or unless the conservator 
is appointed by the county under chapter 11-21 of the North Dakota century code." 

Page 2, line 5, replace "a person" with "an individual who is" and after "department" insert ". 
except if the individual is the spouse or an immediate family member of the employee, unless 
the individual is hired by the county and appointed under chapter 11-21 of the North Dakota 
century code. 

Page 2, after line 9, insert: 

"SECTION 4. REPORTS TO LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL. By December 1, 2009, 
the commissioner of veterans' affairs shall provide to the legislative council a report 
regarding the number of county veterans' service officers accredited in accordance with 
the requirements of section 1 of this Act, the agency or organization through which each 
officer has been accredited, and an accountability report with respect to the use of the 
funds granted under section 5 of this Act for the training program offered through the 
department of veterans' affairs to county veterans' service officers. The commissioner 
shall present followup reports by July 1, 2010, and December 1, 2010. By December 1, 
2010, the board of county commissioners of each county shall report to the legislative 
council the status of the county's compliance with section 1 of this Act." 

Renumber accordingly 
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Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Kasper 

April 24, 2009 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1057 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on page 1045 of the House Journal 
and page 774 of the Senate Journal and that Reengrossed House Bill No. 1057 be amended 
as follows: 

Page 1, line 4, after the semicolon insert "to provide for reports to the legislative council;" 

Page 1, line 11, after the first period insert "The veterans' affairs commissioner may work 
directly with county veterans' service officers." 

Page 1, line 13, replace "The county" with "By August 1, 2011, all county veterans' service 
officers must be accredited by the national association of county veterans' service 
officers." 

Page 1, remove line 14 

Page 1, line 15, remove "veterans' affairs within two years of appointment." 

Page 1, line 23, after the period insert "A county veterans' service officer may not serve as a 
conservator for an individual who is receiving benefits or services from the department 
of veterans' affairs or the United States department of veterans' affairs, except if the 
individual is the spouse or an immediate family member of the officer, or unless the 
conservator is appointed by the county under chapter 11-21." 

Page 2, line 5, replace "a person" with "an individual who is" and after "department" insert", 
except if the individual is the spouse or an immediate family member of the employee" 

Page 2, after line 9, insert: 

"SECTION 4. REPORTS TO LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL. By December 1, 2009, 
the commissioner of veterans' affairs shall provide to the legislative council a report 
regarding the number of county veterans' service officers accredited in accordance with 
the requirements of section 1 of this Act, the agency or organization through which each 
officer has been accredited, and an accountability report with respect to the use of the 
funds granted under section 5 of this Act for the training program offered through the 
department of veterans' affairs to county veterans' service officers. The commissioner 
shall present followup reports to the legislative council by July 1, 2010, and 
December 1, 2010. By December 1, 2010, the board of county commissioners of each 
county shall report to the legislative council the status of the county's compliance with 
section 1 of this Act." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 90022.0502 
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90022.0301 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff tor 
Representative Kasper 

February 6, 2009 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1057 

Page 1, line 1, remove "four new sections to chapter 37-15 and" 

Page 1, line 2, remove "governance of the veterans' home" 

Page 1, line 3, remove the first "and", replace "sections" with "section", and remove the comma 

Page 1, remove line 4 

Page 1, line 5, remove "37-18.1-04" and remove the second comma 

Page 1, remove line 6 

Page 1, line 7, remove "the administrative committee on veterans' affairs" 

Page 2, remove lines 3 through 29 

Page 3, remove lines 1 through 30 

Page 4, remove lines 1 through 27 

Page 5, remove lines 4 through 30 

Page 6, remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 7, remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 8, remove lines 1 through 31 

Page 9, remove lines 1 through 8 

Page 9, line 10, replace "shall" with "may" and after "use" insert "up to" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 90022.0301 
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SUMMARY OF HOUSE BILL NO.1057 RELATING TO 
THE DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS, THE VETERANS HOME, AND 

THE DELIVERY OF VETERANS' SERVICES 

This memorandum provides a summary of House 
Bill No. 1057 relating to the Department of Veterans 
Affairs, the Veterans Home, and the delivery of 
veterans' services. Major provisions of the bill draft: 

• Require county veterans' service officers to 
maintain accreditation by the National 
Association of County Veterans Service 
Officers within one year of appointment 

• Provide e $20,000 general fund appropriation to 
the Department of Veterans Affairs for 
arranging for National Association of County 
Veterans Service Officers accreditation training. 

• Require two of the Department of Veterans 
Affairs' existing full-time equivalent (FTE) 
positions to be used for training officers for the 
2009-11 biennium. 

• Provide that the general supervision and 
governance of the Veterans Home is vested in 
a Veterans Home Governing Board, which 
consists of seven members appointed by the 
Governor. 

• Provide that the commissioner of the 
Department of Veterans Affairs be appointed by 
the Governor. 

• Require the Department of Veterans Affairs be 
located In Bismarck or Mandan. 

• Provide that any employee of the Department of 
Veterans Affairs may not be a conservator for a 
person receiving benefits or services from the 
department 

• Reduce the size of the Administrative 
Committee on Veterans Affairs from 
15 individuals to 7 individuals with the 
commissioner of the Department of Veterans 
Affairs serving as the chairman of the 
committee. 

• Revise the powers and duties of the 
Administrative Committee on Veterans Affairs 
to remove supervision of the Department of 
Veterans Affairs and the veterans Home and to 
provide that the committee Is to create and 
Implement a strategic plan for the delivery of 
veterans' services In the state. The bill draft 
does not change the committee's duties relating 
to the administration of the veterans' postwar 
trust fund as provided In Section 25 of the 
Constitution of North Dakota and North Dakota 
Century Coda (NDCC) Section 37-14-12 and 
administration of the veterans' aid fund as 
provided In Section 37-14-10. 

PROPOSED ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE 

Commissioner 
(Department of Veterans Affairs) 

f 
Department of Veterans Affairs 

Governor 

Administrative Committee on 
Veterans Affairs (7) 

Commllaloner, Department of 
Veterana Affalra (Chabman) 

Six lndlvldualo qualllylng 11 -rana 
under NDCC 5ectlon 37-01-40 

Veterans Home Governing Board (7) 
Three lndlvldualo qualifying 11 -ran■ under 

NDCC 5ectlon 37-01-40 
Four other lndlvldualo 

i 
Administrator (Veterans Home) 

Veterans Home 
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Section 1 

Section 2 

Section 3 

Section 4 

Section 5 

Section 6 

Section 7 

Section 8 

Section 9 

Section 10 

Section 11 

Section 12 

Section 13 

Section 14 

2 February 2009 

BILL SECTION SUMMARY 

Amends NDCC Section 37-14-18 to provide that county veterans' service officers must maintain 
accreditation by the National Association of County Veterans Service Officers within one year of / 
appointment. 

Amends NDCC Section 37-15-03 to provide that the general supervision and governance of the Veterans 
Home is vested in the Veterans Home Governing Board. 

Amends NDCC Section 37-15-07 relating to the administrstor of the Veterans Home to provide that the 
Veterans Home Governing Board, not the Administrative Committee on Veterans Affairs, may designate the 
administrator as commandant of the. Veterans Home if the administrator is an honorably discharged veteran. 
Creates four new sections to NDCC Chapter 37-15 to: 
• Establish a Veterans Home Governing Board consisting of seven voUng members appointed by the 

Governor. Of the members, three must qualify as veterans under Section 37-01-40. 
• Provide that Iha Governor Is to appoint a chairman of the governing board. 
• Provide that the governing board Is responsible for the administration of the Veterans Home, including 

selecting an admlnistrstor, conducting an annual performance evaluaUon of the administrator, and 
Implementing a strategic plan for the Veterans Home. 

• Provide that the governing board members may receive compensation of $135 per day and 
reimbursement for travel, meals, and lodging expenses. 

Amends NDCC Section 37-18-07 to provide that the commissioner of the Department of Veterans Affairs Is 
to be appointed by the Governor. The commissioner must qualify as a veteran as defined In Section 
37-01-40 and Is to serve at the pleasure of the Governor. 

Amends NDCC Section 37-18-08 to provide that the Department of Veterans Affairs must be located In ·.4 

Bismarck or Mandan. · 

Amends NDCC Section 37-18-12 to provide that Iha Department of Veterans Affairs may accept and spend 
funds from any source, Including federal or private sources, to be used to assist veterans In obtaining 
assistance and to pay other expenses Incurred In carrying out programs of benefit and service for veterans 
with approval of the Emergency Commission. This section previously required authorization by the 
AdmlnlstrsUve Committee on Veterans Affairs. 

Creates a new section to NDCC Chapter 37-18 to provide that an employee of the Department of Veterans 1 

Affairs may not be a conservator for a person receiving benefits or services from the department. 
Amends NDCC Section 37-18.1-01 to reduce the size of the Admlnlstrstive Committee on Veterans Affairs 
from 15 Individuals to 7 Individuals consisting of the commissioner of the Department of Veterans Affairs and 
6 lndlvlduals qualifying as veterans under the provisions of Section 37-01-40. 

Amends NDCC Section 37-18.1-02 to provide that the commissioner of the Department of Veterans Affairs Is 
to serve as the chairman of the AdmlnlstrsUve Committee on Veterans Affairs. 

Amends NDCC Section 37-18.1-03 to revise the powers and duties of the Administrative Committee on 
Veterans Affairs to remove supervision of the Department of Veterans Affairs and the Veterans Home and to 
provide that the committee Is to create and Implement a strstaglc plan for the delivery of veterans' services 
In Iha state. 

Amends NDCC Section 37-18.1-04 to provide that the members of the Admlnlstrstlve Committee on 
Veterans Affairs may receive compensation of $135 per day and may be reimbursed for travel expenses, 
Including meals and lodging expenses, In connection with their official duUes with payment made by the 
Department of Veterans Affairs. 

Provides that the commissioner of Veterans Affairs must uUllze two of the Department of. Veterans Affairs' 
existing FTE positions as trslnlng officers for the 2009-11 biennium. 

Provides a $20,000 general fund appropriation to the Department of Veterans Affairs for arranging for 
National Association of County Veterans Service Officers accreditation trslnlng for all county veterans' 
service officers durin the 2009-11 biennium. · 



$ 

" "'C Q) 
C Q) 
ro ......., ......., 

■-

CE 
a, E 
E o 
EO 
Q) (/) 

• > '--
■-o ro 

(.9 ~ 
Q) <( 
en en 
:::J C 
o ro 
I a5 
o ID 
z> 



• • 
HB 1057 

Delivery of Veterans Benefits 
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"To care for him who shall have borne the 
battle, and for his widow and orphan" 
•President Lincoln's vision 

• The measure of a nation is gauged by the way its 
people honor their defenders 

• The decision to step forward to support & defend the 
Constitution, serving in harms way when necessary, 
exacts a great toll 

• Yet our veterans do not hesitate to serve and bear 
the cost of freedom for all 

1111 
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Delivery of Veterans Benefits 

•Veterans Administration created in 1930 

•President Reagan elevated to Cabinet level in late 1980s 

Dept of 
Veterans Affairs 

J 
I I I 

r 

VBA NCA VHA 

I I I 
r 

ROs Cemeteries/Burial Honan VAMCs 
CBOCs 



• -
HB 1057 

Delivery of Veterans Benefits 

Veterans Benefits Administration: 
•Education 

•Compensation & Pension 

•Vocational Rehabilitation & Employment 

•Home Loans 

•Survivors Benefits 

•Life Insurance 

•Returning from war 

---i ;·-<~~-~ .. :-:~;\_ 
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How do veterans present claims for these benefits?: 
•Directly to the VA RO (Themselves) 

•Through a CVSO 

•Through the ND Dept of VA 

•Through the NSOs: 

•AMERICAN LEGION 

•AMVETS 

•DISABLED AMERICAN VETERANS 

•VETERANS OF FOREIGN WARS 
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Delivery of Veterans Benefits 
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HOW DOES NORTH DAKOTA DO THIS COMPARED TO OTHER 
STATES? 

' ' 

ACOVA (15) 

' , 

_J_ I 
F ' 

, 
' 

NDDVA (6) NDVH (100) 
CVSOs (53) 

' , ' , 
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Delivery of Veterans Benefits 

THE LEGISLATIVE APPROPRIATION: 

•Approx $½ Mil for Dept of Vets Affairs 

•And a 2 mil levy auth for each CVSO 

•Approx $11 ½ Mil for Veterans Home 

•Combined into a siogle bill 

•This has tended to disguise problems with 
Dept of VA funding 

• 
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GEOGRAPHIC DISTRIBUTION OF VA EXPENDITURES FOR e 

Expenditures in $000 

General 
Veteran Compensation Education & Medical Insurance & Operating 

STATE Population* & Pension Voe Rehab Expenditures Indemnities Consb'l.lction Expenses 
Alabama 417,497 842,957 59,898 538,561 24,473 1,376 18,478 
Alaska 65,767 116,785 11,125 104,870 2,497 5,667 2,890 
Arizona 550,095 793,649 88,862 699,472 40,204 8,006 30,176 
Arkansas 262,613 556,473 34,365 545,962 15,250 1,423 12,093 
california 2,203,727 2,777,271 309,795 2,862,612 180,656 48,893 80,455 
Colorado 419,938 596,849 76,393 382,518 28,807 3,073 26,369 
Connecticut 251,957 211,453 43,677 318,172 28,009 5,339 6,188 
Delaware 79,029 86,524 7,144 80,969 5,542 137 1,695 
District of Columbia 34,804 55,858 14,266 124,203 3,242 177,138 1,027,663 
Florida 1,747,076 2,681,007 218,572 2,348,789 162,203 44,875 44,339 
Georgia 757,070 1,167,127 158,394 807,119 40,987 16,394 49,232 
Hawaii 102,396 172,426 20,605 121,316 15,559 407 8,737 
Idaho 131,827 195,177 17,690 167,191 7,968 348 4,331 
Illinois 852,409 718,008 99,857 1,164,160 73,381 21,794 61,799 
Indiana 534,033 491,630 40,040 579,772 26,701 4,275 15,297 
Iowa 254,855 262,756 23,176 334,432 21,993 8,809 6,199 
Kansas 237,564 285,489 29,482 322,300 17,554 3,789 7,767 
Kentucky 351,185 595,300 41,620 540,867 17,781 3,388 14,826 
Louisiana 356,461 608,493 44,374 526,435 20,442 5,377 16,730 
Maine 139,063 306,269 27,658 199,881 9,742 112 6,573 
Maryland 470,722 529,934 60,736 538,762 37,375 2,113 13,770 
Massachusetts 462,083 614,445 46,165 656,397 46,896 6,625 12,613 
Michigan 804,011 766,549 64,445 714,204 48,604 8,533 21,720 
Minnesota 410,166 545,754 40,498 556,217 36,947 5,472 32,814 
Mississippi 236,338 400,259 23,411 461,053 12,500 7,933 15,077 
Missouri 538,172 679,740 60,149 680,241 33,927 2,059 46,843 
Montana 100,230 171,584 12,854 140,048 7,303 4,903 4,803 
Nebraska 153,834 248,113 23,286 234,474 13,322 15 7,277 
Nevada 244,295 314,223 26,128 355,270 12,213 908 6,036 
New Hampshire 127,434 162,630 16,261 156,237 9,474 1,293 6,358 
New Jersey 545,345 541,784 63,945 513,471 60,711 563 10,298 
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New Mexico 175,923 426,661 32,382 288,970 

New York 1,094,391 1,245,440 157,874 1,875,102 

North Carolina 756,216 1,360,223 130,091 895,775 

North Dakota 53,048 86,118 10,723 73,663 

Ohio 1,012,466 998,481 83,704 1,186,276 

Oklahoma 346,707 858,059 64,710 433,152 

Oregon 357,319 582,858 48,089 486,914 

Pennsylvania 1,088,220 1,145,285 81,801 1,300,897 

Rhode Island 86,327 126,424 7,130 124,209 

South carolina 410,084 711,738 61,269 531,409 

South Dakota 70,981 132,378 13,738 182,040 

Tennessee 532,105 822,649 60,719 727,507 

Texas 1,652,214 3,087,017 307,903 2,218,642 

Utah 146,738 173,640 22,898 196,792 

Vermont 55,670 71,209 18,845 79,499 

Virginia 737,600 1,114,771 141,756 701,730 

Washington 617,723 1,014,228 98,043 573,297 

West Virginia 182,285 363,181 61,754 388,318 

Wisconsin 457,450 554,251 41,611 596,922 

Wyoming 53,711 70,439 5,866 113,132 

Puerto Rico 125,194 460,317 21,202 399,259 

Notes: 

• Veteran population estimated a~'.:l'temb':;)Jl.-200~ta from Office of the Actuary, VA. Data is unrounded. 

Expenditures presented for Compensation and Pension reflect the dollar value of actual payments made to individuals. 

Expenditures presented for Educ.ation and Voe Rehab reflect the dollar value of actual payments made to individuals and 
to organizations providing educational services to veterans. 

The C&P category includes expenditures for the following programs: veterans' compensation for service-connected disability; 
dependency and indemnity compensation for service-connected deaths; veterans' pension for nonservice-connected disabilities; 
and pension to veterans' surviving spouse and children. 

Medical Expenditure includes medical services, medical administration, facility maintenance cost, educational support, research 

support, and other overhead items. Medical Expenditure does not include construction or other non-medical support activities. 

• 
13,726 1,231 8,104 

114,405 16,527 52,074 

47,210 6,136 19,585 

4,543 1,262 3,752 

64,922 11,524 35,445 

20,550 5,270 41,531 

22,922 7,811 18,254 

91,683 26,340 85,103 

7,310 355 4,684 

25,618 13,453 18,449 

5,864 0 4,304 

27,309 5,546 24,933 

104,204 20,248 85,955 

11,212 114 11,973 

4,109 28 1,434 

51,814 6,170 45,442 

39,583 7,195 22,671 

9,983 2,785 10,267 

38,322 3,228 24,001 

3,295 2,125 0 

4,145 10,100 11,802 



• 
COUNTY 

ADAMS 

BARNES 

BENSON 

BILLINGS 

BOmNEAU 

BOWMAN 

BURKE 

BURLEIGH 

CASS 

CAVALIER 

DICKEY 

DIVIDE 

DUNN 

EDDY 

EMMONS 

FOSTER 

'GOLDEN VALLEY 

GRAND FORKS 

GRANT 

GRIGGS 

HEmNGER 

KIDDER 

LAMOURE 

LOGAN 

MCHENRY 

MCINTOSH 

MCKENZIE 

MCLEAN 

MERCER 

MORTON 

• 
GEOGRAPHIC DISTRIBUTION OF VA EXPENDITURES FOR FY 2006 

NORTH DAKOTA 

Expenditures in $000 

Veteran Total Compensation Education & 

Population* Expenditures & Pension 

204 

1,053 

396 

104 

660 

227 

207 

6,167 

9,144 

458 

431 

216 

274 

222 

334 

250 

190 

5,619 

256 

251 

287 

247 

330 

163 

572 
210 

541 

857 

801 

2,239 

607 

3,402 

2,008 

172 

1,323 

717 

703 

14,231 

44,196 

1,082 

1,609 

391 

915 

746 

1,138 

915 

254 

16,107 

662 

807 

361 

849 

990 

458 

' 

' 

1,231 

619 

1,141 

2,493 

974 

5,615 

311 

1,448! 

1,010! 

1361 

870 

306 

263 

8,657 

17,615 

529 

678 

233 

558 

400 

706 

331 

146 

9,031 

302 

336 

186 

427 

489 

227 

880 

277 

762 

1,396 

624 

3,257 

Voe Rehab 

33 

41 

28 

0 

38 

1 

21 

786 

1,642 

19 

35 

6 

25 

5 

0 
13, 

16 

1,848 

34 

I 

9 

12 

47 

23 

23 

3 

17 

52 

7 

214 

Medical 

Expenditures 

263 

1,914 

911 

36 

415 

410 

419 

4,788 

24,939 

535 

897 

152 

332 

342 

432 

571 

92 

5,228 

326 

470 

166 

410 

454 

208 

328 

339 

363 

1,045 

343 

2,144 
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[MOUNTRAIL 
,NELSON 

)OLIVER 

PEMBINA 

PIERCE 

RAMSEY 

!RANSOM 

\RENVILLE 

I RICHLAND 

'ROLETTE 

SARGENT 

SHERIDAN 

SIOUX 

SLOPE 

jSTARK 

STEELE 

STUTSMAN 

TOWNER 

jTRAILL 

!WALSH 

iwARD 
,WELLS 

!WILLIAMS 

NORTH DAKOTA (Totals) 

606 

399 

141 

839 

432 

764 

506 

285 

1,133 

822 

326 

153 

314 

51 

1,930 

228 

1,770 

271 

750 

1,111 

5,092 

408 

1,805 

53,048 

1,931 

1,398 

636 

2,180 

1,262 

3,203 

3,398 

725 

3,721 

2,273 

1,082 

268 

1,090 

262 

4,513 

595 

5,817 

598 

2,842 

2,834 

15,143 

834 

4,105 

167,430 

• 
1,274! 44 613 

641 35 723 

3251 26 286 

1,197 55 929 

653 28 582 

1,421 49 1,733 

1,189, 12 2,197 

421 43 261 

1,645 160 1,915 

1,554 120 598 

537 33 512 

151 0 118 

752 40 298 

108 0 154 

2,495 196 1,8221 

388 13 193 

2,759 128 2,931 

339 30 229 

1,293 65 1,484 

1,390 58 1,385 

10,528 1,398 3,218 

396 13 425 

2,214 106 1,785 

86,118 7,649 73,663 

Notes: 

* Veteran population estimated as Gmber 30, 2wv Data from Office of the Actuary, VA. Data is unrounded. 

Expenditures presented at the county level for Compensation, Pension, Education, and Voc Rehab 
reflect the dollar value of actual payments made to individuals. 

The C&P category includes expenditures for the following programs: veterans' compensation for service-connected disability; 
dependency and indemnity compensation for service-connected deaths; veterans' pension for nonservice-connected disabilities; 
and pension to veterans' surviving spouse and children. 
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HB 1057 

Delivery of Veterans Benefits 

PROBLEMS IN THE PAST 5 YEARS: 

•2002 
•NDVH fails State Health Department Inspection 
•Commandant receives media, legal attention 
•Performance Audit reveals financial problems, 42 other significant 
findings, to include that the ACOVA should revise its mission, structure, 
size, and selection criteria 
•OM B takes control of the N DVH budget 

•2003 
•SB 2399 creates Governing Board, mandates a strategic plan, 
makes Commandant and Commissioner "at pleasure" 
•Legislature directs a Performance Audit of the Department of 
Veterans Affairs 

-
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Delivery of Veterans Benefits 

PROBLEMS IN THE PAST 5 YEARS: 

•2004 
•Performance audit raises significant questions over propriety of 
fiduciary assignments 
•Alleged misrepresentation by the Commissioner, Attorney Genereal 
investigation initiated 
•Commissioner resigns prior to conclusion of investigation 
•NDVH Governing Board formed and initiates strategic plan 

•2005 
•New Commissioner appointed -
•ACOVA begins strategic plan -

• 
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Delivery of Veterans Benefits 

PROBLEMS IN THE PAST 5 YEARS: 

•2006 
•Routine inspections reveal life safety issues at NDVH/Quality of care 
is not an issue 
•Cost to repair is more than cost to replace 
•ACOVA/Commissioner relationship becomes tenuous 

•2007 
•NDVH Governing Board advocates for replacement funding 
•SB 2418 signed Apr 12th , provides for new 150 bed facility 
•HCR 3063 recommends study of delivery of veterans benefits 
•Legislative Council selects HCR 3063, committee formed 
•Subcommittee of ACOVA places Commissioner on 
Administrative Leave 
•ACOVA and Department employees receive "bale" of leafy 
spurge from Fargo Forum 

• 
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Delivery of Veterans Benefits 

CONCLUSIONS 

•NDVH Governing Board has been very successful 

•ACOVA is too large, has no qualification criteria, has been 
dysfunctional and struggled with its role as a board and with 
strategic planning 

•Federal veterans benefit programs have increased in complexity 

•North D~kota has not kept pace organizationally -

-
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Delivery of Veterans Benefits 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

•ACOVA 

" 

•Reduce to 5 members, nominated by anyone, and selected by the governor 
based on qualifications while attempting to fairly represent the veteran 
population. Appoint one a year to a five year term for continuity. (Minnesota 
model)__ --- ---- - --
-~~:=~ 

•Department of Veterans Affairs 

•Get out of the claims business 

•Join & expand on VA outreach efforts 

•Provide FTE to accomplish fiduciary duties and transfer income to Post War 
Trust Fund 

•Carefully study the appropriate location of the Department (but see 
recommendation for CVSOs) 

f(Q oJ- ~J ms 

• 
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Delivery of Veterans Benefits 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

CVSOs: 

•Although revolutionary change is indicated, it is not very 
feasible 

•Develop an evolutionary strategy to migrate towards 
regionalization, with the state assuming responsibility 

•Ultimately, the Commissioner should have sufficient FTE -to assume responsibility on a regional level, and 
sufficient funding to train personnel, raise awareness, 
and travel to every part of the state to insure delivery of 
benefits on an absolutely equal basis to all veterans 

-
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Delivery of Veterans Benefits 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

BOARD STRUCTURE 

•Separate the ACOVA and the NDVH into two separate 
governing bodies, with similar selection processes 

• 
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Delivery of Veterans Benefits 
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PRE-2003 STRUCTURE 

r ' 

ACOVA (15) 

' ~ 

I I 

r F. 

NDDVA (6) NDVH (100) 
CVSOs (53) 

' ~ ' J 
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Delivery of Veterans Benefits 
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Post-2003 STRUCTURE 

ACOVA (15) 
'-

I 
I I 

NDDVA (6) NDVH 
CVSOs (50) Governing Board(?) 

. 
"' 

NDVH (110) 
, 
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Delivery of Veterans Benefits 

RECOMMENDED STRUCTURE 

Governor 

I 
• • 

ACOVA (7) NDVH Governing Board (7) 

I I 
OVA (30) NDVH (110) 

• This reflects the National structure of the VA: 
Pension & Benefits <====> Medical/Hospital 
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2nd Ave.NW 
dan, ND 58554 

cc Braun, Secretary 

Morton/Pli[.~r Vet~ans Service 

7-1/"~J 
Ronald D. Otto 

Service Officer 

701-66r3365 
Fax 701-66r3284 

email:rotto@nd.gov 

' 

' 

North Dakota Legislature 
Government and Veteran Affairs Committee 
The Honorable Bette Grande, Chairwoman 

Chairwoman Grande and Committee Members: 

RE: HB 1057 

My name is Ron Otto. I am the Morton/Oliver County Veteran Service Officer. I have 
been a county veterans' service officer for 22 years. I am also the President of the 
Professional Veterans' Advocates ofNorth Dakota. The Professional Veterans' 
Advocates of ND is an organization of county veteran service officers, both full time and 
part time and serves over 71 % of the veteran population in North Dakota. 

Regarding House Bill 1057, as President I polled our membership on the 14 different 
aspects of the bill (my poll is attached for reference) and 11 of 18 members responded as 
follows: I) 8 support - 3 amend and support 2) 9 support - I neutral - I do not 
support 3) 11 support 4) 9 support - 2 neutral 5) 11 support 6) 9 support - 2 
neutral 7) 9 support - 2 neutral 8) IO support - I amend and support 9) IO support 
- I do not support I 0) IO support - I do not support 11) 11 support 12) 4 support 
- I neutral- 6 do not support 13) 9 support- 2 amend and support 14) 11 support 

I am also attaching a copy of correspondence from national service officers that are 
located at the Fargo VA Regional Office that you will find informative. 

I have also reviewed the "fiscal note" attached to the bill and I do not see any credibility 
in it. 

I want to thank the North Dakota Legislature and the Public Safety Committee for 
choosing the delivery of veterans' services as an interim study. 

I gave testimony during the "interim study" of the "Public Safety Committee" and my 
testimony to them is of record. I am very much in favor of the National Association of 
County Veterans Service Officers (NACVSO) coming to North Dakota and providing 
training to all county veterans' service officers who have not had the opportunity to 
attend their training to date. This group was organized in 1988 at a meeting in St Paul, 
MN for the purpose of providing superior and consistent training to county veteran 
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service officers. NACVSO is often asked to attend meetings of The United States 
Department of Veterans' Affairs before any other veterans' organization in order to give 
testimony and provide viable solutions to the major problems the VA faces. 

As a service officer who provides services in a major population county full time and a 
small county part time, I am in a unique position to have viewed all aspects of the issue 
of veterans' service. Knowledge, skill and ability to do one's job is essential in providing 
veterans benefits. Well over 99% of the benefits coming to the veterans of North Dakota 
are federal benefits. That is job one, ensuring that veterans, their dependants and 
survivors receive the benefits earned by the man or woman that stood up and had the 
courage to write a blank check to the United States of America for an amount up to and 
including their very life. Thank you for this opportunity to do my job again and stand up 
for the veteran. 

I Remain 

µ~<ad 
Ronald D. Otto 
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Ron Otto 

From: Ron Otto [rotto@state.nd.us] 

Sent: Saturday, January 24, 2009 2:42 PM 

To: 'Barb Zavala'; 'Bob Evans'; 'Cathy Westensee'; 'Chanelle Lende'; 'Cindy Munsch'; 'Dale E. Braun'; 
'Jack Heyne'; 'Jim Brent'; 'Jim Verwey'; 'Les Ashe'; 'Leslie Ross'; 'Mark Landis': 'Mike Vandrovec'; 
'Tom Gerszewski'; 'Warren Tobin' 

Subject: HB 1057 & Other Matters 

As President I am calling an electronic meeting for the purposes of discussing House Bill 1057 and other matters. 
First I need everyone's attention and response regarding each separate section of HB 1057. I am asking you to 

read, make a selection and for any reasoning you may have for your selection. We Begin: 

1) Section 37-14-18 (Amended) - The county veterans' service officer must maintain accreditation by the 
national association of county veterans' service officers within one year of appointment. 

Support -Amend and Support - Do Not Support 

2) Section 37-15--03 (Amended)- The general supervision and government of the veterans' home is vested 
in the veterans' home governing board. (FYI - ACOVA currently has this authority) 

Support - Amend and Support - Do Not Support 

3) Section 37-15-07 (Amended)- The veterans' home governing board may designate the administrator as 
commandant of the 

Veterans' home if the administrator is an honorably discharged veteran. (FYI - ACOVA currently has this 
authority) 

Support - Amend and Support - Do Not Support 

4) Four new sections to 37-15 NDCC are created and enacted as follows: 

(For the sake of brevity I would ask that you all read this section of 1057. It deals with Membership, 
Appointment, Chairman, Duties, Meetings, Powers and duties of veterans' home governing board, 
Veterans' home governing board - Compensation - Expenses.) 

Support - Amend and Support - Do Not Support 

5) Section 37-18-07 (Amended) - The governor shall appoint the commissioner. The commissioner must 
be a veteran as 
Defined in section 37-01-40 and shall serve at the pleasure of the governor. 

Support - Amend and Support - Do Not Support 

6) Section 37-18--08 (Amended) - Changes where the commissioner's office is located from Fargo to 
Bismarck/Mandan. 

Support -Amend and Support - Do Not Support 

7) Section 37-18-12 (Amended) - This amendment removes ACOVA's authorizing authority for accepting 
and expending funds from any source , including federal or private, but keeps approval with the 
emergency commission. Note that the interest monies from the veterans' postwar trust fund and the 
ACOVA's responsibility here remains unchanged. In essence the commissioner "is authorized with the 
approval of the emergency commission. 

Support -Amend and Support - Do Not Support 

2/4/2009 



• 

• 

• 

Page 2 of3 

8) Section 37-18 - New Section - An emQ!Qyee of the department of veterans' affairs may not serve as a 
conservator for a 
person receiving benefits or services from the department. 

Support -Amend and Support - Do Not Support 

9) Section 37-18.1-01 (Amended)- This section restructures the ACOVA. Reduces the number of voting 
members to six 
plus the commissioner (total of seven). Allows for 3 ex officio members (adjutant general, center 
director of the veterans' 
administration and executive director of job service ND. 

Support - Amend and Support - Do Not Support 

10) Section 37-18.1-02 (Amended) - Makes the chairman of the ACOVA the commissioner and does away 
with the secretary 

Support - Amend and Support - Do Not Support 

11) Section 37-18.1-03 (Amended) - Changes the duties of the ACOVA to- The committee has the 
following powers and 
duties: 1. The committee shall present any matters needing attention and action to the appropriate 
board, commission, agency, or department of the state, and the North Dakota veterans' coordinating 
council. 2. The committee shall create 
and implement a strategic plan for the delivery of veterans' services in the state. The committee annually 
shall report as to 
the status of the strategic plan to the governor. 

Support - Amend and Support - Do Not Support 

12) Section 37-18.1-04 (Amended) Provides a $135 per day stipend for performance of their official duties, 
plus expenses for 
voting members. 

Support - Amend and Support - Do Not Support 

13) Training Positions for the Department - Instructs the commissioner to utilize two of his fte's at trainers. 

Support - Amend and Support - Do Not Support 

14) Appropriation -Appropriates $20,000 for training. 

Support - Amend and Support - Do Not Support 

End of Bill 

I have two other matters that I would like to address in this electronic meeting. Would each of the counties 
represented tell me if and how much you use the Department of Veterans Affairs for the State of North Dakota as 
a claims representative. 

And would each of the counties represented tell me if and how much you use the American Legion as a claims 
representative . 

For those that do not know, the commissioner has been busy setting up training with the American Legion on a 
contract basis. Amd for those that don't know, my position on the Department being a claims representative is 
this. I do not think they should be in the claims representation business. They do not have the training, expertise, 

2/4/2009 
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skill or ability in my professional opinion to handle cases. They should be taking claims and handing them to 
other available claims organizations who do this for a living and for free. This will free them up to assist counties 
that require their help and assistance . 

I open the floor for your debate and input. ........ . 

2/4/2009 
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e-CFR Data is current as of January 20, 2009 

Title 38: Pensions, Bonuses, and Veterans' Relief 
PART 14-LEGAL SERVICES GENERAL COUNSEL. AND MISCELLANEOUS CLAIMS 
Representation of Department of Veterans Affairs Claimants· Recognition of Organizations Accredited 
Representatives, Attorneys, Agents· Rules of Practice and Information Concerning Fees, 38 U.S.C. 5901-
5905 

Browse Previous I Browse Next 

§ 14.629 Requirements for accreditation of service organization representatives; agents; 
and attorneys. 

The Assistant General Counsel of jurisdiction or his or her designee will conduct an inquiry and make an 
initial determination regarding any question relating to the qualifications of a prospective service organization 
representative, agent. or attorney. If the Assistant General Counsel or designee determines that the 
prospective service organization representative, agent, or attorney meets the requirements for accreditation 
in paragraphs {al or {bl of this section, notification of accreditation will be issued by the Assistant General 
Counsel or the Assistant General Counsel's designee and will constitute authority to prepare. present. and 
prosecute claims before an agency of original jurisdiction or the Board of Veterans' Appeals. If the Assistant 
General Counsel determines that the prospective representative. agent. or attorney does not meet the 
requirements for accreditation, notification will be issued by the Assistant General Counsel concerning the 
reasons for disapproval, an opportunity to submit additional information. and any restrictions on further 
application for accreditation. If an applicant submits additional evidence, the Assistant General Counsel will 
consider such evidence and provide further notice concerning his or her final decision. The determination of 
the Assistant General Counsel regarding the qualifications of a prospective service organization 
representative. agent, or attorney may be appealed by the applicant to the General Counsel. Appeals must 
be in writing and filed with the Office of the General Counsel (022D}, 810 Vermont Avenue, NW., 
Washington, DC 20420, not later than 30 days from the date on which the Assistant General Counsel"s 
decision was mailed. In deciding the appeal, the General Counsel's decision shall be limited to the evidence 
of record before the Assistant General Counsel. A decision of the General Counsel is a final agency action 
for purposes of review under the Administrative Procedure Act. 5 U.S.C. 701-706. 

(al Service Organization Representatives. A recognized organization shall file with the Office of the General 
Counsel VA Form 21 (Application for Accreditation as Service Organization Representative) for each person 
it desires accredited as a representative of that organization. The form must be signed by the prospective 
representative and the organization's certifying official. For each of its accredited representatives, a 
recognized organization"s certifying official shall complete, sign and file with the Office of the General 
Counsel, not later than five years after initial accreditation through that organization or the most recent 
recertification by that organization. VA Form 21 to certify that the representative continues to meet the 
criteria for accreditation specified in paragraph (a)(1}. (2) and (3) of this section. In recommending a person, 
the organization shall certify that the designee: 

(1) ls of good character and reputation and has demonstrated an ability to represent claimants before the 
VA; 
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(2) Is either a member in good standing or a paid employee of such organization working for it not less than 
1,000 hours annually; is accredited and functioning as a representative of another recognized organization; 
or, in the case of a county veteran's service officer recommended by a recognized State organization, meets 
the following criteria: 

(i) Is a paid employee of the county working for it not less than 1 000 hours annually: 

(ii) Has successfully completed a course of training and an examination which have been approved by a 
Regional Counsel with jurisdiction for the State: and 

(iii) Will receive either regular supervision and monitoring or annual training to assure continued qualification 
as a representative in the claim process; and 

(3) Is not employed in any civil or military department or agency of the United States. 

(Authority: 38 U.S.C. 501 (a), 5902) 

(b) Accreditation of Agents and Attorneys. (1) No individual may assist claimants in the preparation, 
presentation, and prosecution of claims for VA benefits as an agent or attorney unless he or she has first 
been accredited by VA for such purpose. 

(i) For agents, the initial accreditation process consists of application to the General Counsel, self­
certification of admission information concerning practice before any other court, bar, or State or Federal 
agency, an affirmative determination of character and fitness by VA, and a written examination. 

{ii) For attorneys, the initial accreditation process consists of application to the General Counsel, self­
certification of admission information concerning practice before any other court, bar, or State or Federal 
agency, and a determination of character and fitness. The General Counsel will presume an attorney's 
character and fitness to practice before VA based on State bar membership in good standing unless the 
General Counsel receives credible information to the contrary. 

(iii) As a further condition of initial accreditation, both agents and attorneys are required to complete 3 hours 
of qualifying continuing legal education (CLE) during the first 12-month period following the date of initial 
accreditation by VA. To qualify under this subsection, a CLE course must be approved for a minimum of 3 
hours of CLE credit by any State bar association and, at a minimum, must cover the following topics: 
representation before VA, claims procedures, basic eligibility for VA benefits, right to appeal, disability 
compensation (38 U.S.C. Chapter 11), dependency and indemnity compensation (38 U.S.C. Chapter 13), 
and pension (38 U.S.C. Chapter 15). Upon completion of the initial CLE requirement, agents and attorneys 
shall certify to the Office of the General Counsel in writing that they have completed qualifying CLE. Such 
certification shall include the title of the CLE, date and time of the CLE, and identification of the CLE 
provider, and shall be submitted to VA as part of the annual certification prescribed by §14.629(b)(4). 

(iv) To maintain accreditation, agents and attorneys are required to complete an additional 3 hours of 
qualifying CLE on veterans benefits law and procedure not later than 3 years from the date of initial 
accreditation and every 2 years thereafter. To qualify under this subsection, a CLE course must be approved 
for a minimum of 3 hours of CLE credit by any State bar association. Agents and attorneys shall certify 
completion of the post-accreditation CLE requirement in the same manner as described in §14.629(b)(1)(iii). 

(2) An individual desiring accreditation as an agent or attorney must establish that he or she is of good 
character and reputation, is qualified to render valuable assistance to claimants, and is otherwise competent 
to advise and assist claimants in the preparation, presentation, and prosecution of their clairn(s) before the 
Department. An individual desiring accreditation as an agent or attorney must file a completed application 
(VA Form 21a) with the Office of the General Counsel (022D), 810 Vermont Avenue, NW., Washington, DC 
20420, on which the applicant submits the following: 

(i) His or her full name and home and business addresses: 



Form Approved: 0MB No. 2900-0018 
Respondent Burden: 15 minutes 

APPLICATION FOR ACCREDITATION AS SERVICE ORGANIZATION REPRESENTATIVE 

'VACY ACT ANO PAPERWORK REDUCTION ACT NOTICE: The information requested on this form is solicited under 38 U S.C., Section 5902, which authorizes 
recognize representatives of approved organizations for the preparation, presentation, .ind prosecution of cluims un_der laws administered by VA. The_ n:quested 

ation will enable VA to determine your eligibility for occreditation as a representative ofa recognized service organization. Your disclosure of this informat10n to us is 
wntary, but your failure to provtde full information could delay or preclude your .iccreditation. The Privacy Act authorizes VA to disclose the information outside VA for 

certain routine uses, which have been published in the Federal Register with reference to a VA system of records entitled, "Current and Former Accredited Representative, 
Claims Agent, and Representative and Cl.iims Agent App_licant and Rejected Applicant Records-VA" (0 ! V A022). Such routine uses include verification of the identity, 
status, and service organization uffiilation of reprcsental!ves, civil or criminal luw enforcement, communnications with members of Congress of their representatives, 
Government litigation, and notification to service organizations of information relevant to a refusal to grant or a suspension or termination of .iccreditation, 

RESPONDENT BURDEN: VA may not conduct or sponsor, and you are not required to respond to, this collection of information unless it displays a valid 0MB Control 
Numb~r. The public reportin~ burden fo~ th!s _collection of infonnation is esti~ated to ave_rag~ I 5 minutes per re~~onse, in~luding the time for reviewi~g instructions, 
searchmg data sources, gathering and maintammg the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection ol information. Send comments regardmg this burden 
estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information. including suggestions for reducing this burden, to VA Clearance Officer (00502), 810 Vermont Avenue, NW, 
Washington, DC 20420. Stnd comments only. Do not stnd this form or requests for benefits to this address 

SECTION I• TO BE EXECUTED BY DESIGN EE (Type or print) 

1. LAST NAME- FIRST NAME- MIDDLE NAME 2. BUSINESS ADDRESS 

3. BRANCH OF SERVICE (Check applicable boxi:s) 

[", ARMY [J NAVY [j AIR FORCE [": MARINE CORPS ['.COASTGUARD [", NON-VETERAN L; OTHER (Specify) 

4. LIST OF DATES OF ALL ACTIVE SERVICE 5. CHARACTER OF DISCHARGE(S) 

7A. NAME OF ORGANIZATION \NHICH YOU VV'ILL REPRESENT 

7B. RELATIONSHIP TO ORGANIZATION 

YOU A MEMBER IN GOOD STANDING 
E ORGANIZATION SHOWN IN 
A? 

[:,YES 

ARE YOU A PAID EMPLOYEE OF THE ORGANIZATION SHOWN 
IN ITEM 7A, WORKING FOR THE ORGANIZATION FOR NOT 
LESS THAN 1000 HOURS ANNUALLY? 

L! YES LjNO 

8. ARE YOU ACCREDITED TO ANY OTHER ORGANIZATION(S)? 

[":YES C NO (lfuYES, "give nome of orgonization(s)) 

6. METHOD OF QUALIFICATION 

CJ COMPLETED VA APPROVED COURSE 

C: PASSED VA APPROVED EXAMINATION 

Li EXPERIENCE 

7C. COUNTY VETERANS SERVICE OFFICERS 

ARE YOU A PAID COUNTY EMPLOYEE: A) Vll'HO WORKS 
FOR THE COUNTY NOT LESS THAN 1000 HOURS 
ANNUALLY; B) vVrlO HAS SUCCESSFULLY COMPLETED 
VA-APPROVED STATE TRAINING AND EXAMINATION; 
AND C) VVHO WLL RECEIVE REGULAR STATE 
SUPERVISION AND MONITORING OR ANNUAL TRAINING? 

[:jYES [':NO 

9A. ARE YOU EMPLOYED IN ANY CIVIL OR MILITARY DEPARTMENT OR 98. HAVE YOU EVER HELD A FEDERAL GOVERNMENT POSITION WHICH INVOLVED 
AGENCY OF THE UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT? ANY ACTION RESPECTING CLAIMS IN THE DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS 

rJ YES OR THE VETERANS ADMINISTRATION? 

rj NO (Jf"YES," give name of agency or department) r,, YES r: NO 

It is understood and agreed that neither the designee nor the organization will charge or accept any fee or other gratuity for services rendered a claimant; 
that neither will publish or divulge any confidential infonnation except as provided by law or regulation; and that any breach of these conditions will be 

sufficient basis for revocation of accreditation. 

10. SIGNATURE OF OES1GNEE 11. DATE OF SIGNATURE 

SECTION II· TO BE EXECUTED BY PROPER CERTIFYING OFFICER OF RECOGNIZED ORGANIZATION 

CERTIFICATION: Subject to the foregoing agreement, the undersigned hereby certifies that the designee is of good character and reputation, is 
qualified by ability and experience to present claims, and that the foregoing statements are believed to be correct. We therefore recommend accreditation. 

12. SIGNATURE AND TITLE OF CERTIFYING OFFICER 13. NAME OF ORGANIZATION 

14. ADDRESS OF CERTIFYING OFFICER 15. DATE OF SIGNATURE 

cLTY: The law provides that whoever makes any st:1temcnt ofa m:1tcrial fact, knowing it to be false, shall be punished by a fine or imprisonment or 

(18 U.S.C. 1001). 

VA FORM 
JUL 2007 21 

Supersedes VA Form 21, JUN 1992, Vv'hich \/-/ill Not Be Used Adobe LiveCycie Designer 7.1 
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January 22, 2009 

Dear Representative, 

The following 2 letters are being sent by Commissioner of Veterans Affairs Lonnie 
Wangen, the Chairman of the Administrative Committee on Veterans Affairs, and the 
secretary of the ND Veterans Coordinating Council to various persons involved with 
Veteran Service work and Veterans Affairs. They are encouraging members of the 
House to defeat HB 1057. 

Unfortunately, the letters requesting defeat are "inaccurate" and incomplete. There are a 
Jot of good points to the bill that should not be defeated. For example: 

1. Section 37-14-18. County veterans' service officer-Appointment - Duties 
"The county veterans service officer must maintain accreditation by the national 
association of county veterans' service officers within one year of appointment." 
Most states require CVSO's have mandatory training and encourage training with 
the national association. Most CVSO's in Minnesota attend training and "all" are 
required testing by the state. The training makes the CVSO more qualified to 
provide the maximum benefit for the veteran and brings in more federal benefits. 
The Jetter requesting defeat states the bill would have negative effects on the 
service to veterans of North Dakota. How can proper training and certification of 
trained CVSO's bring negative effects? 

2. Section 37-18-07 Commissioner-Appointment- Qualifications -Term -
Salary 
In most states, the appointment of the Commissioner of Veterans Affairs is 
appointed by the Governor and is a member of the governor's staff, reporting to 
the Chief of Staff. This should not be the function of a committee such as the 
ACOVA. 

3. Section 37-18-08 Office of commissioner - Where located 
It makes sense to have the office in the same vicinity of the Governor and the 
legislature. The old argument by ACOV A was the office has to be near the VA. 
The Commissioner has very little communication with the VA and has more with 
the State and legislative issues. 

4. Section 37-18.1-01 Administrative committee on veterans' affairs -
Membership 
This proposal also should be supported. Currently there are too many members 
on the ACOV A. Unfortunately, at times the veterans' organizations nominate 
members who have excellent intentions and are veterans' advocates yet do not 
have the proper knowledge to represent the veterans. 

All other proposals to HB 1057 make sense and should remain as is as they pertain to the 
balance of the proposals. It is unfortunate the Commissioner of Veterans Affairs and 



members of the ACOVA and Veterans Coordinating Council did not consult with us 
(National Service Officers) about the issues addressed in this bill. We work with CVSO's 
from North Dakota, Minnesota every day and often times with CVSO's from other states. 
It is blatantly obvious of the huge difference in quality of service provided to veterans. 
The majority ofND CVSO's from less populated counties need more training. They are 
well intentioned but don't have the knowledge, skills and abilities to provide sufficient 
assistance related to VA entitlements. This combined with the Commissioner's lack of 
ability to evaluate the capabilities and in turn lack of ability to train the CVSO's are 
severely handicapping service to veterans and limiting the amount of Federal and state 
aid coming into the communities. Please note, CVSO's from the higher populated 
counties are well trained and are ready and able to assist veterans. 

The request for defeat ofHB 1057 by the Veteran's Commissioner and Chairman of 
ACOV A also show they are threatened by change. The Commissioner's fear of moving 
the office to Bismarck and the Chairman's fear of losing his "powerful" position on the 
ACOV A is clear. It becomes even more evident the Commission is opposed to any 
change as he did not include the tangible gains from passing this bill. Clearly, better 
training would result in more veterans applying for benefits and bring increased dollars to 
the state. It would give the CVSO's the ability to apply for Federal benefits from the 
Veterans Administration in terms of Compensation, Pension, Education, and VA Home 
Loans to mention a few. 

It is disheartening that the North Dakota Department of Veterans Affairs and ACOVA do 
not fully embrace a minimum standard of training for CVSO's and has not made the 
necessary changes to improve veteran's services throughout the state. For example last 
week, we participated in a training session of the recently established North Dakota 
Military and Family Outreach Program. The outreach specialists immediately identified 
this ability shortfall. It is outrageous since they have been in existence for only a short 
period of time and they already recognize a need for change. 

We respectfully request your support of passage ofHB 1057. 

Sincerely, 

Greg Seurer, National Service Officer 
Disabled American Veterans 

Dale Ronning, National Service Officer 
Veterans of Foreign Wars 

Daniel Dewey, National Service Officer 
AMVETS 

Greg Remus, National Service Officer 
Disabled American Veterans 

Joy Mikyska, National Service Officer 
Veterans of Foreign Wars 



The following 2 letters are being sent by Commissioner of Veterans Affairs Lonnie 
Wangen, the Chairman of the Administrative Committee on Veterans Affairs, and the 
secretary of the ND Veterans Coordinating Council to various persons involved with 
Veteran Service work and Veterans Affairs. They are encouraging members of the 
House to defeat HB 1057. 

To: 

Re: HB 1057 

Dear Representative ____ _ 

In reference to HB 1057 we the undersigned would like to voice our concerns as to the 
effect this bill will have on the Veterans ofNorth Dakota. In reviewing the bill it is our 
feeling that this bill, if it were to pass, will bring no better service or benefits to the 
Veterans of North Dakota. It is also our feeling that this bill will have negative effects on 
the service to Veterans of North Dakota. We would respectfully ask that you contact the 
House members of the Government and Veterans Affairs committee and ask them to vote 
this bill down in its entirety. 

Date: 

I!!:. Committee on Government and Veterans Affairs. Representatives: Betty Grande­
Chairman, Randy Boehning-Vice Chairman, Bill Amerman, Tom Conklin, Stacey Dahl, 
Glen Froseth, Karen Karls, Jim Kasper, Lisa Meier, Michael R. Nathe, Jasper J. 
Schneider, Lonny Winrich, Lisa Wolf. 

Re: HB 1057 

Dear Chairman Grande, Vice Chairman Boehning and Committee members; 

In reference to HB1057 we the undersigned would like to voice our concerns as to the 
effect this bill will have on the Veterans of North Dakota. In reviewing the bill it is our 
feeling that this bill, if it were to pass, will bring no better service or benefits to the 
Veterans of North Dakota It is also our feeling that this bill will have negative effects on 
the service to Veterans ofNorth Dakota. We would respectfully ask that you vote this 
bill down in its entirety. 
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House Bill 1057 

Testimony 

Rudy Jenson 

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, for the record, my name is Rudy 

Jenson, Chairman of the Administrative Committee on Veterans Affairs. 

There are several shortcomings with this proposed piece of legislation. This 

legislation would create an undue hardship on counties. Many counties are 

experiencing revenue shortfalls and they cannot afford another unfunded 

mandate. Under this proposed legislation, the counties would be responsible for 

the room, board, and travel of the county VSO to attend the training. This is an 

expense that many counties simply cannot afford. 

Also, there are concerns over the $20,000 general fund appropriation. As it is 

written, the appropriation would go to the state. However, the burden is still on 

the counties to fund the expenses for the national training and accreditation of 

their county VSO. Not only is this legislation an unfunded mandate to the 

counties, it allocates money to the wrong entity. If this legislation is passed, that 

money should be going to the counties to help them fund the training, not to the 

state to help fund the training of two FTEs who don't need the training. 

Another downfall of this legislation is the politicization of the position of the 

Commissioner of the Department of Veterans Affairs. Currently, the 

Commissioner is chosen by the veterans of North Dakota. Under this legislation, 

the Commissioner would be appointed by the Governor and thusly opening the 

positions to many of the same political pressures of that office. 

Not only does this legislation throw the head and leadership of the Department in 

upheaval, the current employees would be forced to make the decision between 

losing their jobs and leaving their homes. This proposed legislation would move 

the department from Fargo to Bismarck or Mandan. This could result in losing 

departmental knowledge and experience, as well as possibly damage the 

relationship the Department has with the Veterans Administration Hospital; not 
/ 
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to mention the cost associated with moving the entire organization halfway 

across the state. 

Next, the proposed legislation changes the structure of the committee. It would 

place the Commissioner of the Department of Veterans Affairs as the chairman of 

the committee. As stated earlier, this proposed legislation places the 

Commissioner under the control of the governor, thus politicizing the position. By 

proxy, the entire committee would be politicized by this legislation. Along the 

same vein, the State Auditor's office recently conducted an audit of this agency. In 

that report it was written," ... changing the Committee's structure would be 

disadvantageous to the State's veterans." (Page 17) If nothing else, it is my 

understanding that the goal of this committee should be to help the state's 

veterans when possible and should not hamstring their efforts with this 

legislation. 

Essentially, this proposed legislation doesn't help the State's veterans and creates 

hardships for many people currently involved with assisting the state's veterans . 

The counties would be responsible for finding money in an already strapped 

budget to fund an unfunded mandate. It would politicize the office of the 

Commissioner as well as the Committee of Veterans Affairs. It would force current 

employees to lose their jobs or move themselves and their families, and makes 

changes that the State Auditor's office explicitly stated would be disadvantageous 

to the State's veterans. Overall, this legislation represents the desires of a few to 

move the department to Bismarck and damages almost every aspect of the 

organization. These facts coupled with the fact this bill has a fiscal note 

approaching $1 million dollars; we can ill afford HB 1057. 

Thank you for your time. 
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HB 1057 

Madam Chairman Grande, Vice- Chairman Boehning and Committee members, 

Please allow me to provide testimony and concerns to HB I 057 and the effect it will have on 
the service to Veterans ofNorth Dakota. l will address this bill by section. 

Section 1. County veterans' service officer - Appointment - Duties. 
(NACVSO Accreditation) 

l am all for good training. 

l do not believe that it would be in the Veterans best interest to require all County Veteran 
Service Officers (CVSO's) accredited only with NACVSO's. 

• 

• 

The Federal VA requires that representatives (CVSO's) have an accreditation to 
prepare claims. Some information on how this works. 

o Through a VA approved accrediting organization/representative 
• Submitting VA Form 21 
• Many accrediting sources to choose from 

• ND has National Service Officers's from 
o VFW, DAV, AM VETS, American Legion 

• A long list of other accrediting organizations are on the VA 
website . 

• VA Form 21 Box six "Method of Qualification" choices are 
o Passed VA approved course 
o Passed VA approved examination 
o Experience 

NDDVA Veteran Service Officers have accreditations with 
o American Legion 
o VFW 
o DAV 
o NACVSO's 
o Vietnam Veterans of America 
o Military order of Purple heart 
o NCO of America 

• There are many other organizations which can offer our CVSO's accreditation at little 
or NO COST to the state. 

o American Legion 
• The American Legion is providing accredited training at our April 

CVSO training. AT NO COST. 
• This does not require the CVSO to use the American Legion as 

POA 
o It is the Veterans choice of which POA will represent 

them . 
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o VFW The ND-DVA is inquiring into having their training during a future 
conference. 

o Trip Training-provided by the federal VJ\- onlinc. 

- 2 -

• This training is needed in addition to Accreditation to access VA sites. 
• \Ve arc looking conducting this training during our spring or fall 

conferences . 
• 

o A variety of organizations should be used to include NACVSO's. We should 
not elect a single organization to represl:nt our state. 

o NDDVA should provide accreditation for CVSO's. 
• I have inquired with the NACVSO"s to have one of our VSO's b.:come 

an accredited trainer with their organization so we could provide their 
accredited training to CVSO's 

• They do have a program and exam designed for this (According 
to Bonnie McNeill-Boyt- ofNACVSO) 

o They have decided not to utilize this program. 
• NACVSO's does not have representation at the National level. 

o VFW, American Legion, AMYETS and DAV have full time National Service 
officers located at the V ARO in Fargo. 

o NACVSO's is run and staffed by County Veteran Service Officers from other 
states 

• They are growing but currenty they haw limited training courses to 
offer as these trainers are full time CVSO's. 

• I have inquired into training for 2009 
• They are booked up. 

o 2010fillingfast 
• Not enough trainers at this time to create more training sessions. 

• The ND Department of Veterans Affairs should be the accrediting authority. 
o Coordinating with the VA Office of General Council and the ND CVSO's. 
o Use any organization - accepted bv the Federal VA. 
o Keep training in ND if possible. 
o Control cost of training 
o Keep training relevant to ND CVSO's 

• ND CVSO's should have say in training provided. 
• ND Association of County V de ran Service Officers currently has a 

training committee which detcnnines the training needed and wanted 
by the CVSO's. 

o Control the training 
• NACVSO's (if bill passes) would have control over what is trained on. 

• North Dakota should have control of training 
• Training money should be kept in North Dakota. 
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o I am currently \\'Orking to develop an accreditation program 
• Which would be run by the ND OVA 
• Coordinated and approved by VA Office of General Council 
• Currently working \\'ith other state Directors of Veterans Affairs 

• Providing ND with electronic copies of 
o Their Training/accreditation program 
o Accreditation testing 
o Process for setting up state accreditation program. 
o AT No Charge. 

• Most CVSO's not qualified under Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 
o Title 38: Pensions, Bonuses, and Veterans' Relief /Copy attached) 
o PART 14-LEGAL SERVICES, GENERAL COUNSEL. AND MISCELLANEOUS CLAIMS 

§ 14.629 Requirements for accreditation of service organization 
representatives; agents; and attorneys. 

The Assistant General Counsel of jurisdiction or his or her designee will conduct an inquiry 
and make an initial determination regarding any question relating to the qualifications of a 
prospective service organization representative, agent, or attorney. If the Assistant General . • 
Counsel or designee determines that the prospective service organization representative,-?, (1D I l /C/~k· 
agent, or attorney meets the requirements for accreditation in paragraphs (a) or (b) of this [>\)Lj (I\ I 1 :) 
section, notification of accreditation will be issued by the Assistant General Counsel or the 
Assistant General Counsel's designee and will constitute authority to prepare, present, and 
prosecute claims before an agency of original jurisdiction or the Board of Veterans' Appeals. If 
the Assistant General Counsel determines that the prospective representative, agent, or 
attorney does not meet the requirements for accreditation, notification will be issued by the 
Assistant General Counsel concerning the reasons for disapproval, an opportunity to submit 
additional information, and any restrictions on further application for accreditation. If an 
applicant submits additional evidence, the Assistant General Counsel will consider such 
evidence and provide further notice concerning his or her final decision. The determination of 
the Assistant General Counsel regarding the qualifications of a prospective service organization 
representative, agent, or attorney may be appealed by the applicant to the General Counsel. 
Appeals must be in writing and filed with the Office of the General Counsel (022D), 810 
Vermont Avenue, NW., Washington, DC 20420, not later than 30 days from the date on which 
the Assistant General Counsel's decision was mailed. In deciding the appeal, the General 
Counsel's decision shall be limited to the evidence of record before the Assistant General 
Counsel. A decision of the General Counsel is a final agency action for purposes of review 
under the Administrative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. 701-706. 
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• (a) SerFice Organizalion Representatil·es. A nx:ognizi:d organization 
shall lik with the Office of the General Counsel VA Form 21 
(Application for Accreditation as Service Organization Representative) 
for each person it desires accredited as a representative of that 
organization. The form must be signed by the prospective 
representative and the organization's cc11ifying official. For each of its 

<)/ accredited representatives, a recognized organization's certifying 
official shall complete, sign and file with the Office of the General 

.-CounseL not later than five years after initial accreditation through that 

1 
'. ~rganization or the most recent recerti ti cation by that organization, VA 

\\V. \; Fom1 21 to certify that the representative continues to meet the criteria 
. t~·' for an:rcditation specified in paragraph (a)(!), (2) and (3) of this 
\J'"" \ section. In recommending a person, the organization shall certify that 

the designee: 

(1) Is of good character and reputation and has demonstrated an ability to represent 
claimants before the VA; 

(2) Is either a member in good standing or a paid employee of such organization 
working for it not less than 1,000 hours annually: is accredited and functioning as a 
representative of another recognized organization; or, in the case of a county veteran's 
service officer recommended by a recognized State organization, meets the following 
criteria: 

(i) Is a paid employee of the county working for it not less than 1,000 hours annually· 

(ii) Has successfully completed a course of training and an examination which have 
been approved by a Regional Counsel with jurisdiction for the State; and 

(iii) Will receive either regular supervision and monitoring or annual training to assure 
continued qualification as a representative in the claim process; and 

(3) Is not employed in any civil or military department or agency of !he United States. 

• VA form 21 ··Application for Accreditation as Service Organization 
Representative" (Form attached) 

o Line 7c asks 
• ARE YOU A PAID COUNTY EMPLOYEE: A) WHO 

WORKS FOR THE COUNTY NOT LESS THAN 1000 
HOURS ANNUALLY; B) WHO HAS 
SUCCESSFULLY COMPLETED VA-APPROVED 
STA TE TRA[NING AND EX1\MlNATlON: AND C) 
WHO WlLL RECElVE REGULAR STATE 
SUPERVlSION AND MONITORING OR ANNUAL 
TRA[NlNG'' 
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• North Dakota has 25 County Veteran Services Officers that work less 
than 1000 Hours per year. I have attached a roster of ND CVSO's 
showing hours worked. 

o Out of the 50 CVSO's 
• 25 work less than 20hours per week, or 1000 hours per 

year. 
• Of the remaining 25 CVSO's 

• 9 are currently accredited with NACVSO's 
• Leaving 15 eligible CVSO's not accredited with 

NACVSO's 
o Some of which are accredited through 

other organizations. 
• I have attached a copy of an Attorney Generals opinion by Mike 

Mullen of North Dakota's Attorney Generals Office. 
o He states that these 25 can not be accredited 

• I have attached a copy of a statement from Barbara Brown of the the 
Federal VA Office of General Council (OGC) 

Stating: Your interpretation of38 C.F.R. §14.629(a)(2)(i) is 
correct. One of the requirements for accreditation of a county veterans 
service officer to a State organization is that the individual works for 
the county at least 1000 hours annually . 

Barbara 

• This bill would essentially require 25 CVSO's to become accredited by 
state law which can not by the Code of Federal Regulations. 

• Many counties just do not have the funding for this accreditation. 
o There is no appropriation for this training 

• Beyond section 14 of this biennium. 
• Nothing describing who the burden falls on to pay for this expense 

• State or County. 
o After initial training is completed for ... 

• Those that fail 
• Do not attend 
• Future replacements of CVSO's 

• I surveyed all of the State Directors of Veterans affairs on their accreditation policies 
o 22 of the states responded. 

• 13 of which have state run accreditation 
• None named NACVSO's as sole accrediting authority. 
• Many mentioned more State employees. 

• I do not support this section the way it is currently written. 
• I would support this section if it were changed to read 
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o The county veterans' service officer must comply with accreditation 
requirements as set by the North Dakota Department of Veterans Affairs in 
compliance with the Federal VA Office of General Council. 

If amended, this section could improve benefits and services to the Veterans of North 
Dakota. 

Section 2: Government of veterans' home 

This diminishes the Veterans representation through the ACOV A 

This section does not improve benefits or services to the Veterans ofNorth Dakota. 

Section 3: Administrator of veterans' home - Appointment - Qualifications 

This diminishes the Veterans representation through the ACOV A 

This section does not improve benefits or services to the Veterans of North Dakota. 

Section 4: Veterans' home governing board - Membership - Appointment 

This diminishes the Veterans representation through the ACOVA 

This section does not improve benefits or services to the Veterans of North Dakota . 

- 6 -
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Section 5: Commissioner - Appointment - Qualifications - Term - Salary 
(Governor Appoints) 

- 7 -

How this currently works: The Governor appoints the members of the Administrative 
Committee on Veterans Affairs (ACOVA) to three year terms. The members are 
nominated and voted on by the five service organization VFW, DAV, AMVETS, 
American Legion and the Vietnam Veterans of America. They send their candidates to the 
Governor who then makes his choice and appoints the members. The Governor also 
appoints the Chairman of the ACOVA. 
The Commissioner of Veterans Affairs is appointed by and is overseen by the ACOVA 
and the subcommittee "Administrative Committee on Veterans Affairs". 

• This gives the Veterans of North Dakota a voice in how the services to Veterans 
are delivered. 

• This change could result in a new commissioner with every new Governor. 
o Would take away proficiency of Commissioner. 

• This could make the position of Commissioner of Veterans Affairs a political 
appointment, representing political parties. 

o Could create conflicts between Veterans interests and political interests. 

This section does not improve services or benefits to the Veterans of North Dakota 

Section 6: Office of commissioner - Where located 

Currently the main office of the Commissioner of Veterans Affairs is located in Fargo. This 
is because the VA Regional Office and Hospital are located here. Incidentally the majority of 
North Dakota Veterans reside in Cass County. The North Dakota Department of Veterans 
Affairs also has an office in Bismarck. 

o The Commissioner, VSO's and staff should be located near the VA Regional Office 
(VARO)and Hospital (V AMC) and in the population of the most Veterans. 

o Cass County has highest veteran population in ND. 
• This section would reduce the number of service officers in Cass 

County. 
• In August of 2008 The Cass County VSO asked for more staff 

■ Stating that "Business is Booming" 
• County Commission turned them down. 

o Contacts with the V AMC and V ARO staff, experts, supervisors and 
representatives. 

• It is easy for the Commissioner to coordinate with the VA personnel 
• Coordinate services 
• Coordinate outreach programs 
• Participate in programs 
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• Face to face meetings with those providing service to the 
veterans 

• Address problems and concerns 

o Moving the Office to Bismarck does not provide better service to the Veterans. 
o Expenses to move. 

o Staff would need to move with Commissioner 
• Members of Fargo staff work with Commissioner on daily basis 

• Would need to be located with Commissioner 
• If staff is lost 

o Many years of experience lost 
o High cost of turnover 
o Service to Veterans would be negatively effected 

o No benefit in Commissioner being at Capital. 
o ACOV A and Coordinating Council 

• In charge oflegislation. 
• ND-OVA has a branch office in Bismarck 

• Can serve any needs or representation in Bismarck 
■ 

This Section does not improve the benefits or services to the Veterans of North Dakota 

Section 7: Funding authority - Continuing appropriation 

o This removes oversight from the ACOV A. 
o Leaves all spending at the discretion of the Commissioner. 
o No Veterans Voice on this. 

This section does not improve benefits or services to the Veterans of North Dakota. 

- 8 -

Section 8: Department of veterans' affairs employees - Conservatorship activities 
prohibited 

The North Dakota Department of Veterans Affairs already has a policy in place. ( Attached at 
back of packet) 

o ACOVA currently has oversight of Department Policies 
o Determining best interest of Veterans 

o The current policy (Policy# 103) prohibits employees from serving as a Conservator. 
o Proposed changes would allow employees to be conservators 

o Just not for Veterans receiving benefits or services from NDDVA 

This section does nothing to improve services or benefits to the Veterans of North Dakota 
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Section 9: Administrative committee on veterans' affairs - Membership -
Appointment. 
(Committee Size) 

The current membership of the ACOVA is 15. With 3 Ex-officio members (non-voting). Each 
service organization: VFW, DAV, AMVETS, American Legion and the Vietnam Veterans of 
America is represented by 3 members. Each voting member is nominated by the service 
organization and appointed by the Governor to a three year term. The ex-officio members 
are the Director of the VAMC in Fargo, The director of Job Service North Dakota and the 
Adjutant General of the ND National Guard. 

The ACOVA members are also split into five subcommittees in which they concentrate their 
efforts 

• Department of Veterans Affairs (5) 
• Budget Committee (6) 
• Post War Trust Fund (6) 
• Appeals (6) 
• Legislative Committee (5) 

This is a reasonable size for this committee 
o Gives the ACOVA representation 

o From different organizations 
o From around the state 
o From different demographics 
0 

o Most Legislative committees have memberships of comparable size. 
o Government and Veterans Affairs committee (house) has 13 members. 

o Gordy Smith, Audit Manager, ND State Auditors Office 
o Conducted audit of ND OVA and ACOVA in 2004? 
o During Interim hearings with PSC 

• June 11, 2008 Mr. Smith stated 

• "The State Auditor's office believes the size of the 
Administrative Committee on Veterans Affairs is not as 
significant of an issue as previously reported" (in 2004 audit). 

o Documented on page 2 paragraph 7 of Public Safety 
Committees minutes from June 11-12 2008. 

o The ACOVA has done great things over the past years 
o Have worked hard to become effective and efficient 
o There is not benefit to tearing down an organization that works! 

o I discussed group size with a Dr. Evenson of the University of Mary. 
o Dr. Evenson, a professor of Group Dynamics stated. 

• Committees should be relevant to those they represent 
• Most Committees should be at least that of a jury 12+ 

members . 
• Sub committees, small groups should be 4-6 members in size. 
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o Enough to divide the work and have close discussions . 
• The ACOVA has this design 

This section does not provide improved services or benefits to the Veterans of North Dakota. 

Section 10: Chairman - Secretary - Duties - Terms - Meetings 
(Commissioner is Chairman) 

How this currently works. 
As described earlier all ACOV A members are selected by their Veterans Service 
Organizations and appointed by the Governor, the Governor then appoints the Chairman, The 
chairman then appoints the members of the subcommittees and its' members elect a sub­
committee chairman. 

o As earlier discussed the Size and structure of the ACOV A is working effectively. 
o By placing the Commissioner as Chairman of the ACOV A 

o Takes away voice of Veterans 
• In appeals made to the ACOV A 

• Grants and loan appeals of Commissioners decisions go to 
ACOVA 

• They would be appealing to a board chaired by the person who 
made the decision in the first place. 

• The ACOV A is there to represent the Veterans and oversee the 
• NDDVA 
• ND Veterans home 
• To ensure Veterans and their dependents are getting the service 

and benefits they deserve. 
• The Post War Trust fund. 

This Section does nothing to improve the services or benefits for North Dakota's Veterans 

Section 11: Powers and duties of committee 

This takes away virtually all powers and duties of the ACOVA. 
o The ACOV A has worked hard and accomplished a lot in the past years. 

o Has implemented recommendation of Gordy Smith. 
o Have spent a lot of time and resources to get where they are 
o ND Auditors office is satisfied with their performance & structure. 

o The current system is working. Tearing it down can only have negative affects. 

This section does nothing to improve the services or benefits for North Dakota's Veterans 
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Section 12: Committee members not to receive compensation - Compensation -
Expenses permitted. 

Currently the ACOV A members are reimbursed for travel, lodging and per diem for meals. 
During the last ACOV A meeting (November) the ACOV A members voted down wanting to 
be paid. 

o They are volunteers 
o Not here for the money. 
o Here for the veterans. 

This Section does nothing to improve the services or benefits for North Dakota's Veterans. 

Section 13: DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS' AFFAIRS -TRAINING POSITIONS 
(Two of current FTE as trainers) 

Currently 
ND-OVA has three FTE VSO's, one of which also serves as our Women Veterans 
Coordinator. These Veterans specialists work full time as claims representatives and for 
many other services to the Veterans. They also conduct training, outreach, presentations to 
the public and assist CVSO's when requested. They also provide initial training to CVSO's 
and fill in/help out counties when they have vacant CVSO positions. 

o These VSO's do conduct training. 
o Do not conduct training full time as this section requests . 

o It would not be effective for the FTE's to conduct training full time. 
• Must keep working with veterans, taking claims 

• To remain proficient 
• Regulations, Benefits and guidelines are always changing. 

• Trainers from other accrediting agencies normally work full time with 
Veterans benefits. 

• American Legion trainer/accreditor's work full time 
o On National Legion Board 
o Appeals board 
o Veterans issues 

• NACVSO trainers 
o Are full time CVSO's from other states. 

o ND-OVA 
o Needs to continue to represent Veterans of North Dakota 

• More claims and needs as war continues. 
• As mentioned earlier Cass County is our largest concentration of 

Veterans Asking for more VSO's from county and turned down. 
The ND DV A needs and supports. 

o More FTE positions to concentrate more on VSO training. 
o More Training money 
o More travel money to get out to the counties . 
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This section would benefit the Veterans of North Dakota ifit added the 2 FTE's to the ND­
DV A along with funding to support them. 
Section 14: APPROPRIATION 

($20,000 for NACVSO) 

As I have testified to the Public Safety Committee during the interim that I would welcome 
funding to bring this training to ND. 

I have researched this and have included the costs in the fiscal note. 

I still support appropriations for this training. 

I would like to see much more money for ongoing training also. 

The NACVSO contract training 
o I would want to allow to have this training offered twice. 

o Not all CVSO's may be able to attend when scheduled 
o Is not available in 2009 
o Limited contracts for 20 I 0 
o Would be a 5 day event 

o 3 days of training (M-W) (Wednesday night study group) 
o I day ofND-DV A and Association of CVSO arranged briefings and updates 

(Thursday) 
o Friday would be for testing for accreditation. 
o CVSO's could attend one week long training and not be required to attend the 

other fall or spring conference. 

This section (without the mandatory accreditation) would greatly benefit the Veterans of 
North Dakota. And I would strongly support it. 
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Summary: 

I agree that ND CVSO's need more training, more oversight, more structure and more help. 
The Larger counties should not be expected to conduct the work of their surrounding counties. 
I want the NDDVA to be able to provide this for them. 

o NDVAneeds 
o More FTE' s in the regions 

• Close to CVSO's 
• Visit CVSO offices 
• Help with claims. 

o More FTE's for training 
• Become accredited trainers 
• Conduct training with CVSO's 

o More FTE's for support 
• Help CVSO's that need assistance 

o More money for training 
• To bring in the NACSVO's 
• To develop accredited training. 

o More money for travel 
• Coordinate with CVSO's 

• Community outreach 
• Helping veterans with special needs. 

o In 2007 North Dakota received over $183,242,000.00 in expenditures/benefits 
from the Federal VA 

• Providing more training, oversight and assistance to the CVSO's would 
increase these expenditures/benefits for ND Veterans. 

This Bill has a three sections (I, 13 and 14) that if slightly changed would be beneficial to the 
Veterans ofND. 

The negative effects of the remaining sections would harm the service to the Veterans of 
North Dakota. 

That is why I am opposing this bill as it is written . 
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Recommendations 

$183,242,000.00 in federal expenditure brought into ND in 2007 through the VA. 
Combining North Dakota's 2007 expenditures of about 2, I 00,000.00 (NDDVA and CVSO's) 
on veterans this is a return of about $87 on every dollar spent on Veterans services. 

To answer the questions/concerns that are repeatedly brought up about training/accreditation, 
accountability, productivity, supervision and consistent quality of service to our veterans then 
the organization needs structure. 

• Chain of command 
• Regional supervisors/oversight 
• Training and quality control support. 
• This leads to a few options 
• One option 

o 8 Regions in ND with 2 State supervisors 
• Oversee 

• CVSO's 
• Training/qualification of CVSO's 
• Outreach 
• Quality of Claims 
• Tracking veterans 

• State employees would need to have some authority over CVSO's 
• North Carolina has State regional offices which oversee 

CVSO's 
• Their century code simply states that funding for Veterans 

Services/Officers by counties needs to be approved by the 
commissioner of Veterans affairs 

o If County CVSO's are not doing work or in compliance 
with regulations 

• The Commissioner can inform counties that they 
are in violation of the Century code and need to 
fix problem or cease funding . 
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Lonnie Wangen 

From: Mullen, Mike J. [mmullen@nd.gov] 

Sent: Friday, January 23, 2009 3:42 PM 

To: Wangen, Lonnie L. 

Subject: RE: Help with CFR 

Dear Lonnie: 
Upon reading the regulation, and its interrelated provisions, I agree with your construction of the 
requirements: a CVSO working less than 1000 hours per year [i.e., a person working at least 20 hours a 
week for 50 weeks] would not qualify for accreditation. 

Let me know if you have any further questions regarding this matter. 

Sincerely, 

Michael J. Mullen 
Assistant Attorney General 

From: Lonnie Wangen [mailto:lwangen@nd.gov] 
Sent: Friday, January 23, 2009 3:03 PM 
To: Mullen, Mike J. 
Subject: Help with CFR 

Mike, 
I am wondering if I could get an opinion on this code . 

I want to know if I am correct in reading this. According to the attached CFR Title 38 Part 14.629 "Requirements for 
accreditation of Service organization representatives; agents; and attorneys. 

Looking at the first paragraph and paragraph (a) and subsection (2) and (i). 

I interpret this as any of our CVSO's working less than 1000 hours per year could not hold accreditation. Or jurisdiction of the 
State. 

Would that be safe for me to say? 

Here is the link: http_://ecfr,gpoaccess.gov/cgi/t/te2<t/text,idx? 
C':ecfr&_sid.':3f2cc5_00Z_!l_dc9e57'.9I5_,i_a30b4fefcl_a2&_rgn':d_iy_8_&view':text&no_de.':38J_.0~1"_:tJ_6.0J_62"30_&jdno_':3jl 

I have also attached a word document of it. 

Lonnie Wangen 
Commisioner 
ND OVA 
701-239-7165 
701-239-7166 (fax) 
lwangen@od,go_v 

Confidentiality Notice: This e-mail message, including any attachments, is for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and may contain 
confidential and privileged infonnation. Any unauthorized review, copy. use, disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the 
intended recipient. please contact the sender by reply e-mail and destroy all copies of the original message. 

North Dakota Department of Veterans Affairs is an equal opportunity employer/program provider 

2/3/2009 
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Lonnie Wangen 

From: Brown, Barbara (OGC) [Barbara.Brown@va.gov] on behalf of OGC Accreditation Mailbox 
[OGC.AccreditationMailbox@va.gov] 

Sent: Tuesday, February 03, 2009 10:23 AM 

To: Lonnie Wangen 

Subject: RE: Need help As soon as possible 

Your interpretation of 38 C.F.R. §14.629(a)(2)(i) is correct One of the requirements for 
accreditation of a county veterans service officer to a State organization is that the individual 
works for the county at least 1000 hours annually. 

Barbara 

From: Lonnie Wangen [mailto:lwangen@nd.gov] 
Sent: Monday, February 02, 2009 3:20 PM 
To: OGC Accreditation Mailbox 
Subject: Need help As soon as possible 

I am the Commissioner of Veterans affairs for North Dakota. I need to know if I am reading CFR 38 Title 46.629 
[specifically subsection (a)(2)(i)] correct about accreditation. They way I read this is that any of our states County 
Veterans Service Officers would need to work at least 1000 per year to qualify for accreditation to help prepare 
veterans claims. 

Is this correct? 

Lonnie Wangen 
Commisioner 
NDDVA 
701-239-7165 
701-239-7166 (fax) 
lwangen@nd.gov 

Confidentiality Notice: This e-mail message, including any anachments. is for the sole use of the intended recipient(s) and 
may contain confidential and privileged information. Any unauthorized review, copy, use, disclosure or distribution is 
prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply e-mail and destroy all copies of the 
original message. 

North Dakota Department of Veterans Affairs is an equal opportunity employer/program provider 

2/3/2009 



- NORTH DAKOTA COUNTY VETERA.ERVICE OFFICERS Work hrs CVSO's 

lso CVSO's in ND I 1000 or more hours, not accredited WI NACVSO !_111000 or more =hours accredited Othe, NACVSO per week Less than 

Accreditation Accredited 2007 605.5 1000 hrs 
COUNTY SERVICE OFFICER MAILING ADDRESS HOURS WORK# 9 VET POP 15.1375 25 

ADAMS AmoldK Scott Box 686 Hettinger 58639 No regular hours 221 2 

arnie@ndsu~ernet.com 

2 BARNES James Verwey 230 4th St NW Valley City 58072 M-F. 8-5 845-8511 VFW 1,115 40 

jverwe:r:@co.bames.nd.us Room204 

3 BENSON David Daeley Box52 Minnewaukan 58351 W& F, 84:30 473-5451 423 16 
or 473-5324, ext 3 

4 BILLINGS Roy A. Basaraba 774 13th St W Dickinson 58601 M-F, 8-5 None 123 

5 BOTTINEAU Dwight Nahinurk 411 Main Street. Ste 1 Bottineau 58318 M&W,9-3 228-3904 716 12 

nahinurk@utma.com Memorial Building 

6 BOWMAN Patricia Ann Sadowsky Box3 Bowman 58623 Anytime 235 2 
tsadowskv®bwn.midco.net 

7 BURKE 207 

8 BURLEIGH jM~taifufs'.~"-.,..~~;,,,o:6 "':'3 Box 5518 Bismarck 58506-5518 M-F, 8-5 222-6698 1 6,846 

mlandis@nd.gov 221 N 5th St 

9 CASS f.iT°mks:Bi'er:il,],·':'ba3:" :r.,_~,·"i~:! ~· '] P.O. Box 2806 Fargo 58108 M-F, 8-5 241-5746 1 10,264 

brentj@casscountynd.gov 1010 2ndAveS Gov't Annex 

Marlys Potter (241-5756) 

~tterm@c.asscountynd.gov 

10 CAVALIER Leon Hiltner 901 3rd St Langdon 58249 T & W, 8:30-noon 256-2146 461 7 

lhiltner@nd.gov 

11 DICKEY Steve C. Frojen Box 388 Oakes 58474-0388 12:30-4:30, M,T,Th,F 742-2223 VFW 464 24 

sfroien@drtel.net 309 2nd Avenue - Ellendale - Wed, 8-4:30 -

12 DIVIDE Roman Fettig Box 143 Crosby 58730 Flexible 694-2711 229 2 

roman.fettig@sendit.nodak.~u 

13 DUNN Leslie Ross Box 130 Dickinson 58602-0130 Sept-April M-F, 8-5 456-7654 298 

lross@nd.gov Courthouse May-Aug M-F,7:30-4:30 

14 EDDY Alan Knatterud 505 1st Ave S New Rockford 58356 No regular hours 239 2 

alans@stellamet.com 

15 EMMONS Jeff Ohlhauser PO Box 272 Linton 58552 M-T, 8-4:30 254-5410 none 358 20 

jjohlhauser@nd.gov w, a-noon 

16 FOSTER Corean Swart PO Box 80 Carrington 58421 Wed, 9-11:30 652-2170 264 6.5 

cswart@nd.gov Courthouse Thurs, 12:30-4:30 

17 GOLDEN VALLEY Harvey Peterson PO Box 904 Beach 58621-0904 By appointment Cell: 872--6049 205 2 

h~terson@midsJate.net Legion Club: 872-4362 

18 GRAND FORKS jearbara-:za';,,i:1a·r,;~4i+r·k;.::;:.,: .,{'1 Box 5547 Grand Forks 58206 M-F, 8-5 780-8296 NACVSOon1y 1 6,516 



• NORTH DAKOTA COUNTY VETE ERVICE OFFICERS 
I 50 CVSO's in ND I ~ 1 ODO or more =hours accredited Other NACVSO per week Less than 

Accreditation Accredited 2007 605.5 1000 hrs 

COUNTY SERVICE OFFICER MAILING ADDRESS HOURS WORK# 9 VET POP 15.1375 25 

barb.zavala@gfcounty.com County Office Bldg 

19 GRANT Jack Heyne Box48 Carson 58529 T, W, & Th, 1-4 622-3693 264 9 
jheyne@nd.gov Courthouse 

20 GRIGGS Dennis Kubischta 13474 4th St SE Hope 58046 2nd & 4th Thur, 9-12 797-3717 258 2 
dmk@ictc.com 

21 HETTINGER Kay Zenker 11376 72nd St SW Regent 58650 No regular hours 563--4797 319 2 
hettingercoun!)'.vso@hotmail.com 

22 KIDDER A.G. Skip Thomas Box 225 Steele 58482 Mon, 9-5 475-2632 253 8 

agthomas@nd.gov ext. 9226 

23 LAMOURE Michial Johnson Box 128 LaMoure 58458 M-F, 8:30 - 4 :30 883-5301 none 348 40 

miiohnso@nd.gov 202 4th Ave NE 

24 LOGAN James J. Hilzendeger PO Box 38 Napoleon 58561 M-F, 8:30-4:30 754-2239 none 174 40 
jhilzend@nd.gov 301 Bdwy Courthouse 

25 McHENRY Francis R.Hoynes Box93 Towner58788 Wed, 9-11 & 1-3 537-5724 597 4 

redhoy:n@§rt.com on call other days 

26 MclNTOSH L. Pete Keaveny 23 N 7th Wishek 58495 Wishek, no regular hrs- 452-4336 225 2 
oom@bekt§!.com 19 N Centennlal - office Ashley, 2nd Fri, 10-2 288-3589 

27 McKENZIE Jerry Samuelson Box 1036 Watford City 58854 M-F, 8-5 none 572 40 
jsamuetson@co.mckenzie.nd.ys 

28 McLEAN Todd Schreiner Box 1108 Washburn 58577-1108 M-F, 8-4:30 462-8541 none 897 40 

tschreiner@nd.gov ext. 204 

29 MERCER Gerald Beck PO Box 39 Stanton 58571 M&T,7-3 745-3392 870 14 

abeck@nd.gov Courthouse 

30 MORTON ~ald:.Otroq:;:f/,.jP~~.~ ?f',,..j 210 2nd Ave NW Mandan 58554 M-F, 8-5 667-3365 1 2,464 

rotto@nd.gov Courthouse 

31 MOUNTRAIL Gene H. "Skip" Wing PO Box421 Stanley 58784 M-F, 8:30-5:00 628-2063 none 645 40 
ghw@midstatetel.com 120 S Ma·In St 

32 NELSON Stacy Twete 210BAveW,Ste202 Lakota 58344 T, W, Th 8:30-4 247-2531 434 21 

sttwete@nd.gov call for appointments 

33 OLIVER !Rcinalif.Otto\:,0. ·;~·_:t ~, ;,:~.a.4 PO Box 188 Center 58530 2nd & 4th T, 8:30-4 794-3404 153 

rotto@nd.gov Courthouse 

34 PEMBINA Ronald Berg 308 Courthouse Dr, #11 Cavalier 58220-4100 T,1-5; W& Th, 9-5 265-4460 902 12 

ronberg@nd.gov M&F-on call None 

35 PIERCE Larry Fjellanger PO Box258 Rugby 58368 M,T, W,9-5 776-6841 498 24 

Lfiellan@nd.gov CourthOuse ext2 

36 RAMSEY Earl H. Hanson 524 4th Ave #17 Devils lake 58301 Mon, 8-5; T & W, 8-1 662-7048 783 18 

ehanson@gondtc.com answering machine other days 



- NORTH DAKOTA COUNTY VETE ERVICE OFFICERS 
\so cvso's in ND I Other NACVSO per week Less than 

Accreditation Accredited 2007 605.5 1000 hrs 
COUNTY SERVICE OFFICER MAILING ADDRESS HOURS WORK# 9 VET POP 15.1375 25 

37 RANSOM Tom McKinnon PO Box 830 Lisbon 58054 T & Th, 8:30-5:00 683-6677 565 16 
tmckinnon@nd.gov Courthouse Wed - Veterans Home - 683-6500 

38 RENVILLE William Allen Box481 Mohall 58761 Anytime 292 2 
dandba@srt.com 

39 RICHLAND William B. Peschel 418 2nd Ave N Wahpeton 58075 M-F, 8-5 642-7807 None 1 1,211 

bQ§schel@co.richtand.nd.us Courthouse 

40 ROLETTE Gordon Boucher Box 939 Rolla 58367 Thursday, 9 - 4:30 477-5265 948 8 

41 SARGENT Norman E. Preble 355 Main St S, Ste 8 Forman 58032 T-W-Th, 724-6241 None 362 24 
ngreble@nd.gov 9-12 & 12:30-4:30 ext 8 

42 SHERIDAN James Paulus 1571 11thAveNE Denhoff 58430 No regular hours 465-3329 161 2 
SheridanVSO@gondtc.com 

43 SIOUX Giles Heinen Box L Fort Yates 58538 Monday, 9-1 854-3424 356 4 
swaliser@nd.gov 

44 SLOPE Ernie Ho!zemer 1391 0 64th St SW Amidon 58620-9657 Anytime 52 2 
hol~emerggrners@ndsu!2§met.com 

45 STARK Leslie Ross Box 130 Dickinson 58602-0130 Sept-April M-F, 8-5 456-7654 2,109 

lross@nd.gov Courthouse May-Aug M-F,7:30-4:30 

46 STEELE Dennis Kubischta 13474 4th St SE Hope 58046 Anytime 250 2 
dmk@ictc.com 

47 STUTSMAN bwarteriiTooirr'.:. ~~':t2~?•:";· !i·1 205 6th St SE, LEC Jamestown 58401 M-F, 8-5 252-9043 1 1,920 

wtobin@nd.gov 

48 TOWNER John "Jack" Freund Box 279 Cando 58324 T, W& Th, 9-5 968-4363 none 278 24 
jckfmd@hotmail.com 

49 TRAILL (t~SAsne~r~i_!:7§~:i;~·;';i!;-rd~ PO Box 785 Hillsboro 58045 T & W, 8-4:30 636-4414 1 826 

les.ashe@co.traill.nd.us Mayville - Thurs, 8:30-11 :30 788-2166 

Hatton - Thurs, 1-4 

50 WALSH Tom J. Gerszewski 638 Cooper Ave, Ste 5 Grafton 58237 M - W, 8-4:30 352-5030 none 1,209 30 
tog§!rsz~ki@nd.gov Thurs. 8-2:30 

51 WARD !oare,-Bratm ~ ,,~~~. -·: 3r. ".r! PO Box 5005 Minot 58702-5005 M-F, 8-4:30 857-6490 1 5,545 

wa[gvets@1ahQQ.com 

52 WELLS Dean Johnson 713 Lincoln Ave Harvey 58341 M-F, 9-5 324-2888 none 437 40 
djohnso7@amfem.com 

53 WILLIAMS !!;!dJ!ert Ev°Ms .. ~ ' ,.i;,,,-:,' •j Box 2047 Williston 58802-2047 M-F, 8-5:00 577-4550 1 1,883 

bobe@co.williams.nd.us Courthouse 58,283 



.. Accreditation: Survey of states. 
Who Pays 

ate Require accreditatior NACVSO Other State Countv Problems/Notes 

Colorado has 50 county service 

officers, about 10 have received 

there accreditation from NACVSO. 

As a result I was able to have 

them cross-accredited by the 

Feds. This proved very helpful as 

we then were able to get them 

TRIP trained and they now have a 

stand-alone computer and have 

10 No state access to much of the same VA 

Colorado No CVSO's accreditation info as our state service officers. 

Florida does not have a 
requirement to have accreditation 
of CVSOs by the NACVSO 
organization. We have a very well 
defined process for both the initial 

-
accreditation of CVSOs as well as 
the annual recertification. Florida 
law (FS 292.11) directs the Florida 
Department of Veterans' Affairs 
(FDVA) to establish the training 
program for new CVSOs and 
administer a test which must be 
successfully completed prior to 
FDVA certifying the CVSOs to the 
U.S. Department of Veterans' 
Affairs (USDVA). In addition to the 
initial training and testing, CVSOs 
are required to attend annual 
training and retest each year in 
order to maintain their 
accreditation. The Florida 
Department of Veterans' Affairs is 
responsible for both the initial 
accreditation as well as the annual 
recertification. 

Florida yes NO State Accredits yes 

• 



Georgia does not have County 

- Service Officers, therefore we 
do not need accreditation by the 
NACVSO. Our benefits 
counselors work for 
Commissioner Wheeler as 
employees of the State of 
Georgia. They are located in 
the Claims Division at the 
Atlanta VA Regional Office 
and at 47 Field Offices 
throughout the state. They are 
accredited by the state, the 
American Legion, VFW, 
American Red Cross, American 
Ex-Prisoners of War, Fleet 
Reserve Association, Jewish 
War Veterans, Non-
Commissioned Officers 
Association, and the Retired 
Enlisted Association. A report 

.a 
All State Employees NO yes is okay. 
Yes-State VSO onlv NO State Accredits ves State VSO's onlv 



-

- Here are the step we use for our 
state service officer. 
- Once hires a request is sent 
to the Local VA Regional Office to 
request on-line VA TRIP training. 
- Service officer then has 10 
days to open the training on line 
and 45 days to complete the 
training with a passing grade of 
70% or better. 
- VA from 21 is then fill out, 
sign by your Director and mail to 
the following address for 
accreditation by the Federal VA. 
Department of Veterans Affairs 
Office of the General Counsel 
(Attn: David R. Mclenachen) 
Washington D.C. 20420 
- Our VSO's also receive 30 
days of on the job training with a 
seasoned VSO and we conduct a 
one week training with all the 
VSO's on an annual basis. 

is Yes-State VSO only No IDVA and USDVA 
Indiana - No. CVSO are not 

I No accredited. 

There are two issues here first, 

Kansas does not have County 

Veteran Services Officers rather 

our VS Rs are either State 

employees or hired by the veteran 

service organizations participating 

in our grant program so the issues 

may not apply to us. Second, 

Kansas does not require 

accreditation by the NACVSO. 

However, NACVSO does provide 

our annual training and as a result 

all staff are eligible for 

accreditation. We do have a state 

membership in the organization 

and currently pay the VSRs 

No- all State membership so they can be 

I s employees no accredited 



Kentucky has all state employees 
and we are accredited. Only 2 of 
our 120 counties have County 
Service Officers and we train, test 
and accredit them even though it 
isn't required by law. We are not 
affiliated with NACVSO what-so-

Kentucky No No KDVA ever. 
We do not have CVSO's in Maine 
we have State VSO's and the~ are 
accredited through the State of 

Maine yes State of Maine Maine. 
Lonnie, in Massachusetts we 
have no laws or regulations 
governing the accreditation of 
VSOs. We are unique in that 
each of the 351 cities and towns 
is mandated to employ a VSO to 
take care of the veterans in the 
community. Towns with a 
population of over 12,000 must 
make this a full time position. 
These are all municipal 
employees.We train the VSOs 
when they assume the job and 

- hold training mandated by law at 
least annually. We do not certify 
except to say that the VSO 
attended training. We train them 
in federal as well as state 
programs. Some of them receive 
certification from service 
organizations or the VA. In most 
cases, the local VSO will start a 
federal claim, then send to my 
office where we have about four 
certified employees who finish 
the claim and send to the VA. Or 
the local VSO can suggest the 
veteran work with a service 
organization. 

Massachusets No NO 



. 

• Minnesota does not currently 

require CVSOs to be accredited. 

We do, however, have a 

certification process in place that 

CVSOs must complete annually to 

be eligible for CVSO Operational 

and Enhancement Grants. 

Requirements for certification 

include earning nine credit points 

per year through attendance of 

seminars, training, etc., and 

passing an annual certification 

exam. We are in the process of 

looking at NACVSO to provide this 

certification for us, but at this 

time we are not considering 

State does making the certification 
Minnesota No No Accreditation mandatory. 



r 

• 

Mississippi does not have such a 
requirement. Our state employee 
VSO's are not accredited to 
NACVSO but rather to American 
Legion, American Red Cross, 
VFW, etc .. 

• 
Our county veteran service officer 
as a rule are not accredited to any 

State Accredited national veterans service 
by VFW, organization. 

Mississippi Yes-State VSO only NO A. Leqion etc 
No CVSO's in Montana all state 

Montana Yes-State VSO only American Legion VSO's 

• 



r (employees) veteran service 

• 
officers (SVSOs) who work in each 
of our counties assisting Veterans 
file claims and assist with other 
state and federal benefits. 
Many, but not all, of our counties 
also have county (employees) 
veterans service officers (CVSOs) 
who provide similar assistance. 
The county employees belong to 
NACVSO My state employees do 
not (unless they choose to join on 
their own). Some of my SVSOs 
were CVSOs prior to coming to 
work for me. 
We also have three SVSOs who 
work at either the (1) Philadelphia, 
PA or (2) Newark, NJ VA Regional 
Offices shepherding our claims 
through the VA system. 
Additionally, I have one 
VSO/Navigator/Ombudsman who 
links our department to other State 
Departments and Agencies for the 
process of getting veterans service 
and benefits which they are entitled 

• 
to because they are NJ residents . 
Finally, I have two VSO's who are 
supervisors/trainers for the SVSOs 
previously mentioned. My SVSOs 
are accredited by the USDVA. I 

New Jersey Yes-State VSO onlv USDVA have at times sent a new 

• 



r 

• Lonnie, here in New York we 
operate very close to the New 
Jersey model, as Steve describes. 
We too have a statewide Veterans 
Counselor network working in 
nearly all of the 62 counties. They 
are state employees and function 
along the same lines as New 
Jerseylike New Jersey, most 
counties in New York (and some 
cities, actually) maintain a County 
Veterans Service Agency Director. 
The state provides each with a 
degree of funding (through us). 
We do not accredit CVSO staff, 
but offer our quarterly training 
(refresher and basic) to them to 
help keep them up-to-date with the 
myriad of changes occurring in our 
line of work.We have an Intake 
Staff (5 state employees) in each 
of the two ROs in New York - NYC 
and Buffalo - that help develop I 

• QC claims inbound and document 
rating decisions outbound. 

New York No No 

• 



r 

Does it name the NACVSO's as 
the accrediting authority? NO 
Has this been helpful? If so-how? 

N/A 

Who pays for it- state or county? 
We are responsible for providing 
annual trng to the 
CVSO .... accreditation is part of 
that trng ... Thus, we pay for 
accreditation. 
Has it caused any problems?-
please answer this with specifics if 
so 

NO 
If not the NACVSO as mandatory 
accreditors-Who accredits? 

Pennsylvania CVSO have 
to be accredited ... We Accredit 
through the PA Office of Veterans 
A/fairs 
If you answer these questions-
would you mind if I make a report 
to share with all the states? 

.ania 

NO 
Yes NO PADVA ves 

SC Law requires our office to 
accredit the state's 46 county 
veterans a/fairs officers. We use 
the American Legion for Power of 

South Carolina Yes No SCDVA Attornev. 
South Dakota No 

CVSO's with 1 000hrs or more ()er 
year-guarterly training. Have 
certifying program through TOVA. 
Annual signed by TOVA and VA 
rep. Training and certifiy all 
CVSO's SVSO oversees group of 

Tennesse-perphone CVSO's.95 counties-82 CVSO's, 
call 1/23/2009 Don- 14 offices throughout the state. 
Assistant director. yes no TOVA ves Plus and office at each VAMC. 

• 



I requirement that VCSO be 
accredited. All of our 73 State 
employee Veterans Assistance 
Counselors are accredited with the 
State and at least one NSO. The 
State of Texas has an 
accreditation program for VCSO 
who meet the requirements 
specified by VA ( of the 230 
VCSO's in Texas around 40 are 
accredited with TVC). That is, 
they are the accredited 
representatives of The Texas 
Veterans Commission (TVC). 
The NSO's like the American 
Legion, VFW etc. also accredit 
some county service officers, 
although they are very few. Most 
of the county service officers in 
Texas are not accredited with 
anyone. Everyone who is 
accredited completes VA TRIP 
training. 
Our State does mandate that they 
meet minimum training 
requirements. That training is 

• provided by the TVC twice a year 
State Accredites at training conferences as 
and each state refresher training and all new 
VSO cross VCSO's must attend a one week 
accredited with long initial training session which is 

Texas Yes-State VSO only NO NSO, VFW, etc 1 ves also conducted twice a year. The 
Currently West Virginia does not 

West Virginia NO 
have any County Service Officers 
Keith Gwinn 

Wisconsin NO State Accredits 
any VA 
recognized 
accredited 
organization, 
VFW, A Legion 

Wyoming Yes-State VSO only No etc. ves y 

• 



Williams, Mildred Laurinburg NC 28353 

• 
Ashe, Leslie S Hillsboro ND 58045 
Bengtson, Roger E Fargo ND 58102 

58702-
Braun, Dale E Minot ND 5055 

58108-
Brent, James G Fargo ND 2806 

58108-
Brent, James G Fargo ND 2806 

58106-
Helmer, Bettv A Fargo ND 9003 

58506-
Landis, Mark J Bismarck ND 5518 

58506-
Lang, Donna J Bismarck ND 5518 
Lende, Chanell B Faroo ND 58108 

58506-
Munsch, Cindy Bismarck ND 5518 
Otto, Ronald D Mandan ND 58554 

58206-
Saddler, Thomas M Grand Forks ND 5547 
Tobin, Warren J Jamestown ND 58401 
Vandrovec, Michael 
J Fargo ND 58108 

58206-
Westensee, Cathy J Grand Forks ND 5547 

58206-
Zavala, Barbara J Grand Forks ND 5547 
Baker, Jeffrey M Seward NE 68434 
Ballwei:i, Joseph E Hastini:is NE 68902 
Bomberger, Linda L Broken Bow NE 68822 

• 
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STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA 
DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS 

DEPARTMENT POLICIES 

SUBJECT: Conservatorships / Guardianships POLICY NO: 
103 

DISTRIBUTION: Department Personnel EFFECTIVE: PAGE NO: 
ACOVA Mtg 1 of 1 

11/2007 

No employee, including the commissioner, shall serve as a conservator or guardian. 

Exceptions to this policy fall under N.D.C.C. 30.1-27, Guardians of Minors and/or in family 
situations. 

It is the position of the Administrative Committee on Veterans' Affairs that the Department of 
Veterans' Affairs not implement a conservatorship program, but instead, continue efforts to 
include such a program in the state's guardianship program . 



• 

• 

Commander Quam testimony before the Government & Veterans Affairs 
Committee 

February 5, 2009 

Distinguished members of the Committee, my name is Carroll Quam. I am 
the State Commander of the North Dakota American Legion, representing 
roughly 19,000 wartime veterans of our state. Let me first thank you for 
allowing me the opportunity to testify today on House Bill 1057. 

Let me start by stating that our organization is governed by its membership. 
I, as the State Commander cannot, on my own, decide whether our 
organization will or will not support any particular legislation. We must 
have a resolution either from our State Convention or our Department 
executive Committee. If our organization does not have a resolution, then 
we have no official position. I suspect our fellow veterans organizations are 
governed in the same way. The American Legion, at its state convention last 
June voted to not support what has become House Bill 1057. As you all 
know, the North Dakota Veterans Coordinating Council, representing 
members of the Legion along with the AMVETS, Disabled American 
Veterans, Veterans of Foreign Wars and the Vietnam Veterans of America 
voted unanimously not to endorse 1057. Therefore, while others may testify 
in support of this bill, they do not do so as representatives of any of the 
Council member organizations. There are several reasons the Legion 
doesn't support this bill. I will highlight some of our concerns. 

3 7-14-18-While we wholeheartedly agree that training is essential for our 
County Veteran Service Officers; we do not support this section because it 
dictates specifically who will do the training. There are several 
organizations that could conduct quality training for our CVSO's. This bill 
limits access to training. We understand the Commissioner has requested 
additional funds for training and we would ask the Committee to support 
that request. 

Section 4-We oppose this amendment as it creates a new board that is 
unnecessary. The ACOV A members are individuals with vast knowledge 
and experience with veteran issues. While there may have been some bumps 
with their administration, overall, they have done a good job. It simply 
doesn't need to be changed. As far as compensation expenses are 
concerned, the members of ACOV A have for years volunteered their 



• 

• 

I I 

services. I'm luite certain they are willing to continue that. This section 
isn't needed. · 

'"~, 

37-18-07-We oppose this section because again, ACOVA has for many· 
years done a ieat job of choosing a Commissioner. We do not fant to take 
tI!e chance oft:pe Commissioner position becoming political. Our veterans 
cannot afford tb have this position played with. It's too important for our 

I 

veterans. 

37-18-08-The ~ommissioner's office has been in Fargo for many years. We 
do not need to change it. With today's modem communication, it really 
doesn't matter where the Commissioner's office is located, so leave it in 
Fargo near the VA. 

37-18.1-01 an4 02-We oppose these sections. The ACOVA maij;.eup now 
represents a wtde spectrum of veteran concerns. For the most part it has 
worked well. It doesn't need changing. ' 

S . 13 W I I d thi . I . . th . ect10n - e a so are oppose to s section. n our opllllon e 
Department cahoot afford to essentially lose two existing FTE. The claims 
office of the Dppartment needs to be fully manned at all times. The number 
of claims and the complexity of those claims are increasing dramatically. 
We recommerid the Committee affirm the Commissioners budget request for 

' an additionaI 1TE for training. · ' 
,, 

Section 14-Asjwe noted above we support the Commissioners request for 
additional funfing for training. 

i 
That concludes my testimony. I would be happy to answer any questions. 



• Geographic Distnbutio"A Expenditures for FY 07 Aktti~f (\~ ~. _ , 1l 
(Expenditures in $000s) I \(\[,ij ~ q:f-7 

County/Congressional Di_strict $ per Veteran Veteran Population Total Expenditures _fomp/Pension 
-- --

Golden Valley $11,565.00 205 $ 2,371 $ 151 
Slope $5,865.00 52 $ 305 $ 80 
Ransom $5,530.00 565 $ 3,125 $ 1,250 
Cass $5,127.00 10,264 $ 52,631 $ 18,419 
Benson $4,300.00 423 $ 1,819 $ 1,132 
Trail $4,182.00 826 $ 3,455 $ 1,485 
Mountrail $4,119.00 645 $ 2,657 $ 1,339 
Oliver $3,895.00 153 $ 596 $ 321 
Ramsey $3,754.00 783 $ 2,940 $ 1,577 
Burke $3,657.00 207 $ 757 $ 293 
Walsh $3,626.00 1,209 $ 4,384 $ 1,334 
Richland $3,470.00 1,211 $ 4,203 $ 1,662 
McIntosh $3,462.00 225 $ 779 $ 235 
Eddy $3,380.00 239 $ 808 $ 381 
Emmons $3,363.00 358 $ 1,204 $ 711 
Adams $3,357.00 221 $ 742 $ 310 
Logan $3,327.00 174 $ 579 $ 254 
Griggs $3,310.00 258 $ 854 $ 346 
Dunn $3,268.00 298 $ 974 $ 534 
Bowman $3,246.00 235 $ 763 $ 318 
Dickey $3,138.00 484 $ 1,519 $ 613 
LaMoure $3,054.00 348 $ 1,063 $ 446 
Barnes $3,044.00 1,115 $ 3,395 $ 1,565 
Stutsman $3,007.00 1,920 $ 5,775 $ 2,978 
Sargent $3,002.00 362 $ 1,087 $ 510 
Renville $2,924.00 292 $ 854 $ 414 
Nelson $2,887.00 434 $ 1,253 $ 675 
Sioux $2,882.00 356 $ 1,026 $ 794 

Above average = green Below Average= red Certified = yellow 



• 
Steele 
Rolette 
Kidder 
Ward 
Pembina 
Pierce 
Towner 
Mclean 
Grand Forks 
Grant 
McKenzie 
Williams 
Foster 
Morton 
Burleigh 
McHenry 
Wells 
Sheridan 
Stark 
Bottineau 
Cavalier 
Mercer 
Divide 
Billings 
Hettinger 

ND Totals 

Above average = green 

Geographic Distributio.A Expenditures for FY 07 
ND 

(Expenditures in $000s) 

$2,864.00 250 $ 
$2,785.00 948 $ 
$2,770.00 253 $ 
$2,742.00 5,545 $ 
$2,623.00 902 $ 
$2,592.00 498 $ 
$2,510.00 278 $ 
$2,492.00 897 $ 
$2,453.00 6,516 $ 
$2,428.00 264 $ 
$2,365.00 572 $ 
$2,352 00 1,883 $ 
$2,320 00 284 $ 
$2,308.00 2,464 $ 
$2,198.00 6,846 $ 
$2,132.00 597 $ 
$2,100.00 437 $ 
$2,074.00 161 $ 
$2,064.00 2,109 $ 
$2,043.00 716 $ 
$1,991.00 461 $ 
$1,706.00 870 $ 
$1,703.00 229 $ 
$1,585.00 123 $ 
$1,476.00 319 $ 

716 
2,641 

701 
15,206 
2,366 
1,291 

698 
2,236 

15,985 
641 

1,353 
4,429 

659 
5,689 

15,051 
1,273 

918 
334 

4,354 
1,463 

918 
1,485 

390 
195 
471 

$166,417.00 58284 $183,381.00 

Below Average = red 

• 
$ 372 
$ 1,749 
$ 396 
$ 11,351 
$ 1,293 
$ 673 
$ 318 
$ 1,404 
$ 9,447 
$ 327 
$ 758 
$ 2,225 
$ 355 
$ 3,322 
$ 9,114 
$ 881 
$ 367 
$ 139 
$ 2,367 
$ 872 
$ 428 
$ 556 
$ 207 
$ 124 
$ 231 

$89,403.00 

Certified = yellow 



-~ GEOGRAPHIC DISTRIBUTlm l EXPENDITURES FOR FY 07 -· • -- .. -• 
NOR. IOTA 

Expend a $000s 

County/ Congressional Veteran Total Compensation 
Education & General 

Insurance & Medical 
Construction Vocationai Operating 

District Popuiation' Expenditure & Pensions 
Rehabilitation Exoenses 

Indemnities Care 

ADAlvlS 2211 $ 743 · $ 310 · S - I S 23 IS - I $ 44 I$ 367 

BARNES 1,115 $ 3,389 $ 1,565 $ - ! $ 42 ! $ - $ 28 $ ·· f,755 
--

34 I$ BENSON 423 $ 1,814 $ 1,132 $ - $ - s 10 $ 637 

BILLINGS 123 $ 194 $ 124 $ - $ 1 I $ - $ 1 $ 68 

BOTTINEAU 716 $ 1,458 $ 872 $ - $ 26 $ - ! $ 85 $ 475 ... 

BOWMAN 235 $ 763 $ 318 $ - $ 5 $ - $ 41 $ 399 

BURKE 207 $ 755 $ 293 $ - $ 11 $ - $ 43 $ 408 

BURLEIGH 6,846 $ 14,927 $ 9,114 $ - $ 812 $ - $ 221 $ 4,780 

CASS 10,264 $ 52,114 $ 18,419 $ 690 $ 3,732 I s 4,250 $ 678 $ 24,347 

CAVALIER 461 $ 913 $ 428 $ - $ 33 $ - $ 45 $ 407 
·----

DICKEY 484 $ 1,514 $ 613 $ - $ 33 $ - $ 7 $ 860 -·--
DIVIDE 229 $ 387 $ 207 $ - $ 14 $ - $ 3 $ 164 

DUNN 298 $ 969 $ 534 $ - $ 32 $ - $ 13 $ 390 

EDDY 239 $ 807 $ 381 $ - $ 7 $ - $ 4 $ 415 
EMMONS 358 $ 1,203 $ 711 $ - $ 6 $ - $ 109 $ 377 

FOSTER 284 $ 658 $ 355 $ - $ 9 $ - $ 33 $ 261 
GOLDEN VALLEY 205 $ 241 $ 151 $ - $ 2 $ - $ 1 $ 86 
GRAND FORKS 6,516 $ 17,808 $ 9,447 $ - $ 1,930 $ - $ 610 $ 5,822 

-- ··-·· 
GRANT 264 $ 657 $ 327 $ - $ 20 $ - $ 7 $ 303 
GRIGGS 258 $ 820 $ 346 $ - $ 3 $ - $ 2 $ 468 
HETTINGER 319 $ 495 $ 231 $ - $ 33 $ - $ 2 $ 229 

·-
KIDDER 253 $ 654 $ 396 $ - $ 7 $ - $ 5 $ 246 
LAMOURE 348 $ 1,088 $ 446 $ - $ 48 $ - $ 3 $ 592 
LOGAN 174 $ 581 $ 254 $ - $ 18 $ - $ 10 $ 299 
MCHENRY 597 $ 1,283 $ 881 $ - $ 19 $ - $ 4 $ 380 
MCINTOSH 225\ $ 758 $ 235 $ - $ 3 $ - $ 1 $ 519 
MCKENZIE 572 $ 1,302 $ 758 $ - $ 25 $ - $ 4 $ 515 
MCLEAN 897 $ 2,230 $ 1,404 $ - $ 68 $ - $ 16 $ 742 
MERCER 870 $ 1,247 $ 556 $ - $ 63 $ - $ 13 $ 615 
MORTON 2,464 $ 5,875 $ 3,322 $ - $ 280 $ - $ 100 $ 2,173 

MOUNTRAIL 645 $ 2,685 $ 1,339 $ - $ 61 $ - $ 19 $ 1,266 
NELSON 434 $ 1,233 $ 675 $ - $ 25 $ - $ 9 $ 523 
OLIVER 153 $ 561 s 321 $ - $ 37 $ - $ 1 $ 202 
PEMBINA 902 $ 2,390 $ 1,293 $ - $ 71 $ - $ 62 $ 964 
PIERCE 498 $ 1,271 $ 673 $ - $ 37 $ - $ 3 $ 559 -
R.";MSEY 783 $ 2,969 $ 1,577 $ - $ . 52 $ - $ 34 $ 1,307 

Page 1 of 3 
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Testimony To 
THE HOUSE GOVERNMENT & VETERANS AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 
Prepared Thursday, February 5, 2009 by 
Terry Traynor, Assistant Director 
North Dakota Association of Counties 

REGARDING HOUSE BILL No. 1057 

Chair Grande and members of the House Government and Veteran's Affairs Committee, 
the North Dakota County Commissioners' Association has asked that their concern with 
Section I ofHB1057 be expressed to you. 

This section creates a new training mandate on county government. While it is 
understood that the appropriation attached to the bill is intended to compensate the 
property taxpayers for this mandate during the coming biennium, the appropriation 
expires in two years and the mandate does not. 

During the interim, the Public Safety Committee was urged to include language that 
would make the mandate contingent upon continued State funding. Without that, it 
becomes a property tax cost in the future. 

As written, we urge the removal of Section I ofHB1057 . 



NORTH DAKOTA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

GOVERNMENT and VETERANS AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 

Written Testimony for H.B. l 057 

February 5, 2009 

Submitted by 
Cindy Munsch 

Deputy Veterans Service Officer 
Burleigh County 
Bismarck, ND 



I am in support of 1-18 I 057. 

I am support HB I 057 because I believe it is an attempt at progress in how we provide service to 
the veteran and his dependents in North Dakota. The veterans of our state should have the best 
service possible, this means access to a County Veterans Service Officer who will provide quality 
service. In order to provide quality service you must have a willingness to do your best. In order 
to provide quality professional service you must be ready to receive education with open arms. 
You can not become stagnant in your job if you wish to provide quality professional service to 
the veterans of our state. The requirement for accreditation of County Veterans Service Officers 
would provide a way to measure the quality of professional service that can be provided. 
Accreditation through the National Association of County Veteran Service Officers would 
provide a nationally recognized standard of training. 
I would suggest that an amendment of 2 years instead of l year since this would give the new 
county veterans service officer a chance to become oriented to his new responsibilities. 

Let's move into the 21 st Century. 

Every department or business, whether it be large or small must keep up with technology and 
make use of it or be left in the dust. I believe that is where the ND Department of Veterans 
Affairs is presently, left in the dust. Be progressive and make use of a new centrally located state 
office at the seat of state government and make use of available technology. If a state office 
which administers a Hardship Assistance Program and a Veterans Aid Loan program is near the 
seat of State Government, wouldn't it be more economical and efficient? 

l believe that when you think of HB 1057 anyone and everyone's number ONE concern should be 
the veterans of North Dakota and delivery of quality professional services to each and every 
veteran as well as his widow and children. The benefit of quality professional service by any 
advocate for veterans is not only to the veteran and his dependents, but to the veteran's 
community. Veteran's who receive a monetary benefit spend in the community. Veterans who 
receive VA medical care are not receiving medical assistance from the county social services. 
Healthy veterans are active community members. 

The only people who will suffer ifHB 1057 does not pass will be the veterans of our state and our 
communities. All veterans deserve the best service we can possibly provide. I have worked as an 
advocate for veterans for more than 24 years and believe this bill is an excellent beginning! 

Thank you for your time. 

&0,'1.LLU~ 
mdy unsch 

Deputy Veterans Service Officer Burleigh County 
Member Professional Veterans Advocates ofND 

National Association of County Veteran Service Officers 
National Accredited County Veterans Service Officer with cross accreditation 
with Amvets, DAV and VFW 
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AMERICAN LEGION 
3 MEMBERS 

EXE.SECRETARY 
COMMISSIONER 

CHAIRMAN 

AMVETS 
3 MEMBERS 

DEPARTMENT OF 
VETERANS AFFAIRS 

SUBCOMMITTEE 
at least one member from 

each organization 

DIRECTOR, VA 
MEDICAL CENTER 

GOVERNOR 

ADMINISTRATIVE 
COMMITTEE ON 

VETERANS' 
AFFAIRS 

D.A.V. 
3 MEMBERS 

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS 

ADJUTANT GENERAL 
NATIONAL GUARD 

LEGISLATURE 
,I 

' 1------lSECRETARY 
II 

V.F.W, V.V.A. 
3 MEMBERS 3 MEMBERS 

VETERANS HOME 
GOVERNING BOARD 

membJrs appointed from 
I, 

with/11 or outside the 

Adminiktralive Committee 

EXECUi!WE DIRECTOR 
JOB SERVICE N.D. 
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I 
Post War Trust Fund Committee I 

Dave Hilleren (V.V.A.), Chairman 

John Adolf (AMVETS) 
I . 

John Hanson (V.F.W.) 
I 
I 

Mike Fisher (D.A.V.) 

Carl Bloomquist (V.F.W.) Jeff Hall (A.L.) 

11 

The committee reviews and makes recommendations to the full committee on requests 
from entities wishing to use the postwar trust fund interest earnings for :'projects benefitting 
North Dakota veterans and their dependents. I 

,1 

Appeals 
Wayne Paulson (V.F.W.), Chairman 

John Adolf (AMVETS) Ken Hasby (D.A.V.) 

Dave Vandergon (V.V.A.) Orletta Kilen (A.L.) 

I 
I 

i 
I! 

Lee Finstad (V.V.A.) 
I' 
I 
Ii 
'I 
I; 

The department's decisions on its financial assistance programs are ap'peaiable to an 
appeals committee. The decision of the committee is final. ( 

I' 
;i 
I 
'I I 
ii 
f 

Legislative Committee I 
Lee Finstad, Chairman (V.V.A.) I 

Dean Overby (A.L.) Lyle Schuchard (,'\MVETS) 
i 

Mike Fisher (D.A.V.) Carl Bloomquist (V.F.W) 

I
' 

. . I 

. • I 

The committee researches and makes recommendations for legislation lion issues that 
impact veterans and their dependents. \ 

I ,I 
I 
ii 
I 

I, 
I I 
'I 

I 
i! 
I 

11 

' I, 

1: 

1: 



... 

• 

• 

Governing Board - North Dakota VeteransjHome 
· Norris Braaten, Chairman ; 

Term Ends 6/30/2009 Term Ends 6/30/2010 
I . 

Term Ends 6/30/2011 
I 

Brad Maasjo Daryl Beard Jerry Meske 
I 

Dwayne Ternes Norris Braaten Dalrol Schroeder 

Orletta Kilen (ACOVA) 

' 

II 

The chairman and secretary of the Administrative Committee, withl' ratification from a 
majority of the full Committee, appoint a seven member governing boafd for administration 
of the North Dakota Veterans Home. The governing board selects an ~dministrator for the 
North Dakota Veterans Home. The administrator serves at the pleasJre of the governing 
board. 

Department of Veterans Affairs Subcommittee 
I 

. Dean Overby (A.L.), Chairman I' 

Jerry Goll (D.A.V.) Wayne Paulson (V.F.W.) 
i 

Dave Hilleren (V.V.A.) Lyle Schuchard (AMVETS) 

11 

The committee is responsible 1for supervision and government of the department. A 
member of the subcommittee may not serve on the Governing Board o~ the Veteran's 
Home. The Commissioner of Veterans' Affairs shall serve as the Executive Secretary for 
the subcommittee. The Commissioner has no vote in the affairs of the s'ubcommittee. The ., 
subcommittee shall create and implement a strategic plan for the department. 

I 

Budget Committee I 

John Hanson (V.F.W.), Chairman I; 

Lyle Schuchard (AMVETS) · Jerry Goll (D.A.V.) 

Jeff Hall (A.L.) Dave Vandergon (V.v.JI.) 

Ken Hasby (D.A.V.) 1

1 

The committee monitors the department's budget and reviews bienniuj budget requests. 
!1 

II 

1: ., 



# 
-

COUNTY 

0llADAMS 

VET MILL 
POP 'PER 

FY06 AUDITOR 

I MILL 
. IN 

DOLLARS 

A. MONTHLY 
SALARY SALARY 

CVSO CVSO 

ANNUAL 
SALARY 

SECRETARY 

ANNUAL 
TRAVEL 

EXP BUD 

OTHER 
ANNUAL 

EXPENSES -ANNUAL 
BUDGET 

204 I o.930 I · ">J 4,500.00 I 375.oo I I 1,400.00 I 240.00 I 6,140.00 
02IBARNES . I 1,053 I 1.360 I .·• _~7;449.68 I 29,224.00 I 2,435.33 I I 2,650.00 I 15,829.00 I 47,703.00 
03IBENSON I. 396 I 0.870 I . 13;791'21-I 13,774.08 I 1,147.84 I I 750.00 I 740.00 I 15,264.08 
04IBILLINGS . I 104 I 1.740 I '= _5;1,:l3::7_4!LI 7,000.00 I 583.33 I I 1,700.00 I 1,425.00 I 10,125.00 
05IBOTTINEAU I 660 I 0.750 I· _~1;S:91.fl5~I 10,050.00 I 837.50 I I 1,500.00 I 12,900.00 I 24,450.00 
06IBOWMAN I 227 I 0.800 I: . ~~,985.Q6:71 6,430.00 I 535.83 I I 1,000.00 I 535.00 I 7,965.00 
07IBURKE I 207 I 0.410 1<3t '~L ·~- -'1 3,600.00 I 300.00 I I 600.00 I 465.00 I 4,665.00 
08IBURLEIGH I 6,167 I 0.780 l".!'19-tS.&8.P0il 47,328.00 I 3,944.00 I 66,648.00 I 5,500.00 I 46,273.00 I 165,749.00 
09ICASS I 9,144 I 0.000 li~"):3~5;]77,0_0LI 52,876.00 I 4,406.33 I 99,27C/.00 I 4,500.QQ I 44,636.00 I 201,291.00 
1 0ICAV ALIER . I 458 I 1--L· "-~. ~'.":.c,i I . 0.00 I I I I 0.00 
lllDICKEY I 431 I 1.120 I 02 :11;46'3.00)i 14,987.21 I 1,248.93 I I 1,900.00 I 3,079.00 I 19,966.21 
12IDIVIDE I 216 I 0.620 I, ;: ::9;/i39:6t$I 5,500.00 I 458.33 I I 800.00 I 615.00 I 6,915.00 
13IDUNN I 274 I o.3oo I ":··12,~c[{:92;,I o.oo I o.oo I I o.oo I o.oo I 4,424.oo 
14IEDDY I 222 I 1.390 1-·L ~6:48T',Q6cl 5,562.00 I 463.50 I I 3,000.00 I 336.80 I 8,898.80 
15IEMMONS I 334 I 0.001 1~·L:~1'<1;51'3,o6);1 12,600.00 I 1,050.00 I I 112.50 I 1,201.15 I 14,514.25 
16IFOSTER I 250 I 0.670 8,132.00 I 677.67 I I 900.00 I 1,240.00 I 10,272.00 
l 7IGOLDEN VALLEY I 190 I 0.450 l::s , :,5,5'!J:J6~1 3,000.00 I 250.00 I I 1,000.00 I 550.00 I 4,550.00 
18IGRAND FORKS I 5,619 I 0.960 r:~ 16,g15IO~FI 54,960.00 I 4,580.00 I 28,389.00 I 4,500.00 I 73,690.00 I 161,539.00 
19IGRANT I 256 I 1.000 ie'':~-,8,92L50zl 6,746.50 I 562.21 I I 1,000.00 I 1,090.00 I 8,836.50 
20 GRIGGS 251 0.800 ··~9,J6$.C/_0j 4,995.50 416.29 1,700.00 725.00 7,420.50 
21 HETTINGER 287 0.580 ·9,&f2.88 4,200.00 350.00 1,200.00 110.00 5,510.00 
22 KIDDER 247 0.540 l.;c,:: L{0,2I:JeQS~ 6,240.00 520.00 600.00 340.00 7,180.00 , 

-,- 23 LaMOURE 330 . 0.310. l:; ,J&;65.7iHi _ il,182.00. .. 398.50 . . .. ]ZS.00 .... 140.00_ 5,69'LOO] ----- _ 
24 LOGAN 163 0.880 :t.:,.:;>7,12(1,Q:Z.:: 5,160.00 430.00 800.00 79.00 6,039.00 
25 McHENRY 572 0.250 22,827,00] 4,955.00 412.92 700.00 530.00 6,185.00 
26 McINTOSH 210 0.750 [d)[2A1" 6,265.20 522.10 1,400.00 350.00 8,015.20 
27IMcKENZIE I 541 I 1.090 If·. f7,2J0)ffl 18,417.00 I 1,534.75 I I 2,400.00 I 2,834.00 I 23,651.00 
28IMcLEAN • I 857 I 0.000 l·c". 28,574.20 I 14,416.00 I, 1,201.33 I I 500.00 I 1,000.00 I ,15,916.00 
29IMERCER I 801 I 0.660 1--- 18,897.ff I 13,412.00 I 1,117.67 I I 800.00 I 1,065.00 I 15,277.00 
301MoRToN 1 2,239 1 2.000 r::: 61,5os:o() 1 62,165.00 1 5,180.42 1 34,460.00 1 3,000.00 1 16,303.00 1 115,928.oo 
31IMOUNTRAIL I 606 I 0.970 (:: ·t6,308.80 I 8,556.00 I 713.00 I I 1,200.00 I 25.00 I 9,781.00 



• 
# COUNTY 

32 NELSON 
33 OLIVER 
34 PEMBINA 
35 PIERCE 
36 RAMSEY 
37 RANSOM 
38 RENVILLE 
39 RJCHLAND 
40 ROLETTE 
41 SARGENT 
42 SHERJDAN 
43 SIOUX 

·sLOPE 44 
45 STARK 
46 STEELE 
47 STUTSMAN 
48 TOWNER 
49 TRAILL 
50 WALSH 
51 WARD 
52 WELLS 
53 WILLIAMS 

VET MILL 
POP PER 

FY06 AUDITOR 

399 1.160 
141 1.250 
839 0.700 
432 0.430 
764 0.680 
506 0.740 
285 0.400 

1,133 I.JOO 
822 0.490 
326 ff.700 
153 0.470 
314 2.420 

51 0.360 
1,930 1.250 

228 0.500 
1,770 1.170 

271 1.310 
750 0.770 

I, 111 0.840 
5,092 0.640 

408 0.000 
1,805 1.930 

I MILL· 
IN 

DOLLARS 

. 11 233.88 
- - ' ' 

- . ¼· '. • '" 

-- -~-. -. .: ,_ 

,,- ·31,!75.62. 
~:~, :-: .. -_ 

·, ~ 

L • --, '"" . -, • ··.' 

I: ., 26,566.QO 

.. JlJ,97].0_0 . 
' .. ;;; (0,369.90. 
k · 51433.9'7" - ' - ---

". '".c•- To·26s.oO 
. . ,. ' - --- --

o" • .'I 5,916,oO:: . 

i...:~<6,582.4T 
1 ±(2 060.00" - ' ,_ . - . 

; , · s186:73: - . ' ,, 

,; .••··44)569~!0 

t•, ,!.•Ji;065i02. 
• ... :53r.7ofo58,: 

-- -- ' . ' - -
f, " 111000:00: •·. - ~ ·'-~- - - -

'. ·,; 2.6"942.09' 
--- '. ' - -- . --

• '.':. f,32"42.2.00 - - . ,. - - -

Fa 1~1;s55:98• 
' t <-'18849\)5, 

- -- --- __ , -- -

.:. -'4i:'4fffl0: : -- .. · .. ~, -- .:" ' 

• ANNUAL MONTHLY ANNUAL ANNUAL OTHER 
SALARY SALARY SALARY TRAVEL ANNUAL 

CVSO CVSO SECRETARY EXP BUD EXPENSES 

6,800.00 566.67 800.00 1,020.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

17,152.65 1,429.39 4,000.00 2,440.00 
6,000.00 500.00 1,000.00 50.00 

14,700.00 1,225.00 0.00 2,295.00 
17,000.00 1,416.67 825.00 3,060.00 
4,350.00 362.50 825.00 285.00 

39,832.00 3,319.33 5,000.00 13,642.00 
3,150.00 262.50 950.00 450.00 
7,697.00 641.42 800.00 2,755.00 
2,900.00 241.67 180.00 60.00 
5,282.28 440.19 1,800.00 115.00 
1,770.00 147.50 1,000.00 140.00 

41,948.67 3,495.72 26,291.29 1,375.00 1,520.00 
5,256.00 438.00 400.00 40.00 

36,100.00 3,008.33 9,000.00 1,300.00 16,206.00 
11,650.00 970.83 600.00 1,450.00 
13,733.78 I, 144.48 4,000.00 3,526.00 
18,828.00 1,569.00 840.00 10,543.00 
33,022.08 2,751.84 25,708.80 1,900.00 2,000.00 

5,000.00 416.67 500.00 160.00 
40,594.00 3,382.83 4,853.00 1,700.00 32,774.00 

.L 
ANNUAL 
BUDGET 

8,620.00 
7,304.99 

23,592.65 
7,050.00 

16,995.00 
20,885.00 

5,460.00 
58,474.00 

4,550.00 
11,252.00 

3,140.00 
7,197.28 
2,910.00 

71,134.96 
5,696.00 

62,606.00 
13,700.00 
21,259.78 
30,211.00 
82,200.00 

5,660.00 
79,921.00 

-~--~-- - - =~-:~~:-:.. ~--- -----~ ~~----.- --- . . - - - - -~ -- --- ... - -~ -- ~ - - -- . - ---- -- - -- "' -
53,048 42.291 f_l',68),~34.66"; 772,599.95 64,383.33 294,629.09 78,282.50 322,877:55. -1,499,687.20 
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North Dakota House of Representatives 
Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 

Written Testimony 
H.B.1057 

February 5, 2009 

Prepared by 

Mark J. Landis 
Burleigh County 

Veterans Service Officer 



It is a privilege to address this committee on a matter of great importance to the veterans 
of North Dakota. My name is Mark Landis, and I am the veterans service officer for 
Burleigh County. It is a full-time position. I am accredited with the National Association 
of County Veterans Service Officers (NACVSO) and am a charter member of the 
Professional Veterans Advocates of North Dakota. 

HB 1057 represents a bold, comprehensive vision for the future of the veterans of our 
state. Undoubtedly you have heard, and will continue to hear, opinions to the contrary. I 
respect those opinions and the right of individuals to express them. Healthy debate of 
issues is one of the cornerstones of our form of government. You are surely aware we 
enjoy the liberty to debate issues only because it has been purchased with the blood and 
sweat of those who have served our nation in combat and in peacetime. 

Every day, I have the privilege of serving our veterans. Most of them will say they were 
simply doing their job, but I know that each person has a unique story. I believe some of 
them to be genuine heroes. From World War Two, to Korea, to Vietnam, and the 
blistering desert sands of the Middle East, they have shown truly uncommon valor in the 
face of the enemy. Yet they are the most humble of all. 

They come to me, and others like me around the state, for assistance in applying for 
veterans benefits. Some are reluctant to do so because they are proud and independent, 
and have only arrived at this point out of necessity. We advise them of possible benefits 
and assist them with their applications. We also refer them to other services in the 
community. That may sound very simple, but I can assure you it is not. 

The arena of veterans benefits is a complex myriad of seemingly disjointed services. 
Qualification rules vary considerably. The County Veterans Service Officer (CVSO) 
guides veterans through this cumbersome system. Without professional training, I would 
be ill-equipped to provide proper service to my clients. I highly recommend NACVSO 
training to any CVSO who is serious about this profession. 

Recently, I heard a remark from a service officer that it's more important for a CVSO to 
be a caring person than to be proficient. He would have us believe that a CVSO can be 
caring or competent, but not both. However, I believe that is a false choice. I submit to 
you that a successful CVSO is both caring and competent. Anything less is a disservice 
to our veterans. 

During a meeting I attended a few months ago, one North Dakota CVSO stated he would 
resign rather than take accreditation training. Translation: Ifhe has to learn something, 
he's going to quit. It is a vast understatement to say that was a very disappointing, yet 
revealing, moment. 
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A number ofCVSO's have admitted their lack of proficiency in the area of veterans 
benefits, but justify their positions because they are very busy with community service 
projects for veterans. I applaud their work in their communities. Accreditation will not 
stop them from continuing that important work. However, it will help them to fulfill their 
duties in accordance with NDCC 3 7- I 4-18. 

Also, the implication is accredited CVSO's don't do community service. Nothing could 
be further from the truth. I cannot begin to tell you the number of evenings and 
weekends I have worked on community service projects, helped with veterans 
organization functions, or otherwise assisted veterans. That's not a complaint, just a fact. 

Burleigh County currently has more than 300 active files from other counties. Their 
reasons for coming to us may vary, but in most cases veterans should be able to receive 
appropriate services in their counties. 

I also support the idea of providing funding to bring NACVSO trainers to North Dakota. 
It is a highly cost-effective approach to accomplish the goal of accreditation for all 
CVSO's. 

There is no rational reason for CVSO's to resist accreditation training. The training 
consists of 32 hours of classroom instruction followed by a test. I might add, the test is in 
no way comparable to the entrance exam for M.I. T. It is a 100-question, multiple choice 
test on the basic fundamentals of our profession. A minimum score of 70% is required to 
pass the test. Any CVSO who pays attention in class and exerts a reasonable amount of 
learning effort should pass the test. Anyone who feels they already know everything 
there is to know about being a CVSO should easily attain a superior score. 

In addition to increasing the knowledge and skills of CVS O's around the state, 
accreditation training has another tremendous upside: Electronic access to veterans 
records. We live and work in an increasingly automated world, and the VA is no 
exception. The day will come, perhaps in the near future, when most business will be 
conducted electronically. CVSO's who are accredited will have a significant advantage 
in providing excellent customer service. 

When a veteran files a claim through our office, he or she also executes a power of 
attorney with one of the major service organizations. The U.S. Department of Veterans 
Affairs (VA) recognizes these organizations, which are charted by Congress to provide 
services to veterans. As an accredited CVSO, I can have electronic access to veterans 
records for each organization that has granted accreditation to me. I can also speak 
directly with VA personnel concerning a veteran's claim. NACVSO has agreements with 
several major service organizations to allow cross-accreditation. That means, once I am 
accredited with NACVSO, I can also become accredited with other organizations through 
a simple application process . 



• 

• 

This opportunity is not available with any other organization. If a CVSO is accredited 
with only one of the major service organizations, he or she will have access to only those 
records. As a CVSO, I cannot be limited to access through only one organization. 

The North Dakota Department of Veterans Affairs (NDDVA) has apparently engaged in 
negotiations to have the American Legion provide accreditation training to CVSO's. 
While the American Legion may provide good training, it will not get CVSO's where 
they need to be for the aforementioned reasons. In that respect, the concept is seriously 
flawed. 

My colleagues will address these and other aspects ofHB 1057, including the provisions 
pertaining to the NDDV A, the Commissioner of Veterans Affairs, and the Administrative 
Committee on Veterans Affairs. Thank you for taking the time to read my remarks; I 
sincerely hope they provide insight on these issues. 

Mark J. Landis 
Burleigh CVSO 
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Testimony To 
THE SENATE GOVERNMENT & VETERANS AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 
Prepared March 5, 2009 by 
Terry Traynor, Assistant Director 
North Dakota Association of Counties 

REGARDING ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL No. 1057 

Chairman Dever and members of the Senate Government and Veteran's Affairs 

Committee, the North Dakota County Commissioners' Association has asked that 

their concern with Section 1 of engrossed HB I 057 be expressed to you. 

This section creates a new training mandate on county government. While it is 

understood that the appropriation attached to the bill is intended to compensate the 

property taxpayers for this mandate during the coming biennium, the appropriation 

expires in two years and the mandate does not. 

Without the inclusion oflanguage, such as the suggested amendment below, this 

bill creates the strong possibility for a future unfunded property tax cost. 

Without such a change, the North Dakota County Commissioners' Association 

urges the removal of Section I of HB 1057. 

PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO REEN GROSSED HOSUE BILL NO. 1057 

Page 1, line 15, after the period insert, "The North Dakota department of veteran's 
affairs shall include in its biennial budget. a request for sufficient funding for 
the delivery of the training necessary for county veteran's service officers to 
maintain accreditation." 

Renumber accordingly 



• 

North Dakota Senate 
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Testimony 

H.B. 1057 

March 5, 2009 

Prepared by 

Mark J. Landis 
Burleigh County 

Veterans Service Officer 
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Chairman Dever, members of the committee, distinguished visitors, ladies and 
gentlemen: Good morning. My name is Mark Landis. and I am the veterans service 
officer for Burleigh County. As a full-time employee, I have the privilege of serving our 
nation's veterans every day. I an1 accredited with the National Association of County 
Veterans Service Officers (NACVSO) and am a charter member of the Professional 
Veterans Advocates of North Dakota. 

Thank you for the opportunity to testify on this important issue. HB 1057, in its original 
form, represented a bold strategy to improve service to the veterans of North Dakota. 
\\/hat you have before you now is legislation that has been amended to the point of being 
largely ineffective. However, it is still possible to salvage a very significant feature of 
the bill. 

I am very encouraged by the fact we are having a serious discussion of professional 
education and standards for county veterans service officers. Hopefully you will agree 
that ifwe are to achieve the desired result, it's important we get it right the first time. 
Section One requires mandatory accreditation by the North Dakota Department of 
Veterans Affairs (NDDVA). This is a change from the original bill, which would have 
required accreditation by the National Association of County Veterans Service Officers 
(NACVSO). I strongly urge you to restore the original verbiage with respect to 
NACVSO accreditation. 

In order to be valid, an accreditation progran1 must be approved by the U.S. Department 
of Veterans Affairs (VA). The NDDVA does not currently have any accreditation 
program. They do not have the wherewithal to develop and execute such a program. 
They will tell you they can bring in trainers from a national organization such as the 
American Legion to conduct accreditation training. I do not doubt the American Legion 
provides good training for its employees; however, this plan is fatally flawed in several 
respects. 

There appears to be a false impression that accreditation with any veterans service 
organization is just as valid as any other for County Veterans Service Officers (CVSOs). 
With your indulgence, l would like to dispel that myth right now. 

NACVSO training is geared to what we do at the county level. In contrast, the national 
service organizations train people to work in their offices and at VA regional offices. It 
is the most appropriate training for their target audience. While there are similarities in 
the work performed at each level, it is truly an "apples and oranges" comparison. 

Additionally, there is much we do not know about the commissioner's plan to bring 
American Legion trainers to the state. Has the American Legion conducted accreditation 
training in the past specifically for CVSOs? If not, will they need to change their course 
syllabus? How long will it take for a new course syllabus to be reviewed and approved 
by the VA? Will American Legion accreditation, although offered without cost, help 
CVSOs get to where they need to be? These are questions that should be answered 
before the commissioner's plan can be seriously considered. 
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When I accepted appointment as a CVSO, I had little understanding of the steep learning 
curve I was about to climb. I have attended training sessions from several agencies and 
organizations. As a full-time professional veterans advocate, I can state unequivocally 
that NACVSO training is the most valuable 10 me in my job. I continue to attend 
NACVSO training every year to maintain accreditation. 

NACVSO accreditation also opens the door for accreditation with several national 
service organizations. For example, I am also accredited with the Veterans of Foreign 
Wars (VFW), the Disabled American Veterans (DAV), and the American Veterans of 
World War Two (AMVETS). This is possible because of cross-accreditation agreements 
that NACVSO has with these organizations. On the other hand, if CVS Os obtain initial 
accreditation with the NDDVA or the American Legion, they will not be accredited with 
the DAV, VFW, or AMVETS. You may ask, why is this important? 

When veterans file disability claims through our office, they also execute a power of 
attorney with one of the national service organizations. The VA recognizes these 
organizations, which are chartered by Congress to provide services to veterans. We 
partner with the organizations to assist veterans with their claims. I don't know ahead of 
time which organization a veteran will choose as a POA. However, the vast majority of 
claims in the Fargo VA Regional Office are represented by DAV, VFW, or AMVETS. If 
veterans select an organization with which I am accredited, I have access to their 
information in the VA system and am in the best position to be a strong advocate for 
them throughout the claim process. However, if they happen to choose an organization 
with which I am not accredited, I am representing them with one hand tied behind my 
back. I can call the POA to ask for information, and wait days or weeks for a response 
( no exaggeration), but it is much better if I can immediately obtain data as an accredited 
representative. For those who are accredited, information is available electronically. 

There appears to be another misconception that NACVSO would dictate the type of 
training we need in North Dakota. NACVSO offers a wide range of training programs 
that are recognized by the VA and provide CVSOs with the tools to accomplish their 
mission. The organization is not interested in exercising authority or control over 
anyone. The fact that their training teams are booked far in advance is a testament to the 
quality of professional education they provide. 

Requiring accreditation by the NDDVA would also open the door to allowing the 
commissioner to exercise authority over CVSOs. That can be most politely described as 
a completely inappropriate arrangement. 

Prior to 2005, the North Dakota Century Code included verbiage granting the 
commissioner authority over CVSOs. It was unworkable and unenforceable. Counties 
are local government entities that appoint, pay, and evaluate their employees. The county 
commissioners are elected officials and are accountable to the people. They did not 
allow the commissioner to usurp their authority concerning their CVSOs. IfCVSOs are 
to be true advocates for veterans, they need to be independent from federal and state 
agencies. The 2005 legislature, in their wisdom, struck the absurd verbiage from the 



• 

• 

Century Code. Currently, the commissioner has a duty to assist CVSOs, which is 
appropriate. I-le or she could track NACVSO accreditation to ensure compliance. 

You may ask why accreditation implies control by the commissioner hut does not imply 
control by NACVSO. The answer is simple. First, the NDDVA is a state agency and 
NACVSO is not a governmental body. Second, in his testimony before the House 
Government and Veterans Affairs Committee, the commissioner publicly and plainly 
stated his ambition to exercise authority over CVSOs. He followed up his statements by 
distributing written copies of his testimony (Attached Exhibit "A"). As mentioned 
earlier, we've been down that road and it didn't work. We need to move forward rather 
than repeat the mistakes of the past. NACVSO will simply provide excellent, appropriate 
training upon invitation. Then they will leave until such time as they are invited to 
return. 

After CVSOs are accredited with NACVSO, they need to complete 16 hours of 
continuing education units annually to maintain accreditation. The conferences currently 
provided by the NDDV A can be designed to satisfy this requirement. 

The concept of accreditation by the NDDV A will have another unintended consequence. 
Nearly half of CVS Os in North Dakota would be unable comply with the new law. The 
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) requires CVSOs who are being accredited by a state 
organization to work at least 1,000 hours per year for their counties (Attached Exhibit 
"B"). A significant number of CVS Os do not meet these criteria . 

It is important to note the key tern1 "State Organization". The CFR further defines a state 
organization as an organization created and primarily funded by a state government for 
the purpose of serving the needs of veterans. Thus, the rule applies to accreditation with 
the NDDVA, a state agency. Clearly, NACVSO does not fit the definition of a state 
organization. Therefore, the 1,000 hour minimum does not apply when CVSOs are 
accredited by NACVSO (Attached Exhibit "C"). The upshot is, all CVS Os may be 
accredited by NACVSO. 

In conclusion, I believe it would be a grievous error to accept the bill as it is currently 
written. We would not obtain the desired effect; in fact, it would be detrimental to 
CVSOs and ultimately to the veterans of our state. 

I will gladly address any questions you may have. 
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Excerpt from testimony to the House Government & Veterans Affairs 
Committee, presented by the ND Commissioner of Veterans Affairs (Feb 2009) 

Recommendations 

- 9 -

$183,242,000.00 in federal expenditure brought into ND in 2007 through the VA. 
Combining North Dakota's 2007 expenditures of about 2,100,000.00 (NDDV A and CVSO' s) 
on veterans this is a return of about $87 on every dollar spent on Veterans services. 

To answer the questions/concerns that are repeatedly brought up about training/accreditation, 
accountability, productivity, supervision and consistent quality of service to our veterans then 
the organization needs structure. 

• Chain of command 
• Regional supervisors/oversight 
• Training and quality control support. 
• This leads to a few options 
• One option 

o 8 Regions in ND with 2 State supervisors 
■ Oversee 

• CVSO's. 
• Training/qualification of CVSO's 
• Outreach 
• Quality of Claims 
• Tracking veterans 

• State employees would need to have some authority over CVSO's 



EXHIBIT "B" 

Excerpt from Title 38, U.S. Code of Federal Regulations 

§ 14.629 Requirements for accreditation of sen'ice organization representatives; agents; 
and attorneys. 

Discussion and Analysis in the Veterans Benefits Manual(!) 

The Regional Counsel of jurisdiction will resolve any question of current qualifications of a 
service organization representative, agent. or attorney. The claimant, the service organization 
representative, agent, or attorney, or an official of the organization for which such person acts, or 
a Department of Veterans Service Center Manager may appeal such determination to the General 
Counsel. 

( a) Service Organization Representatives. A recognized organization shall file with the Office 
of the General Counsel VA Form 21 (Application for Accreditation as Service Organization 
Representative) for each person it desires accredited as a representative of that organization. In 
recommending a person, the organization shall certify that the designee: 

(I) Is of good character and reputation and has demonstrated an ability to represent claimants 
before the Department of Veterans Affairs; 

(2) ls either a member in good standing or a paid employee of such organization working for 
it not less than I ,000 hours annually; is accredited and functioning as a representative of another 
recognized organization; or, in the case of a county veteran's service officer recommended by a 
recognized State organization, meets the following criteria: 

(i) Is a paid employee of the county working for it not less than 1,000 hours annually; 

(ii) Has successfully completed a course of training and an examination which have been 
approved by a Regional Counsel with jurisdiction for the State; and 

(iii) Will receive either regular supervision and monitoring or annual training to assure 
continued qualification as a representative in the claim process; and 

(3) Is not employed in any civil or military department or agency of the United States. 

(Authority: 38 U.S.C. 50l(a), 5902) 

(b) Agents. (I) An individual desiring accreditation as an agent must establish that he or she 
is of good character and reputation and is qualified to render assistance to claimants in the 
presentation of their claim(s). An individual desiring accreditation as an agent must file a 
completed application with the Office of the General Counsel on VA Fom1 21 a on which the 
applicant submits the following: 

(i) His or her full name and business address; 

© 2006 Mallhew Bender & Company, Inc., a member of the LexisNcxis nmup. All rights reserved. Use of this product ·is subject to the 

restrictions and terms and conditions of the Matthew Render Master Agreement. 
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§ 14.628 Recognition of organizations. 

Discussion and Analysis in the Veterans Benefits Manual(]) 

Authorized officers of an organization may request recognition by letter to the Secretary of 
Veterans Affairs. 

(a) National organization. An organization may be recognized as a national organization if: 

(I) It was recognized by the Department of Veterans Affairs prior to October 10, 1978, and 
continues to satisfy the requirements of§ 14.628(d) of this section, or 

(2) lt satisfies the following requirements: 

(i) Requirements set forth in paragraph (d) of this section, including information required to 
be submitted under that paragraph; 

(ii) In the case of a membership organization, membership of 2,000 or more persons, as 
certified by the head of the organization; 

(iii) Capability and resources to provide representation to a sizable number of claimants; 

(iv) Capability to represent claimants before the Board of Veterans' Appeals in Washington . 
D.C.; and 

(v) Geographic diversification, i.e., either one or more posts, chapters, or offices in at least 
ten states, or one or more members in at least twenty states. 

(b) State organization. An organization created and primarily funded by a State government 
for the purpose of serving the needs of veterans of that State may be recognized. Only one such 
organization may be recognized in each State. 

( c) Regional or local organization. An organization other than a State or national organization 
as set forth in paragraphs (a) and (b) of this section may be recognized when the Department of 
Veterans Affairs has determined that it is a veterans' service organization primarily involved in 
delivering services connected with either title 38 U.S.C., benefits and prob'fams or other Federal 
and State programs designed to assist veterans. The term veteran as used in this paragraph shall 
include veterans, former armed forces personnel, and the dependents or sun•ivors of either. 
Further, the organization shall provide responsible, qualified representation in the preparation, 
presentation, and prosecution of claims for title 38 U.S.C., benefits. 

( d) Requirements for recognition. ( l) In order to be recognized under this section, an 
organization shall meet the following requirements: 

CO 2006 Matthew Bender & Company, Inc., a member of the LexisNexis Group. All rights reserved. Use of this product is subject to the 

restrictions and tem1s and conditions of the Matthew Bender Master Agreement. 
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email from Ms. Barbara Brown, Office of the General Counsel, U.S. 
Department of Veterans Affairs 

From: Brown, Barbara (OGC) [mailto:Barbara.Brown@va.gov] 
Sent: Wednesday, February 25, 2009 12:03 PM 
To: mlandis@state.nd.us 
Subject: RE: Accreditation of County Veterans Service Officers 

Mr. Landis, 

You are correct in that the 1,000-hour requirement does not apply to accreditation with NACVSO 
or any other national organization. 
The question was rephrased by Mr. Wangen. Below is my answer to him. 

If a county employee working less than 1000 hours annually is a member of a recognized 
veterans service organization (list attached) they may be accredited to that organization. Please 
visit our website atwww.va.gov/ogc/accreditation.asp for information regarding accreditation. 

Barbara 

From: Mark Landis Burleigh CVSO [mailto:mlandis@nd.gov] 
Sent: Wednesday, February 25, 2009 9:13 AM 
To: Brown, Barbara (OGC) 
Cc: Ron Otto 
Subject: Accreditation of County Veterans Service Officers 

Ms. Brown: 

I am the secretary-treasurer for the Professional Veterans Advocates of North Dakota, as well as 
the Burleigh County veterans service officer. 

Earlier this month, you responded to an email from the North Dakota Commissioner of Veterans 
Affairs concerning the issue of accreditation of county veterans service officers. He asked you for 
an interpretation of 38 CFR 14.629. The commissioner provided our organization with a copy of 
his question and your response. 

Although you gave him an appropriate answer within the context of his question, it is obvious he 
did not frame the question properly. He really wanted to know if county veterans service officers 
could be accredited with the National Association of County Veterans Service Officers 
( NACVSO). His inquiry was prompted by a bill currently being considered in our state legislature, 
which would require NACVSO accreditation for all county veterans service officers. 

For your convenience, I've attached excerpts from the Code of Federal Regulations. 

38 CFR 14.629 indicates county veterans service officers recommended by a recognized state 
organization must be paid employees of their counties, working not less than 1,000 hours 
annually. 

38 CFR 14.628 defines a state organization as an organization created and primarily funded by a 
state government for the purpose of serving the needs of veterans. 

As you are aware, NACVSO is a professional society of county veterans service officers from 
around the U.S. It was founded by county veterans service officers for the purpose of providing 
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professional education for its membership, and is funded by membership dues. Clearly, it does 
not meet the definition of a state organization. Consequently, it would appear the 1,000-hour 
requirement would not apply to accreditation with NACVSO or any other national organization. 

North Dakota has many county veterans service officers who work less than half-time. It is our 
opinion that they should not be denied the opportunity for accreditation with a prestigious 
professional organization if they can meet the requirements. 

It was unfortunate that you were originally given incomplete or possibly misleading information. 
would greatly appreciate your review and reconsideration of this subject. I am at your disposal if 
you require more information. 

Thank you for your time and effort. I look forward to hearing from you. 

Mark Landis 
Burleigh CVSO 
PVAND Secretary-Treasurer 
NACVSO accredited 
(701) 222-6698 
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Greetings, Chairman Dever and Vice Chairman Oehlke and members of the 
Committee. 

The bottom line today is this - How can each one of us here in this room 
best serve our state and our nations veterans including his family, his widow 
and orphans. All here today want to see that every North Dakota veteran 
receives the best service possible from his County Veterans Service Officer. 

In order to provide the best possible services we need to have education. We 
need to know what services are available and how to access the local state 
and federal benefits available. Federal benefits are US Department of 
Veterans Affairs benefits. We can learn by On the Job Training, which I am 
sure you as Senators have experienced. On the Job Training is good but not 
the most efficient. To supplement our On the Job Training we need to seek 
formal education and training in our field. 

County Veterans Service Officers from across the United States have been 
receiving quality training in VA claims development and presentation. The 
training received thru the National Association of County Veterans Service 
Officers was officially recognized by the US Department of Veterans Affairs 
"for the purpose of preparation, presentation, and prosecution of claims 
under laws administered by the Department of Veterans Affairs" in a letter 
dated April 19, 1993 signed by Jesse Brown Secretary. The letter stated that 
this recognition "is accorded pursuant to 38 U.S. C. Section 5902 and 38 
C.F.R. Section 14.628© and is solely for the purpose of claimant 
representation before the Department of Veterans Affairs. Also included 
was the statement that "Accreditation of representatives associated with your 
(NACVSO) organization will be handled on an individual basis in 
accordance with 38 C.F.R. Section 14.629." (See attachments for CFR 
references) 

2 



• National Association of County Veterans Service Officers developed a 
training manual which is continually updated to keep in step with the ever 
changing US DV A laws and regulations. This is the manual used in 2007 for 
the Accreditation class. Classroom time is 32 hours in 5 days with additional 
training being provided in other areas of concern. Classroom instructors are 
Veterans Service Officers who work in the field so have knowledge of what 
County Veterans Service Officers deal with when filing claims and 
advocating for veterans. I have attached the index to the 2007 training 
manual and a copy of one training module for your review. 

This training is so good as to be recognized by 6 major veterans 
organizations, American Veterans (Amvets), Disabled American Veterans 
(DAV), Military Order of The Purple Heart (MOPH), The Retired Enlisted 
Association (TREA), Vietnam Veterans Association (VVA), Veterans of 
Foreign Wars (VFW), as excellent training; training accepted as equal to 
their own training for their service officers which then allows me to receive 
cross accreditation with these organizations. Wouldn't this be a wonderful 
jump start in our education on the way to accreditation? I urge this 
committee to approve use of an already established training program for ND 
County Veterans Service Officers. 

Proper and continued education is essential in order for us to do our job as 
service officers if we are to fulfill the obligation proclaimed by Abraham 
Lincoln which is: " ... To care for him, who shall have borne the battle and 
for his widow and orphans .... : This is my focus, my passion, I hope this is 
true for all who sit in this room today. 

Thank You 

Cindy Munsch 
Deputy Veterans Service Officer 
Burleigh County 
Bismarck ND 
Professional Veterans Advocates of ND Charter member 
NACVSO member and Accredited CVSO 

3 



... 
" -- rr.==~===================~=======~============~========~ 
,ii 

rd 

"' --' 
----"" al 

"" d 

-' --mi 
rJii 

""' ,-

~~c1tio11al Associatio11 
01· 

Coi,11ty Veterarzs Service O.fficers, I11c. 

Mihvaukee. 'vVisconsin 
June 3-8 . .2007 

VETER;e\NS CLAIJ\1S OFFICERS 
TRAINING l\1L;e\NUAL 



• 

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY 
VETERANS SERVICE OFFICERS 

Certification Training Course 

INDEX OF TRAINING MODULES 

Module Page 

1. DYA, NACYSO and CVSO History, Organization and Disclaimer. .................... 1-1 

2. Veterans Benefits: General Provisions; Definitions; Periods of War ................... 2-1 

3. Duty to Assist & Development of Claims ............................................................ 3-1 

4. Service Connection; Disability Compensation ..................................................... 4-1 

5. Disability Pension ................................................................................................. 5-1 

6. Dependency and Indemnity Compensation (DIC) ................................................ 6-1 

7. Death Pension ....................................................................................................... 7-1 

8. EVRs. Deductible Expenses ................................................................................. 8-1 

9 . Burial Benefits ...................................................................................................... 9-1 

10. VA Medical Care ................................................................................................ 10-1 

11. Loan Guaranty .................................................................................................... 11-1 

12. Insurance ............................................................................................................. 12-1 

13. Vocational Rehabilitation ................................................................................... 13-1 

14. Veterans' Education Assistance .......................................................................... 14-1 

15. Dependents· Education Assistance ..................................................................... 15-1 

16. Debt Management; Committee on Waivers ........................................................ 16-1 

17. Appellate Processes ............................................................................................ 17-1 

18. Discharge Reviews; Correction of Military Records .......................................... 18-1 

19. Special Benefits ............................................................................. 19-1 

20. Glossary of Terms .......................................................................... 20-1 

21. Rate Chart, Forms, UME's, and SMC Codes .......................................... 21-1 

22. Answer Key .............................................................................. .... 22-1 



Ohjective: 

TRAINING MODULE 4 
Study Plan 

SERVICE CONNECTED 
DISABILITY COMPENSATION 

To learn how to assist a veteran with a claim for service connected disability or other compensation. and to 

become familiar with the references used in these types of cases. 

References: 

Title 38. U .S Code. Chapter 11 

38 Code of Federal Regulations Pan 3. §s 3.301-3.385: § 3.800: §§ 3.951-3.957: Part 4. 

Ad.1ud1ca1Jon Manual 21-1. Pan VI: Pan L Appendix B. 

Adjudication Manual M21-IMR (Manual Rewrite). Subpart JV: Part 4. Subparts IT and 111. 

VA Pamphlet. 80-0-1. Federal Benefits for Veterans and Dependents. 

Instructions: 

-

Studv the assi£ned reference materials to learn how service connection may be established for various 
conditions and what are the bases for payment of disability compensation. Although the program 1s called 
··compensation and Pension,'· be careful not to confuse the different types of benefits. Pay very careful 
attention w the information given in the initial application for compensation. as that will he the basis for 

• 

Jevelopment of the claim. 

Summary: 

I. Service Connection: 

Service connection is the relationship of a particular disabling condition to the veteran•s service. This is 
accomplished by showing that the condition began during service (incurrence). or that a pre-existing condition 
was made permanently worse than it would have otherwise been (aggravation). or by the application of 
certain statutory presumptions. The following paragraphs detail the four ways to accomplish service 
connection for a disabling conditionls). 

Formal application for service-connected disability compensation is made by submitting a completed VA 
Form 21-526. \lc1eran ·s Application for Compensation or Pension. together with appropriate medical and 
other supporting evidence. Under certain circumstances. an application for service-connected compensation 
may also be an application for non service-connected disability pension. if the veteran served during a wartime 
period and completes the portions of the application pertaining to total disability and to family income and net 
worth . 

4-1 Revision 1, January 2008 
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TRAINING MODULE 4 

Study Plan 
A. Direct: 

An incurred disability may have been directly caused by service (e.g .. a combat wound), or it may be the 
remote result of some incident of service (e.g., cancer due to asbestos exposure), or it may have simply begun 
coincident with service (e.g., diabetes). It is not required that the condition be shown in the service records, 
only that the evidence taken as a whole shows that the condition must have begun during service, or was the 
result of service or some incident thereof. 

B. Aggravation: 

A pre-existing disability which becomes permanently worse during service will be held to have been 
aggravated by service unless there is a specific finding that the increased severity is the result of the 
condition's natural progress. The veteran is presumed to be in sound condition at the time of entry into service 
except for conditions noted on the entrance examination. This presumption may be rebutted by clear and 
convincing evidence that a condition existed before the veteran entered service. 

For conditions which first appear after entering service, the veteran is presumed to have been in sound condition at the 
time of entry into service except for those conditions actually noted on the entrance examination (this does not include 
conditions recorded by history only). This presumption of soundness may be rebutted by clear and convincing evidence 
that the particular condition existed before the veteran entered service and was not aggravated by service. 

Service connection based on either incurrence or aggravation during service is called direct service connection. Direct 
service connection may only be estabhshed for a chrome or permanent dtsabtlity. Thts can be establtshed m several 

.ways· 

(1) The cond1ttons listed m 38 CFR § 3.309(a) are chrome hy defimtrnn, as a matter of law-if 
one of these conditions is properly diagnosed in service, then it does not matter how long after 
service the veteran first claims service connection or how long after service the condition 
again becomes manifest; it is considered to be the same condition as was shown in service, 
unless the current condition is clearly shown to be ofintercurrent origin. [38 CFR § 3.303(b)] 

• 

(2) Some disabilities are by their very nature permanent, such as amputations or scars from burns, 
combat wounds or surgical procedures. 

(3) Continuity and chronicity may be factually established, by repeated episodes or recurrences of 
the condition during and/or after service. The longer the interval between service and the time 
the veteran claims service connection, the greater the evidence of continuity and chronicity 
required. 

(4) In all other cases, there must be medical evidence or a professional opinion linking or relating 
the current condition(s) to the disease, injury, or incident in service (the "nexus") . 

4-2 Revision I, January 2008 
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C. Presumption: 

TRAINING MODULE 4 
Study Plan 

Certain chronic and tropical diseases will he presumed to have begun during service if they become manifest 
10 a compensable degree within a specified time (generally. one year) after service. even though there is no 
evidence of the disease during service. Chronic diseases shown before service. bu! nm during service. may be 

presumed to have been aggravated by service if they then become manifest to a compensable degree within 

the specified time periods. In addition. specified diseases are presumed to be the result of certain incidents of 
service (prisoner of war. participation in '·radiation-risk'" activities. herbicide exposure) if they become 

manifes1 to a compensable degree m any time after service (lifetime presumption). Other presumptive periods 

are specified for undiagnosed illnesses associated with service in the Persian Gulf area (until September 30. 
201 I/. and for certain diseases associated with herbicide exposure I.one year after leaving Vietnam for 
chloracne. Porphyria cutanea tarda. and peripheral neuropathyl. [38 CFR § 3.307(aJ] These presumptions are 
imendecl to be liberalizing features, to allow service connection when the evidence would not otherwise 
suppon it. 

The diseases 10 which presumptions mav be applied are listed in 38 CFR § 3.309 (* 3.317 for Gulf War 
undiagnosed illnesses I. The various time limits for manifestation of presumptive diseases are listed wider 38 
CFR § 3.3071.al. ONLY THE DISEASES SPECIFICALLJ" LISTED, All'D NO OTHERS. are subject to a 
presumption of service connection. These presumptions may be rebutted by affirmative evidence showing that 
the disease being claimed was either due to intercurrent causes or could nOI have had its inception within the 
specified time frame(sJ. or. if the disease pre-existed service. that any increase in its severity was due to its 
natural progress . 

No presumptions may be invoked on 1he basis of the degree of advancement of the disease when first 
definitely found I after the presumptive period) to establish that the disease was present to the required extent 
during the applicable presumptive period. [38 CFR § 3.307l c)j This does not mean that the disease must be 
diagnosed during the presumptive period. only thal there is acceptable evidence of characteristic 
manifestations of the disease to the required degree. followed without an unreasonable lapse of time by a 

definitive diagnosis. (Nore. however. that the degree of advancement of a condition al the lime it is first found 
nwy be a basis for finding thal the condition was present but unrecognized while the veteran was still on 
active duty.) 

D. Secondary: 

Secondary service connection may he established for a new condition. which is directly and proximately 
caused by an established service connected condition. Under certain circumstances. secondary service 
connection may be established for a non-service connected condition thai is aggravated beyond its normal 
progression by u service connected condition. 

There are special rule5- for establishing service connection for a hearing loss. Notwithstanding that no hearing 
loss is shown on entrance examination. and that while on active duty the veteran is diagnosed as having a 

hearing loss, service connection still may not he established for that hearing loss unless and until ii meets the 
minimum levels set oul in 38 CFR 3.385 . 

4-3 Revision 1, January 2008 



• 
TRAINING MODULE 4 

Study Plan 
Service connection may not be established for transitory illnesses or superficial injuries, which resolve or heal 
with no ascertainable chronic or permanent residuals. [38 CFR § 3.303(b)] Similarly. service connection may 
not be established for congenital or developmental defects such as a personality disorder or simple refractive 
error of the eye. [38 CFR §§ 3.303(c), 4.9] Service connection by aggravation may not be established if the 
pre-existing condition does not become permanently worse during or after service, except for conditions 
which become symptomatic during or immediately following combat or internment as a prisoner of war. [38 
CFR § 3.306(h)(2)] Remedial treatment in service for a pre-existing condition will not establish service 
connection unless the treatment is unsuccessful or otherwise aggravates the condition. [38 CFR § 3.306(b)(])] 
Service connection may not be established for any disease or injury which is not incurred or aggravated in line 
of duty, or which is either the direct or the remote result of the veteran's own willful misconduct. [38 CFR § 
3.301(a)] 

There is no minimum length of service required to establish direct service connection by incurrence or 
aggravation. Presumptive service connection for a chronic or tropical disease requires that the veteran have at 

least 90 consecutive days of active service during a wartime period or after January 31, 1946. [38 CFR § 
3.307(a)(] )] Presumptions based on status as a prisoner of war require that the veteran have been held captive 
for at least 30 days, except for mental or emotional disorders (not dementias), residuals of frostbite. post­
traumatic arthritis. hypertensive cardiovascular disease and atherosclerotic cardiovascular disease and their 
complications. including stroke, congestive heart failure, etc., which have no minimum length of captivity 
requirement. [38 CFR § 3.309(c)] Other presumptions require affirmative evidence that the veteran met (or 
meets) specific requirements such as to exposure, service at specified locales during specified times. etc . 

• 

When service connection has been established for a condition under any provision of applicable law. 
including the provisions described above. such service connection may not be removed (severed) unless 
evidence clearly shows that the establishment of service connection was clearly and unmistakably erroneous. 
and that the continuation of service connection cannot be maintained or supponed under any reasonable 

• 

theory (the burden of proof being on the government). [38 CFR § 3.105(d)] When service connection for any 
condition has been in effect for ten years, it becomes protected and may not be severed for any reason 
whatsoever, except upon a showing that it was based on fraud, or a showing that the veteran did not have the 
requisite service or character of discharge. [38 CFR § 3.957] 

2. Compensation: 

Disability compensation is the monthly monetary benefit payable for service connected disabilities. 
Compensation rates are not income-based, but are determined by the level of impairment in accordance with 
the Schedule for Rating Disabilities (38 CFR. Part 4). There are eleven possible levels of disability assignable 
for any condition, from 0% to 100%, in 10% increments. Each listed degree of severity is based on the 
average impairment of earning capacity for a person with that condition at that level of symptomatology. The 
veteran's age is not considered in this determination. When a disability has been evaluated at or above any 
given level for twenty years or more, the evaluation is protected and may not be reduced below that level for 
any reason other than a showing that it was based upon fraud. [38 CFR § 3.951] 
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If there is more than one service connected condition. the percentages are not added together to determine the 
overall degree of disability. Rather, they are combined in accordance with the combined ratings table set out 
in 3~ CFR 4.25. 

If the combined evaluation is 30% or greater. additional rates of compensation may he pavable for the 
veteran· s dependents. If the veteran· s spouse is disabled and in need of aid and attendance. additional amounts 
above the regular rates mav he payable. Additional amounts may also be payable for the veteran· s child or 
children up to age IS. or beyond age IS if the child is attending an approved school (up to age 23). or if the 
child became disabled and permanently incapable of self-support (helpless I before age 18. Additional 
amounts may also be payable if the veteran· s parents are dependent on the veteran for support. 

If' u veteran has multiple compensable ( 10% or more) service connected conditions involving both arms or 
legs. or paired skeletal muscles. the combined e\'aluation for only those conditions is first found, before 
considering any other condition(s): IO'Tr is then added (not combined) to that combined evaluation. and any 
other remaining ser\'ice connected conditions are then combined with that total in the usual manner. This is 
the "bilateral factor," The bilateral factor is not for application if the \'eteran is otherwise ratable at I 00%: 
however, it may be used to reach an overall combined l 00% rating. Also. if a \'eteran has multiple service 
connected conditions with one single condition rated I 00% plus other. separate. compensable conditions 
in\'ol"ing paired extremities or paired skeletal muscles, the bilateral factor may be used w reach an 
independent combined rating of 60'Tr for entitlement to special monthly compensation I sec below). 

A If a "etcran has two or more ser\'ice-connected conditions which are each indi\'iduallv rated as non-disablin~ 
W (()% I hut which together clearly interfere with normal cmplovability. compensation may be authorized at the 

I O'Tr rate. but not in combination with any other rating. [38 CFR § 3.324] 

• 

If ser"ice connection is established by aggravation. the degree of severity of the condition at the time the 
veteran entered service must he detem1ined. if possible. That evaluation is then deducted from the current 
evaluation, and the resulting difference is the degree of aggravation. If the pre-service degree of severity 
cannot be determined. no deduction is made. Also. if the condition is currently evaluated as I 00% disabling 
1w deduction is made. [38 CFR ~~ 3.322, 4.22] 

If a \'eteran is hospitalized for more than twentv-one days for observation or treatment of a service-connected 
condition. a temporary I CJD% rating may be assigned for that condition without regard to other provisions of 
the Schedulcfor Rating Disahilities. from the date of hospital admission to the last day of the month of 
hospital discharge. Under certain circumstances. a period of post-hospital convalescence of one. two. or three 
months may also be assigned. [ 38 CFR § 4.29] 

If a veteran undergoes surgical treatment for a service-connected condition. whether as an inpatient or as an 
outpatient, or has therapeutic immobilization by cast of one or more joints for a service-connected condition 
and such treatment or immnhilization requires a period of convalescence of one month or more. a temporary 
100'½ rating may he assigned for that condition without regard to other provisions of the Schedule.for Rating 
Disabilities. heginning the date of hospital admission or the date the outpatient treatment commenced and 
extending for a period of convalescence of one. two. or three months, as appropriate. In certain instances, the 
period of convalescence may be extended. up to a maximum length of twelve months. [38 CFR ~ 4.30] 
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Additional amounts of special monthly compensation are payable for the anatomical loss or the loss of use of 
one or both hands. feet. eyes. or other specified parts. (See special monthly compensation chart in Module 21 
for detailed explanation) Special monthly compensation is also payable if the veteran has one single service 
connected condition rated 100% disabling plus other, separate. service connected condition(s) independently 
ratable at 60% or more in combination, or if the veteran is permanently housebound or in need of regular aid 
and attendance. 

Veterans whose combined evaluations are less than 100% may still be rated totally disabled and paid at the 
100% rate, if they are unable to follow substantially gainful employment (individual unemployability) 
because of their service connected disabilities. Marginal employment. defined as earned annual income less 
than the poverty threshold for one person. is not "substantially gainful employment," and does not preclude a 
finding of individual unemployability. 

The various rates of compensation and special monthly compensation are set out in Adjudication Manual 
M21-1, Appendix B. 

Usually, only service connected disabilities are considered in determining the levels of disability 
compensation. There are two exceptions: If a veteran has loss or loss of use of paired extremities (anns. legs) 
or paired organs (eyes. ears, kidneys. lungs). and one extremity or organ is service connected but the other 
extremity or organ is not service connected (and not the result of willful misconduct), disability compensation 
is paid as though both were service connected. Since these disabilities are at least in part service connected . 

• 

he veteran is entitled to all ancillary benefits flowing there from. However. if the veteran receives any 
ayment from a judicial award, settlement, or compromise based on the loss or loss of use of the paired (non­

service connected) extremity or organ, the additional portion of compensation based on that loss must be 
withheld to recover the amount of the award, settlement, or compromise. This does not apply to Social 
Security or Workman· s Compensation benefits. even if they were awarded by judicial proceedings. 

The second exception is disability compensation under 38 USC Section 1151. If a non-service connected 
disabling condition is caused by, or aggravated by, VA examination, hospitalization. medical or surgical 
treatment. or Vocational Rehabilitation, compensation is payable for that condition as though the condition 
was service connected. Remember, however, that even though compensation is being paid, the condition is in 
fact not service connected and should not be called such. Except for certain ancillary benefits which 
specifically require that the qualifying disability have been incurred in or aggravated by military service, 
disability benefits under these provisions are essentially indistinguishable from service-connected benefits. 
Compensation for disabilities under Section 1151 may be combined with compensation for any service 
connected conditions the veteran may also have . 
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If the veteran is awarded any amount from a judicial judgment. settlement. or compromise for the same 
condition! s) for which compensation under Section 1 I 51 has been ( or will be) authorized. the compensation 
payable for such condition(s) must be withheld until the full amount of the _judgment. settlement. or 
compromise has been recovered. 

In general. Federal law prohibits dual compensation (payment from two or more Federal sources) hased 
upon the same service and/or the same disability. For example. a veteran who is employed by the Federal 
government as a civilian and who is also receiving military retired pay must waive the retired pay to have that 
military service included in Civil Service computations of longevity and seniority. Similarly. a veteran 
receiving military retired pay. whether for length of service or for disability, must waive an amount of retired 
pay equal to the rate of \I A disability compensation pavable (the "compensation offset") in order to he paid 
the VA compensation. If the VA compensation rate is greater than the veteran· s retired pay. then the retired 
pay must he waived in its entirety for the full amount of compensation to be paid. Similar provisions apply 
when the veteran has been paid readjustment pay. severance pay, separation pay. etc.-generally. the full 
amoum of such pay (or a specified percentage of it in cenain cases) must be recovered from the VA 
compensation before compensation may be paid to the veteran. [38 USC 5304(aJ. 5305: 38 CFR ~~ 3.750-
3.7541 There are two exceptions to these rules: 

First. a veteran who (II hacl twenty years or more of qualifying active military. Reserve. or National Guard 
scr\'ice creditable for longevity retirement. and Cl is rated by VA as being service-connected for any 
disability or disabilities and 50'/i- or more disabled overall. may receive Concurrent Retirement and 
Disahilit)' Pa)' iCRDPJ. Essentially. the veteran·s regular retired pay is fully restored. with the VA 
compensation simply added to it. For ccnain veterans the full amount of the benefit is being phased in over a 
multi-year period. depending on their VA rating. Although the VA compensation is not taxable. CRDP is 
taxable income. the same as regular retired pay. CROP is also subject to the same collection actions as regular 
retired pay (e.g .. alimony. child suppon. community propeny. etc.). The Defense Finance and Accounting 
Service (DFAS I is solely responsible for implementing this program. For veterans who qualify. the imple­
mentation is automatic: no action or application on the veteran· span is required. 
I See also http://www. mili tarv.com/Resources/ResourcesContent/0. 13964.383 78.00 .html.) 

The second exception is that a veteran who (l) had twenty years or more of qualifying active military or 
Reserve service creditable for longevity retirement. and (21 is rated by VA as having one or more 
compensable ( I 0% or more) service-connected disabilities related to combat. may receive Combat-Related 
Special Compensation (CRSC; based on such combat-related disabilities (only). The amount of CRSC 
payable is the amount of VA compensation offset from the veteran's retired pay. based on (only) those 
clisabilnies which are determined to he combat-related. 
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The individual service departments have exclusive jurisdiction and responsibility for determining whether any 
given disability is combat-related. Disabilities which are related to herbicide exposure, radiation exposure, 
poison gas exposure, or Gulf War illnesses will be presumed to be combat-related. PTSD will require 
documentation of combat origin. Like VA compensation, CRSC is not taxable. If otherwise appropriate, 
CRSC payments may be made effective retroactively to June 1, 2003. Beginning January 1, 2008, an eligible 
military retiree who retired with fewer than twenty years of creditable service but who has service-connected 
disabilities related to combat will also be eligible for payment of CRSC, but at reduced rates. 
(See also http://www.defenselink.mil/prhome/clocs/crsc nov06.pdf and 
http://www.defenselink.mil/prhome/docs/CRSC Guidance l 04.pdf.) 

A specific application is required for CRSC: DD Form 2860, Application for Combat-Related Special 
Compensarion (CRSC), which is available online and may be downloaded from 
http://www.defenselink.mil/prhome/mppcrsc.htmL or which may be requested from the appropriate Personnel 
Center for the veteran's branch of service. Necessary documentation to accompany the application may 
include (but is not limited to) a copy of the veteran's DD-214s, 
copies of VA rating decisions. copies of relevant pages from either or both service medical records and/or VA 
medical records, and copies of award citations or orders for Purple Heart(s) and other combat decorations. 

For those veterans who would quaJify under both CDRP and CRSC. until December 2005 they were paid 
under whichever program resulted in a higher dollar payment amount. Beginning December 2005. an annual 
open season has been established for eligible veternns to elect which program they wish to receive payments 

- under during the coming year. 

3S CFR Section 4.16 Total disability ratings for compensation based on unemployability of the 
individual. 

(a) Total disability ratings for compensation may be assigned. where the schedular rating is less than 
total. when the disabled person is, in the judgment of the rating agency, unable to secure or follow 
a substantially gainful occupation as a result of service connected disabilities: Provided that, if 
there is only one such disability, this disability shall be ratable at 60 percent or more, and that, if 
there are two or more disabilities. there shall be at least one disability ratable at 40 percent or 
more, and sufficient additional disabilities to bring the combined rating to 70 percent or more. For 
the above purpose of one 60 percent disability or one 40 percent disability in combination. the 
following will be considered as one disability: 

(I) Disabilities of one or both upper extremities, or of one or both lower 
extremities, including the bilateral factor, if applicable, 

(2) Disabilities resulting from common etiology or a single accident, 

(3) Disabilities affecting a single body system, e.g. orthopedic. digestive, 
respiratory, cardiovascular-renal, neuropsychiatric, 

(4) Multiple injuries incurred in action. or 

(5) Multiple disabilities incurred as a prisoner of war 
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11 1s provided further that the existence or degree of nonservice connected disabilities or previous 
unemployability status will be disre,t:arded where the percentages referred to in this paragraph for the service 
connected disability or disabilities are met and in the judgment of the rating agency such service connected 
disabilities render the veteran unemployable. Marginal employment shall not be considered substantially 
gainful employment. For purposes of this section, marginal employment generally shall be deemed to exis1 
when a veteran's earned annual income docs no! exceed the amount established by the U.S. Department of 
Commerce or Bureau of the Census as the poverty threshold for one person. Marginal employment may also 
be held to exist. on a facts found basis (includes but is nm limited to employment in a protected environment 
such as a family business or sheltered workshop). when earned annual income exceeds the poverty threshold. 
Consideration shall be given in all claims to the nature of the employment and the reason for termination. 
IAurhoriry: 38 U.S.C. 501(a)J 

(bi Ii is the established policy of the Department of Veterans Affairs that all veterans who are 
unable 10 secure and follow a substantially gainful occupation by reason of service connected 
disabilities shall be rated totallv disabled. Therefore. rating boards should submit to the 
Director. Compensation and Pension Service, for extra-schedular consideration all cases of 
veterans who are unemployable by reason of service connected disabilities. but who fail to 

meet the percentage standards set forth in paragraph (a) of this section. The rating board will 
include a full statement as to the veteran· s service connected disabilities, employment history . 
educational and vocational attainment and a!! other factors ha\'ing a bearing on the issue. 

4.29 Ratings for serYice connected disabilities requiring hospital treatment or ohsen-ation. 

A toial disability rating ( I 00 percent, will be assigned without regard to other provisions of !he rating 
schedule when it is established that a service connected disability has required hospital treatment in a 
Department of Veterans Affairs or an apprnved hospital for a period in excess of 21 days or hospital 
observation at Department of Veterans Affairs expense for a service connected disability for 3 period in 
excess of 21 rJays. 

la) Subjecr to the provisions of paragraphs (di. le). and (fJ of this section. this increased rating will 
be effective the first day of continuous hospitalization and will be terminated effective the las! 
day of the month of hospital discharge (regular discharge or release to non-bed careJ or 
effective the last day of the month of termination of treatment or observation for the service 
connected disability. A temporary release. which is approved hv an attending Department of 
Veterans Affairs physician as pan of the 1reatmentplan. will not be considered an absence. 

(Ji An authorized absence in excess of four days. which begins during the first 21 days 
or hospitalization. will be regarded as the equivalent of hospital discharge effective 
the first day of such authorized absence. 
An authorized absence of four clays or less which results in a total of 
more than eight days of authorized absence during the first 21 days of 
hospitalization will be regarded as the equivalenl of hospital discharge 
effective the ninth day of authorized absence. 
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(2) Following a period of hospitalization in excess of 21 days, an authorized absence in 
excess of 14 days or a third consecutive authorized absence of 14 days will be 
regarded as the equivalent of hospital discharge and will interrupt hospitalization 
effective on the last day of the month in which either the authorized absence in 
excess of 14 days or the third 14 day period begins, except where there is a 
finding that convalescence is required as provided by paragraph (e) or (f) of this 
section. The termination of these total ratings will not be subject to 3.105(e) of this 
chapter. 

(b) Notwithstanding that hospital admission was for disability not connected with 
service, if during such hospitalization, hospital treatment for a service connected 
disability is instituted and continued for a period in excess of 21 days, the increase to 
a total rating will be granted from the first day of such treatment. If service 
connection for the disability under treatment is granted after hospital admission. the 
rating will be from the first day of hospitalization if otherwise in order. 

(c) The assignment of a total disability rating on the basis of hospital treatment or 
observation will not preclude the assignment of a total disability rating otherwise in order under 
other provisions of the rating schedule, and consideration will be given to the propriety of such a 
rating in all instances and to the propriety of its continuance after discharge. Particular attention, 
with a view to proper rating under the rating schedule. is to be given to the claims of veterans 
discharged from hospital, regardless of length of hospitalization, with indications on the final 
summary of expected confinement to bed or house. or to inability to work with requirement of 
frequent care of physician or nurse at home. 

(d) On these total ratings Department of Veterans Affairs regulations governing effective 
dates for increased benefits will control. 

(e) The total hospital rating if convalescence is required may be continued for periods of 
one, two or three months in addition to the period provided in paragraph (a) of this section. 

(f) Extension of periods of one, two or three months beyond the initial three months may 
be made upon approval of the Adjudication Officer. 

(g) Meritorious claims of veterans who are discharged from the hospital with less than the 
required number of days but need post-hospital care and a prolonged period of 
convalescence will be referred to the Director, Compensation and Pension Service. 
under 3.321 (b )(I) of this chapter. 
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4.30 Convalescent ratings. 

A total disability rating ( 100 percent) will he assigned without regard to other provisions of the rating 
schedule when it is established by report at hospital discharge (regulrn· discharge or release to non-bed care) or 
outpatient release that entitlement is warranted under paragraph (al( I). (2). or (3) of this section effective the 
date of hospital admission or outpatient treatment and continuing for a period of one. two or three months 
from the first day of the month following such hospital discharge or outpatient release. The termination of 
these total ratings will not he subject to .1.105icl of this chapter. Such total rating will he followed hy 
appropriate scheduler evaluations. When the evidence is inadequate to assign a scheduler evaluation. a 
physical examination will be scheduled and considered prior to the termination of a total rating under this 
seer ion. 

( aJ Total ratings will he ussigncd under this section if treatment of a service connected 
disability resulted in: 

(1 J Surgery necessitating a1 least one month of con\'alescencc (effective as to outpatient 
surgery March I, I 989. ! 

(2 ! Surgcrv with severe post.operative residuals such as incompletely healed surgical wounds. 
stumps of recent amputations. therapeutic immobilization of one major joim or more. 
application of a body cast. or the necessity for house confinement. or the necessity for 
continued use of a wheelchair or crutches (regular weight-bearing prohibited). (Effective as 
to outpatient surgery March 1. 1989 .) 

(;; l Immobilization by cast. without surgery. of one major joint or more. (Effective as to 

outpatient treatment March 10. 1976.) 

A reduction in the total rating will not be subject to 3.1051e) of this chapter. The total rating 
will be followed by an open rating reflecting the appropriate schedular evaluation: where the evidence is 
inadequate to assign the schedular evaluation. a physical examination will he 
scheduled prior to the end of the total rating period. 

(bl A total rating under this section will require full justification on the rating sheet and may he 
extended as follows: 

( I J Extensions of one. two or three months beyond the initial three months may be m:..ide under 
paragraph la)(l J. (2). or (31 of this section. 
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(2) Extensions of one or more months up to six months beyond the initial six month period 

may be made under paragraph (a)(2) or (3) of this section upon approval of the 
Adjudication Officer. 

M21-1, PART IV 
SECTIONS 20.39-20.39.1 
20.39 SEVERANCE PAY (10 USC 3786) NOT SUBJECT TO RECOUPMENT 

Severance pay awarded under 10 USC 3786 (Pub. L. 86-155) is a lump-sum payment to members of the 
regular establishment who are separated usually due to their failure to qualify for promotion. There is no 
provision in the law requiring refund of severance pay awarded under this section. This provision of Title I 0 
was repealed by Public Law 96-5 I 3, effective September 15, I 981. Any individual separated after that date 
who would have been entitled to severance pay under l O USC 3786 will receive separation pay. subject to 
recoupment. under 10 USC 1174. See paragraph 20.31a(3). 

DISCHARGE REl'IEW 

There are several means by which injured military personnel may obtain compensation. including disability 
discharge and retirement programs administered by the service branches and compensation programs 
administered by the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs. But since injured personnel (or their families in 
some instances) will be compelled at a time of great anxiety in their lives to make decisions on matters that 
have significant long-term consequences. 

Ail is very important for injured personnel to understand that waiving certain rights in order to obtain some 
.immediate benefit, such as release from active duty. may not serve their best interests in the long run. There 

is no need for disabled reservists or National Guard members to rush back to their civilian jobs, which may 
pay more, since their position is protected by the Veterans Reemployment Rights Act. If necessary, they can 
keep their options open by requesting excess leave without pay. 

Note: For the sake of editorial consistency, the word "service member" and the masculine pronouns 
"he" and "his" have been used thronghout this article: it should be understood that these words are 
meant to refer to both servicemen and servicewomen. 

Disability Discharge Process 

The military disability discharge process is very complicated, and problems that already exist with this 
process will surely be exacerbated when the service departments have to deal with large numbers of combat­
related disabilities. However. the options available to injured and disabled military personuel are clearly set 
in place. Provided that their injuries are not the result of their own intentional misconduct or willful neglect 
(for which disabled service members are promptly discharged without benefits of any kind), military 
personnel who are disabled while on active duty can be: 

• 
(A) treated and returned to duty, if and when they are fit for duty: 

(B) discharged as medically unfit, with disability severance pay. if the degree of disability is less 
than 30 percent, according to the VA rating schedule (38 C.F.R. Part 4, also used by the service 

departments): 
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iC1 placed on the Temporary Disability Retired List (TDRL) with a temporary rating, w be evaluated 
later for pennanency: or 

(Di medically retired (disabilitv retirement'! with a percentage rating, giving them many of the same 
benefits awarded 10 regular military retirees lmost desirable if the individual has been seriously 
and permanently inJuredl. 

Each o(rhcsc oprinns is disc11ssed in derail. bcloH': 

Return to Active D11(1· 

If the service member is in_iured but recovers sufficientlv to return to active duty, he should be sure that he or 
his family obtains complete copies of the medical records of his injury and how it was treated. Though the 
injury will be noted in his service record, man,· of the details of his injury may not appear there. If he should 
experience anv delaved effects of the injury after later release from service, the records he obtains from the 
hospital or the doctor who treated him will be valuable evidence when he applies for VA disability benefits. 
Without such records in his file, the service member may even find it difficult to document his in_iury for the 
VA. 

Gcnt!rally. i1 i:-, helpful in every case of injury for the service member to obtain copies of these records . 

lJischargc with Disabiliry Sel'crcmcc Pay 

A service member who has less than 20 years of service and a disability evaluation of less than 30 percent 
mav be discharged as not fit for dutv with severance pay, which is paid at separation in a lump sum, based on 
the basic pay of the service member's current active dut)' grade. If the service member's disability was 
caused hy armed conflict or extra-hazardous service. his severance pay does not count as taxable income. 
Although the service member may be eligible for VA compensation benefits for the same disability for which 
he received his severance pa,·, the VA will not be able to pay any compensation benefits for this disabilin· 
umi I the total amount of the compensation benefits, which would have been paid, is equal to the amount of the 
severance puy. An exception to total recoupmem of VA compensation is the veteran receives an increase in 
compensation for same disability at a later date, the VA will only recoup at the original rating, 

For example: A veteran has an original rating of 10% and later receives an increase to 209G. the VA will only 
recoup at the 10% rate and the veteran will receive compensation for the difference. Also, if the veteran is 
rated totally disabled (100%) for same condition, the VA will stop all recoupmem. 

Separation with severance pay is tempting to many service members because it gives them an opportunity to 

leave the service immediately, even if they suspect that their in_juries are more than 30 percent disabling. 
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However. severance pay is a one time, lump-sum payment. Disability retirement provides monthly benefits 
and may yield higher benefits in the long run. In addition, a higher disability percentage at discharge may 
improve the service member's chances of obtaining higher VA service connected compensation. Thus, it may 
be wise for the service member to challenge his disability rating if he thinks it is too low. even though this 
will mean staying in the military for a longer period of time. 

Medical Retirement 

A service member who is medically retired (disability retirement) with a disability rating of 30 percent or 
more will be paid between 30 and 75 percent of his basic pay for the rest of his life. Since he is viewed as a 
retired service member, he is also entitled to all of the retirement benefits. such as PX privileges and health 
care, to which other retired military personnel are entitled, plus an income tax exclusion. 

Disability retirement pay is calculated in one of two ways. based on the service member's basic pay and either 
length of service or percentage of disability. 
He can choose the method of computation that will give him the highest benefits. In such cases, though the 
VA is not required to accept the disability evaluation of the service department. the VA does review these 
decisions after the service member has been retired and accords them some weight. 

Personnel are permanently retired on disability if their disabilities are permanent, but when it is not clear 
whether the disability is permanent, they are placed on the Temporary Disability Retired List (TDRL), with 

•

ay based on the degree of disability. and re-evaluated every 18 months. Final decisions arc made in such 
ases after five years. As noted above. permanent disability retirement is usually most desirable if the service 

member has suffered a serious injury. 

PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION DURING CONFINEMENT IN PENAL INSTITUTIONS (38 use 
5313 and 38 CFR 3.665) 

(A) Compensation may not be paid in excess of certain amounts for any person incarcerated in a 
federal, state or local penal institution for conviction of a felony for any period beginning on the 
61 st day of incarceration. The person's dependents may have the right to an apportionment while 
the beneficiary is incarcerated. 

(B) This restriction in payments applies to persons incarcerated due to conviction of a felony 
committed after October 7, 1980, or, regardless of when the felony was committed, if the person 
was incarcerated on October 1, 1980, and if an award of compensation is approved after 
September 30, 1980. 

(C) Veterans rated 20 percent or more disabled in receipt of compensation are limited to the rate of I 0 
percent disability. Veterans rated less than 20 percent, 10 percent or special monthly compensation 
(k) or (q). are limited to one-half of the 10 percent rate. 
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• TRAINING :MODULE 4 
Study Plan 

(DI All or pan of the compensation not paid to an incarcerated veteran may be apportioned to the 
veteran's spouse. child or children and dependent parents on the basis of individual need. In 
determining individual need consideration shall be given to such factors as the apportionee 
claimant's income and living expenses. the amount of compensation available w be apportioned. 
the needs and living expenses of other apportionee claimants as well as any special needs. if any. 
of all apportionee claimants. 

(Ei Any apportionments will be discontinued and full benefits restored to the beneficiary upon release 
from incarceration or upon participation in a work release or halfway house program. 

APPLICATION PROCESS FOR COMPENSATION 

(Al An original claim can be made formally by completing and submitting to any VA 
office the VA Form 21-526. Veterans Application for Compensation or Pension. or 
informally by communicating to the VA a definite intem to apply. (Sec Module 19. 
Special Benefits for details on infornial claims.> 

(BJ Once a VA Forni 21-526 has been completed and submitted. it is generally not necessary to 
resubmit this fom1 to obtain further claims action. Any time after submission of a formal claim. 
the veteran can request reconsideration based on the existence of new and material C\'idence. 
Medical evidence should be submitted to indicate a change in the severitv of a service connected 
disabi!it,·. Other pertinent evidence might take the iorni of statements (\I A Forni 21-4138. 
Statement in Support of Claim). additional history of medical treatment. or record of ability to 
perfon11 on the job. A request can also be made for consideration for ser\'ice- connection of 

disabilities not previously claimed: 

(CJ In requesting consideration of a total disability rating based on unemployability. VA 
Form 21-8940. Veterans Application for Increased Compensation Based on 
Unemployability. may be used. 

!CJ Jf a claim for disability compensation is made within one year after release from active duty. 
the effective date of the award will he the elate following such release. 
Claim~ made afler one year from the date of release from active service are generally 
effective from the first day of the month following the date of receipt of the claim hy \I A. 

(Fi Compensation ma, also he paid when injury. either directly or hy aggravation. 
results from submitting 10 an examination. medical or surgical treatment. hospitalization. 
or the pursuit of a course of vocational rehabilitation (38 USC Ch 31) under any law 
administered hy \I A. (115 I claim_!. 

CLOTHING ALLOWANCE 

Veterans who. because of a service connected disability, wear prosthetic devices which may wear out their 
- clothing or who use wheelchairs are eligible for a clothing allowance. (PL 101-2371. 
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Study Questions: Service Connection Disability Compensation 

Using the assigned references and reading materials. answer the following questions: 

1. Define the term Service Connected Disability: 

Define the term compensation: 

3. List the different ways to establish service connection for a disability: 

4. 

•-). 

a. 
b. 
C. 

d. 

What is the minimum combined evaluation for which additional compensation for dependents may be 
paid? ____ % 

All veterans who served in Vietnam during the Vietnam Era are considered to have been exposed to 
herbicides. 

a. True 
b. False 

6. A veteran is rated 30% for a heart condition, 20% for a knee condition, and 10% for hearing 
loss. His combined evaluation is: ___ % 

7. Define the term Individual Unemployability: 

8. Compensation rates are income based. 

a. True 
b. False 

9. Disability Severance Pay is a lump sum payment made to a service member who has less than 20 years of 
service and has a disability evaluation of less than 30 percent and is discharged from service as not fit for 
duty. 

a. True 
b. False 
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l 0. ls Disability Severance Pay subject to recoupment•_i lf so, explain how and what agency recoups the 
money 

11. 38 CFR 4.30. Convalescem ratings. stipulates that a total disability rating (100 percent) will be assigned if 
treatment of a service connected disability resulted in: 

a.-------------------------------

b. -------------------------------

C. -------------------------------

- 12. A veteran in receipt of compensation rated at 50% who has a spouse and two children under 18. will 
receive whm monetary benefi(1 mo other factors involved) ___ _ 

• 

13. Explain what is required to rwpen a previously denied service connected claim. Tell what VA Form(s) 
is required and what supponing documentation. 

I 4. At what poim is a service connected disability rating protected'.' ________ _ 

15. \\Ihm docs a guardsman/reservist have lO sho\11 for requesting a service connected issue? 
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ORIGINAL CLAIM 

VA Form 21-22-Appointment of Veterans Service Organization as Claimant's Representative 
VA Form 21-526 - Application for Veterans Compensation/Pension 
Certified DD 214 
Social Security numbers of all dependents 
Current medical evidence to provide nexus/link (if claim filed within one year of discharge. medical evidence 
not necessary) 
Optional documents to submit: 
Marriage Certificate 
Divorce decrees from all previous marriages for both veteran and spouse 
If applicable, death certificate of previous marriages for both veteran and spouse 
Birth certificates for all minor children and children over 18 in school 
If an unmarried child(ren) over 18 still in school, submit VA Form 21-674 for each child over 18 

REOPEN PREVIOUSLY DENIED S/C CLAIM 
VA Form 21-4138 - Statement in Support of Claim 
New and Material Evidence 
Current medical evidence (nexus/link) 
If dependency not current or previously established, submit: 
VA Form 21-686c - Declaration of Martial Status 

• Socio! Sow1i1y o,mboo of all dopoad:AIM FOR INCREASED S,C 

VA Form 21-4138 
Current medical evidence indicating sic condition has worsened 
If dependency not current or previously established. submit: 
VA Form 2 l -686c 
Social Security Numbers of all dependents 

CLAIM FOR INDIVIDUAL UNEMPLOYABILITY 
VA Form 21-8940-Application for Individual Unemployability 
VA Form 21-4192 - Employer's Statement 
VA Form 21-4138 
Current Medical Evidence if not already on file 
If dependency not current or previously established, submit: 
VA Form 21 -686c 
Social Security Numbers of all dependents 
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TRAINING l\10DULE 4 
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0:-1H Ctmtrni N(,. 2'100-03:21 
kcsp,,rnlt'n\ }<unkrr S mmu\t"~ 

APPOINTMENT OF VETERANS SERVICE ORGANIZATION 
AS CLAIMANT'S REPRESENTATIVE 

;\,'nit' - I! you would prefer to hon't' an indi\'iduat assi.~t ~·ou with your claim. you may ust· VA Form:? 1-Z:?a, " Appointment of 
Individual A.~ Claim:rnt'~ Reprei,cntativc." 

LASO-F1RST-MIDO:...:C NAM:C o==- VETERAN 

BUR.NS. Kenne1l1 K. 
::' VI.. FILE NUMBER 1/n,111,i,·f'rcfi_,, 

()()(/.(J(1.{){)(J3 . 

Jt- N,'1,ME 0" .3C:RVICE ORGAl~IZATIOtl RECOGNIZED B\' THE DEPARTMEtH Q;:- VETERANS AFFAIRS (Se,• /1~1 "" ,a~c,;,,· <i.!e "''."'re uie,·,111c c.,1,,,,11w11n,i1 

i\.'.ATIONAL AS~OCl/,TIOJ\! OF COU:--.'.TY VETERANS SERVICE OFFICERS 

36 J88 TITU: or D"FICIAL REPRESENTATIVE AUTHORIZED TO '-CT cm VETERAN'S BEHALF 

COUJ\'TY \'ETERANS SERVICE OFFICER 

4 SOClk~ SE'.:URITY NUMBER 
()l)(l-(J(,_(1(/()J 

61, SERVICt:. l~UMBERCS1 
(l()IJ-0(!-(l(JU3 

7 NAMC: ::_")" Cc.AIMAN~ 11; ,,11,r: 11in11 , . ..,,,,,,,,. 

SELi' 

INSTRUCTIONS - TYPE OR PRINT ALL ENTRIES 
I 5. INSURANC:C. NUMBER(SJ r/n,;h,d,· ,rm" p1cn" 

I "'A 
66, BRANCH OF SERVICE 

US'.~C 

L. RELl•.TIOtJSHIP /// mne' ,;,.,,, ,w~rm,J 

1(• :LAIMAl.'T'S TELEDriDNC: NUMBER r/11rn,d,· .4,,.,, C'n<fr; 

2(II IJ(I l'.ELl~EY R/\I\K'H RD. 
SO/\lETO\\'f\. C:'\ fJ'.'(IO(i 

;.. DAYTlt,E 

(209) 55'.'-12].::'. 
1; D/..TE 0:" THIS ;.,PPC,INTME~JT 

E 1::VENING-

[20~) J 55)-1212 

12. AUTHORIZATION FOR REPRESENTATIVE'S ACCESS TO RECORDS PROTECTED BY SECTION 7332, TITLE 38, U.S.C. 
lJnkss I chc::k the no,- beio\l,.. l do not uuthorize \'."i to disclose w the service org::m1zanon named on this app01ntrnent fr1rm 
.!11~· reL·ord~ tha: may bt· 111 rn:- file relating to trennncn: for drui; abuse. alcoholism o: alcohol abuse. infec11011 \':1th !hl' human 
1m:nunoacf1c1cncy ·•1rus (H!\'). or sickle ::eli anemi~. 

C1 l uuthonzc the \',\ facil11:.· havm!; custod\' of my VA cia1man1 records tn disclose w the service organization named in hc:rn ;IA ;ill trcatmcnl 
n:corJ:-; rel:uim: to dru~ ahusc. alcoholtsm o, alcohol ahusc. rnfectllHl with the human 1111munodcllc1encY virus (HJVJ. or sickle cell an:=mia. 
l~cd1sdos11rc o~- these: r~cords h~ my service urf!cln:;,;ation rcprcscnianvc. other than 10 \' A or Inc Coun o!~ Appeals f01 Vc1crans Claims. 1s no: 
auti1oriZc(l wi1l1\111t 1m· riJrliler writ1e11 consent. Thi., authnrizat1on 1vill remain in df'ect unti I the eailier of the follmving even!~.: ( l i I 1cvokc 
1hi~ ,m1honzuno11 hy filint 2 wriucn 1evoca1io11 with \' A.. or (2"J I revoke the appnintme11t of the service Of£<rni;-:aiinn namc:rl ahcwe. either h:, 
exrlic11 1·cvocatio11 or th,;: appoimme111 of another repn~sentative 

, w Llfv1I1ATION O:C:- CONSENT - !,1y con.~cnt in hem 1 :! ru~ the d1~c:lu~w,· of recn1,fa relating Ill ucatmrni fur tiru~ abu;,~, ~kuiwl1sm Qr alrnhul 
;,bus~. mlect,011 "itl, tl1t· hum:u, 1111munmidic1en,;;• v1r11s (Ill\'). n: s,ckk cell Jncmi:, is li11111crl ns rnl\r,ws 

I. th~· c!..i1111unt nurncJ in Items 1 o:· 7, hcrchy uppo1n1 the ser\'1cc or_!!ani:z:nion named in item 3A as my rcpresenlativc IO prepare. 
prescn1 :md pnisccute my claim for un:,· and all benefits from the Dcpanmcm of Vcrcruns /\ f1:J1rs bnse-d cm the service of the veteran 
11.irneJ rn !rem l I authorize tht· Department of \'e1ern11s Affoirs to rc!r:ase any and all of my rccorck ro include disclosun: of my 
i·ccicral ta:. information io:her 1han a!s pro\'lded m I rem~ I:': :rnd 13), tr, tha1 sen·1ce mgan1zat10n appomrt!d as m:,· representative. lt 1s 
unders1e,c,d th::it 1w fet: 01· compensannn of whmsoe\'Cr n::itun: will ht- charged me for service rendered purs11:mt w th is rnwcr of 
allornt:"y. I untkr~t:md that th-: scrv1.:c oq;am,:at1011 I have appomteU .ls 1T1_1' rcprcscn1,n1vc m:.iy n:vokc thi:- p{)\ver of uttornt.\\' ut :.iny 
wm:, sub.1ec: tu .18 CF!·: 2U.60S. Adt/i1in11al(1. i11 those ctl.\'t'.'-' where c, vett?r1111's income is heing developed heum.1·1· t'.(t11: 11u:0111c 
1'('r(iic.11w11 necessiwreu' b.i· w1 illfenw/ Revenue ,\'en•icc ver{{icmin11 ma,ch rhe ass1g11111e111 r~(rl1c .;en•icc ()l·g1mi::u.rio11 as tit,' 1·etera11 '_, 
r,•r,rr.scmarrv1• 1s onz,· ,·alid.fhrfivc years,fru111 rhc dw,, this form 1x sigm:djiJr purposes n:s1nc1ed to thr 1·cn/iccaw11 11w1ch. Signed anci 
ucc~ptrd SLlhJcc: rr, the fore!,!oinf con<lHions 

THIS POWER OF ATTORNEY DOES NOT REQUIRE EXECUTION BEFORE A NOTARY PUBLIC 

:Ji 
ONLY 

VA FORM :!1·::!:!'1 SC:6H TO-­

Oc:.R FILE D E □u FILE 

OcH 3(1 D DEA FILE 

□ INSURANCE 
FILE 

D LG FILE 

DATE SENT ACKl~OWLEDGED 
1D,u~1 

1~ DATE SIGNED 

REVOKED (/1..:uwn m,.! ,/,ur) 

NOTE As long as th1s :irrmintment is in effect the nrgt1mzat1(rn named herein will be recognized as the sole agent 
your claim bcrori: tht rJep;trtment of \'etcrnns A /T;__i1r~ in co1111cct1c,n with ynur claim or any port10n 1hcrcof 

SUPERSEDES v;., FORM :::1.2:::. Jur~ 2003, 
WHICH WILL NOT BE USED 
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~ Department of 
Veterans Affairs 

OMLI Apr,roved No. :!400-{JUOI 
Rc:spondc:n1 Burden· I nour JO minutc:s 

(DO NOT WRITE IN THIS SPACE) 

VETERAN'S APPLICATION FOR COMPENSATION AND/OR PENSION, 
VA Form 2·1-526, Part A: General information 

Please read the attached "General Instructions" before you fill out this form. 

SECTION Tell us 

I what you 
are 
applying 
for 

Chee!: the box that 
says what you are 
applying for. Be sure to 
complete the other 
Parts you need 

SECTION Tell us 

II about 
you 

VVe need information 
about you to process 
your claim faster. 

Give us your current 
mailing address in 
the space provided. 
If it wiH change within 
the next three 
months, give us that 
new address in block 
29 "Remarks." Also 
in block 29, give us 
the date you think 
you will be at the 
new address. 

WCP used to be 0 
ca 
B 
C 

lied the U.S. 
ureau of Employees 
ompensation 

VA FORM 

JAN 2004 21-526 

t. \Vhat are you upplying for'! If you arc unsure please refer tcJ the "(icneral Instructions" page 2 
Section J: f'rcr,uring your application 

~ Compensation Fill oul Pan A of VA Form '.21-5:26 und Parts Band C 

□ Pension Fill out Pan A or VA Form 21-52& and Parts C and D 

□ CompcnsaLion and Pension Fill out Part A of VA Form 2!-526 and Parts B. C 
and D 

2n. HavL· vou ever filed .i claim with VA 2L. I filed u claim for 

[g) No (fl",l\'o, "skip hem :!band go 10 hem 3) D Cnmpensutiim D l'en:-;ion 
({('Te~," proi•idt,.file number below) 

D Yes (Gow 2b) D Other 

3. Whal is your nume? 
Judy Linn Doe 

First Middk Last Suffix (If upplicn 

4. What is ~·our Socia! Security numher? 5. \\'hat is your sex'! 

()0o~oo.0002 □ Male ~ Female 

6a. Did you serve under another name'.1 61J. Pkase list th~ other namc(s) you served unde1 

□ Yes (lf'Te!,, "go ro ltcnr 6b) 

(gJNll (!/"No, "go 10 /tr:m 7) 

7. \\-'hat is your address? 

l Murin!..'. Wu) 

Street address. Rurnl Kou1c. or P.CJ. Hux Apt. number 

MyH1wn CA 95000 USA 

City Stat{; ZIP Code Country 

8. What are your lelephone numbers? 9. What is you~ e•mail address? 

Daytime {209) 555-1212 NO/\.'E 

Evening (209) 555-1212 

lO. What is youi date of birth? 1 l. Where were .YOU born'! (City, State and Country) 

09/11/1945 ROCK, CA 

lla. Arc you receiving disability benefits 
from the Office of Workers' 

12b. When was the claim filed? 

Compensation (OH'CPJ? NIA 

□ Ye:; [RI No 12c. Whut disability are you receiving hcnefits for? 

( (f 'Tes," answer I 2b and /2c also} NIA 

13a. What is the name of your nearest 13b. What is his/her tclcphoni.: number? 
relative or other person we could Daytime (20Y) 555•1212 contact if nei.:essary? 

Carl E. Doe Evening {209) 555-1212 

13e. What is this person's address'! 13d. How is thi~; person related to you? 

I Marine Way 
Mytown, CA 95000 SPOUSE 

SUPERSEDES STOCKS OF VA FORM 21-526, APR 2003 
WHICH Will NOT BE USED 21-526. Part A page I 
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SECTI01' 
Ill 

Tell us 
about 
your 
active 
duty 

1 Enter complete 
information for all 
periods of serv1::e. 
If more space is 
needed use Item 29 
"Remarks." 

L. Attach vour 
onainai' D0214 or a 
certified copy to this 
form. (We will rerurn 
original documents tc 
you.) 

Th(' IA iuuoregist1)·of 
wi1er11ns whn seiTed 111 

11w (,u!.' Wnr ?ins orer: 
iu,.'.\ 11/so i•ee11 wfied 1//1• 
"l'ersw11 Gui,:"/: \'Oli 

se,-,.,_,d rfwr!'.· we· 11'.i// 
m:lu,ic \"(Ill~ IJ(ln/C Ill 1i1e 
re,:1,w:,. · !, 1-ou wmu 
\'/)II'' 111cd1,:ol 111/1,rmollrm 

m::iwicc.' l'OU 1/lU,\'I ci1ecl. 
")e.1''111 Ji;•m lrio For 
more 1111i:m1w11m1 oho111 
riw tct:1.Hn-, :,ec 1x11.:1·.: 
Of 1n/(ni1i('r(I/ · • 
in1·1ri,c1wn•; /(;t I >1 Funn 
:!/-5:!r,; 

SF:CTION Tell us 
TV about 

your 
reserve 
duty 

TRAINING MODULE 4 
Study Plan . 

14a. l entered uc1ivt: 

I 
14b. Place: 14c. My service num her was . 

scn·ice the fir_q tirm:. 

09/11/llJti() SACRAtvtENTCJ. CA 
111n .:w_\ 'C 000 (l(J 0002 

1-!d. l kit thi:, :JCliVt 14c. PL.1ce· 14f. Hran.::b of 14g. Cir<.1de, ranl:. 
sen·ice. St:n'ice or ~llllng 

09/12/1974 CAJv1 PEl\. CA 
/11(1 ria_l \'r USMC .!::A, 

14h. l enlered l4i. P!ace: l4j. \-ly s::r\"ir::e number wa5. 
m~· second reriud of 
active scrdce. 

r-.J/1\ 

/1/0 (}[/_\ I'" 

14k. 1 il:H !hie; UCl!Ve 141. Place: 14m. Brandi of 140. Cirade. nmk, 
S!!f"\'JC:':. ~ervice or rnting 

N/1,, 

mo UJ_\ ,._,. 

15u. Did you t:enT 111 V1;;:111am':' l5l.J. When wen: y()t1 in V1"1m1m'.' 
,:~om 

I 

"' ~ Yes r, }.;(1 01 /14/1 (J72 12/21/1973 '-.J 

({/''Tes,•· a11swc.~ /1c111 I Sh u1\o: 11/(/ da_i yr mo day _,,,. 

Iha Wen.: ym: stationed ir. tile Gulf after 16b. f)(I vm: want 10 have medic:il ;md othe:· 
Au~ust I. ] l)CJO'.' infol"mation abou! vou incluJed i11 the 

"CiulC\Vur Vetera~:,' 1-lt.!alth Registry?" 

~! Y\.!S !~ ~(I 
i =i Yes iXI Ne, 

({
1
""] cs." (/!1.\71'{'!" /1e11; 16h 11/s,,,1 i 

17:i.. Hr1v::- yoL e\'C been z. rrlsoncr 01 17b. \\'tlul counLr) o~ government imrrl~oni.;J 
,var·: you'.' 

n Ye~ IXI "No 

(J("J'e.1. "m:swc•· f1em:, i7b, 17,. and l 7d n/.,01 

17c. When wer,: you coniim:U'! 17d. Wirnt was the nami.; 01 the camp n, sector 
and whm are 1he names o!' the i".:i1v and 

Jimn ,0 i.:oumr:· nca~ itii location~• • 

I /11/) 001' 1·•· me dm· VI' 

18a. Are you currently assigned !Cl an 18b, \Vhut is the name. mui!im.! .iddr~si,. and 
active n::serv~· unit'! 1elcphone num her o/" yuui- current unit'.! 

[J Y:.:s iRl N<1 

((l 'Te.i." ,111n1·r:r fll'ln /Si, also) 

Hk. Were you prc,1musly assigned Hi an 18tl. When is tile m1111c. mailing addn.=s.c:, a111.l 
::ictivc reserve unit within Jhc lust 2 relerhone numbc~ of that unit'.' 
years'' 

□ Yes iRl No 

(//"'Tc_.;, "answer Item lt'-d a/soi 

') I_ - I ' wJ .L6, I ail .I ,. 
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• SECTION (Continued) 
IV 

Tell us 
about your 
reserve 
duty 

Jn.\·trllctirms 1/lg-JRk 
fl you ar,• c11rrt11t(\' or haw 
"''t'T he,•n r.tji,fl //fill' rewn,i,i 
fill" opw111io110/ u, .rnpµvrr 
Jmy. 

1. Com.vfr1,· !Bg-18/..fm 
that .,crwcc onlr 

2. Atla;;/1 fllO<!_(ofrc.rov,• 
J('rv/U' 

lflstructiom 181-1 Hp 

~lyour d1snh1!11y occu1 red 01 
wm (lg1;rrrva1ed d11ring anv 
p.-riod ofre.urvc J11ti· 

' Compli!1,, /81-/8p_tur lite 
p,!f"IO.I wlren _l'OII'" 

dm1h1/ity occurred. 
:. Atta_ch proo/rlw1 your 

d1.wbillfy occurred a'1mn1; 
re.1<!r.'e ,1erv1cc 

• SECTION Tell us 
V about 

your 
National 
Guard 
duty 

Instructions /9e-19i 

~f.>'011 were ac1iw11ed /0 

Fedrrai' ,4ctivr D1111, 11nder rhr 
AurhomyofTi1fl' 1/!, ltnilld 
Swlr!s Cudi-

/. Complete f9f-l91.for rhm 
,e,.,,ic,• only 

:. AU1.1ch pr()().f oj tim 
Fedua/ Ac1,vc D111y. 

Instructions 19j-1911 

/(_vo11r dm1billtv or;c11rrnl or 
wm aggrm•mid dur111g tll!) 
period <if pord d111y, 

I Comr,Ietc 191-/9n.f0rth,• 
p,•ri<>d whc,: _n,11r 
d1s,ihi/lf)' or:c:11rred. 

!. Atwch proof rhnl yvur 
dimbi/,ry c,cc:11rrer/ r/111 mg 
,Vu11om1I GJJnrd Servic~ 

TRAINING MODULE 4 
Study Plan 

18c. Do vou have an inuctive reserve 18f. What i~ your reserve ohligation 
obligation? (You perform no active duty, termination date? 
but you could b~· activated if then•, was a 
national emergency) 

□ Yes [g] N,, □ [Jon't Knnw 11/[J d!J.I' yt 

(if 'Tes," answer ilem 1~( also) 

18g. ! entered rc:serv~ servii.:e. 

Place: 18h. Iv1y service number w.is. 

nu, dar l'/' I I 
l8i. l kft rnscrvc service. 

Place· 18j. Rrand1 of 18k. Grade. ranl:, 

I I 
service 

I 
or rating 

m" day w· 

181. I entered reserve service. 
!'lace: 18m.My service number \VU!-- .. 

mo day yr I I 
18n. l leH re!:ier.•e s:=n·ice. 

!'lace: 18u. Brunch of 18p. Grndc, nmL, 

I I 
St'rvice or rating 

I mo aay _l'I 

19:.i. /\n: you currently .J m(;mher pf 19h . Whul is the name, mailing: address, and 
the National Guard'' telephone number ofyollr cum:nl unit? 

□ Yes [gj No □ Not Assigned 

(/f''J'es, "answer Item /!lb also) 

19c. Were you previously assigned to a 19d. What is the name, mailing address, and 
guard w1it within the last ~ years? tdcphont'- number o!'Lha! unit'! 

□ Yes [g] No 

({('Tes," am·v.w hem 19d a/su) 

19c. r entered Federal Active Duty. '" 
Place: 19f. My st=rvic~ number was ... 

mo day ·" I I 
19g. l left Federal Active Dut~·. 

Placr.:: 19h. Branch of 19i, Grudc, rnnL 

I I 
scrvicc 

I 
or rating 

1110 day yr 

19j. I cnlen::tl t-:a1ional Guard .. 

Plucc: I 9k. My service number was .. 

mo day yr I 
191. l left National Guurtl. 

Place: 19m. Branch of 1911. Grade, rnnk. 

I 
service or rating 

I I day mo Jr 

2 /-J26, ?art A page 3 
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• 
SECTIOI\ Tell us 

\1 about 
your 
travel 
status 

Tell us 
SECTIO."- about 

Vil your 
military 
benefits 

Wf'IC'n .1 ou file tin:: 
1/l//JJ°KlllW!i, \'/ll///n' 

1(.f!tng us tiui1 _wu W/lnl /() 
.l'l'I I'.-! com,"!rn.wlwn 
11/Sli'll,i ,i: mililmT retired 
_[)(ff U l'()U Cl/l'r('nt/_\' 
reCtl\'(' n11lt/l/r!' retired 
j)([_1' 1·011 .l'!)ould be mi'm·c 
1hm w,• will re<lua \'OUJ 
ri:nr.·d pu_i fly 1i1,· (/;!1011111 

'!I m1_1· cwnrJ,•mmim1 thm 
1·01.: arc awu~aed / ",/ lri/! 
·1101i/1· the ilti/1wn· llr.1irr:d 
}'a\' Ccme:· l!i ,1/i hcm:fi1 
change.~ 

>"1111 muH .\·ig11 lie tfyou 
wan: w J..ecp ;:cffi11g 
miliwry rciiri•d puy 
i1m.:ud1fl'.-1 
Cll/1/f!l.'r/~a/U/f/, 

!'iea!Jc sec nogc.; '!i"lil(· 
Geucri1i inJ1ruc1w11~ 10r 
iAFor-n;:!l-5:!0 . 

!(w11 hm·c gol/en hoth 
11u/11a1-:,• 1c11redpa_1' and 
I ':1 cm11p1:nrn1ior:. snm::· 
,i,'th(· i1mou1111'011 ~e: 

mu_,. lot' rr.:cuuped (1· TA. 
or in the co.11· r:t" I Si, hJ· 
1i1e /.!epor1111L'l1/ o,'-
[)t.;/<'fl.l"c' 

s .ECTIO!\ Give us 

vm direct 
deposit 
information 

If hcncfib .ar-t· 
awarded wr will ntecl more 
intonnation in order \C1 

proce:.;s mw p;.1:,ment.s ll, 
you. Pl.!USC r::ad !Ill' 
para~rurh stnrtinr, with. 
"Allfcdera/ puyment.1 ... " 
and then either· 

I /\tta:;h u v1iiJcU 
check. nr 

• ' Answer que.,;ticins .. 
::::::-2.:: I(• 1hc right 

TRAINING !\10DULE 4 
Study Plan 

2ha. Were you in,iureci 20h. \.Vt1en tlid 20c. When~ <lid 
whilv 1rnvding toor ~'Ollf in_iury barren'.' your in.iury 
from you:· mlliw.r; happen? 
assignmeut':' (Cm•.S1a1,:,Co11111n·) 

(/.'"leJ_ "wi.n,,,,,- /1,·111., ]Oi• 
1h111 -:!lie an,/ Senw,1 f 11(./'an 

nw J11_1 lJ: C(1t/lP<'ll>t111m), \'! 

'.__j Yes IX1 l',.t, 

20d. Where were ~-ou 20c. \\'hal 
trcah.:d'.' //-nwu/~ 11w11,' <l!.!tOL'\' rJiJ Vll\l 

and addrc.1.~ n/ dncu11 ·., file a~ ac.:idcm 
ufficc. iw.1p1ml, ['/t'.) rerort with':' 

2 la. An: _vou receiving or will yc1u 21b. What branch of service 2 le, Whu: is the 
rece1\·t retired or re1.iine:· pny thai is paying m will ra: month]~- amount': 
i;; h:.ise;:J on your milirnr: :,~rvice'.' vow· retired or 

~ 

Yes [x1 ~ct:1incr payr' 
~ 

No s ({('Tc.1. "answer lieni.1 ;_Jf, 1hn1 71/ Jr",\(, "sk,r 
10 /1rn.' :.::1 

21 d. \Vhu•. i~ y(lur retlremens based un" 

~ L:n;th of's:cr·vic<;" :7 Disability Ii TDRL (l::mpora~ D1s;ibilny R:.!!irl'd L1s11 

:?le. Sign here if you wan! l(I rec::ive militar:,· r::tired p<1y insrerid nf\'~\ compensation 

::? If. Have vat! ri.:.;i.:ivcd or will vou receive nn\' of the follo\\'in~ miliian 
(Plca~c· chc.d; tiu- HJlpropriatc hu-11.c!, and tell u~ ihc amount) - · 

benefits? 

Ben~fit 
Amounl 

( Ii LJ l.urnp Sum l<.e:id,iw;mi:.:n: Pa; s 
(21 i7 ~, .c;t:narmion ra; lmc.ie~ 1(1 USC l 17..: Is 
(J) i7 Srecial ~ernr::ition 1.kncfit (SSH 1 s 
(41 □ Voluntar:. St.:parati1.u1 I m.:i:ntivl'. (VS! I s 
( 5 I □ Disahili1; Severance f'a:, 1na111<! o(d1.1ahi!i1y I s 

I 

(61 □ Uth.::r (11:{! u.1 Jhc l_l'/W r/"hc11di1 ils 

All fi.:der:il p.i_v1m:m;; l"'lcgi1mmg Januar; - l 999. must hr made hy clectroni;:. fonds trnnsfor (ETT_I il]St> called 
Din:c; [kpos1:. Picas,· aunci1 a void:!d pcrsonnl cht:d, o: der(isiL slip or pwvide the mfonn;it1m1 requested 

hd11w in ltt.:m~ 22. 23 aml 24 to 1:nrnli in D1rec! f>epnsil. If yrm dt1 no: hnve fl hank: account we will give you.:. 
waiver 110m liirec\ LJcposi:. _1usl cl1ccl: th:: hm. below in h·.::m 2::::. The T rcaimry Departmt!n\ is working llll 

making. bani: au:nunt~ n\"ailabk lo yo11. lintc these m:coums are availahli::. ynu will he abk to dct.:itk whether 
:·ou wish ti, sip:u-up for om: oJ" llie act:(>unL~ or cnntmtti.: w rec::i\'t: a fl.ipcr ched: Y(l\1 C.ill .ilso rcque.';t n waiver 
iJ':l'Ou lrnv:: (ither r.:rn.:urn~tanr.:r.:s lirnt :0L1 frel would cause you a hardshir w hi: enrolled i11 Dirt:ct Deposit. Y(m 
Ci:111 v.riti.: w: [Jt:partmcnt nfVctcrans Affair~. 125 S. Main Street Suite U. Muskogee OJ~ 74401-7004. and gi\'e 
us H hricfd(!scnrtion of why you do not wish 111 participatt: m Direct Deposit. 

2:?. Account 11unibcr (!•lease ci1ecl; the aprropriat•.: hux and proviJ~ that account numhcr. if urr,licahleJ 

121 Checking □ I ce11ifv thm l do nor have rm accoum witl1 <: linancial 
institulion or cenifieJ puyml'.nl ugcnt 

[J Savings 

Account number 1 ()()()()(I()()()() I 

23. Naim or fin~ncial institution 
!v1Y RANl~ USA 

24. Routing or transit numht::r 
.,,,._,,.,,,.,..,..,..,,.,,, 

:!J-526 /'art.·! a,~,.:/ 
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• SECTION 
IX 

Give us 
your 
signature 

1. Read the bo~ thal 
st~t~, "l ~ertif), und 
authorize tht' rekas:: 
tir information:" 

Sign thi.: box that 
sJ.ys, ~y ou1· signmure." 

.1. If you sign with an 
"X'', then ym1 must 
h:i\'e :2 peopk- you 
know witness you as 
yt1u sign. They must 
then sign the form and 
print their namt:s and 
addrcssc::; also. 

SECTION 
X 

Remarks - Use this 
space for any 
additional 
statements 
that you would like 
to make concerning 
your application for 
Compensation 
and/or Pension 

IM POI/TANT 
Pem,try: The Jaw provides 
severe pe11allies which 
iucludefinc llr 
imprisonmcnf, or both, 
for the w/J{ful submission 
of any statement or 
evidence of" material 
fact, k11owing it to be 
faiJe, or for tJ,e 
fraudulelll accepwnce of 
any payme11t which you 
arc not entitle,/ ttJ. 

TRAINING l\10DULE 4 
Study Plan 

I certify and authoriZe the release of information: 
I ccrtif:,· that the statements in this document are true and complete to the best of my knowledge. I 
authorize any person or entity, including but not limited to any organization, service provider, 
employer, or government agency. to give the: Department of Vcttro.n:. Affair.~ any information ahou1 
me except protected health information, ~nd l waive any privilege which makes the infonrn.1lion 
conlidential. /1 / l 

2ia. S~1ur./kL.wi't11!.'!ssl(Jf cluimdnt' 
sipicd a!/ovc using an "X") 

28n. Signature of witnes:; (!f ciaimant 
signed above using an "X") 

27b. l'rim.:d name and utldrt!SS of witness 

28b. Printed name and addrcs~ of witness 

29. Remark:; (}jyou need more Jpace 10 an.s11·cr a question ar Jiuw a comment abo111 a wee/fie i/w1 number an this.farm 
p/..,use 1dentifi•yotir 1J11swer· or J'tu/1;m1enl by 1/u.· par/ anJ //em 1111111/,eri. (Slit' page 5 ' 0 ]ip., For Filling Ow J'our FA Form 

21-526 ") 

2 /-J26, ]'arr A 
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• 

• 

Department of 
Veterans Affairs 

TRA.fNING MODULE 4 
Studv Plan 

VA 'Form 21-526. Par1 B: Com pcnsation 
list• this form to apply for comptmsatiun. Remember tlull you must alsc1 fill out .a \" A Form 11 ~526, J'art A: General 
lnlurmation, for ~·01ir upplicatiou tti hl' processed. Ht sun to write your name and Social ~ecurit~· numller iu the space 
pro,·idcd on pai:t- ~-

SECTIOI'- Tell us Jn the table below. tell us more about your disnbility or disabilitic~;. Be sure to: 
I about your 

disability • List all disabilities you bdievc art: relatt:d 10 military service. 

• List all the treatments you received for your disabilities, including 

• treatments you received in a military facility before and afti:r 
discharge. 

• trentmems you received from civilian and VA sources before. during. nnd 
after :,;om sc:-\'icc. 

' Wh~n did 
I. \\'h:.n di:-.abili1_1 :.ire J. you:- When \\'Cr~· you ,fo. \\'ha'. medical 4u. Wha: is 1he addres~ or 

yuu claiming'.' 

PTSD 

/Jl/\B!:~TES 

l·IEAKT CONDITION 

-v,-,,r-oRM 
JAN 2004 

21-526 

disabilily 
hegin'.' 

(ll/(ll/lq74 

11w da_1· .',,. 

(JS/25/2(1(11', 

111ndm·y,~ 

nioday_1·r 

08/'25/'2(l()ti 

1111, da_1·yr 

1//(JdU_l'_\'." 

n10 day_v:· 

mo 1h~1·_1·r 

1w,dm·1·r 

nu, dt~\ ,,, 

trt.!:1tt.!d'.1 facility or doctor lilal mi.;dic:.il facility "' tn::..itt!d you'.' doctor'! 

Jrom 10 
\'AMC-PALO 380i iv1irandu Ave 

(Jj/()1/1974 CURREN') 
ALTO. C.-\ Palo Alto. CA 

Ill{! day vr- mo day vr 

_1ro111 /0 

(J!-;.':!)/200ti Cl/Rr.F.NT 
\'AJv!C-l'.-\LO AL TO 3/IOJ ~1irand;.i /\ve. 

!'ale, :\ho. C.'\ 
NIP da_l'.l'I" 1110 u'a_, Y-'" 

i•·nm '" 
11w aa_1·yr modl{l yr 

from 10 
VA.:--·lC-PALO ALTO 3801 Mirand:i Ave. 

08.125/'2(1()(, CURRENT l'alo /\ltc. Cl\ 
mu da_1·y,· mo da,, VI" 

i":-011~ 10 

IN(! 1/{l\' yr mo day_vr 

,ro111 10 

m(, ua_1· vr· 1110 11'~1· vr 

/"ron: '" 
nu, da_1·yr modoyy, 

i1·om '" 
mo '10' yr /11(, ,/i~\ " 

J'"rom '" 

nzrJ da1, yr mo dt~,· _w 

paf!_C } 
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SECTION Tell us if 
II any of the 

disabilities 
you listed 
on Page 1 
were 
because of 
exposures 

• 

SECTION Tell us 
III how 

your 
disabilities 
listed on 
Page 1 
are related 
to your 
military 
service 

Your Name 

• 
JUDY Lll\N DOE 

Sa. 

[g] 

6H. 

TRAINING MODULE 4 
Study Plan 

Were you exposed to Agent Sb. What is your disability? 
Orang_i: or other herbicides? 

Yes □ No 

Were you exposed to ashcsws? 6b. What i::. your disability? 

Yes 

Sc. In what country were 
you exposed? 

□ [g] Ne, 
6c. When and how were you exposed'! 

(!("Yes, "w1swer Item 6h and 6c also) 

7a. \Vert: you exposed to mustard gas? 7b. What is your disability? 

□ Yes [g] No 
7c. \\'hen and ho\.\ were you exposed'? 

(~r") .-s. "answer lwm 7b and h <iho) 

8a. Were you cxpos.:d to ionizing Sh. ¥/hat i:-; vour 8c. \Vhcn was vour 
radiation? disabilit~''} last exposu·re':' 

□ Yes [g] No 

Of"Yes, "answer hems 8b, 8c, and 8d also) 
mo day yr 

8d. How were you exposed to 
□ Atmospheric testinf 

radiation? 

□ Nag-nsaki/I-liroshima 

□ Other, dc~cribl· 

9a. \\' en: you exposed w an 9h. What i:; vour Ye. What was the 
environmental hazard in the disabilit~1

'.' hazard'? 
Gulf War? 

□ Yes [g] No 

(f/"l'es, "answer liems 9b and 9c ai.w) 

tlla. Did you have a separation u~ !Ob. Whe11 was the !Uc. Where did the 
retirc:ment physic~! exumination? exam'? exam occm? 

[g] Yes □ No 
CAMPEN,CA 

0911974 
((f"r'cs, "an.l'we1· hems /Oh ant! }Or nlso) mo day yr 

L 1. Explanatiou 

Your Social Security Number 

000-00-0002 

page 2 
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TRt\.INING MODULE 4 
Studv Plan 

Department of 
Veterans Affairs 

YA Form .Z1-5:?6. Part C: Dcpcndcne~· 
ll.•-t· thi:-. form 1H tell us mun· ahout ~·our dependents. Remember tha! you must also fill out n VA Form 21-526, Part A: 

Gcncrnl lnformation, Par1 Band/or f'art D, for '.\'our .tpplication tu he processed. He sun: tu write your name and Social 
.Securih· number in tlu· space pnn'idcd on JJ11g1: 3 

SECTION 
I 

Tell us 
about 
your 
marria~l.' 

/\JOT£: l'1m 

shouitl pro1·itle 

11 c(lp1· 1if.rour 
11111rria1:e 

ccrt~(icart• 

VA::Corm '1] 5~6 
JAN 2004 - -- -

l. \1./n:.it is ymir marital S\atus? 

~ Married 0 Surviving Spouse 0 Divorced D Never i\·1arried 

({/your .1puus1· d11.:d. yuµ uri' "divnrct'd," nr '"1wvcr married" ski/! lo ,l,'l't:tinn Ill beg11111i11g rm J)O).'.C !; 

2. \\'hen Wl!rt.: you man-ied'! 

mom!/ day year 

4. \Vim: i:; vour 
sp(luse'c;· 1u.1mt:'.' CARLE. DOE 

r irst 

08/02/!94S 

month day 1·ear 

7a. ls ynur spouse al!--o ci \"Cll:ran'.' 

LJ Yt.:s 

8. !Jo you ]i\'i; with your srouse'.' 

~ Yes (i("Yes." go w lle111 i:!_1 

I I No (1/""/v'o, '"gn 10 ll,:,.m 91 

9. Wn:..it i:-: ~·our spouse·~ address'? 

Sm..:ct addr(:S~. Rum.) Rout(.;. or !'.CJ. 80>, 
MYTOWN. CA 

10. Tell u:: wh\' you arc 1101 living 
with :,'ou;- Spouse 

NIA 

12. How wer,: ynu married? 

a. [Ri C:i.:remony hy a clergyman or other 
authorized ruhlic: o!ric:iul 

h. 17 Common-law 

3. \Vht:rt° did you gt:t married? 

1c11.1-1sw1c m· counrry) 

Middle 

6. What i.s you:· .spouse's S0cial Security 
numh:.:r? 

(){JO-{l{J-0004 

7b. Wha: is your srou.sc's \'.'1 file numh-.:r (If 
uoyl'.' 

Art. numhcr 
9537U USA 

Zip code Coumr; 

11. !-low much d(, vou comrihu1e mnnthh 
u1 your spcn1s:/s !->urpon'i -

L □ ·Jrih<.11 

tl. O l'ro.xy 

l'. O Other (plcmr: describe 111 rhe .1J•uc,: hc:'1111) 

21-526. /'arr C JHJ)!.C I 
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• 

TRAINING MODULE 4 
Study Plan 

SECTION Tell us 
I I about any 

In the tublc below, tell u:; about: 

• Your previous marriage:,, and 
previous 
marriages 

NOTE: f'ou slw11/d prlH'idt: copies 
of divorce drcrl!t'.\ or d1wtlr 
eert(ficllfe.l. 

• Your spouse's previous marriages 

Your previous marriuges 

13:1. How many times have vnu Oeen married before? ONCE 

13b. Wbcn were 13c. Where \\Crl' 13cl. Who were vnu l3e. 
\'Oll you married'! murrietl to1 

When did 
your 

l 3f. Wh\· did vour 
maITiagt· 'end~' 

13g. \\.'hen: did vour 
marriag~ e11d'! 

inarrieJ? (cityr:r,rmo:. or cowlll).'! (first, middl.:! inina!, last) Jmirriagc (death. divorce) (ci1y1.ware or co1111/I)) 
end'! 

03113/1%0 
tv1YTOWN". C:1\ SAMUAL L ULICK 

03/15/1962 
DEATII ~,!YTOWN. Cl\ 

flj(! day yr mo day yr 

mo day v, mo day V, 

Your spouse's previous marriages 

14a. How many time5 hus vuur current spouse been married before? NONE 

14b. \\Then was 14-c. Where was 14d. Who was 14c. When did 14f. Why did your 14g.. Where did your 
your spou::;c your spouse your spouse vour sooust's srousc':; 
ma1Tied'"! murrieJ'! married rn"/ Spouse's rt'!urriar.:c end? maffiag:e enU? 

(city!sfafe or country! (first. middle initial, last) marnugc (death. a1vorc(') (cir.•1.ttate or cm.mtrv,' 
end? 

. . 

mo day yr mo day yr 

mo day yr mo day yr 

SECTION Tell us In this section we want to know whether your parents are financially dependent on you (Question 
Ill about your 15) and more about your dependent children. VA may recognize a vc1ernn's hiological children. 

other adopted d1ildren, and stepchildren as dependent These children must be unmarried and: 

dependent!<- • be under the ag:.: of 18, or 
• he at least 1 ~ but under 2:, anC pursuing an approved course of education. or 
• have hs:comc permanently unable to support themselves before reaching thC" uge of 18. 

15. Arc your parents timm:;ially dcrcndcnt on you'! 

□ Yes [g] Ne• (lf'Te::," we will request additional in/Ormationfrom yo11 later} 

rou should prol'ide: a 16. Dt• you have dependent children'! 17. How many depentlcn: 
copy of the public children do you have'! 
record of birth for 
each child or a copy □ Yes 

qfthc court record of 
adoption for each (Jf"No, "Skip items 17-:!lj}. Go to the bouom Give us more in-R,rmalion about 1hcsc children m the 

adopted child 
o/page 3 and write .vour name and Social tabh•s an the nCxr poge (items 18 rhrouy:h 21/J 
S,•curity number) 

[g] No 

2 I ~526. Farr C page :! 
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• 

SECTJO'\ Ill 

l ku. \\' h~1 is the nanh.: 
ofvou1 unmarried 
ch lld\n:n )'/ 

TRAINING .MODULE 4 
Study Plan 

Tell u~ a hour your dependents (l'Ontinued) 

18b. Dau: 
18c. Social !'>a. 1% und pbcr: of birth 
Securi1:, Numher Hiological Adopted 

)Ch:. 

Sterchi!d 
(rlr-s:, 1111ddle mwai. la.1·1• /C/l)"SW/t' or cmm1r:,•1 

N/A fll(I da_1· ,,.~ 
□ D D Pl:ic~: 

mo iim· \'! 

D D D !'lai.:c: 

ll)(• ria_\' l'!' 

□ D D Pl::1c:::: 

I/IL' da_1· \'!' 

D D D !'lace 

Tell mahout your dependents listed ahov£.• who don't live with you 

21 :i. Dn all th:: childrer. listed nh(Wi..: liv~· \\'Jtil .vnu'.' :!lb. I low ni.:m,· or 1h:: children do not 
({("} ,:s. '' si.·1p items :: Ii• 111r11 ~ l_f mul wn1c live wi1h You? 

17 Ye;, vour nt1mi' and Sucw;' Sec11ruv m1111ber 
('t'./(ll• 

[J No 
(I( "No," complelc //em .; I/, a1Jd tiic ,ah/c 
ne/rJ11· (/Jems _; ic -l Jji and wr11,: vow· 
nom!' nnd .'iocwl Securiry m11i1ber n<Jioit) 

~ l c. Whut is tlw mime 21d. Whai is ,•,1ur child's ::!le. Whut is thL" nam~ of 
of vou.- child'./ c1.Hnplet; address? the rerson ~-our chili.I 

(fir.1·1, miiJd!,: 1111/hJi, /osti lives with ( !f arplicahlel? 
(firsr. mi,Mlc 11111wi, /asl) 

NIA 

s 

s 

s 

s 

20u. :'.Oh. :?.!Jc. 
18<?J Yr!-.. Seriously Child 
old and in disubleU previo_usly 

school heforc age married 
IS 

D D D 

I I D D 

,--, '7 I' '-' ~ ~ 

u D D 

~lf.l!{m mu:::h do VOU 
contriiiute eac:h mon'th lo the 
!-.uppnrl of your child~' 

Your nam,~ Your Social Security ,,·um her 

J\.JJ)Y L!:\/N [>DE ()(Hl-0().()()0~ 

- -
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• 
TRAINING MODULE 4 

Study Plan 

01\11:3 Appw,,c-d No. 2'.l(Kl-041/.: 
R.:spomh::nt Burden: 45 minut!c's 

~ Department of Vetera~s Affairs 
VETERAN'S APPLICATION FOR INCREASED 

COMPENSATION BASED ON UNEMPLOYABILITY 
NOTE: This is :i_ claim fo1 1'.(m1pensauon benef1ts oased 011 unemplc,yabilitv. When you romµlete tl1is !orm vou an· claimiug total disubilit) OC,·ausc of II serva:c· 
connected clisahiluy(ite~) which ha~ave prevented you fiom secunng or !nlio\\•ing nny substantially gamful ,lccu~,auon. J\11swcr :ill qucsuon~ folly and accu1atel.~ 

Socrn! Sc-cu1iry Henefns· lndividu:ils who havt., a disability 1111d 111cct lllcdical niteri:, may qualify for Sucial S<.<curity ur Supplcmcnt•d Sccurny Jnrnmc d1sabilny benefit~ 
lfyou would like more information about Social Sccurit.l' lxncfn~. cont.ict your nearest Soc in\ Security Arlmi111smi.1ion (S!-.A) office-. You c:m locMe the nrlrlres~. nf1he 
nearest SSA office m your telephone bo()k blue pages unde1 "llniwd States Government. Social Se~urnr Adnim1strmmn" or call 1-800-772-121.'i (Hearmg lmr:med TDD 
lms· l-800-325-117711.l. You may aim contact SSA by J111en1el 01 hnµ:/!www.ssa.gov/. 

1 VA FILE NUMBER 2. VETERAN'S SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER 3 DA TE OF BIRTH 

OCI0-00-000:!-00 000-00-0002 09/ll/1945 

4 NAME OF VETERAU /l·m:. Mr,!.//,•. Lus,1 (ly1,~ n, Aim, 

,JUDY LINN DOE 

AD:JRESS OF CLAIMANT (No nm/ stre.>f n• ,wa/ ,ourc. cill' or /'.0 Sr,11,' ami LI!' (o,h•) 

l Ma'.!'."ine Way 

Mytown, CA 95000 

SECTION I - DISABILITY AND MEDICAL TREATMENT 

6. WHAT SERVICE-CONNECTED DISABILITY 
PREVENTS YOU FROM SECURING OR FOLLOW1NG 
ANY SUBSTANTIALL y GAIN:C-UL o::cuPA TION? 

PT'SD 

NAME AND ADDRESS OF DOCTORlS) 

Lynn Anderson r--:. D. 

County Ge:ieral H0spi.t.al 

1:?. DATE YOUR DISABIUTY AffECTED ruLL-TIME 
EMPLOYMi:;.NT 

D1/01/2000 
1£,t.. WHAT JS TH[ MOS. YOU EVER EARNED lfS 

ON:C YEAR? 

$4(\,~S0.2.l 

7 HAVE YOU BEEN UN:IER A DOCTOR'S CARE 
AND/OR HOSPITALIZED WITHIN THE PAST 
12 MONTHS? 

YES 
10. NAME AND ADDRESS OF HOSPITAL 

comn-::: GENERJ..L HOSPITAL 
MYTOWK, CJ.-. 95000 

SECTION II - EMPLOYMENT STATEMENT 
1J. DATE YOU LAST WORKED FUll•TIM:C 

05/1999 
1513. WHAT YEAR? 

1998 

8. DATE(SI OF TREATMEtff BY DOCTO~{S) 

11. OATE(S) o:c HOS PIT ALIZAllO!~ 

Ol./04/2008 TO 02./19/2008 

1~. DATE YOU BECAME TOO DISABLED TO W□Ri--; 

Ol/Ol/2000 
15C. o::CUPATIOM DURING THAT YEAR 

Execut:£ve Secret.ar)· 

16. LIST ALL YOUR EMPLOYMENT INCLUPlNG SELF-EMPLOYMENT FOR THE LAST FIVE YEARS YOU W::>RKED 

t-... NAME ANO ADDRESS OF EMPLOYER £. TYPE OF 
WORK 

c. HOURS o. DATES o;c !::MPLOYMEm E. TIME LOST I F. HIGHEST GR ass 
PER WEEK <----F-R_O_M ___ __c'--'-cT_Oc.._ __ ,FROM ILLNESS PEE~R~~ii5H 

County General Hos;:iital 
101 P.osp:!.tal Rd. 

Exec. 
Secret.ary 4 O 05/05/1990 05/199S UNK $4,079.16 

MYTOWN, CJ, 95000 

G INDICATE YOUR. TOTAL EARNED INCOME FOR THE PAS7 12 MONTHS H. IF PRESENTLY EMPLOYED, INDICATE YOUR CURR::NT MONTH!.. YEARNED 
INCOME 

$ 0.00 
17 DID YOU LEAVE YOUR LAST JOB/SELF-EMPLOYMENT 

BECAUSE OF YOUR DISABILITY? 

[8] YES D NO (/j")cJ." giw1he/.,c1smJ,,.m!4I 

$ 0.00 
18 DO YOU RECEIVE/EXPECT TO RECEIVE 

DISABILITY RETIREMENT BENEFITS? 

DYES [gJ NO 

20. HAVE YOU TRIED TO OBTAIN EMPLOYMENT S!N::C:: YOU BECAMt: TOO DISABLED TO WORK? 

□ YES [xl NO (lf"l",:J. "cump/cr,• /,,,m., A. Ii, m,d CJ 

1&. 00 YOU RECEIVE/EXPECT TO RECEIVE 
WORKERS COMPENSATION BENEFITS'! 

□ YES [gj NO 

A NAME AND ADDRESS OF EMPLOYER 8. TYPE OF WORK C. DATE APPLIED 

N/11 

VA FORM 
OCT 2004 21-8940 SUPERSEDES VA FORM 21·8940, MAR 2000, 

WHICH WILL NOT BE USED 
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TRAINING :MODULE 4 
Studv Plan 

SECTION Ill - SCHOOLING AND OTHER TRAINING 

os 06 o, [:18 HIGH SCHOOL n 1 02 !l9 3 

22,-.,. DID YOU HAVC. AN'>' OTHER EDUCATION AND TRAll~ING BEi:ORE YOU WERE TOO DISABLED TCJ WORK1 ,1 
YES IR NO 11,r•)~s "i:on111frlc' ll,•,,..1 ::_'JJ w,r,' :!:!C; 

□· COLLEGE□ 1 02 o, □· 
22C. DATES OF TRAINING 

228. TYPE OF EDUCATION OR TRAINING 
BEGINNING COMPL::TJO/\' 

:.'34 HAVE YOU rlAO ANY EDUSATION AND TRAINING SIN:;E YOU BECAM:C TOO O:Stl.BLEO TO WORK? 

Li YE~ [gl NO 11/'Tcs,' rom,,/t•o,-Ju·rm ::Jfi ,m~' _'JCI 

23C OATES OF TRAINING 
23e. TYPE OF EDUCATION OR TRAINING 

BEGINNING COMPLETIOI; 

:,~ REMARKS 

SE::TION IV -AUTHORIZATION, CERTIFICATION, AND SIGNATURE 

AllTJ !URJZ/,TI():,..' FU!\ REl .1-.ASi·, (IF l.~fOf:.\11\TIO;',' I our11or1ze- me person c,1 emit~. inclu.:llllg bu! 1101 hm1a:J 10 any 0ri.:am1.aun11. service pruvidc;. cmployt:1. or 
(lovcrnmcnl aµcnC\. u, i:1vc tiK fJqmnnu;:n: nf Veteran~ A flam, ll!W iufonnalHJrl ab11u·. ml:! cxu•p1 prowcted he:11111 mforrna1urn, anc\ I wa1vl, :my privilege which ma~c~ 
uw 111iomia11on cnuiiaen11a! 

CERT!FICATl()f'; (fr STAT!~.",11;:-;TS· I Cf·.JtTIFY TIIA'I a> a re.~1111 of my serv1ce-wnnec1ed d1s..1bilme~. lam tmab\c It• sccun: 01 l'oliov. unv ~uhstam1a\ly gainful 
uu:uoaum1 antl Uiat till' sta1emt•n1~ 1n 1lm applicu1111n arc rruc i,ind rnmp\etc tn the hest ol·my knnwled[!e ;,nd heh~r l undersiand tnat thc~c s1r11cmcnts will ix· rons1dcn:J 
in decei minm)! my cl1f,ibiliry ior \' A \,cncfiL~ bascd 011 un~mtiln.vahil iti· because of ~c,-,.·i"e...:onncctctl d1~ahihty. 

I UNDERSTAND THAI IF I AM GRANTED SERVICE-CONNECTED TOTAL DISABILITY B!::NEFITS BAS:::o ON MY UNEMPLO\'ABIUn', I MUST 
IMMEDIATELY INFORM VA 1F I RETURN TO WORK I ALSO UNDERSTAND THAT TOTAL DISABILITY BENEFITS PAID TO ME AFTER I BEGIN 
WOR~: MAY 8~ CONS!DEREO AN OVERPAYM!::NT REQUIRING RE~AYMEN7TO VA 
0< SIGA/ATURE Qi=" ::!.AIMANT . 26 DATE SIGNED '27. TELEDHONE NUMB:::R(S) rl11dud~ .~re11 Cmie! .• I . I 

t-. DAYTIME E. NIGrlTTIME ' 
I i ' --"(· /""",/~,.__ -·: J· ;,, (209) 555- l.2 :...2 ( 2 0 ~·) 555-122.~ ,, .. ,/:i, , . ,- .L . l 

~2{.[tR"S T(,),15ret-: .. \T\_lfff. OF CLAIMANT If' MADE RY ••x•· MAR_t~. NOTl'.· S1gn:irnre macit"" t,y mail. mu.s: 
mal::'19".; thl· sp'.wmcn: is fX'rson.i\lv known an(l tl1~ ~1g:na1urc Jnd address o! such witnesses must be shown be1,,w. 

ba- wi1m:~~~d ti:,· l"l' pcr~Dns I() Whom Ille' pcr•nn 

,lllf..._ SIGNATURC: 0~ WITNESS 2118. ADDRESS OF WITNESS 

29.t.. SIGNATURE o:: WITNES:;c 208. ADDRESS 0~ WITNESS 

PENALTY: Th~ la,, prn1·1C1e~ scvcr~ pcnalt1~~ which mcltuk r"111~ u: 1mprisonrnenl or hnth for \ht· willful l-uhmis~1on o!' any statement rn evidence of J mJtcrial fact. 
knowmg 11 H> t>t" labc or l(,r the huudulcnt accep1ancc o( an:, niiyment tu wh1cl1 vou ore nol cmitlcd 

!'l{l\'A(T ACT l'-:OTJC'E· VA wlll not disclose· infonnation 1:olkctcd nn tirn lorm LCT anv source omer than what hn~ been authon.-;ed under lhc !'rivai:v At·\ or 1117.:l or 
Tillt: .It:. Coo.I~ o) Rq:ul;moni. l.57t, for rnutm~ Ltsc~_(1.c .. ~-1vi_l M crimmal l~w cnlnrce1i1en\. cnngreimonal commu111c:11ium. cp1dcrn1ulo)!1i.:al or re~i.:~rch Mudie.\. the 
'"lic•t1ur, ,,: money 1,weJ tu lhc Unl!ed Sun•~, la1ga11or1 1r1 which !he l.lnitcJ State, 1, a party o: has lit• interest, the artmm1srrnuon of\' A pr(•}':rams and <ld1vcry of\'.-\ 
t-ieneii!S. \'en fic::ttJOn nf" 1denm" llni.l sc:icus. ;ind personm:l :1dministr.111on J a, Hknti f1cJ m tht· VA svsiem n(' recc1rn!,. Sf;\' A'11 iJ:2. Compcn~.'.IIHrn, l'emum. Eduniuon and 
ltchnt>il11;111n11 l<.ecrnds - VA: published i11 till'" Federal l\egis1c1. Your oiih)!ation m 1c~po11d 1,· required to i_iinain nr ret:i111 henefH..'- G1vmg U" your SS:'.\' ncn,unt 
1nln1malmn 1s manda1orv. Appiicants n1e req1rncd 10 11rov1tlt"" tl1rn SSN under Tnle- }S. l!.S.C. 5i(ll(c)( l l \'A will nm deny an m1.hv1dual benefit~ !or 1efuslllf' lo prnv1dc 
hi~ ur her SSN 11nlc.~~ the cliscln~urc nr the: SSl'\" is required i,y a Federal Sratutc or law 1n effec1 prior lo fanunr)' I. 1975. and still in eflecL. The reques1eC illlnm1a11on is 
tnns1dc1ed 1clrvarn and necessary 10 detennme ma~11mm1 \:,enefiu; provided under !bt· law. The respunses :-111u submit arc eons1den:tl cnnr1dcn11al en; lJ.S.C. 57011 
lnformacion s11nm1m:d 1~ ~ub.1ec1 10 vcr, licanon through cnmpulcr m~1chmi; programs wnh 01her agenc1c~ 

RESf>Ol\'DEl\'T Bl /ROEi\': We need Lhi~ mform;11inn Ju determine cligihiliiy for indtvidlllll uncmplo_vmcnl (3f: U.S.C. 1163) Titk 3~, llnntd S1:11es_ Code, allows u~ 10 
as~ fm l111~ 111!om111tion We e:mmatt_lh:il y_ou will need 1111 avera~t· n[ 45 minmes tn rrview the ms!ruct10ns. find the infonnanon. and complete this !onn. VA eaunot 
conduc1 _or spun5or ;1 to\lcction nr m!o1ma11011 unles1 J v;,lid OMD control number 1~ displayed. Yuu :in: not r~quired w 1espond 10 a collection of infnrni_ation if 1111~. 
numbc1 1~ 1101 displayed. \'a lid 0MB control numben can he lnc.itctl on the 0MB Internet l-'ugc at www.whnehnuse.govlomb 1librnry/0MHl;\lV.htm1#\' A. If .iesircd, you 
c:,n call 1-600-S:'.i- l 000 lo get mform:inon on whcr<' to send ~omrncnts or suggcstiom :ilxiut thi~ iorm. 
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TRAINING MODULE 4 
Study Plan 

0MB App1uvt,d N11, 2'J0U-0075 
Rcspon<lem Burden: !5 mmu!es 

Department ~f Veterans Affair~ STATEMENT IN SUPPORT OF CLAIM 
PRl\'ACY ACT INFURMATIO:"i: The VA will not d1sclo~c infom1ation collected on thili fom1 to 11ny source other than what ha.< been authoriu-d under thi, l'riYaey 
Ac.t of 1974 or Title 38, Code ol"Fctlcral Regul11tions l.576 !br routine use_~ \J.t'., civil or nimi_nal la"'' enfon:eme111, co11grcss_iona! cnmmun1eat1on::. epidemil,iogical OJ 
rcscan:h s1ud1c~. the collectio11 of rno11e:,, ()Wed tn the llnited Stateli. !it1g:i11011 in which the l..lmted St:ne, 1s a party or hu~ an mtcre!il, thc 11dmimstration of VA Programs 
and delivery of VA benetit~, verification of identity nnci slams. :ind persmmel admrnistration) ns identified m the VA 9ystem of record$. 5RVA2_!!22, Compe11snt1011, 
l'en$101\, _Education ilnrl Rehahiliumnn _Record~ - VA, published in the h,der:il Rc~1slcr. Your obhgation lu rcspo_nd 1~ re4u1rcd 1U ubtuin or retarn bcnctib. VA uses your 
.SSN IO iucntify your cbim file. l'nwidmg ymrr SS?\' wi!I help ensure thil1 your records an:: p1ope1 ly associn1ed wnh your claim fik. G1\'ing us your SSN :iccou111 
inform111..-,11 i~ volumnrr. l<c!"U-~al 10 provide your SS!'< by il'lclf will 11u1 r,..~ull 1n the dcniul ofbenefil~. The VA will m,! dcny irn_ im.lividlllll lwn<..'fll~ for 1dusm~ tu nrnvillt 
his o_r hc:t SSN unless the disc!osw·c ot the SSI\" 1~ required hi- Fcd<..'i:il Sta1u1~, of law 1n elk~·\ pnor to fanuar•· I. !'J75. and still 111 effect Thc 1cqucsied inlurmation n 
con~1,k1ed re!evani :ind necessary 10 dc1cm,11w m:iximu111 bCni:fit~ umkr th~ law. Thc rc~pon~c, yuu submit Or~' cuns1dcrcJ co111"idcmial (3!! U .S.C 5701 ). Information 
subn1ittcJ i, ~uh1ecl tu vciif1c:mo11 thH,ugh compute1 matching program, with other agcncic~. 

RESPONUENT IHIRl)EN: Wl.l nc',ld rhi~ ir,fmm;uion to obrni11 evidence m suppo1t ofy1>w clam\ fo, henet1ts (Ji-: U.S.C'. 501(.i) and (h)). Title '.lf., UniteJ St:ues_ Code, 
alluw~ us to asl fo1· this mfo1m:umn. Wr cst1ma1c that you "ill need an avcr.igc of 15 mmutc~_w nw1c:-w the instructlom. (ind the infurmaticm, :md complete th1~ lorn-1..V,\ 
ca_nnot conduct or sponsor :i colkcuon ur inFunnatwn unless a valid 0/1.1(1 cuntrol n11mbcr is displayed. You ari: _not required 10 respond tu .i cullccuon ofmformalion_ 1f 
tlu~ mnnbcr is 1101 displayed. \':ilicl Oi\U! control numbers can he loc.itcd on the 0MB Internet Paye rrt ww\1' wb11i:bu..us.t.J.:.Onmnhllibrao'LQb.1DJNV hun)llV 1\ Ir desired. 
;"OU can call l-BO(l-8:!7-10(10 1,, gel 111fonnati1Jn ,11, whete 1u se11rl cornmems or sugge!'.tiuus al>nut tlus fo1n1. 

FIRST NAME - MIDDLE NAM!:: - LAST NAME 0~ VETERAN (1)11r wpri111J 

VERY M. DISABLED 

SOCIAL SECURITY NO. 

OOO-OCl-0005 
1l1c follciwing statement ls made in co11nl'ctio11 with a claim for benefits in lhc cusc of the abovc-n:m1cd veteran· 

PLEASE BE ADVISED Tl-L/1. TI AM REQUESTING TO APPLY FOR AN INC!lliASE 

IN MY SERVICE CONNECTED DISABILITY OF LEFT KNEE CONDlTION. 

VA FILE NO 

C/CSS -000-00-11005 

I AM CUIUZ.ENTLY UNDER THE CARE OF THE DOCTOR'S AT THE VAMC-PALO ALTO. CA 

MY CLJIU{_ENT RATE OF 30% IS NO LONGE!, ADEQUATE FOR MY CONDITION 

I BELIEVE THAT MY CONDITION SHOULD BE 60% OR HIGHER. I KNO\V LONG CAN SUPPORT 

MY KNEE WITHO\/T CRUTCHES. 

(CONTINUE ON REVERSE) 

T the statements on this form arc true am\ correct to the best or my knowletlge and belief. 
DATE SIGNED 

-.J- 2..0 -c16"' 
ADD TELEPHONE NUMBERS (/,,dude Area Cude) 

DAYTIME EVENING 

95000 

(209) 555-0001 (209) 555-000 I 

l'ENAt:n•: The Jaw provides severe peualties which i11cludc fine or imprisoument, or both, for the willful submission of any statement or cvidc11CL' 
of :i mmcriul fact, knowmg ic lo be false. 

EXISTING STOCKS OF VA FORM 21-4138, 
JUN Hl94, WILL BE USED 
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TRAINING MODULE 4 
Studv Plan 

0MB Aµpr{wo.:d N,, 291!(J-fl07~ 
Rcsrouctcn: Hu1dcn. 15 mim.uc, 

Department Df ·veterans Affairs STATEMENT IN SUPPORT OF CLAIM 
l'IU\'ACY ACT lNt'()H,\IATJO/\: Th(' \I A will 1101 d1~cln~1: inlnn11/ltu,n c,1ilcc1erl nn till\ lr,nn Ir, 1my ~ourc:: rn11c1 tlrnn wnat ha~ been authon7<:d unm:r the f'nv;.ic~ 
11.·1 n:" \<J7.;. rn ·r Hk JL t:11uc: of !=cJcrnl Rcgub11un~ J.57t, for 1uu1u,e 1,~e5 (•-'-'·· c"·j] 01 c1im1nnl la" cnfo1cemcrn. cnng:ressJ011al cunmrnn1cnt1011~. epiclcmwlugical or 
rc~e.ird1 ,1uJ1c:.. the colic•r1mn nrm,,nev owt:d tr, 111,· Unned S1a1.-.,, lni~;mon m wnicn the linnt:d .:-i1a1e~ i~ H p.111,· or h:1~ an mtt:rest. The admm1~11n11n11 nf\"A l•n,~'T:l.m! 
anJ tlcl" o.:rv "1· \' ;._ bcnt:fns. • cr1r,l·a110[1 ot 1Jcn11tv ,mu st.Huo. ;rnJ pe1 Sum1el ~dm1111strJt111nJ ar 1Jcn11 f1eJ m I hL· \' A s1·s1t:m uf H·cord£. 58 \' A2 l i22. C .. mp{:nsat1u11. 
l'e1,,1L>1L, i0.c'!ucauon and R.:liabilnauon !(ec<1rd., - VA. put,\1siicd in tile, fi:-Ucr.11 Kc~1sw1 Yuur obilt'at1on IO rcspood 1., ii:-quircd I(, ohlJ.H1 or rc1am t>cm:fi1~. VA use!. your 
SS~' 1,, uJcm,ly vmtr clam, flk J•rov1dm~ -''"'" .SS/'-," will 1,el1, c11,u1c 1nn1 ynu, 1cco111.s n1e· JHo_perly osson:ucct ..,-it_JL """' cl..itm fi_lc. G,~m,.'. u~ ~our S_Sr-. acc.:unl . 
u1fo1m:H1,,11 1~ ,·ohml~n l<ctu~;,1 to tiro1·1dt· 1our SSI'-: h1· nscli will nol rc,ul1 mm,· ocnwl ni"t>cncfits. The VA W!]l not dcnv an mdividu.al bcncfiH lot 1c1us111g. ll\ prnv1<lt' 
r11, 111 11c1 SSr, unlcs, ,;,., 1hsc:1osurt· ;,t the ~Si\" 11 requir.cd h~- Fcdcrnl StalU\tc ol iaw 1n d1Cct prmr 1c, January I. t 97f,. :i.mi Still in crr-.,ct. The rcqu_e~u•d rntiinnatmn I~ 
t'Ol1S1tk1cd rrlL·1·~m anJ mTcssar)' le, dctcm11n~ rna;,;1mum t>\:'m.:fils t11l(kr tlw lav. 'I lw rcsr,onse:. yuu si1bm1l arc con~id,•1cd conritkn11:il (.18 U.S.C. 57011. Jnl.,mrnt,on 
,ut11u1u...,,1 1!- su1>_1ec1 11, ve1 itic:1t1nll th1nu7h compute1 ma1chmg Pl<>.b-'T:lm~ wi!h H!her a~enc•e~. 

IU;Sl'O,...,'DE!\'T ll{IJ{I)!~"\: \~•e ntec'. th,~ mfom1J_1J(>11 t(, obmin eviriencc Ill ,upport n: your ~luim fn1 heni.,fin (.lf, 1_:.S.C. :'ifll(al and ib)J. Ti1lo: ~f.. \inited S1_a1e~ l(,rl<:, 
Jllnw., w, ltl as!. fo: tl11,. mlon11;u1un Wl• 1:~11111,H,· rnat vou ll'ill neect :m avera;,?t' o:' !:, mmlltcS tu 10::,·1ew lhe ms!ltKtmn~. flm.l 1hr wfunrrntJuu, :mJ t·ornpletl:' m1s foim \'A 
cannm conduc·t hi ~l'rnHlll :, col1ect1on ot' 111tur111:i11011 Unk5~ a 1·aJ1(1 ()J\.-1}.l cm1u(1l nurnl,er 1; d1splaved You an: nor t~yu1red to rcs_pon.:l w u roll~clnH1 ol mlonna1mn ii 
1h1, num1>n 1~ not d1~plJyn! Valid ()l\fli r,,n11,,l 1111r11"t,er~ t:in 1,~ l(>o.:ali:() mi 111e· ( iMl\ !ntt'tn~l l'a~~ at ~dwu.i,i.;.J.:.lll'.illill.bDJlmir_x~Oil-lliH-l_\'..,hVnl~YJ,. 11' Ot:1>1rell 
\'(ll) nm cal I l-fiOlJ-!;:,7. !(Jl)(I (<I j.:'l'I l[ll\\r11l;.\1or, on wht·r:.· \() ~end n,mml'flb or Slll,;j.:'l';\1on~ llt>uu! thi, IOTITI 

f"IRS--:- NA,[1,,-1E - MIDDt..E t~AME - LAS7 NA.ME or VETERAN (71·,--,,· Wf'/'OJ/,' 

\'ERY M. DISABLED I 
SQCIAL SECURITY NO. 

(I()( i-lJ( •-( I (I() 5 

TIit: 1ulinw111;; st:llcm.:11: :s m::i.de m conne::::11on \\'1th a cla1111 for bendil.'. 11\ tlit c:is~ of the ahovt--n:imed vetcr,111: 

VA FILE NO 

CICSS -fJ()(J-(l(J-(l(J(J5 

I WISH TC> l,EO!'EN MY l'REVI0USLY DENIED CLAIM FOR SERVJCL C:ONNECTJ0N FOR RJC;J-IT 

!~NEE CONDITION. ATTACHED IS A HOSPITAL SUMMARY D/\ TED 01/01 ii %9 

FROM \\-AJ:E ISL>\ND SJ-I0W[N(iTREA TM ENT WHILE ON ACTIVE Dl:T\'. 

ALSO,'\ TTACl-fED IS.'-. MEDIC.",L OPINION FROM DR. KNO\\'ITALL TO SU!'PORT MY CLAIM . 

TI-IIS IS NEVI' t,ND MATFIUAL E\-IDENCE, NOT l'REVIOUSLY CONSIDERED BY T1IE \'_,\_ 

(CONTINUE 01..J REVERSE) 

l CE!tTIFY TH.'\;f'tbc sl:Hcrncms r111 thi., form arc trur: and correcl tu the hcsl oi Ill\' kt1{>\vbig•: :111(: hdit:f. 
SIGNl,TLJRE ro /, . Dl,TE S!GN!::U 

A.DOR~ss _/' TEl.ErJHQNE NUMBERS (lnr:/ud,·.1•er, Co<lc} 

123 W_t\ Y-<'.1UT WEST 
SOMEWHERE. C\ 9500(1 

DAYTIME 

(209) 555-0002 

EVENlt~G 

(209 J 555-0002 

/'El\ ALTY. Tht· Jav. f'""'•llc~ s:.:vc:n: pC'11alt 1:.;s ,,.,hich inclutk line: ,_ir 1111pnsunm.;nl. or ho Ill, for tli~ willful s:..1.bm1so.1u11 of uny st.11cn1c/Jl or ev1<.lencc 
of 1J 11\atcn.il fncL kllOW\tlj.'. I [ lo l1(' false 

\'A FCIR"-~ 
AUG 2or1~ 21-4138 E.XISTir~G $TCJC1,s or VA FORM 21•413!!, 

JUN 1994, WILL BE USEO 
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TRAINING MODULE 4 

Study Plan 
OMI.l Approved No ~900-CJ().13 
H.espondcn( Uurdcn I 5 mmwL'S 

Oi!partment of Veterans Affairs DECLARATION OF STATUS OF DEPENDENTS 
Pri\'Rcy /\ct lnfomintion: Tht> VA wil! not disclnsc ,nfonnation collected ou this form to an~· sou1ce Dtiler than what lms been uuthori,~d umler lliL~ !'1111ac~· Act of 197.; 
N Title J::;_ Code of Federal Rcg11l11tmns l.57(, for wulinc.: lL~C~ ( 1,c._ civil 01 crimirrnl law enlu1 cemenL congressioirnl com1111111ieolions, epidernio/ogicnl or I esenrd1 
siud1es. the collection ol money owed to th~ llnited .State~. hugation in which ti1e lln11ed States is II party o: has an inierest, the :idmin1strat1011 of VA programs and 
delivery nf \' A hencfhs, verification ofidenuty and status. and r,er..onnel administration) 11s id~ntified in the.: VA system ofrecor<l~. 58 \' A2 1/J'2 Compt'lnsation, Pension_ 
Educat1t111. and Rchahi\iunion Records - VA. nn<l published 111 the Federal Reg1ste_r. Your ob!igntion_tu respond is required to obtain or retnm benefits Givm[: us you1 
and_ vour dependents' SSN account mfonn11t1on 1s ma11d:n,n y. Appi icwu..s are reqmre<l 10 provide their SSN w1d thi: SSJ\" of any clcpe11dents fu1 whom benefits 01 e 
cl.urned undc1 Tnlc ~8 USC 51_0! (c~( I) The' VA will not den~- •m md1vidual benefit for refusing w provide hi~ or her SSN unles5 tt1e disclosure o;· the SS/\ ts required 
~-v Federnl St.mutt' uf J_aw rn efl,;cl rnor to .limuary 1 .. 1975, and Slill i_n eftcct. Jnformaum1 that you lurmsh may he u1[1i1cd m computcrm11tchmg program, w1tl_l othc1 
l·edrral o_r srnrr- agrnc1es ior the purpasc of dctcrm1rnn£ .vnur chgihihty H> rc(;CIVt' VA ht::11cfiL~, B~ wdl u~ ti, cnllci.:\ ony amount owed lo 1h~ llr111cd ~Ul\c~ h:,- virtm: of 
your panie1pa11on m 1tn~• bene!i1 prognim admmi.~tcn:d ti~, the Dcp1111merit of Veteran~ Aff1111., 

1u:SPOr'1,'0ENT Bl./Rnf;/\· We need this information to dctcnnme marital status :md e!igibilll\· f,)! an udd1twrml nllowam;c frn dep('ndents tmde1 JS U,S.C. 11 I 5 THk 
.11;_ linncd Stale~ Code. a!lmv~ us ln usk for· tl11s mfoirm1tion We estuuatc that vo11 will need an averacc of 15 minute~ to rcvu:w the rnst1u::lion~. fmJ the 111frnm11!1m, 
,mu eo'.npl-:1~ Lh1s li,rm \' A cannot eunduet or spu11s0: u colle::tm11 of 1nfonnutlo11 u11les~ n \'Ill id OMf\ eon11ol m1mber is ci.1spl;wed. Yo11 are not 1eq11ired h• 1espui1ci 1,," 
ci>ll~ctmn of mforrnauon uul-=:~, a valid 0MB numbi:1· 15 c!ispln"'t'd You ~re not wquired to respond to a collection of rnfonnn\1011 ifth1~ 1111mt,er 15 11ot d1spl~ved Vnl1ct 
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{!C! mtormauon ou wher~· t(, senJ comm-:nts or suggcsuons at>oul tfm Jorm 

INSTRUCTIONS: Print all answers clearly. Make sure you sign and date !his form (Items 18 and 19). Note: Unless the claimant 1s the velC!ran's surviving 
spouse, the veleran must sign in Item 18. When you have completed this form, mail it or take it lo a VA regional oth~. 

1A. FIRST - MIDDLE. LAST !~AME OF VETERAN 

VEl.:.Y M. DISABLED 

18 VET::RAN"S SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER 

00()-0(1-0006 

:y, NAME 0~ CLAIMANT ({f othe,,· t/J,m ••cterr111/ 

SELF 
28. CLAIMANT'$ SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER 

SAME 

3. FIL: NUMBER 

C· 000 00 OOOf,-0{) 

.: ADDRESS OF CLAIMANl f,\'o und str1t<'I or rum! rowc ci~,, 01· P.O .. Sww und Zll' Codt•) 
l 00 My Slreet, tvlytown, C/\ 95000 

s.i, MA.RITAL STATUS 1C!wck one) 

[Rj MARRIED O DIVORCED 

D 1/1/lDOVVEO O SE:PARA TED 

CJ NEVER MARRIED ((( checJ...,d, do 1101 compl,m:) 
(Skip 10 liem f :!1 

SB IF MA.RRIED. SPOUSE'S DA TE Oc' BIRTH 

1010:u1 945 

monrh day year 

NOTE: fuu 11111srfur111sh com11lew il!formation a bow ,1/i your and your currem .vmuse's prev1011s marriugcs. }(you or yow· ;,pousl' have been married 
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more tiwn three time.~. hn additio1wl niarriaKes in lt1!11: 17, "Remarks, ,. or atwcil a separate sheet 

b-==========~=~---S=-E=-C=-T'-l-"O'-N'--1-•__:V.cE:cT.cE::.R::.A::..N:..:'"S:..:.:.Mc.Ac.R::..R::..IA..;.G=.E=.S=.· _______________ --J 
6. HOW MANY "TIMES HAVE YOU BEEN MARR/ED? 

7 A. DATE AND PLACE 
Of MARRIAGE 

(Cif.,,.!StW<!" or (:u1mt•:i:J 

momh a'ay yea,,· 

l'focc. Jvlytown. CA 

Place: 

month day year 

78. TO WHOM MARRIED 
(Fir.11, middl.-. fost name} 

Shannon Gilmore 

7C. SOCIAL 
SECURITY 
NUMBER 

000-00-0007 

7D. HOW 
MARRIAGE 

TERMINATED 
(Death !Jn·nra) 

SECTION II - SPOUSE'S PREVIOUS MARRIAGES 
6. HOW MANY TIMES HAS THE VETERAN'S CURRENT SPOUSE OR SURVIVING SPOUSE BEEN MARRIED? 

9A. DATE AND PLACE 
OF MARRIAGE 

03/12/1961 
month dai· war 

Place: Angels C~fnp, CA 

/'face 

-

f'la,c.· 
VA FORM 
NOV2004 

mo111h day .veor 

mu1Jlh duy _vear 

21-686c 

98. TO WHOM MARRIED 
(F11"SI, middlv, last name) 

Karl tv1. Lucky 

9C. HOW MARRIAGE 
TERMINhTED 

(Death l)ivorcei 
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7E. DATE AND PLACE 
TERMINATED 

(C11ylS1me or Co,mtt)ii 

mo11lh day year 

monrh day y,wr 

9D DATE ANU PLACC 
TERMINATED 

(]3/26/1.964 

mo1Jfh dm· i·car 
!'lace Angels c:i,~p, CA 

month day yt1ur 
/'lace: 

month day year 
l'lar.:e: 

(Continued on Reverse) 
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Studv Plan . 
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14A 
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14H. 
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PREVIOUS:.. Y LOGICAL ED CHILD DJSABl..ED (/1r.11 mu/di<' lmtwl. /1u1, SCHOOL MARRIED I (c111. 1;w11· or r::owu,-v.1 NUMBER . . 
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' I 
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I 
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REFERENCES FOR U.S.C. referred to on page 2 of testimony for HBl057 

(Authority: 38 U.S.C. 501(a), 5902) 
(h) Agents. (I) An individual desiring accreditation as an agent must establish that he or she 
is of good character and reputation and is qualified to render assistance to claimants in the 
rresentation of their claim(s). An individual desiring accreditation as an agent must file a 
comrleted arplication with the Office of the General Counsel on VA Form 21a on which the 
applicant submits the following: 
(i) His or her full name and business address; 
(ii) Information concerning the applicant's military and civilian employment history 
(including character of military discharge, ifaprlicable); 
(iii) Information concerning representation provided by the applicant before any department, 
agency, or bureau of the Federal government; 
(iv) Information concerning any criminal background of the applicant; 
(v) Information concerning whether the applicant has ever been determined mentally 
incompetent or hospitalized as a result of a mental disease or disability, or is currently under 
treatment for a mental disease or disahility; 
(vi) Information concerning whether the applicant was previously accredited as a 
representative of a veterans service organization and, if so, whether that accreditation was 
terminated or suspended by or at the request of that organization; 
(vii) The names, addresses, and phone numbers of three character references; and 
(viii) Information relevant to whether or not the applicant has any physical limitations which 
would interfere with the completion of a comprehensive written examination administered 
under the supervision of a VA Regional Counsel. 
(2) Applicants must achieve a score of 75 percent or more on a written examination 
administered by VA as a prerequisite to accreditation. No applicant shall be allowed to sit for 
the examination more than twice in any 6-month period . 



• 
Authorized officers of an organization may request recognition by letter to the Secretary of 
Veterans Affairs. 
(a) National organization. An organization may be recognized as a national organization if: 
(I) It was recognized by the Department of Veterans Affairs prior to October 10, 1978, and 
continues to satisfy the requirements of§ I 4.628(d) of this section, or 
(2) It satisfies the following requirements: 
(i) Requirements set forth in paragraph (d) of this section, including infonnation required to 
be submitted under that paragraph; 
(ii) In the case of a membership organization, membership of 2,000 or more persons, as 
certified by the head of the organization; 
(iii) Capability and resources to provide representation to a sizable number of claimants; 
(iv) Capability to represent claimants before the Board of Veterans' Appeals in Washinb'1.on, 
D.C.; and 
(v) Geographic diversification, i.e., either one or more posts, chapters, or offices in at least 
ten states, or one or more members in at least twenty states. 
(b) State organization. An organization created and primarily funded by a State government 
for the purpose of serving the needs of veterans of that State may be recognized. Only one 
such organization may be rcCOb'Tlized in each State. 
( c) Regional or local organization. An organization other than a State or national organization 
as set forth in paragraphs (a) and (b) of this section may be recognized when the Department 
of Veterans Affairs has determined that it is a veterans' service organization primarily 
involved in delivering services connected with either title 38 U.S.C., benefits and programs 
or other Federal and State programs designed to assist veterans. The term veteran as used in 
this paragraph shall include veterans, former armed forces personnel, and the dependents or 
survivors of either. Further, the organization shall provide responsible, qualified 
representation in the preparation, presentation, and prosecution of claims for title 38 U.S.C., 
benefits. 
( d) Requirements for recognition. (I) In order to be recognized under this section, an 
organization shall meet the following requirements: 
(i) Have as a ·primary purpose serving veternns. In establishing that it meets this requirement, 
an organization requesting recognition shall submit a statement establishing the purpose of 
the organization and that veterans would benefit by recognition of the organization. 
(ii) Demonstrate a substantial service commitment to veterans either by showing a sizable 
organizational membership or by showing performance of veterans' services to a sizable 
number of veterans. In establishing that it meets this requirement, an organization requesting 
recognition shall submit: 
(A) The number of members and number of posts, chapters, or offices and their addresses; 
(B) A copy of the articles of incorporation, constitution, charter, and bylaws of the 
organization, as appropriate; 
(C) A description of the services performed or to be performed in connection with programs 
administered by the Department of Veterans Affairs, with an approximation of the number of 
veterans, survivors, and dependents served or to be served by the organization in each type of 
service designated; and 
(D) A description of the type of services, if any, performed in connection with other Federal 
and State programs which are designed to assist former Armed Forces personnel and their 
dependents, with an approximation of the number of veterans, survivors, and dependents 
served by the organization under each program designated. 
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(a)( I) The accredited representatives of reCO!,'llized organizations (§ 14.627 of this chapter) 
holding appropriate power of attorney and recognized attorneys(§ 14.629(b) of this chapter) 
with the written authorization of the claimant may, subject to the restrictions imposed by 
paragraph (a)(2) of this section, inspect the claims, insurance and allied folders of any 
claimant upon the condition that only such information contained therein as may be properly 
disclosed under§§ 1.500 through 1.526 will be disclosed by him or her to the claimant or, if 
the claimant is incompetent. to his or her legally constituted fiduciary. Under the same 
restrictions, it is permissible to release information from and permit inspection of loan 
guaranty folders in which a request for a waiver of the debt of a veteran or his or her spouse 
has been received, or where there has been a denial of basic eligibility for loan guaranty 
benefits. All other information in the files shall be treated as confidential and will be used 
only in determining the status of the cases inspected or in connection with the presentation to 
officials of the Department of Veterans Affairs of the claim of the claimant. The heads of 
field facilities and the directors of the services concerned in Central Office will each 
designate a responsible officer to whom requests for all files must be made, except that 
managers of centers with insurance activities will designate two responsible officials, 
recommended by the division chiefs concerned, one responsible for claims and allied folders 
and the other for insurance files. The term claimant as used in this paragraph includes 
insureds. 
(2) In the case of a living veteran a representative acting under a power of attorney from any 
person not acting on behalf of the veteran will not be permitted to review the records of the 
veteran or be furnished any information therefrom to which the person is not entitled, i.e., 
information not relating to such person alone. Powers of attorney submitted by the other 
person will be considered "Limited" and will be so noted when associated with the veteran's 
records. The provisions of this suhparagraph are also applicable to recognized attorneys and 
the requisite declarations filed by them. 
(3) When power of attorney does not obtain, the accredited representative will explain to the 
designated officer of the Department of Veterans Affairs the reason for requesting 
information from the file, and the information will be made available only when in the 
orinion of the designated officer it is justified; in no circumstances will such representatives 
be allowed to inspect the file; in such cases a contact report will be made out and attached to 
the case. outlining the reasons which justify the verbal or written release of the information to 
the accredited representative. 
(4) In any case where there is an unrevoked power of attorney or declaration of 
representation, no persons or organizations other than the one named in such document shall 
be afforded information from the file except under the conditions set forth in § I 4.629(b )(2) 
of this chapter. When any claimant has filed notice with the Department of Veterans Affairs 
that he or she does not want his or her file inspected, such file will not be made available for 
inspection. 
(b)( I) Inspection of folders by accredited representatives or recognized attorneys holding a 
written authorization where such cases are being processed shall be in space assigned for 
such inspection. Otherwise station heads may permit inspection of folders at the desks of the 
accredited rerresentatives, in the office(s) which they regularly occupy. 
(2) An insured or after maturity of the insurance by death of the insured, the beneficiary, may 
authorize the release to a third person of such insurance information as the insured or the 
beneficiary would be entitled to receive. provided there is submitted to the Department of 
Veterans Affairs, a specific authorization in writing for this purpose. 
(3) Unless otherwise authorized by the insured or the beneficiary, as the case may be, such 
authorized representative, recognized attorney or accredited representative shall not release 
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Testimony on HB 1057 
Lonnie Wangen, Commissioner 

North Dakota Department of Veterans Affairs (ND-DVA) 
March 5, 2009 

Senator Dever and Committee Members: I would like to provide my testimony 

and answer any questions you may have. I will address this bill by section. 

Section 1: Adds the statement starting on page one line 13: "The county veterans' 

service officer must maintain accreditation by the North Dakota Department 

of Veterans Affairs within two years of appointment". 

In my testimony to the House I asked that this section be amended from it's 

original statement that read ... 

"The county veterans' service officer must maintain accreditation by the 

national association of county veterans' service officers within one year of 

appointment". 

And asked that this be changed to read ... 

"The county veterans' service officers must comply with accreditation 

requirements as set by the North Dakota Department of Veterans Affairs in 

compliance with the Federal VA Office of General Council". 
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This would allow the ND-DV A to set accreditation standards and training 

requirement for County Veteran Service Sfficers (CVSO's) on state benefits and 

programs. This would also allow the ND-DVA to work with the Federal VA to 

ensure that the CVSO's are accredited with the Federal VA in accordance to the 

guidelines and regulations set by the Federal VA's Office of General Council 

(OGC). 

This would allow the CVSO's to gain accreditation without concerns with the 

number of hours they work in a year. This would also allow the ND-DVA and the 

Association of County Veterans Officers training committee to choose training 

curriculum to serve their needs in the future. 

As I have testified to the house and during the interim. I do not believe we as a 

state should tie ourselves down to one organization to provide our accreditation 

and training. There are many to choose from. And as with any organization they 

are only as good as the people who work for them, if an organization is providing 

great training we would want to gain their service. As trainers leave these 

organizations and new trainers come in the training quality may change. These 

organizations may change their missions and not provide training or they may go 

away all together. We need to have the opportunity to seek the best trainers and a 

variety of training organizations. This is one of the main duties of the ND-DV A. 
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- Section 2: As I have testified to the House and the Interim committee. The ND-

' ' 
DVA has a policy in place set by the Administrative Committee on Veterans 

Affairs (ACOV A) which is much more stringent than this section. The chairman 

of the subcommittee on the Department of Veterans Affairs Mr. Dean Overby will 

testify on this issue. 

Section 3: I appreciate the wording of this section which allows the ND-DVA to 

use two of its FTE's as trainer. 

I would like to ask that this committee consider adding these two FTE 

positions to our department. This bill was supposed to address the "Delivery of 

Services" to the veterans of North Dakota. What has been testified by many in the 

past and what still remains is the need for more training and outreach into the 

counties. If the ND-DVA had two FTE trainers which could travel into the 

counties to meet with the CVSO's to conduct "one-on-one" or small regional 

training events to assist our CVSO's with outreach procedures and proper claim 

filing I believe we could greatly improve these services and bring more benefits to 

North Dakota's Veterans' and their families. 
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Section 4: I appreciate the current wording of this section. I appreciate the 

appropriations to bring in contracted training for our CVSO's. And I appreciate 

that this does not tie our state to one organization into the future. 

Continued discussion 

I have discussed the concern of services to North Dakota's Veterans and their 

families with many Senators and Representatives. They bring up many concerns in 

which this training will only address in a small way. I have been approached many 

times with the idea of better structure of our states service officers, mainly in the 

way of regionalization. I have had a study conducted on this matter and have 

provided it to the Coordinating Council and the ACOVA in January of this year. 

There has not been time to review and form an opinion on this study, also the 

stakeholders involved have not had time to review and input their concerns. This 

study does not address all the issues of the Veterans. 

I would support the idea of an interim study if it were conducted by an independent 

entity with no stake in North Dakota's Veterans, it's organizations, agencies or 

constituents. This study would also need to address the needs of the CVSO in 

terms of support such as minimal office space and location, office supplies, secure 

files, private space to visit with veterans, adequate computers with up to date 

/- software, internet and e-mail access, travel budget and training budget. It would 



HB1057 Lonnie Wangen - 5 -

• need to explore other states structures for efficiency, effectiveness, possible 

I ' 
increases to our Veterans benefits and should make service to all Veterans and 

their families in North Dakota equal in quality and accessibility. 



• 

North Dakota Senate 
Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 

Testimony 

H.B.1057 

March 5, 2009 

Prepared by 

Warren J. Tobin 
Stutsman County 

Veterans Service Officer 



• Chairman Dever, members of the committee, distinguished visitors, ladies and 
gentlemen: Good Morning. My name is Warren Tobin, and I am the Stutsman County 
Veterans Service Officer (CVSO). I am currently accredited with the National 
Association of County Veterans Service Officer (NACVSO) and cross accredited with 
four major veterans organizations (Disabled American Veterans, Veterans of Foreign 
Wars, American Veterans (AMVETS) and the Vietnam Veterans of America). I am a 
full-time employee, a charter member of the Professional Veterans Advocates of North 
Dakota, and former chair of the Training Committee for the ND Association of County 
Veterans Service Officers. In my past experience, I was the Instructional Systems 
Manager for an Air Force Minuteman Missile Wing and a former Adjunct Faculty 
member of one of the states' colleges. 

Thank you for the opportunity to testify on this important issue. The original version of 
HB I 057, after two years of study by the interim legislative committee, provided a bold 
strategy to improve service to North Dakota's veterans, their dependents and their 
survivors. Since the bill was significantly amended in the house, what you have before 
you significantly limits the scope and impact ofHB 1057. These significant changes 
have dramatically reduced the potential impact of the bill. It is my opinion that a very 
significant feature of the bill can still be salvaged with your help. 

One change that has the potential for significantly improving the skills, knowledge and 
abilities of our CVSOs is by the requirement for mandatory accreditation. Accreditation 
by an organization recognized by the Department of Veterans Affairs is the most 
observable method to demonstrate the individual has the minimum skills and knowledge 
to provide quality service to his or her clients. In its HB 1057s submitted version, 
NACVSO was selected to provide the training and accreditation for our CVSOs. This is 
the most appropriate approach. Conclusions regarding this matter and amendments to the 
bill may have resulted from some testimony which I would consider to be potentially 
misleading. From my perspective, NACVSO training is the Gold Standard for CVSO 
training. This VA Approved Course taught by certified instructors is well known to be of 
outstanding quality. The instructors are all CVSOs who receive training and instructor 
certification. These CVSOs bring the "Book Knowledge" of the VA's regulations and 
federal law to the classroom, but equally as importantly, they bring the "Practical 
Knowledge" or the real world experiences of being a CVSO into the classroom. This 
adds a level of learning that is difficult, if not impossible, to duplicate anywhere else. 
The high quality ofNACVSO training is well known among organizations which 
represent veterans. A CVSO with NACVSO accreditation may be accredited by over a 
dozen veterans organizations without any additional training. Among these organizations 



• are the DAV, AMVETS, Vietnam Veterans of America, Military Order of the Purple 
Heart, and VFW. The DAV, VFW, and AMVETS account for the majority of the clients 
serviced by the Fargo, ND VA Service Center. 

In a previous response to House testimony, I covered, in some detail, the issues involved 
in the ND Department of Veterans Affairs conducting training and CVSO certification. 
Other speakers will address this item today in greater detail and discuss the potential 
impact of the American Legion providing CVSO accreditation training. I support the 
testimony of the Burleigh and Morton County CVSOs regarding this issue. I would like 
to emphasize that it is my understanding that NACVSO training is the only training that 
would qualify a CVSO for cross accreditation without additional training. 

IfHB 1057 were to be enacted in its current form, additional training for North Dakota's 
CVSOs would be provided. Training would be administered by the ND Department of 
Veterans Affairs and, I have been informed, would be provided by the American Legion. 
CVSOs might be accredited by the American Legion upon completion of this training. 
The ND Department of Veterans Affairs has no ability to accredit CVSOs and other 
veterans service organizations (DAV, VFW, AMVETS) would not accredit these CVSOs 
without additional training. This is clearly not the most effective method to provide the 
needed training and demonstration of our CVSOs skill, knowledge, and ablity. 

As a final note, the commissioner's recommendation for ND Department of Veterans 
Affairs supervision of CVSOs would create potential conflicts of interest and may not 
result in the best results for our veterans. Again, I have provided background on this 
matter in my discussion of the commissioner's comments and support the comments of 
Burleigh and Morton CVSOs on this matter. 

I believe the House departed from a thoroughly studied and well considered approach to 
improve the quality of service to our states 50,000 plus veterans. By its amendments, the 
House did recognize the critical need to improve the quality of training for our CVSOs. 
However, the engrossed bill misses the bullseye ofNACVSO training and certification. I 
encourage you to amend this engrossed bill to correct this item. 

In conclusion, the critical task of training our states CVSOs should be conducted by the 
best experts available - NACVSO. To enact the engrossed version of H81057 would 
obtain less than the desired effect, potentially could be detrimental to some of our CVSOs 
and ultimately our states veterans would not have access to the highest quality of service. 

I will gladly address any questions you may have 
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Good morning Chairman Dever and committee members. I am Dean 

Overby, Chairman of the Veterans Affairs Subcommittee and member of 

the Administrative Committee on Veterans' Affairs. I am here 

representing the Administrative Committee on Veterans Affairs 

regarding Section 2 of House Bill 1057. 

The Veterans' Affairs Subcommittee is responsible for supervision and 

government of the North Dakota Department of Veterans Affairs (ND­

DV A). The subcommittee reports to the Administrative Committee on 

policies and procedures for the department. The full committee then 

votes to adopt these recommendations. 

In January 2006, the Administrative Committee put in place a 

conservatorship policy (Policy #103 attached). This was the result of 

problems uncovered by a previous audit. The policy was revised 

November 2007 to accommodate family matters. 

As you can see from the attachment, department policy is more 

restrictive than what is proposed in section 2 ofHB 1057. 



Under Section 2, department employees could serve as conservators as 
long as their clients receive services or benefits from another source. An 

example is a veteran who is working with a county servicer officer, has 

chosen another organization to represent him/her before the U.S. 

Department of Veterans Affairs, and is not in receipt of the financial 

programs which are administered by the ND-DVA. 

If a ND-DV A employee served as a conservator for a veteran which the 

ND-DVA does not represent, as this section states is permitted. This 

would prohibit that veteran from receiving a hardship grant which 

provides dental or optical assistance to low income recipients. This 

would also prevent a veteran from receiving a veterans' aid loan which 

provides assistance in financially difficult times. This is not fair to the 

veteran who has earned the right to these benefits. 

We ask that you remove Section 2 of House Bill 1057 or at least adopt 

the policy that is presently in place. 

Thank you. 

Dean Overby 

Chairman Sub-committee on ND-DVA 



STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA 
DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS 

DEPARTMENT POLICIES 

SUBJECT: Conservatorships / Guardianships POLICY NO: 
103 

DISTRIBUTION: Department Personnel EFFECTIVE: PAGE NO: 
ACOVA Mtg 1 of 1 

11/2007 

No employee, including the commissioner, shall serve as a conservator or guardian. 

Exceptions to this policy fall under N.D.C.C. 30.1-27, Guardians of Minors and/or in family 
situations. 

It is the position of the Administrative Committee on Veterans' Affairs that the Department of 
Veterans' Affairs not implement a conservatorship program, but instead, continue efforts to 
include such a program in the state's guardianship program. 
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MJM FOR VA 3/5/2009 1 :34 PM· 31712009 12:00 PM & 1 :37 PM; 3/8/2009 12:24 PM 

AMENDMENTS TO RE ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL 1057 

Page 1, line 14, remove "maintain" and insert "comply with" and after "accreditation" 
insert "requirements as set" 

Page 1, line 15, after "appointment" insert "or December 1. 2010. if the individual is 
serving as a county veterans' service officer on August 1. 2009, by a recognized service 
organization or the department of veterans' affairs in compliance with requirements of 
the United States department of veterans affairs" 

Page 2, line 5, remove "a person" and insert "an individual" and after "department" 
insert ". except if the individual is the spouse or an immediate family member of the 
employee" 

Page 2, after line 9, insert: 

"SECTION 4. REPORTS TO LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL. Before July 1 and December 1 
each year through December 1, 2010, the commissioner of veterans' affairs shall 
provide to the legislative council a report regarding the number of county veterans' 
service officers accredited in accordance with the requirements of section 1 of this Act 
and the agency or organization through which each officer has been accredited, and 
also an accountability report with respect to the use of the funds granted under section 
4 of this Act for the training program offered through the department of veterans' affairs 
to county veterans' service officers." 

Page 2, line 10, remove "4" and insert "5" 

Renumber accordingly 

"immediate Jami~•• member", of a person, means [VETERANS' ENTITLEMENTS ACT 1986 - sec. SQ] an 
individual: 

(a) who is a natural parent, adoptive parent or step-parent of the person; or 

(b) who is, or was when the person was under I 8 years of age, a legal guardian of the person; or 

(c) who is a grandparent of the person; or 

(d) who is a sibling of the person. 
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E:\Veterans Affairs\Sen Cook Amdmt.doc 

AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL 1057 

Page 1, line 14, remove "North Dakota department of' 

Page 1, line 15, remove "veterans' affairs" and insert "national association of 
county veterans' service officers" and after "appointment" insert "or December 1. 
2010, if the individual is serving as a county veterans' service officer on August 1, 
2009" 

Renumber accordingly 

Purpose of Amendment: 

The Amendment reinstates the text of the bill as introduced - that specifies the 
National Association of County Veterans Service Officers as the accrediting­
training agency - and gives any new County veterans service officer two years to 
achieve accreditation (as specified in the original bill), but the Amendment 
requires currently serving officers to become accredited by December 1, 2010, 
so that the Legislative Assembly can determine the progress made on achieving 
accreditation of County Veterans Service Officers . 
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Mullen Amendment 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1057 

Page 1, line 14, replace "maintain'' with "comply with", after "accreditation "insert 

"requirements as set", and remove "North Dakota department of' 

Page 1, line 15, remove "veterans affairs", insert "national association of county veterans' 

service officers", and after "appointment" insert "or December 1. 20 I 0, if the individual is 

serving as a county veterans' service officer on August I. 2009, or after August 1. 2011 by a 

recognized service organization or the department of veterans' affairs in compliance with 

requirements of the United States department of veterans affairs" 

Page 1, line 23, after "pursuits" insert". A countv veterans' service officer mav not serve as a 

conservator for a person receiving benefits or services from the department of veterans· affairs or 

the United States department of veterans affairs, except if the person is the spouse or an 

immediate family member of the employee" 

Page 2, line 5, replace "a person" with "an individual" and after "department" insert ",except if 

the individual is the spouse or an immediate family member of the employee" 

Page 2, after line 9, insert: 

"SECTION 4. REPORTS TO LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL. Before December 1. 2009 each 

year through July 1. 2010 and December I. 2010. the commissioner of veterans' affairs shall 

provide to the legislative council a report regarding the number of county veterans' service 

officers accredited in accordance with the requirements of section I of this Act and the agency or 

organization through which each officer has been accredited, and also an accountability report 

with respect to the use of the funds granted under section 4 of this Act for the training program 

offered through the department of veterans' affairs to county veterans' service officers, and by 

December I, 2010, each county shall report to the legislative council the county's compliance 

with Section I of this Act." 

Page 2, line I 0, remove "4" and insert "5" 

Renumber accordingly 
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Mullen Amendment 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1057 

Page I, line 14, replace "maintain" with "comply with", alter "accreditation "insert 
"requirements as set", and remove "North Dakota department ol" 

Page I, line 15, remove "veterans affairs", insert "national association of county veterans' 

service officers", and alter "appointment" insert "or December I. 2010, if the individual is 
serving as a county veterans' service officer on August I, 2009, by a recognized service 

organization or the department of veterans' affairs in compliance with requirements of the 

United States department of veterans affairs" 

Page 2, line 5, remove "a person" and insert "an individual" and after "department" insert 

",except if the individual is the spouse or an immediate family member of the employee" 

Page 2, after Ii ne 9, insert: 

"SECTION 4. REPORTS TO LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL. Before December I. 2009 each 

year through July I, 2010 and December I, 20 I 0, the commissioner of veterans' affairs shall 

provide to the legislative council a report regarding the number of county ve.terans' service 
p,!> ... -": 

officers accredited in accordance with the requirements of section I ofthis-A+t-and the agency or 
organization through which each officer has been accredited, and also an accountability report 

with respect to the use of the funds granted under section 4 of this Act for the training program 

offered through the department of veterans' affairs to county ve~ervice officers, and by 
July 1, 20 I 0, each county shall report, to the legislative council'the county has or intend/Rave 

an accredited county veterans service officer by December I, 2010,." 

Page 2, line I 0, remove "4" and insert "5" 

Renumber accordingly 



• 
HB 1057 

Suggested amendment 

Lonnie Wangen-Commissioner ND-DVA 

Section 1: 

Line 13 after 3 7-19 .1-02 through line 21: remove all underlined amendments 

and replace with: 

The county veterans' service officers must comply with accreditation 

• requirements as set by the North Dakota Department of Veterans Affairs in 

compliance with the Federal VA Office of General Council. 

Renumber appropriately . 

• 
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